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From page 90

Financial highlights

Delivering improved financial results
Undertying EBIT up by £86 millon year on year

£263m

Delivering astronger balance sheet
Net debr reduced from £788 mifion in 2012

£421m

Delivering stronger margins
Underlying gross margin 22 1%
(up 80 basis points year on year)

221%

Delivering more operational cash flow
Cashconversionraho at 48%
ona last 12 months basis

4L8%

Delivering more cost out and
profitimprovement benefits
Curnulative total £194 mullion
(FY13 rarget of £170 mdtion)

£194m

Financial summary

Year ended Year ended

30 S5eptember 2013 30 September 2012

£m (unless otherwise stated) Undertying Statutory  Underhying Statutory

Revenue 9,315 9,315 9195 9195
EBIT 263 13 177 (170}

EBIT margin {%) 2 8% D 1% 19% N/A
Free cash flow 53 53 (103) (103)
Earrungs (loss) per share {p) 50p (16 T)p 06p 67 9)p
Net debt (421) (a21) (788) (788)

Operational highlights

» Significant transformanonal progress —delivered UK undertying EBIT margin of 2 2% on a like for
like basis, on track fo achieve a 5% margin on the same basis by FY15

» Incremental new product revenue grew by £94 milhon in £Y 13, including centributions from concept
hotels, partnership hotels and city breaks, leading to an increase inour FY15 target of incremental
new product revenue to £700 million

» Increased the percentage of hohidays bookedonline 16 36% moving towards our target nFY15 of
over 50%

= Simplified brand labels from 85 1o 30, unifying therm under the Sunny Heart symbol representing
for our cusfomers personalised and trusted holidays, igh fech high touch delivery backed by
market leading international scale and purchasing power

> Successfulimplementanon of an internal and disciplined operating madel catled “The Tharmas Cook
Business Systern” Under this systemn with aur customer at the heart of everything we do, aswell as
how and everywhere we do it we arm to bring further professionalism to the high tech, tigh tauch
delivery of frrusted personalised products to all our customers supported by a lean and innovative
operating system that s dessgned specifically to serve their needs

Throughout this docurnent the term underyng refers to tradmg results after adjusting statutory results for separately disdosed
iterns that are significantn understanding the ongoing results of the Group Separatety disclosed items are included on the face of
the income statement and are detaed in Note 7 o the finanqial staternents

Free cash flow 1sshown on page 37 and represents Operating Cash Flow less Net Interest Capital Expenditure and Separately
Oisclosed ltems
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Transformation:
Inspiring personal journeys

The first phase of our exciting Transformation is
well underway.

Every day we are transforming towards an improved,
more unigue business model and have already
delivered some significant milestones. We've defined
our ‘high tech, high touch’ strategy for profitable
growth, committing fo be there for our customers
wherever, whenever and however they need us,
building a digital presence for the future.

We're developing a new and differentiated product
portfolio, inspiring our customers’ personal journeys
with the assurance of quality they have come to
expect from the global pioneer in travel. We're living
the values of the ‘Sunny Heart’ with trust, nnovation
and personalisation af the heart of all we do.

With the Thomas Cook Business System we now
have the methodology fo further professionalise
our business.

After the first 365 days of our Transformation we
have a clear strategy for profitable growth, we have
momentum and we're delivering against our targets.

And this is just the start...
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Transformation the first 365 days

Overview’ Our transformational milestones

_andmarks towards
orofitable growth

The share price graph below shows some of our
landmarks towards profitable growth during the year

13 Capital Markets Day

Graph removed
MAR (announcement of growth
strafegy and profit
Share price chart pence improvernent p|an5)

o4 First Thomas Cock 01 Launch of Digital
SEP  Leadership Council rgﬁg:’écd MAR Adwisory Board rgr'ggcéfj

01 Peter Fankhauser FEB Code of Conduct
NOV  appointed as CEQ, UK 2013 launched Group-wide
and Continental Europe

Image removed

1 Graph removed ‘




TE58.7/m

Firsthalfunderlying EBIT
onalike for lke basis
improvedby £58 7 million
1o E(197 5)mdlion
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Graphicremoved
16 Half-yearresults & announcement 01 Launchof Sunny
MAY  of capital refinancing plan OCT Heartbrand
MAY “Destinahon d
2013 Discovery” Graphremove
launched
03 Launchofthe
SEP  “Every Voice” employee
engagement survey
Image removed
Image removed

Lety,
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Transformation the first 365 days

Overview At a glance

Building on our

strengths

We are one of the world’s leading leisure travel companies, with cperations in
17 source markets Our core business model s that of a tour operator, sourcing
holiday components by creating them ourselves or procuring them from third

parties, and selfing them to consumers via online and offine channels We enjoy

number one or number two positions (by revenue) in each of our core markets

We have a robust iInvestment case

Business model explained
Onpage 17

We have a compelling data-backed investment case,
the delivery of which 1s specific and measurable:

It s based on three key drivers
1 Profitable growth supported by new product
2 Digital growth supported by innovation
5 Costoutand profit improvement

It is measured through speafic targets as follows

We have a strong financial plan in place

Our targets and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for our
Transformation and profitable growth strategy

FY12 FY13 FYil FY15

actual actual target targat

New product revenue N/A £9um > £300m  >£700m

Targets Web penetration’ 34% 36% >40% >50%
Cost out/profit improverment

{curmulative run rate} f&0m £194m  -£340m  »f440m

Sales CAGR? N/A NAA >2 5% >3 5%

KPls Underlying gross marginimprovernent®  N/A 08% >12% 1 5%

Underlying UK EBIT margin 01% 22% »3 5% »5%

Cash conversion® % 48% >55% >70%

Naotes
+ Measured onalast 12 months departed basis

2 Cormmpound annual growth rate fromF Y13 to FYi 5 including new product revenue
3 Undertying gross margins adpusted for drsposak ant shop doswies an a like for Lke basis
4 Cash conversiondefined asnet cash from operating activihiesless interest pard as a percentage

ofundertymg EBITDA

Fultfinancial statements
From page 90

We have developed a strong financial plan for
profitable growth from a solid base, underpinned by

1. Animproved financial position following
the recent recapitahisation

2. Detailed “bottom up” plans owned
by each of our businesses

3 Embedded targets and KPIs aligned
with our external commitments.

* The Group has a medium term
planning honzon supporied by
detailed finangial projections
prepared and owned by
each business

> The plan for each business is
ngorously reviewed by Group and
segment managernent through
aseries of meetings to produce
arobust resuft

# The Group financial plan 1s reviewed
and approved by the Boardonan
annual basis and updated regularly
to reflect changes to projechans as
they arse

> The approved plan s fully 2ligned
withexternally communicated
targets and KPls and with
management s objectives and
remuneranion schemes
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Our brand approach and values

We delight customers with trusted, personalised holiday experiences through High Tech and High Touch

Brand approach Brand values
Graphic Graphic Graphic Graphic
remaved removed rermoved rermoved
Hightech, hightouch Trusted Innovative Personal
70% of travellers want a Trust, consistency and a strong We conhinue fo ennch our 50% of travellers feel overwhelmed
relationship with their holiday brand are the mostimportant online offer with leading digital by the amount of Information
provider that goes beyond just drvers of custormer choice Innovafions to improve and choice when booking 66%
booking and paying foratnp 93% conversion rafes of travellers want help in choosing
of travellers either search for the nght product for them
content online or express a
preference for booking online
If pessible
Related case study Related case study Related case study Related case study
Onpage 40 Onpage 15 Onpage 29 Onpage 46

We have a new, diverse and expenenced Executive Committee
On 7 November 2013, we announced the completion of the Executive Committee, which 1s another step
on our journey to further professionalise the Group, break down regional silos and realign leadership
responsibilities to accelerate the delivery of our strategy for sustainable profitable growth
Executive Committee Diversity mdicator
GroupCED
remaoved| Harriet Green
5 British
Graphuc Graphic Graphic Graphic Graphic Graphic Graphic 105
removed removed remaved rermoved removed removed removed 5 TSwes
Chief Chief GroupHead  ChiefDigital  Chief General Chief People T German
Fmanacial Operating of AirTravel  Officer Technology Counseland  Officer 1 Falish
Officer Dfficer Christopher Intenim Officer MA Sardra countries
Michagl Healy  Pefer Debus ECEHead Tomasz CraigStoehr  Campopiana
Fankhauser supporfed Srnaczry
bylarmes
Sandford
Qur people expanded
Our people Onpage?s

Building an Effective Orgamisation s central to our Transformation and,
over the last year, we have established and continue to secure the
foundations of a culture and structure that will be able to execute and
deliver our Transformation effectively During the year we have focused
on ensuring that we have the nght peoplein the right roles focused on the
right priorities We have identified and communicated new Values, Ways Graphic removed
of Working and intreduced a Code of Conduct across the Group
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Transformation the first 365 days

Overview At a glance confinued

Building on our
regional knowledge

Thomas Cook Group plcis one of the world's leading leisure travel groups
with sales of over £9 biflion and more than 20 million customers in the year
ended 30 September 2013 Thomas Cook 1s supported by approximatrely
27,000 employees and operates from 17 source markets, 1t 1s number one or
two (by revenue) In allits core markets Thomas Cook Group plc's shares are
listed on the London Stock Exchange (TCG)

Key facts

Passengers 6 2 million

Retail outlets 874

Awrcraft 31

Controlled distribution 86 7%
Internet distribution 41 7%

Employees

Graphremeved Graph removed 1 2 5LILI
b

J—|

UK and freland Confinental Europe
The turnaround of our UK business confinues at pace Focuson Stnct capacity management, leveraging the benefits of our hotel strategy
improved gquaklity of earnings and simplification leaves us on frack to have delvered strong EBIT grawth in Continental Europe with good
achieve our FY15 underlying EBIT margin farget of >5% progress in turning round our loss making businesses in France and Russia

2013 202 2013 2012
Revenue £2.977Tm £3110m Revenue £4.195m £4085m
Cross margin % 25 9% 24 8% Grossmargin % 13 8% 1%
Underlying EBIT ESbm £2m Underlyng EBIT E78m £52m

Underlying EBIT % 22% 01% Underlying EBIT % 18% 13%




Mapremoved

Key facts

Passengers 7 2 million

Retail outlets 2,327

Aircrafr 5

Controlled distribution 36 3%
Internet distnibution 13 0%

Employees

1,253

Airlines Germany

Increased capaaty and strong yield management combined with
benefits from our One Airline implementation have driven strong EBIT
growthin Arines Germany despite challenging market conditions

Key facts

Thomas Cook Group ple Annual Report & Accounts 2013 7

Key facts

Passengers 1 5 milhon

Retail qutiets 11

Aircraft 5

Controlled distnibution 88 2%
Internet distnbutton 72 1%

Employees

3,090

Passengers 69 million’

Arrcraft 39
Employees

2917

Northern Europe

Continued strength in the tradimonal packaged holiday market whilst
developing capability in dynarmic packaging have delivered record

EBIT in Northern Europe

2013 012 2013 2012
Revenue £1,512m £1165m Reverue £1,239m £1174m
Gross margin % 28 6% 275% Gross margin % AT 4% 265%
Underlying EBIT ELBm £36m Underlying EBIT £109m £10Im
Underiypng EBIT % 37% 31% Underlying EBIT % 8 8% 86%

1 Indudes 2 2 mulhon i house passengers

Our performance review
from page 32

V4

ef%,
0!

Strategicreport —a

Directors report INJ

Financial statements (LN



8 Thomas Cook Group plc Annual Repart & Accounts 2013

Transformation the first 365 days

Overview. Chairman’s statement

A year of positive
change and
significant
achievement

We have built a firm
foundation and we believe
the Group has the potential
to create significant value

N the future.

Image removed

Dear Shareholder

It 1s a real pleasure to report a year of posttive change and significant
achievernent, a year when we have successfully delivered the first year of
our Transformation and significantly improved our financial performance,
a year when we have developed and started to deliver against our strategy
for profitable growth, a year when we have successfully strengthened our
balance sheet with the completion of our £1 6 billion Capital Refinancing
Plan and an ongoing range of internal disciplines

These achievemnents are significant by any standards and 2012/13 will be a
year ta remember in the history of this great Company But this 1s just the start
we have buit a firm foundation from which we will continue fo deliver against
our targets and KPIs as our strengthened Management Team, under the
leadership of Harnet Green, continue to drive forward our Transformation
and implernent our strategy for profitable growth




Transformation and strategy for
profitable growth

Our Transformation has, out of necessity,
challenging targets and against arange of
measures we have exceeded our onginal
expectations Under the leadership of Harret
Green and her Management Team we have
successfully reversed the negative trends of
the past by impreving the performance of
the businesses improved cash flow, almost
halved net debt, taken significant cost out

of the business and increased the cost out
targets for furure years The considerable
progress made in the first half of the year
enabled us to strengthen the balance sheet
withthe £1 & billion Capital Refinancing Plan,
Including extended maturities of our bank
facilines We made disposals to focus on

our core businesses conducted one of the
most in depth surveys of travellers to provide
valuable data fo support the development of
our strategy for profitable growth (which was
presented to nvestars in March 2013} and
started to deliver against that strategy

The unification of our brands under one
common symbol the Sunny Heart
supported by our new brand values and our
"One Airline” approach are just two of many
examples of how we are working together,
teanng down the walls across the Segments
and leveraging the combined power of
the Group The significant progress made
throughout the year, has helped aftract high
calibre talent to many areas of the business
to support and drive further progress against
our targets

Corporate culture

A major feature in the Transformation has
been the development of Group-wide
Values, Ways of Working and standards
combined within a Code of Conduct

The Code was developed by managers and
employees across the Group and sefs out n
clear language the standards of behaviour
that are required by all of our employees
wherever they may work The Board fully
recognises that an organisation’s culture Is an
important part of ensuring that our progress
Is sustainable and we have paid particular
attenhion to the introducthion and roll out

of the Code to ensure 1t 1s irmly embedded
across the Group The Board 1s encouraged
by the significant progress that has been
made in each aspect of the Transformation

Itis however particularly pleasing to see
evidence of a cultural shifthaving taken place,
with the silos of old braken down and our
people working together as one Group

Building a stronger and more
diverse Board

We have strengthened the Board with the
addimon of three independent Non-Executive
Directors In reviewing the construct of the
Board we aim to ensure we have high calibre
individuals, who possess the range of skills
and experience that we need fo ensure
quality contnbution to our decssion making

I am pleased that Emre Berkin joined the
Board in Novermnber 2012 and Carl Symon and
Warren Tucker in October 2013 We welcome
the breadth of skills and experience that they
bring to our deliberations

Roger Burnell who has served the Board
welk over the years, most recently as
Sentor Independent Director and Charr

of the Remuneration Committee, has
decided toretire at the AGM In February
2014 He has served on the Board of the
Company and, pror to the merger tn 2007,
MyTravel Group plc, for a tofal peried of
st over 10 years |would like tothank
Roger for his contribution to the Board and
particularly for chainng the Remuneration
Committee duning a peniod of significant
change and improvement fo our executive
remuneration arrangements Upon Roger's
retirernent, Carl Symon will take onthe
role of Senior Independent Director and
Warren Tucker will become Charr of the
Remuneration Committee

We strongly believe that diversity adds
significant value to the quality of discussion
and decision raking and we are pleased with
the progress made by both the Board and
Executive Committee The Board currently
cornprises three women and seven men,

of which sixare based in the UK, twoin
Continental Europe, one in Turkey and one

in the US When looking for additional Non-
Executive Diectors, we will search in countries
in which we have significant operations to
capture relevant local knowledge aswell

as a broad range of skills appropniate fo our
Boardroom Inmy report on governance,

| give more detall on the progress we have
made in respect of the effectiveness of

the Board and the achon plan that we have

in place fo develop this further

Thoemas Cook Group phc Annuai Report & Accounts 2013 9

Our employees

The pace of change as we drive forward our
Transformation 1s made possible by the hard
work and delivery by our management and
employees On behalf of the Board | would
like to thank them for their significant
contnbuhion in delivering a sustainable
future for all our stakeholders

Engaging with our important
stakeholders

Our many stakeholders are mporiant to our
business and we appreciate their tremendous
support and loyalty in recent years

In addition to our shareholders, | would ke

to thank the banks bondholders and our key
regulators for their support before during
and after executing our £1 6 billion Capital
Refinancing Plan We will continue to engage
with them as we deliver our Transformation
and strategy for profitable growth We should
alsorecognrse our corporate advisors, who
have helped the Board steer a steady course
during the past few years

Sustainable future

The Board 1s delighted with the progress
achieved to date, which isreflected in the
ten-fold increase to our share price in the past
year Although we recognise there 1s much
more to do as we Implerment our strategy for
profitable growth the Board is confident of a
sustainable future as our management across
the Group, under theleadership of Harnet
Green and her Executive Tearn continue to
build on our firm foundations and deliver
beyond the targets we have set for 2015
Through using the Thormas Cook Business
System ta further improve the Group, the
Board believes that the Group has the
potential to create significant shareholder
value mn the future

Frank Meysman
Charrman
27 November 2013

Lets,

Go!
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Transformation the first 365 days

Group Chref Executive Officer's Q&A

The first 365 days
of Transformation

The momentum we have
created in the first 365 days Imageremovec
will confinue now Info year
two with even greater focus
and commitment from the
team at Thomas Cook.

This 1s an exciting journey
as we build for the future.

The travel industry i1s changing at pace as consumers require greater
flexibility, greater choice and products personalised to meet their needs
Technology offers so much opportunity for customers to connect i many
different ways and the Transformatnion of Thomas Cook will combine the
“high tech™ innovation that customers need with the “high touch” trusted,
personal service af the heart of the world's oldest travel brand

The Thomas Cook Group 1s on a Transformation journey, and here | answer
sorme of the questions | have been asked about my reflections on the first
365 days of that Transformatton, as we now look forward to year two of
our Jouimey




Successfully completed recapitalisation

£1.6bn

Revenue up by

1.3%

Costsdownby

3%

Freecashflowupby

£156m

Q: What have been your
highhghts of the past year?

A It's been a year of significant milestones
for the Group each one hughly impactful,
and animportant next step on the journey
Our immediate priorities were to stabilise the
business and create a solid foundation from
which we could begin to deliver our newly
outhned strategy for profitable growth

At the same time we had to re-instil a strong
sense of belief both internally and externally
with our key stakeholder groups that we are
focused on the right activifies fo return this
amazing brand to strength, and we had to
deliver against our commifments In the first
365 days of the Transformation of Thomas
Cook we have effected a ngorous and rapid
turnaround of the business and set cut a
robust strategy of sustainable profitable
growth This pace will continue into the year
ahead as we gain mormentum, developing a
high performance culfure and a methodology
to further professionalise the organisation

We conducted one of the most far-reaching
surveys of the leisure travel market in our
early work, seeking the opinions of 18,000
censumers {ncluding bath Thomas Cook
customers and non-customers) across our
key source markets of the UK Germany and
Sweden The findings were invaluable as we
began to develop our strategy for profitable

growth based on facts and data to ensure our
new strategic focus would deliver products and
services to meet the needs of today’s leisure
traveller toinspire their personal jaurneys

Our strategy for profitable growth gradually
took shape, and on 13 March we anngunced
our plans to the capital markets, on 27 lune
we successfully completed our £1 6 billon
recapitalisation and on 1 October 2013

we announced our unified brand strategy
Our disposals prograrmme confinues fo gain
momenturn Inline with the fargets we have
setourselves All of our strategic commitments
are underpinned by a strict timeline for
delivery with robust KPIs and financial targets
Delrvening against gur commitrents is a vital
part of the re-energising of Thomas Cook

We have already made strong progress against
many of the metrics and where progress has
been faster than expected, nofably n the
areas of new product development, our cost
our and profit mprovement drive and also
cash conversion, the targets have now been
increased, as you will see on page 20

Exceeding expectations and developing
amethodology to further professionalise

the business 1s vital If we are to restore
shareholder confidence and once againtake a
ieadership role in shaping the future of travel

Arthe end of the first 365 days, underlying
revenue had grown 1 3%, despite capacty
reductions, costs are down 3% and
underlying EBIT 1s up 49% to £263 million
Free cash flow, an important driver in the
continuing deleverage of the business 15 up
£156 mifhon Net debt has almost halved
and loan matunties have been extended

In order to drive the change that the business
required | needed to strengthen the leadership
team and invest time and energy to ensure
we have the nght skills in place to lead the
Transformation We needed to change the
culture —to put the needs of our customers
and people back at the heart of the business
We have made real progress already in our
questto build a culture of igh performance
and accountabilty, stripping away layers

of managerment between my Executive
team and the custorner all consistent with
our focus to take out cost and dnive aleaner
organisation, as more and more customers
use the web to research and purchase

Thoemas Cook Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2013 1 1

One third of the senior leadership feam are
long-standing members of the Thormnas
Cook leadership team, bringing relevant
knowtedge and perspective, one third were
promoted from within as strong talent and
one third bought n from outside fa bring
speciahst skills experhse and discipline to
the orgarusation Travel has histoncally been
quite sifoed and there 1s so much that can
be learned from other industries, providing
opportunity for progress — creating a truly
differentiated offerng for custorners and
business partners alike Intermnally we have
a saying that we will be “lavish with our
customers and lean with ourselves”

The strengthened leaderstup team have been
critical to the success to date aswe buildan
effective organisation We will continue to
invest ntherr development, whilst attracting
new talent, as reguired The formation of my
new Executive Cormmittee will ensure that
we continue to drive our sfrategic progress
with ngour, breaking down silos and working
across the Group where appropriate whilst
maintaining close local contact with our
customers and their specific market needs
We are driving a change of culture, pace and
professionalism with our Code of Conduct
and Values, now embedded throughout

the business, helping 1o guide howwe

work The formation of my ExCo wilt help

to streamline decision making and ensure
we act as one Group, whilst aligning our
leadership responsibilifies even more robustly
to the strategy fo ensure that our next 365
days of Transformation deliver results in the
same way as the first

In ayear of firsts we have also mvested 1n
our people Aspart of the cost out drive we
had to take out a number of roles—always
regrettable but also essential if we were

to secure the business for the long ferm
encouraging us to work smarter and reducing
costly admin and unnecessary processes,
that did not benefit our custorners or
shareholders Those wholeft were treated
with digruty and respect and given support
to help thern fake the next steps in therr
career Through the consultahon process
over 800 employees, onginally placed at risk
were redeployed in new roles, keeping their
knowledge and skills in the business for the
benefit of custorners and shareholders

Steategic feport =
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Transformation the first 365 days

Group Chief Executive Officer's Q&A continued

When | starfed at Thomas Cook, | asked

our teams globally to shase with me therr
thoughts 8 000 of them did — candid,
actionable feedback from the fronthne
InSeptemnber 2013 we conducted our

first all employee engagernent survey

to sense check our progress with all of

our employees In aservice business like
Thomas Cook, where customers trust usto
inspire and deliver their personal journeys
engaged employees who believe In our end
goal are wital to customer sahsfaction and
loyalty —and ullimately our ability to deliver
profitable growth Engaging our employees
in the Transformation has been wital and
we have worked hard to communicate with
them at every stage —honestly sharing our
posihon to help them understand the tough
deasions we were making They have been
fantastic — urifed as one team to deliver

for our custorners

Our own teams helped develop our new
Values and Ways of Working With integrity
af our core we also have a Code of Conduct,
which allows us to deliver the values of our
new urifying brand —the Sunny Heart which
our employees have embraced so positively
as a real symbol that Thomas Cook 1
changing and s different

We are actively recognising and celebrating
indwidual contributions and through

our Transformer programme involving
some of our many talented individuals in
spreading the messages of transformation
Communication 1s vital fo a successful
Transformation and we work hard to convey
the messages of our progress across the
organisation through many different
mediumns, Including our intranet which

will enable real social collaborahon and

the sharting of best practice Group-wide

fn summary , so many highlights but still
much more to do

Q: Are you where you thought
you would be at this stage?

A Although overall we are ahead of where
we thought we would be at this stage,

the implementation of our strategy for
sustaimable profitable growth has onfy just
begun We have much stilltodo but]believe
the infrastructure, foundations and culture
we are bulding now are preparing us well to
deliver our ambitious plans

Noone at Thomas Cook 15 complacent and,
whilst our first 365 days have delivered strong
results inmany areas we are focused on
continuous iImprovement and the long-term
success of the Group With the systemised
approach to business products, people and
processes we are developing, | know we can
deliver significantly more Reflecting this, we
are increasing three of our key 2015 targets
new product revenue, Wave 1 cost out and
profit mprovement and cash conversion

In addihion, we have importantly announced
our Wave 2 cost out and profit improvement
programme, which is targeted to defiver
improvement of the same magnitude of
Wave 1by 2018

Listeruing to our custormers and better
understanding their needs s central as we
continue to develop our products, systems
andservices We are striving for differentiated
products to give our customers the widest
and most flexible range of destinations, best
able to meet their needs —all underpinned
by the Thomas Cook assurance of safety

and quality to give peace of mind that our
customers can trust Qur holiday expenences
need to be as ndividual as the people who
book them —we want to be there for our
customers however whenever and wherever
theyneedus Our new SunConnect concept
has been well recerved as just one example
of new product that offers custorners

and particularly farmilies a fully connected
holiday experience

We have some exciting innavations in

the pipeline ta drive our online customer
experience — through enhanced web
mproved search funchonality and leading
edge apps We have committed 50% of
our CGroup-wide sales will be transacted via
the web by 2015, although in some parts of
the business we have already exceeded this
target We have much o deliver inthis area
which continues to be an area of strategic

investment as we bring i digrtal talent to

supportour progress Our Digital Advisory

Board comprising external experts in their

field helps to ensure we keep abreast of the !
iatest developments in all sectors, continue

to help drive the pace of change in this area

The first 365 days of our journey are betund
us and we are focused onnew deliverables,
exacting targets and operationalising the
Thomas Cook Business System fo deliver even
greater benefits to our business, the industry
and all of our stakeholders Every person

In the business has clear abjectives and
performance measures as we each take our
part in dniving the Transformation of Thomas
Cook and delivering on our commitments
Ithink rmy current frame of rmind can best

be described as positively dissatisfied and
looking forward to the next 365 days

Q: What s the significance

of Sunny Heart?

A Ahuge part of our journey 1s centred
around our employees and using their passion

for our customers to make a difference to
eachand every personal journey

Qursis the oldest, and arguably the best
loved name in leisure travel With 172 years
of proud tradihon behind us we are a brand
that customers trust We must be worthy
and deserving of that trust

When | armved, the Group was quite siloed In
its thinking and approach Customers were
confused and not always clear which parts
of therr journey were being delivered by
Thornas Cook Best practice wasn't being
shared widely and there was duplicated
actwvity and cost Customers were missing
out Radically reducing our 85 brand labels
was a clear prionty — eliminating cost and
confusion We have now simplified these

85 labels to just 30, umifying our brands
under one common symbol —our new
Sunny Heart Srplifying the customer
expenence the Sunny Heart highlights the
combined strengths of the Group in the
minds of our custormers, and will become '
syronymous with personalised and trusted
holiday experiences and our high tech, high
touch delivery Qurbrand s underpinned

by the Thomas Cook Quality Assurance,
ourinternational scale and market leading
purchasing power —all vital if we are to deliver
for our customers again and again




An expensive brand roll-out would have
been inappropriate for where we are on

our Transformation journey Instead we will
rebrand as we replace Qur employees are
fully engaged in the change, and we wanted
them to embrace the heart and start to

Ive the difference internally first With our
employees engaged, we believe that all those
who come into contact with us will sense the
difference and know that they are dealing
with a new, re energised Thomas Cook

Our new brand continues fo engage and
inspire our teams and almost daily [ am sent
photographs like these of people nght across
the Graup embraang the heart For many
this has been the most visible sign of our
Transformation and they're embracing

the change with renewed commitment

and vigour

s ™
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Q: What's next for Thomas Cook?

A Ourjourneyto build lang term sustainable
value at Thomas Cock continues, with
profitable growth at the heart of all we do
Sustaining our Transformation and delivering
for our customers and shareholders agamn
and again will only be achieved if we have

the best people, best products best systermns
and best processes, all underpinned by the
very best practices from all ndustries not just
our own We are focused on over delivenng
and we've increased three of our FY15 key
performance targets already reflecting befter
progress than onginally anticipated in the
areas of new product revenue, Wave 1 cost
out and our cash conversion

With custorner need firmly back at the heart
of everything we do we will be aiming to
further professionalise the “high tech, high
touch” defivery of our frusted personalised
products, supporfed by a lean and nnovative
operating system, speafically designed for
cur needs

To support this, we have created a disaplined
operating model called “The Thomas Cook
Business System

h Cook Bust Sysh
Profitable growth HighTech
through trusted High Touch
persanahsed adigital business
products
Graphic
removed
Top to bottom
leadership Custorners Efficient structures
and relentless. at the heart systemsand
performance processes thraugh
management fean & innovation

The process of embedding this methodology
into the organisation has begun and

Is already helping to drive a culture of
continuous Improvement across the Group
This approach will be key as we shape the
future of the Group and drive the second year
of our Transformation

Wewill confinue to strengthen the leadership
feamwith global executives who have a track
record for delivering results, and under my
leadership the newly formed ExCo will be
driving greater alignment in all parts of the
strategy creating real opportunity to reduce
cost and duplication and deliver greater
synergy aswe strive to work more effectively
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As already shared, during the development
of our strategy for profitable growth we
undertook one of the largest traveller surveys
of recentyears We have learned through the
survey the importance of customer attirude
in determining holhday preferences and our
failoning our product portfolio to ensure

that we meet individual customer needs
Specifically, we have segmented our product
portfolio Into four areas concept hotels
partnership hoteis, hotels from our brochures
and flexible hotels available onfine, Including
hotelstu com that has recently broadened its
offer fo appeal not just to business but also to
retail customers Developing these plans for
the future are high on our ist of ‘what’s next’
—with opportunity fo increase the number

of visitors to all product categones

InFY13 aver 500,000 customers enjoyed
our 93 exclusive concept hotels, which are
operated under our own brands, Sentido
Sunwing Sunpnime and Smartline

These hotels provide our customers with a
consistent experience based on a defined
list of features that meet their needs
wherever they go on holiday These are
further categonsed according to whether
therr customer focusis adult, couple or
family onentated

Qurother exclusive hotels are partnership
hotels InFY13 over 800,000 customers
enjoyed these hotels, which are owned

by world leading hoteliers, with whom we
have close relationships and who have
strong reputations for providing consistently
high quality service, In keeping wath our
cammitment to assurance

Ourthird segrment consists of hotels from
our brochures, providing customers with

a quality range of accommodation and
style as well as more choice across a wide
range of deshinations InFY13 8 8 million
custorners enjoyed staying at these hotels

Finally, we atso offer a significant range
of flexible hotels that are avallable

onhine on a real time basis via the web

to allow the greatest level of flexibility
Supported by encouraging trials we see
potential 1o attract new customers who
like to book online 2nd typically later than
many others

l
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Transformation the first 365 days

Group Chief Executive Officer’s Q&A continued

Our strategy 1s focused on continuing to

shift more of the total Investment spend
into thase hotels where we have the highest
refumns These are areas of strong strategic
investrnent for the future and we expect to
increase our affering of exclusive partnership
and concept hotels to 800 by FY17, with aver
3 5millon guests

Our product growth ambitions also include a
relentless pursuif to innovate maore products,
such as our new “SunConnect” concept,
developed as a direct response to custorner
feedback through our extensive fraveller
survey Inimal response has been good

We are continuing to diversify beyond
ourtraditional Sun and Beach Products,
developing our portfolio of city hotels across
owr Group We have already doubled our
inventory in Central Europe and plan to miore
than double the number of city hotels we
offer by F¥15

We are also significantly expanding our
Winter Sun offering, with 25% of our planned
growth coming from the addition of new
destinations and the expansion of existing
destinations We have recently added seven
new destinarions to our offer including

St Lucia, Barbados and Anhigua and plan
further addimons in time for next winter

We have increased our target for new product
revenues, following a goed performance in
the year Our farget now 1s to achieve new
product revenue of £700 million by FY15

and by FY 17, we expected to have increased
Incremental product revenue growth
further to more than £1 2 bilion

Tounderpin all our products nght across

the Group and continue to deliver on the
trust that our custorners place with us

when they book a holiday, we are rolling

out an extensive and thorough assurance
programme Thisinvolves a continuous audt
of key quality measures including health and
safety custorner service and overall quality
excellence This work includes extensive
customer surveys that will allow us to
determine what really matters to customers
whichwe can then reinvest into cur ongoing
product development Our survey told us this
matters to consumers

Aswe build an omni channel approach

that ensures custorners can inferact with

us however they want we will continue
todevelop our digital foofpnnt We have
invested significant resource and hime n
improving our webr presence and thiswill
continue as we move all markets away from
the multiple platforms of the past onfo

one web platform This will improve search
capability and consistency, allowing us to
better sort and organise our productsto
better meet customer requirernents, as we
rmaximise the product range we can offer to
every customer in every market We expect
that web penetration will accelerate once all
our businesses are on one platform, reaching
over 50% by 2015 We're drving innovation
and have many exciting new information
and products in development to answer
customer gueshions quickly and effectively
Through our new “destination discovery”
system, In partnership with Tnporah we can
help customers narrow the range of chowes
andthen fo transfer their own shorthst of
selections to therr personal devices through
our new “Dream Capture” to allow them to
peruse and make their final selechionintherr
own homes with therr travelling companions
We are looking to add digital value to every
part of the customer jcurney and many
more innovations will follow as we look o a
digital future, where every leader in our senior
team has web targets embedded in their
performance cnteria

Inline with our new operating methodology,
“The Thnomas Cook Business Systemn”, we plan
to deliver further benefits from enhanced
margin management, more efficent use of
shared services and a leaner organisafional
design These will be delivered under a

Wave 2 cost out and profit improvernent
programme, which will be in addition fo the
Wave 1 work already underway to delver
£440 million of cost out by FY15

QOur new Wave 2 cost out and profiv
improvement ininiatives will drive Senefirs
In gross margin as well as reduce costs
through lower overheads Gross margin
benefits are expected to anse from further
yieid management and working more
closely together as a Group —whether

by adopting one system one nventory
and one web across our markets, and the
stale benefits that come from using our

Image removed
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combined purchasing power to procure
accommodation on a ¢centralised basis,
reducing expense further by growing online
sales of our own branded products

As custorners Increasingly purchase through
our online channels, we will have the chance
to further centralise activity, reducing cost,
improving service and consistency, through
more lean organisational structures and
reduced “back-room” expenses

We believe the total Wave 2 benefits will be
of asimilar magnitude to those identified
through Wave 1 and will be achieved by FY18
Over the nextsix months wewill continue to
develop the plan as we refine and develop
our plans

All of these plans will only be possible by
employing the nght people andso we will
confinue to focus on attracting, developing
and retaimng the very best people — people
who are as excited as we are by the Thomas
Cook Transformation journey as we continue
to professionalise our business and profitably
graow for the benefit of all of our stakeholders

The momentum we have created inthe first
365 days will continue now Into year two with
even greater focus and cormmitment fram
the tearn at Thomas Cock

This 15 an exciting journey as we build
for the future

Harnet Green
Group Chief Executive Officer
27 Novermber 2013
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Brand unification

On 1 October 2013, the Company announced the
unification of its brands and market activity under
one common symbol the Sunny Heart
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Simphfying the brand proposttion is a key element in the Group's profitable growth strategy, bullding on the
Group's already strong and trusted brand heritage and projecting its Transformation into a single business

The Group's many leading brands, such as Neckermann in Europe, Ving in Sweden and Condor in Germany
will all connect with the Sunny Heart in different ways This 1s a major milestone in the Transformation of
the Group, as it continues to develop its product offering and focus on an omni-channel approach
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Transformation the first 365 days

Market overview

A growing
industry

We operatie in a growing industry In 2012, for the first time, the number of international
tourist arrivals {overmight visits made by internahional tounists) exceeded 1 bilhon in a single
year This represents an increase of 3 8% compared fo 2011 Atrmost half of those travellers
were travelling within, or out of, Europe — home to all of our operating source markets —
and the UN World Tounsm Organisation estimates that the European outbound trave!
market will continue to grow at an average of 2 5% per year until 2030 Although the travel
market has in the past been subject to exceptional external shocks, such as geopolitical
events including recent pohitical and civil unrest In MENA destinattons such as Egypt, 1t has
nevertheless grown (by volume) in 16 out of the last 18 years

Economic environment

The global economic recovery I1s projected

to remain subduedin 2013 at 29% slightly
lower thanin 2012 Our three largest markets
the UK, Germany and Sweden, are expected
to achveve GDP growth of 1 4%, 0 5% and
09% respectively in 2013, reflecting the fact
that global growth remains manly driven

by emerging economies, which expect real
GDP growth of 4 5% n 2013 compared to
advanced economies at just 1 2%

The outlook for 2014 s shightly improved
withreal GDP growth worldwide projected at
3 6%, while the European Union, which has
barefy grown 1n 2013, s expected to return
to positve growth of 13% (Source IMF)

Unemployment rates inthe UK at 7 7%
Germany at 5 6% and Sweden at 8 0% are
wellbelow the Eurozone average at 12 3%

Despite a backdrop of subdued economic
growth, demand for international leisure travel
has remained reasonably strong as consumer
spending has held up and unemployment in
our key source markets has remained stable

Regulatory and political
environment

Under the framework of regulations and
standards in each of our source markets we
offer our custorners the assurance of inancial
protection including the reimbursement

of travel costs in the event of Insolvency or
bankruptcy of a tour operator Under the
European Package Travel Directive, we are
subject tovarous disclosure and hability
obligations that apply to the marketers of
travel packages Injuly 2013, the EC published
aproposal for a revision of this Directive,
which both enhances consumer protection
nghts and creates a more level playing field
among operators This Directive 1s now
under consultation in each member state
Specifically in the UK, the Government s
currently consulting with the travel ndustry
around possible changes to the ATOL
consumer protection regime We confinue
ioengage with all key European instisutions
toseek the best cutcome for consumers
and for the ndustry

The airline indusiry s heawvily regulated
principally for safety reasons It hasalso
been subject to an increasing level of
taxation and protechion of consumer nights
Significantly the UK now imposes an air
passenger duty upon travellers from UK
arrports ranging from £13 for customers
travelling to Europe to £94 for customers
travelling to Austrabain economy dass,
subject to an annual inflatienary re-rating
Germany and Northern Europe, on the other
hand have significantly lower passenger
duties European aifines, includsng our

own, have also now become subject to air
passenger nghts legistation whereby airlines
may be required to pay compensation to
passengers whose flights are delayed more
than three hours Since itsintroduction this
tegistation has cost the Group £19 rmillion m
compensation payments We are actively
engaged in lobbying governments in the
interests both of our industry and our
customners, and rerminding them of the
importance of fravel and founsm as asource
of employrment and driver of growth

Our holiday programmes are also influenced
by national and polincal events, and the
responses of governments fo them

Pohtical and crvil unrest in MENA destinations
impacted our operations most significantly
1IN 2011/12, but it has continued this year
most notably insummer 2013, when

several European national governments
adwvised ceasing all but essential travel to
Egypt We follow such governmental travel
advice dosely, and are able to shift our flying
programme and bed capacity to alternative
destinations at short notice in order o
confinue to rmeet our customers expectations
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Business overview

How is
value created?

Q How does Thomas Cook create value throughits business model? Business model
A »We offer our customers anintegrated end to-end rravel expenence underpinned by the strength We are one of the world's leading ieisure travel

of the Thomas Cook brands companies, with operations in 17 source
» We help make sense of the overwhelming choice of fravel products avallable 1o customers markets across E Our core busines
> We differenmate ourselves from compeniors by offenng high levels of service throughout the customerjourney rO35 EUrope Lur 5

»We offer the assurance of a quality contrelied product portfolio and financial security model s that of a tour operator, sourcing
holiday components such as ar travel and
( B accommodation either by creating them

ourselves or procuring them from thurd-
parties, and seling them either on a packaged
or an acomponent-only basis to consumers
wia both online and offline channels We enjoy
anumber one or number two position
(measured by revenues) among fraditignal
package tour operators in our most significant
source markets, being the UK, Germany and
Northern Europe

Qur tour operator business is supported by
ourin house arines Our airlines provide
services to the Group and to third parties
including individuals and other tour operators
Our arlines contribute approximately 17% of
the Group s gross revenue

Our tour operating model has some local
adaptations within each of our markers,
depending on the degree of verhical integration
among our airlines, tour operators and
distribution channels Inthe UK Northern
Europe and Belgium, our business model 1s
that of a vertically integrated tour operator,
based largely on the use of our own anrlines,
and controlled distnbution of product through
our retall outlets websites and call centres

In Germany, however, a significant proportion
of ar capacity requiremnents are sourced

from our German airline Condor, and the
majority of travel products and services are
distnbuted through third party travel agents
In source markets where we do not operate our
own arline, all our air capacity requirements
are sourced from third-parties, and there 1s
generally a lower level of controlled distnbution
than in vertically integrated markets

Diagram removed

We offer awide range of haliday options
including tradihonal pre packaged holidays
independent travel products (including
dynamically-packaged holidays and individual
L ) holiday components), seat only fights and a
selection of travel-related financial and other
anallary services
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Business overview continued

Tradtional pre-packaged holidays are where
two or more components of travel such as
charter flights (often using the Group’s own
airlines), hotels and transfers are bundled
together and offered for sale as a single
product We sell our traditiona) pre-packaged
holidays directly to customers through our
own retall outlets, websites and call-centres,
as well as on a business-to-business basis to
thurd party travel agents

The independent travel products we

offer encompass dynamically-packaged
holidays (where customers can tailor their
holiday by bundling together individual
holiday components to meet their personal
requirements with regard to destination
duration, variety quality and price), individual
holiday components and scheduted

tours We typically aggregate the various
components from a wide range of third-party
suppliers and sell this aggregated product
either directly o custorners or to thurd party
travel agents on a business-to bustness basis
We either charge a mark-up or are paid a
commission by a third-party supplier based
on the booking price paid by the custorner

In addition, we provide travel related financial
services Including foreign currency and pre-
paid foreign currency cards, travelinsurance
and travel finance (products that allow
customers to finance therr travel), and certain
ancillary travel services such as processing of
passenger baggage at airports

Key industry trends

Inrecentyears anumber of key trends
have led to significant changes inthe leisure
travel market These key trends include

the followang

Oniine growth
Graphic
removed

The growth of the internet has increased
price transparency and choice leading
to a significant increase in the availability
of travel products and services online
both through direct suppliers and travel
interrediares, and fo a prohferation of
information and reviews about travel
expertences and destinations

Low cost arr travel
Graphic
removed

Avallability and choice of airline routes has
also expanded asthe nse of the low cost
carriers has led to a significant increase in
the online distributton of seats to a wide
range of destinations at competitive prices

These changes have made It easier for
customers ta research and build their

own travel experiences, leading to strong
growth parhicularly in the independent
travel sector (ncluding dynamic packages
and individual holiday components) and in
online distribution

70% of travellers want a

relationship with their holiday

Browder that goes beyond just
ooking and paying for a trip

In order 1o generate deeper insights into our
rmarket, in November 201 2 we comrussioned
one of the largest surveys conducted in our
industry nrecent years We questioned over
18,000 consumers (including both Thomas
Cook custornersand non customers) across
our key source markets of the UK, Germany
and Sweden in order to establish clear facts
about our marketplace Those surveyed
were asked to respond to a set of questions
regarding therr travel habits and preferences,
inorder to understand why they shop with
a particular fravel brand, and to learn what
travellers want and how they feel when they
bock and expenence ther holidays Fromthis
survey we learned four key insights
» Trust consistency and an assured
experience underpinned by a strong
brand are the most important drivers of
customer choice
» Half of travellers feel overwhelmed by the
amount of nformation and choice when
booking, and two thirds of travellers want
help in choosing the night product for them,
> 93% of travellers either search for content
online or express a preference for booking
online f possible and
> 70% of travellers want a relationship with
their hohday provider that goes beyond just
booking and paying for a tnp, and includes
supporting them both before and during
theur travels

We believe that these insights lay the
foundations for a successful business
model, and represent a clear competitive
advantage over other business modelsin
travet disiribution Through our frusted travel
brands and multiple customer fouchpainits,
we are able to offer custorners personalised
help and advice when making their holiday
arrangements, and suppart them before
departure dunng rheir holiday whilst in
destination and If necessary after their
holiday once they return home We are able
to offer a quality assured product porifolio,
and enjoy deep and long lasting relationships
with many of our hotel suppliers We believe
thar being able to engage with a trusted fravel
partner who can provide a compehitively
priced product, strong customer service

and the assurance of quality control and
financial secunity is increasingly important

to consurmers
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Our value proposition

We create value by offening a wide range of travel products and services fo suit all customer
needs, reaching our customers seamlessly through ormni-channel distnibution Our value
propasition 1s underpinned by the strength of our brand and our high tech, high touch
approach, enabling customers to search for and book therr travel arrangements through
the channel of their choice, while providing a qualty assured travel experience backed up
by strong customer service The key aspects of our value proposition are as follows

1 Brand strength

Thomas Cook is one of the leading brands in the leisure travel market Building ona 17 2-year history in the travel business, the Thomas Cook
brand serves as a strang master brand for the Group and 1s complemented by a range of well-known regional brands, ncluding Neckermann,
Condor, Jet tours, Ving Spies and Tjareborg which are joined by our new unifying mark, the Sunny Heart As part of roling out the Sunny
Heart we have taken the opportunity fo concentrate our brand investrnent reducing the number of brand labels from 85 tojust 30

Our strong brand recognution in the travel market provides us with a solid platform to develop particularly our online distribution channel,

and s a key drver of consumer interest in cur products and senwices, visits to our stores and websites and, ultimately, revenues

.

7 Product breadth

We offer a wide product range and choice of destinations enabling us to meet customer demands and preferences while mitigating

the effect of factors which may negatively affect demand for fravel o certainregions such as the peltical and civil instability in certain

MENA destinations We have a hustary of successful product development and launch including developing exclusive and differentiated
products such as the Sunwing, Sunprime, Smartline and Sentido concept hotels which aim to deliver a consistent high quality, branded
hotel experience fo our customers as well as parfnership hotels which also offer a high quality and exclusive hotel expenience under local
brands We intend to broaden our product offening further by expanding our suceassful concept and partnership hotel programmes and by
developing new, flexible products and services, closely tied to customer demands and preferences We also intend 1o introduce or expand our
product offenngs to birmit the iImpact of seasonality, for example, through the proposed expansion of our winter sun and city break offerings

-~

3 Distribuhon reach

We benefit from an omni-channel distnbution system for our products which include retall stores, websites and call centres, as well as
third party travel agents Access to such awide varety of distnbution channels enables us to maximise custorner reach and provides choice
to our customers We aim to build on this strength through the development of a single customer gateway which wil enable the delvery of
a consistent, personalised customer experience with access to a full range of products, services and personal recommendations across all
distribution channels In support of this objective, a key pronty of the Group 1s to becomne the leading enline tour operator, with an onhine
platforrn that hosts a broad range of products and services

L

4 Service and quality

Cur customer service representatives are present at many custorner touch points including in stores, on gur aircraft and i destination,
providing reassurance and ensuring a high-quality travel expenence We have 3 health and safety assurance process for our products

Our product inventory 1s quakity assured taking info account reviews and recommendations of our own customers and third-party reviewers
For our high volume destinations and accommaodahion we carry out our own professional checks to ensure our product s fully quality controlled
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Transformation the first 365 days

Review of strategy

The first 365 days of
ransformation delivered

—this is just the start

Inthe first 365 days of the Transformation of Thomas Cook, we have effected

angorous and rapid turnaround of the business and set out a robust strategy

of sustainable profitable growth

The fact that the business has responded so quickly and positively to the decisive
actions taken during the year 1s a testament to the fundamentai strengths of our
iconic brand and the value that our customers, who total more than 20 million,
place n Thomas Cook to provide them with what they want trusted and personalised
products, delivered both online and offline in a co-ordinated high tech, high touch way

The extent of progress made, that has Secondly, we are raising our Cost Qut

and

exceeded our anginal expectattons of what Profit Improverent programme (“Wave 17)
could be achieved by the end of this financial  target from more than £400 mullion to
year 1s encouraging for the future This has greater than £440 milion Thirdly we are

led us fo Increase three of our key targetsfor  raising our cash conversion target fro
the year ended 30 Septernber 2015 (*FY157)  more than 60% to greater than 70%

m

Firstly, we are raising our incremental new In addifion, we have announced a further

product revenue target from more than cost out and profifimproverment programme

£500 mullion to greater than £700 million (“Wave 2") to be delivered by FY18, which
will be of the sare magnitude as Wave 1

Based on these and our other targets we
believe that the Group has potential to deliver
significant value for our shareholders over
the short, medium and long term To realise
thisvalue we have set out a clear strategy for
sustainable profitable growth Thiswill not
ordy deliver these specfic and measurable
targers and key performance indicators
(*KPIs"InFY15 but also sustained profirable
growth beyond it

Targets and KPls
Graphic
removed
FY12 FY13 FY 14 £Y15
New product revenue N/A £94m > £300m > £700m
Targets Web penetration’ 34% 36% > 40% > 50%
Cost out/profit improvernent (cumulative run-rate) £60m £1949m > £340m > £440m
Sales CAGR? N/A N/A >2 5% >35%
KPls Underlying gross margin improvement? N/A 08% >12% >15%
UK underlying EBIT margin 01% 22% >3 5% > 5%
Cash conversion® M% L48% > 55% > 70%
Notes

1 Measured on alast 12 months departed basis
2 Compound annual growth rate from FY13 fo FY15 ncluding new product revenue
3 Underlying gross margins adjusted for disposats and shop desures on alike for ike basis

4 Cash conversion defined as net cash from operating activines less interest paid as a percertage of underhying EBITDA
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The progress report of the year demonstrates the enormity of what has been achieved
It also gives us an insight info what Thomas Cook I1s capable of and, with continued
relentless business focus, what it could achieve in the future

2013 Thomas Cook progress report —a major furnaround

Year ended 30 September 2012

Graphic
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Year ended 30 September 2013

Operating loss Operating profit
> EBIT £(170)m » EBIT £13m
Revenue down Revenue up

> Revenue £9,195m

» Revenue £9,315m, up £120m from £9195mInFY12,
arseof 13%

Operating margindown
» Underlying EBIT margin 19%

Operating marginup
> Underlying EBIT margin 2 8%, up from 1 9% inFY12,
arise of 90 basis points

Negative free cash flow
» Free cash flow £(103)m

Positive free cash flow
> Free cash flow £53m, up £156m from £(103)min FY12

Balance sheet refinancing required
» Bank facilifies matunng 2015

Balance sheet strengthened
> £1 6bn capiral refinancing
> Maturities exfended

Net debt
> £788m

Net debt almost halved
> £421m

Disposals made toraise cash

» Hotels Y Clubs De Vacaciones sold
» Thomas Cook tndia sold

» Aircraft sale and leaseback

Mare disposals made — on track ta deliver target of between
£100m to £150min gross proceeds by FY15

> North Amernican business sold

» Thomas Cook Personat Finance (50% share) sold

» Three London Foreign Exchange Bureaux sold

» Egypt and Lebanon business sold*

» 91 5% of our interest In The Airine Group sold*

> Corporate Foreign Exchange Business sold*

> Thomas Cook Tours outsourced*

> Neilson sold*

Cost Out Programme (Wave 1)
> £60m of cumulative benefits realised
> Total curnulative targer £240m by FY15

Cost Out & Profit Improvement Programme (Wave 1)
Benefits Up and FY15 Targets Increased

> £194m of cumulative benefits reahsed

> Total cumulative target increased to E44OmM by FY15

UK operating margen down
» UK underlying EBIT margin 0 1%

UK operating marginup
» UK underlying EBIT margin 2 2%, up from © 1% n FY12, a nise of
210 basis points

No other Cost Out Programme

New Cost Out Programme announced (Wave 2)
> Benehts of a simlar scale to Wave 1 realised by FY18

Complex brand portfolio
> 85 brand labels

Simplified brand portfoho
> 30 brand labels

Customers booking online
» 34% of total bookings online

More customers booking online
» 36% of total bookings online

New products
> 66 Concept Hotels

New product growth
> 93 Concept Hotels

~Subsequent to year end
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Transformation the first 365 days

Review of strafegy continued

The considerable
progress made
fransforming the
Company In the
first half of the
year enabled us
to undertake a

£1 6 billion capital
refinanang

Inthe year ended 30 September 2013, we
successfully reversed the negative frends of
the past Wa delivered a positive operating
profit for the first ime since FY10, putting
Thomas Cook back on a firm trajectory of
profitable growth We delivered encouraging
profitable growth with tncreased revenue, due
to praing and yield improvements as well as
the effect of foreign exchange offsetting a
managed reduction in commmitted capacity
Operating margin was up tao, a strong signal
that Thomas Cook can convert its significant
revenues of over £9 billion info profit

One of the mast encouraging signs aswe
continue to repay debt and set out a strategy
toenable dvidend payments in the future

I15 the positive free cash flow generated
dunng the year a significant reversal from
the negative free cash flow position of the
previous year Reflecting improvements in
working capital and the progress that we are
making, we have increased our FY15 cash
conversion farget to 70% from our inikial
target of 60%

The considerable progress made
transforming the Company in the first half of
the year enabled ustoundertake a £1 6 billion
caprtal refinancing Successfully completed
inJune we raised £431 million in new equiry,
anew banking facilty of £500 rnillion that
maturesin 2017 with a second £191 millon
tranche available from 2015 and a new

bond of Euros 525 million that matures in
2020 Thisrefinanang was one of the most

significant achievernents of fhe year Not only
did if represent a major step an our journey to
reach an optimal capital structure by reducing
net debt and extending matunhes, it crucially
allowed us to continue with our rapid and
successful Transformation of the Group

As part of the Transformation, we undertook
an extensive review of our portfolio of assets
This resulted in a number of disposals that
have Improved our business mix and enabled
more focus on fhose core assets that will
deliver sustained profitable growth

In May we completed the sale of our

North American business which reported

an underlying cperating lossn FY12

of £411 million for cash proceeds of

£3 4 ruliion At the end of May, we disposed
of our 50% share in Thomas Cook Personal
Finance and three standalone foreign
exchange bureaux in London Since the end
of the financial year, we have made Turther
progress On 4 October we disposed of

our business in Egypt and Lebanon which
reported an underlying operating profit of
£11 mullign in FY13, for cash proceeds of

£6 5 millon On 18 November we announced
the sale of our Corporate Foreign Exchange
business for cash proceeds of £4 5 millon
and an outsourcing agreement in respect of
our escorted tours business, Thomas Cook
Tours, for a minimum period of five years

On 19 Novernber we announced the disposal
of 91 5% of our shareholding and loan note
Interestsin The Arrline Group Limited, a

41 9% shareholder in NATS Holdings Limited,
for a cash consideration of approximately
£38 millien Fnally on 25 November we
announced the sale of Neiison for a cash
consideration of £9 2 rillion

This equates once The Arrline Group
fransaction completes, to a total of

£67 rmiflion of gross proceeds from disposals,
putting us on frack to achieve our farget

of between £100 milion and £150 million
by FY15

We are alsa making progress fransforrmung
our underperforming businesses In France,
we have moved closer to our target of
breakeven by FY15 reducing its loss by Euros
5 3 million to Euros 18 7 million (FY12 Euros
24 million) Hawving successfully concluded
our discussions with the Workers Council, we
are now mplementing the restructuring in
line withour planned tmescale in addihon
we have stabilised our Russian business
reporting a loss of Euros 10 5 milion {(FY12
Euros 11 milbon) and expect 1o see significant

Improvernents N FY14 as our restructuring
measuses take effect

The development of our new "One Airline”
structure s also on track This brings together
the four arfines and enables the realisanon of
scale benefits and efficency improvements
Inthe meantime we have continued to
nvest in the refurbishment and renewal of
our arhines, having invested £78 million 1n
maintaining, refurbishing and renewing our
ancraftin FY13

One of the main reasans for Thomas

Cook s previous year losses was that it

had too much cosr due to the businesses
operating insilos From the commencement !
of our Cost Out and Profit mprovement
Programme to 30 September 2013 we

have made significant progress successfully
integrating the businesses and have removed
£194 million of cost This resutt 1s considerably
higher than the £145 milion that we had
orniginally expected to have achieved by

the end of Seprember 2013, reflecting an
acceleration of the savings

One of the key contnbutors fo the cost out
programme has been the UK We announced
inMarch our plan to reduce our payroll by
approximately 2 50010 a target of about
13,000 full time employees

We also said that we would reduce the
number of retall stores As at 30 September
2013, we had reduced our network by

21% frorn 1,101 stores at the beginning of
the programme to 874 and increased the
percentage of business booked online to 36%
(FY12 349%) Arecentreport by retall property
consultants, CWM, confirmed that our store
network 1s highly flexible, with well over half
avallable for renegotiation over the next

three years

As a result of this ongoing furnaround of the
business, the UK underlying EBIT margin
improved by 210 basis points from 01% in |
FY121t02 2% InFY13

We have also idenfified more cost savings
aswe have dug deeper into the business
Some of these have been due to the
identification of new inihiatives Some have
been due to aninternally imposed risk
weighted process which discounts potential
savings for execution risk, proving to be
overly prudent In these instances, as the nisk
weighted project moved closer to realisation,
1t became clear that more savings would
matenalise necessiating an adjustment 1o




the risk weighting which 1n turnresulted in
the release of additional benefits Thishas
resulted inthe rotal curnulative rarget for
F¥15 moving from £240 million at the
beginning of this financial year to £440 million
atthe end of it, an increase of £200 milion

Building sustainable value at Thomas Cook 1s
crucial We aim fo deliver profitable growth
not just to FY15 but also over the long term
Sustaining success is about ensunng that

we have the best people, best preducts and
best processes, underpinned by the very best
prachices from allindustries not just our own

With our custorner at the heart of
everything we do, we airn to bring further
prafessionalism to the high tech, high touch
delivery of trusted, personalised products to
allour customers This will be supported by a
lean and innovative operating system that 1s
designed speafically to serve their needs

This s encapsulated by our disciplined
operating model called “The Thomas Cook
Business System” Consistent withthese
values, we plan to delwer further benefits
from enhanced margin management,

more efficient use of shared services and a
leaner organisational design These wilibe
delivered under a Wave 2 Cost Out and Profit
Improvement Prograrme, which will bein
addition to Wave 1

Our new Wave 2 Cost Qut and Profit
Improvement inttiatives will drive benefitsin
gross margin as well as in cost out through
reduced overheads Gross margm benefirs
are expected to anse from further yield
management from adopting one system,
one Inventory and one web across our
markets, scale benefits from purchasing
accommodation on a centralised basis and
reduced commission expense from growing
onfine sales of our own branded products

Cost out benefits are expected to anse

from the migration of custormers to online
channels with lower associated distribution
costs, the creation of shared service centres
to support the businesses mare efficently
andthe adoption of more lean organisationat
structures within the Croup as a whole

We estimate that the total Wave 2 benefits
will be of a similar scale to Wave 1 and will be
achieved by FY18 White 1t 1s early stages in
theimplementation of the plan, we do expect
that Wave 2 will have a higher investment
cost to achieve the benefits than Wave 1

This investrent cost ts estmated to be
approximately one third of the annual benefit

Over the next six months, we will continue fo
develop the plan applying the risk-weighting
methodology we use for Wave 1 and expect
toindude further details with our first half
results announcement

While cost out and profit improvernent

are clearly major value drivers and provide
Thomas Cook with the advantage of a highly
compehtwe, lean and innovative operating
platform it will not, taken in isolation, drive
profitable growth on a sustained basis up to
and beyond FY15

This will however, be delivered by the
successful rmplementation of our strategy
for sustainable profitable growth

Delvering our strategy
for profitable growth

The central driver of our corporate strategy
15 0uf custorner

Our traveller survey was highly informative

It told us that trust consistency and a strong
brand are the most important drivers of
customer choice Ifalso told us that 50% of
travellers feel averwhetmed by the amount
of choice when booking and 66% of travellers
want help In choosing the nght product

for themn

In addition, as we might have expected 93%
of travelters esther search for contrent online

or express a preference for booking online if
possible However, it also told us that 70% of
travellers want a relahionship with their holiday
provider that goes beyond just booking and
paying foratrp

With trust in our brand being highlighted

as one of our most powerful competitive
advantages, the value of our extensive and
thorough quality assurance programme to
custorners became even clearer Thisinvolves
acontinuous audit of key quality measures
including health and safety, custormer seruce
and overall quality excellence The health
and safety prograrnme measures standards,
audits hotels andincludes a clear escalation
and decision process The customer service
includes structured and regular feedback
that 1s conhinually embedded inour

hotel confracting process Finally, quality
excellence includes extensive surveys that
allow us to determine what really matters

to customers which we can then reinvest
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into hotel assessment and our ongoing
product development

Quality assurance s also a key differenhator
as we increasingly become a digital business
Central to our high tech, high touch approach
Is online delivery combined with protection
qualty assured products and personalised
support all of which we know from our
extensive fraveller survey 1s what custorners
want Consciously offenng a differennated
maodel from the way the online industry has
evolved we believe that our high tech high
touch offer 1s more relevant to travellers’
needs today bringmg us closer to them and
therefore better able to meet their needs

i future

With customers increasingly wishing to book
ther holiday online we plan to increase the
level of business transacted on the web
toaffeast S0%by FY15 Asatthe end of
Septernber 2013 the number of customers
booking thewr holidays onltne had risen

t0 36% All markets saw increased web
penetration, nduding Scandinavia which 1s
over 70% We expect this fo accelerate more
towards our FY15 target of over 50% in the
later periods of the plan, as the significant
organisational change that 1s currently
underway to migrate our six key marketsto a
“OneWeb” common platform takes effect

At the sarme hime, we continue to enrich our
onbne offer with leading digital Innovations
toimprove conversion rates In parhcular,
“DreamCapture” 1s expected to have a
particulary ugh impact This latest inngvation
enables the valuable customner relationship
discussion in the store to confinue digitally
afterthe customer returns home creating
acrucialink between e tail and retail and
helping ensure safe passage between the
channels We expect this to drive increased
conversion rates as customers have easy
access to previously viewed content and have
a clear link straight fo purchase

Anotherinnovation “RepAdvisor™ allows our
representatives to upload information photos
andwdeos on the web so that our customers
can benefit from first-hand information about
theresort and local area We also continue to
innovate with enhancernents ro content such
as ncreased use of accommodation videos
and mproved raom descriptions to Inspire
customers to book a holiday that meets thesr
speaficneeds

In recognition of our innovanons we recently
won the Global Business Excellence Awards
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Transformation the first 365 days

Review of strategy continued

for Outstanding innovanion and inrespect
of RepAdwisor, Quistanding App, the latter
being described as an outstanding example
of harnessing modern techrology to deliver
great customer service

Inght of travellers feeling overwhelmed by
the amount of choice 1t was also clear that
we needed to unify and simplify our brands
Having inhented as many as 85 brand labels,
we took action to smplify these to just

30 unifying our rernaming brands under
one common symbol, the Sunny Heart

Thus allows us to focus our considerable
brand power proposition and productsin the
fulfilment of our specific customers needs

Building on Thomas Cook'’s existing strong
brand heritage the Sunny Heart highhghts
the combined strengths of the Group in

the minds of our customers symbolsing
personalised and trusted holidays high fech,
high touch delivery, backed by Thormas Cook
Quality Assurance international scale and
market leading purchasing power

Our strategic managernent of hotel
product is key to our delivery of sustainable
profitable growth

Having wdentified from our traveller survey the
importance of customer athitudes in terms
of hollday preferences, our hotel portfolio is
carefully segmented fo ensure that we meet
indwidual custormer needs Specifically we
have segmented our product portfolio into
fourareas concept hotels, partnership hotels
hotels from our brochure and flextble hotels,
including hotelsiu com that has recently
broadened s offer to appeal not just to
business but also to retail customers

InFY13 over 500,000 customers enjoyed
our 93 exclusive concept hotels, which are
operated under gur own brands, Sentido,
Sunwing, Sunprime and Smarthne

These hotels provide our customners with a
consistent experience based on a defined list
of features that meet their needs wherever
they go on holiday These are further
categonised according to whether thei
customer focusis adult or family onentated

Qur other exclusive hotels are partnership
hotels In FY13 over 800,000 customers
enjoyed these hotels which currently total
216 Partnership hotels are owned by world
leading hoteliers and strong local partners,
with whom we have close relationstups and
who have strong reputations for providing
consistently high quality service

Qur thurd segment consists of our traditional
brochure hotels, prowding customers with a
quality range of accommodation and style,
as wellas more choice across a wide range
of destinations

Finally, we also offer a significant range of
flexible hotels that are available onfine
Unlike the other segments which are either
exclusive of Involve a level of commutment to
the hotelier these hatels are offered on areal
time basis via the web 1o allow the greatest
level of flexibility Supported by encouraging
trials n our German market we see potenhal
to attract signuficantly more new customers
whao like to book these hotels online and
typically later than our traditignal customers

Overall, our strategy s to shift from
approximately 20% of hotel revenuesin
exclusive and flexible hotels In FY12 to
approximately 40% by FY17 Together, they
will account for incremental new product
revenue growth of £700 millonby FY15

By 2017 we expect to have Increased this
incremental new product growthby a further
£500 milien to more than £1 2 bilion

We will focus our total Investment spend into
exclusive hotels where we have the highest
returns Our proven concept hotels already
delver amargin premium relative to the other
hotals inour portfolio of as much as 500 basis
points Our partnership hotels also deliver a
margin premium, currently in excess of 150
basis points above the other hotels, and it 1s
our awn to double this margin prermium over
the next three years as we continue to invest
further inthis area

Our product growth ambitions also include a
relentless pursuit to nnovate more product
InFY13 we have developed and launched a
new concept hotel type called "SunConpnect”
which offers value based family holidays with
afocus on making fe simpler through the
use of technology This product has been
designed specifically In response to customer
feedback from our extensive survey We will
tnal anirutial 10 hatels in the coming 2014
Summer season

Akey driver of our profitable growth, we

plan to have 800 exclusive partnership and
concept hotels open by FY17, enjoyed by over
3 5 miliory customers

Another key product prionity that we
identtfied in March, when we announced
our strategy for profitable growth, was the
conclusion that we should be providing more

holidays to each custormner by ofienng a
broader product range

For example, the analysis of our survey data
informed us that 77% of our Sun & Beach
customers who took city breaks last year
booked with another provider

With a dedicated team in place we are
significantly enhancing our portfolio of city
hotels across our Group and have already
doubled our inventoryin Central Europe

We plan to increase the number of ity hotels
that we can offer our customers froma
current level of 7000 to 20,000 by FY15

Further professionalising
our Group

Consistent with our internal operating
methodology, The Thormas Cook Business
Systemn, we need to ensure that we have the
nght people, doing the right things in the right
way to deliver our strategy As part of this, we
have completed a new Executive Committee
Thisis an important step on our journey o
further professionalise the Group, breaking
down regionai silos and realigning leadership
responsibilities to deliver the best product in
the best way o our customers

Led by the Chief Executive Officer who s
committed to leading the sustained delivery
of profitable growth, the Cornmuttee also
includes the Group Chief Financial Officer
Chief Operating Officer, Group Head of

Air Travel Chief Technology Officer Chief
Drgital Officer, the Group General Counsel
and the Chief People Officer, all key roles
aswe realign our operating approach to
delver performance excellence as one fully
Integrated Group

Thisis just the start

Anenormous amount has been achieved
transforrning Thornas Cook and the
deliverables in the first 365 days of the
Transformatton are clear

Yet the ymplementation of our strategy for
sustained profitable growth has only just
begun With our systernised approach to
business under The Thomas Cook Business
System, our products, people and processes
and our powerful unified brand, we are
confident of delivering significantly more in
the years fo come




Our people

Building an

Effective Organisation

Background
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The announcement of our new Profitable Growth Strategy, at the Capital Markets

Day in March 2013, was a cnitical part of the Transformation Central to thists

“Building an Effective Orgarnisation” The Thomas Cook Executive Committee are
fully engaged in driving this work, recognising the significant role it has to play in
delivering sustainable, longer-term business success

We have moved af
great pace to create
one unified culture
across the Group,
now sharing a
common brand
and symbol in the
Sunny Heart,

From thevery beginning it was recognised
that “Building an Effective Organisation” was
a crihical element of the key decsions to be
made and cninical to the Transformation —
key streams of achwry and work idenfified

by the top 100 leaders who gathered at

the first Thomas Cook Leadership Council
(*TCLC™) in September 2012 Racognising the
significance and extent of the cultural shafy
required, the CEO set the tone for the
leadership teamn, of mgour and pace to put the
foundational bullding blocks in place in order
to deliver the structural and cultural change
for the Transformation

We have moved at great pace to create ane
unified culture acress the Group now sharning
acommon brand and symbel in the Sunny
Heart Ourhigh performance culture will
become one where diverse talent s attracted
employees are developed to maximise

therr potential and performance and where
employees are encouraged to collaborate, to
share and embed best practice The Thomas
Cook Values and Leadership Behaviours are
central to our People Agenda and successful
execution of our Strategy and Transformation
Cur Code of Conduct was rolled out effectively
during the year, guides behaviour and along
with our new brand brings our values ta life

Key to aneffective organisation is having
the nght people in the nght roles focused
on the night prionties Therefore, this

year there has been much emphasis on
strengthening our leadership capability

The optimum balance has been achteved
inthe fop 130 leaders through keeping a
third in current roles, promoting a third from

within removing unnecessary management
layers and atfracting a third from outside
Inthe last year we have made significant
investment and artracted ‘world class”
talent to strengthen our leadership across
the Group The recrurtment of high calibre
diverse falent info the organisation has
significantly contributed to the raising of
standards and disaiphnes required to deliver
the Transformation and our Strategy

These changes sormetimes require difficult
decisions At Thomas Cook we live by our
values ensuring that anyone impacted is
treated fairly, and supported to take the
next steps

During the year, we have focused on the
followang aspects of “Buldding an Effective
Qrgamisation”

Values, Ways of Working and

Code of Conduct

In Septernber 2012, Thomas Cook developed
the Group's new Values and “Ways of
Waorking™ These fully support our new Code
of Conduct, prowiding a solid and unified
framework across the Group to guide our
behaviours and how we conduct our work

to the highest of standards To ensure that
this important work is fully embedded, over
90% of ouremployees across the Group have
received comprehensive face-to-face frairung
In Interactive sessions led by line managers,
with plans In place to ensure the remainder
are frained in the near term All new
employees also undergo the traming as part
of thew induction Inthe past year we have
seen animprovernent 1n the overall culture

of the organisahion with more openness,
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Transformation the first 365 days

Our people continued

Input was faken from
the top 130 leaders to
identity and develop
our leadership
behaviours, which are
a crifical component
of our new high-
performance culture.

sharing of best practice and collaborative
working across the Group To ensure our
improved culfure remains embedded across
the organisation we regularly snonitor and
measure how employees embrace our
Code of Conduct Thusincludes fotlow up
tnterviews conducted amongst sample
groups of employees and relevant questions
included in the Group-wide employee
engagement survey and in performance
reviews The feedback received by employees
on the introduchion of the Code of Conduct
has been extremely positive throughout

the organisation

Establishing rigour and governance

The TCLC, which comprises our top 130
leaders meets every quarter to share
progress and best practices, providing

a platform to engage and inspire in our
Transformation Inaddiion the CEQ holds
frequent meetings with the senior leadership
team and the Executive Committee formed
In November 2013, along with monthly one-
to ones toensure all leaders are fully aligned
in key decisions and have the support they
need to deliver Monthly Strategy Steering
Group meetings chaired by the CEQ area
forum for key leaders to share progress
review and chaflenge on key Transformation
inifiatives These meetings also provide

the opportunity for visibility of our talent
across the Group bringing to life our new
cutrure of shaning best practice openness
and transparency

Communicating and engaging with

our employees

In addition to the regular forums for our
leadership teams we also have a range of
communicahion channels 1o engage and
inform ouremployees Some examples of
these are CEQ blogs Transformation eNews
and cascade briefings and videos Inaddition
to our digital commurications, we have a
regular programme of face-to face interactive
local events in each segment inorder to
streamline our employee communication,
we will be launching HeartBeat, a new Group-
wide intranet from December 2013

Leadership behaviours

Input was taken from the fop 130 leaders
to1dentify and develop our leadership
behaviours, which are a cniical component
of our new high-performance culture
These behaviours will be embedded across
the Group as we build a world-class ralent
system m order 1o maximmise our falent
performance and development A key
cornpetency for leaders will be the ability to

collaborate and work across the Group as one
tearn These behaviours drve how managers’
performance s measured

Development and succession

As part of the Transformation there 15
renewed focus on development and
succession Developing and maintaining
strong leadershup and succession within the
organisarion wiil be significantly enhanced
with the introduction of our Performance
and Talent System Succession planming
principles will be designed and agreed as part
of our talent strategy work and along with
segment and funciional talent reviews, will be
introduced next year following our first anline
performance review process

Executive development and Emerging
Talent Programme

Dunng the year, we launched the executive
development programme for 53 of our
leaders The purpose of the programme s to
provide key leaders with a personal profile of
strengths fargeted improverment areas and
development options that will enhance job
performance Duning 2074 we will contimue
with this programme to ensure that we are
identifying the correct individuals as we build
our succession pipelines

To further support our successton plans we
are currently designing our first Thomas

Cook Group Emerging Talent Programme

The programme will launch later this year
with 20 candidates from our Airline and will
provide accelerated development and growth
for participants into key leadership roles

Thomas Cook High Potential Model
Anintegral part of our Talent Sirategy Is

fo belp leaders dentify and develop our
pipeline of talent We have designed (with
input from key business leaders and with
reference to external research) a bespoke
model fo helpdentify and develop our “tigh
potenfials” across the Group 1t will be used
by all managers to support the identfication
of talent




We believe that
diversity is an
essential part of
how we do business
and meeft the
needs of our
equally diverse
customer base.

Engagement survey

In September 2013, for the very first firme
every employee inthe Group, across 41
countriesand in 15 languages, was given

the opportunity to participate in “Every
Voice™ —the same uniform employee survey
There was a positive response rate of 73%
across the Group We are engaging with

allof our employees to share the results

and these will be used to identify achions

at a Group, segment and functional level

to drive engagement for our continued
Transformation A further Group wide survey
will take place in 2014, enabling us to frack
our progress, compared to the baseline of the
2013 survey

Pay for performance

At our Capital Markets Day n March 2013,
we announced our srategic fargets and
KPIs for our Transformation Since thus
announcement, we have reviewed our
Reward PoliCy across our entire senior
leadership team The aim was to ensure that
our pay rewards the delivery of our strategy,
and enables our key leaders and talented
indwiduals to share 0 the success that they
are creating with our Transformation

Details of our Remuneration Pohcy can be found
n our Remuneration Report on pages 70 o 87

Organisational effectiveness

As part of the Transformation we are
reviewing our organisational efficiency

and effectiveness to dentify relevant, clear
principles and metrics We will focus inimally
on reviewing the structure in our organisation
and drive organisational change in line with
best practice metrics This will ensure the
Thomas Cook organisation s fit for purpose
and sustainable into the future working
more effectively as a team, drving out cost
and ensuring that our leaders are closer to
our customers

Dwversity and inclusion

We believe that diversity 15 an essential

part of how we do business and meet the
needs of our equally diverse customer base
We operaten 41 countries, employing
people and working with custorners and
supplers from a broad range of backgrounds
and cultures

Recent senior appointments have
strengthened diversity across arange of
measures including skils expenence gender
and nahonality We are already making
progress and have had very posttive feedback
from employees
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We do not tolerate any form of discrimination
and aim to reflect the diversity of the
communities in which we operate We are
committed to treating people fairly and
ensuring that our employment practices are
free from any form of unlawful discnimination
aganst any employee on the grounds of sex,
gender reassignment sexual orientation,
pregnancy race, colour nationality ethnic

of national ongin, religion of belief and age
anddisability

The Group CEO has also been asked o be part
of the Qutstanding in Business |udgmg Panel

The table below shows the gender split at
different levels withun the organisation as at
30 September 2013 At Thomas Cook 70% of
our workforce 1s female which 1s common in
many service Industries However, as can be
seen only 20% of our managers are femnale
We have much more to do in encouraging
and supporhing more gender diversity
throughout Thomas Cook Our focus next
yearon idennfying and developing falent at
alllevels in the organisation will enable us to
imprave an the current situation Led by the
CEO our leaders all have diversity as a focus
and we will be supporting them to understand
the importance of this work and improve with
a new traiming prograrmme ta be launched
next year on recruitment and selection

% %

Male Female Total Malke Female
PLC Board 5 3 8 62% 38%
Executive
Committee and
CEQreports 8 5 13 62% 38%
Sentor
Managemertt
(TCLCand
subsidianes) 205 51 256 B80% 20%
TCLC 99 B 127 V8% 22%

Subsidiaries 106 23 129 82% 18%

Whaolecompany 7827 17938 25765 30% 70%

Lot
40!
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Transformation the first 365 days

Our people continued

Creahng and sustaining our
culture —looking ahead

With the appointment of Sandra
Campopano as Chief Pepple Officerin
September 2013, we will further develop
the People Agenda and Strategy necessary
to deliver our Transformation and Profitable
Growth Strategy

Recagnition

O\/er The ‘aST ed r, we Acadernic research proves a clear and positive
have esfablished and  eresomkeeeriecosion. sasgemen
Conflnue TO secure inorder to further embed our new values
the foundafions of @ e e Fromine
CU“’U e a nd SITUCTU e Heart” which enables peer-to peerinstant
that will be able to

execute and deliver

recogninon allowing people to recognise
colleagues who are living the values There are
different levels of awards which employees
receive as points, redeemable aganst a wide

the Transformation range of local merchandisers in each country
and online The syster Is easy to access
eﬂ:e CTIVG ly through computers, mobiles and tablets —

renforcing our fransifion fo high tech high
fouch Inthal feedback shows that employees
feel ernpowered and appreciate being able
torecognise therr colleagues ina simple and
immediate way

Performance management

Algnment of objectives and goals fo our
Strategy and Transformation will be key to
our successful execution Todeliver thisit

15 crucial that all employees are clear about
what 1s expected of thern and how success
will be measured bothin terms of what they
needto deliver and the behaviours they need
todemonstrate Allemployees have clear
objectives, which are formally reviewed twice
yearly They also need the opportunity to
discuss and agree their development needs
We have infroduced new principles to align
our approach fo performance across the
Group for 2013/14 This will support our
succession work as we identify and develop
pipelines of talent to continue to support
the Transformation Durning 2014 we will

be introducing an online Performance and
Tatent Systern to track the performance and
potential of all our employees

Condlusion

Over the last year, we have established

and confinue to secure the foundations

of a culture and structure that will be able

to execute and deliver the Transformanion
effectively This means having “the nght
people n the night roles focused on the nght
prionties” Getting the best people, doing
thewr best work, with the best tools requires
adisciplined and structured approach

The cultural change we are bringing about
allows us to strengthen our succession plans
for critical roles and pipetines as we accelerate
our succession and talent work into 2014

Creating and embedding our new
cultures critical to the success of our
Transformation We have identfied and
communicated new Values, Ways of
Working, Code of Conduct and leadership
behaviours dnving clear objectives and
ngorous perfarmance measurement,
whilst also taking steps to harmonise our
performance and development approach
across the Group We have begun the
work to build succession pipelines, create
a pay for performance culture and identify
Group engagement achions which will
drive engagement across Thomas Cook
This work will build a culture which well not
only execute the Transformation but deliver
a sustainable organisation




Sraphic | Innovative

Ask & Thomas Cook

will answer
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“Ask & Answer” is an interactive online tool, offering

pofential and existing customers holiday tips and
advice from the Company’s top fravel experts

Representatives of Thomas Cook’s Product, Overseas and Customer Services teams are sharing their
accumulated knowledge with customers through the “Ask & Answer” service available exclusively on

www thomascook com Designed to complement the defailed information pages, comprehensive

FAQs and direct inks to the custorer services team available on the website, “Ask & Answer” features
on each individual package accommodanon page Custormers choosing ta research their hohday online
can now tap info the fravel expertise of Thomas Cook employees as if they were ina stare without the
need to venture away from their sofas Since launching in April 2013, we have received approximately
6,000 questions and posted in excess of 5,500 answers We have seen an improvement in conversion,

average booking value and ime on the sife as a result of implementing “Ask & Answer”

Image removed
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Transformation the first 365 days

Risk management

Aligning risk to our
strategic objectives

Enhanced risk The RMG meets on ati-monthly basis

attended by senior executives from across
management capal:nllty the Group aynd our external advisers, in
The Board s responsible for maintaining order to provide a further dimension of
the Group s nisk management and infernal insight and validation The RMG reports
control systems with amandate that ncludes  to the Audit Commuttee and Risks and
defining risk appetite and monitenng risk Disclosures Committee

exposures to ensure that the nature and

extent of nsks taken by the Group arealigned  The Audit Committee considers risk exposure
with s strategic objechves During the year, against nsk appetite by profiling key nisks in
the Group has made a significant investment  respect of their potential impact and likelihood

in people and technology as it continues fo of occurrence after consideration of mitigating
enhance and develop its sk management and controlling achions that are in place
capahiity We continue ta focus on further Duning the year, the Audit Commuttee has
embedding a culture of nsk management reviewed both top down and botforn up risk
that wifl contribute towards effechve analyses and the Board has undertaken a
strategy execuhon, ensuring both risk and detalled exercise to consider its risk appetite,
opportunities are idenfified and managed both in relation to the Transformation activity
todeliver long-termvalue creation and the business-as usual environment

The aim of these activihes has resulted i a
Our approach to Combined Assurance Plan, which will enable
risk management a nisk-based approach to the ongoing internal

audit and assurance programrme Onan
Operatinginadynamic and rapidly evolving  annual basis the Board reviews rnisk appetite

environment requires a flexible and to ensure itis calibrated to the Group s
responsive risk management process that strategic objectives

can match the pace of change and prowide

managerment with a concise view of the The communication of the Thomas Cook
Group's nsk profile at any point in hime Business System outlines our commitment

to defining excellence in governance and
Risk registers are continually updated through  adopting pninciples of risk management
an ongoing programime of nisk workshops across the organisation and our processes
with operational and financial management  Qur vision for the Thomas Cook Business
Risk s formally assessed as a standing agenda  System extends beyond the parameters of

itern at all monthly segment level board conventional nsk management and we are
meetings, with key risks being escalated now finalising our plans to ensure principles of
and discussed withinthe Risk MattersGroup sk management inflience our approach to
(“RMG™) The RMG and the broader risk leadership orgarusational structure business
management framework has beendesigned  policies and performance and operatonal

to ensure the scope of coverage includes monitoring decsion making and day-to day

operational, financtal and legal nsks withina  processes are “risk proofed” and aligned to
single framewark The purpose of the RMG1s  our Profitable Growth Strategy We do not see
to provide leadership directionand oversight  this 1s as a one-time fransformational activity,

with regard to the Group's overall risk but an opportunity for governance and risk
framework appetite, tolerance and relevant management to influence the culture and
nsk policies processes and controls ethos of our operations and people

Principal nsks and uncertainhes

The table below lists the principal isks and
uncertainties that may affect the Group

and bighlights the mitigating actions that

are being taken and the opportuntiies we aim
tocapture The content of the table however,
1s not intended to be an exhaustive list of all
the nisks and uncertatnties that may arse

Principal nsks

Threat of a continued downturn
in demand due to adverse global
economic factors

Recruitment, development and
retention of talented people

A major health and safety incident
impacting our customers or colleagues

Geo-political and regulatory

Commodity, currency and interest rate

The business Transformation fails
todelwer against strategic and
operational targets

Falure to expand products and services
that meet customer demand

Impact of competition upon price
and market share

Failure of IT infrastructure

Internal control failure

Shortfallin pension funding




Mitigating achons

Our flexible business model aliows us to align our committed capacity to fluctuating demand We
continue to develop muth-channel disinbution and develop strategies 1o improve product mix ncrease
margins and reduce costs Active co ordinahon of Group wide nsk actvity ensures feams have early
indicahion of ererging nsk and by working with nisk specialists delwver robust and effective rmihigations
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Opportumty

Our focus on delivery of our Profitable Growth
Strategy means we are abletorespond rapidiy to
economicimprovernent

A CEQled review of leadership structure and personnel has resulted in 68 new [eaders being appomted
across the Group —reflecring a third being recruited externally a third being retained and a third being
promoted internally These chanﬁes have enabled new strengths and skills to complernent existing
capabnes We have made significant investment in our people attracting “world class™ talent to
strengthen our leadership across the Group Qur h|§h potential talent 1s)dentified and nurtured through
an Executive Development Programme Qur reward schemes are constantly evaluated to drive and
reward performance and ensure refention of key talent Aswe drive change throughout the organisation,
our competency development and evaluation processes are focused on encouraging change agiliry
Sandra Campopiano whowas appointed as Chief People Officer in September 2013 wall drive our
People Agenda gong forward

The creationofahigh performing aciively
enFaged tearn which will consequently lead to
delivery of the key abjectives of the Group's
Transformation, embed the Thomas Coak
Business Systern that will ulimately improve
overall business performanceona
susfainable basis

There 15 a Group-wide structure in place to support managerment through the prowision of staff training
audring and specialist advice The assessmeny of health and safety risks is inbuilf Into daily management
routines and 1smonitored by a comprehensive structure of health and safery committees that are in turn
overseen by a corporate Health Satety & Environmental Commuittee with Board levet oversight

We are commifted toidenhfying initranives thar
willenhance the safety culture and contribure

to the continuous improvernent of the safety and
well being of all our custormers and colleagues

Dedicated management tearns ensure full comphance with formal regulatory requirements We monitor
stakeholder and polincal reactions fo ensure we react to emerging poliical and regulatory developments

The Group will conhnue fo contribute to the
consiructive engagement with government
agencies and other stakeholders to help creare
a sustainable framework for travel and tourism

Comprehensive srrareg?r and suEpornn§ policies to undertake hedging actvity in line with the needs of
the business and prevailing market conditions

The Croup derves cerfainty over its exposure 1o
trends inthe cornmadity ar curtency markets
and interest rates This enables the Group to plan
and make informed decisions particularly during
penods of tugh volatihty

We have a fully \ntegrated Transformation plan fo align the business to our Profitable Growth Strategy
Delvery of strategic Fransformation s led by a high calibre tearn with a rigorous framework of review
including Executive Commiftee meetings one to ones between the Group CEO and her Direct Reports
team Direct Report meetings and Thomas Cook Leadership Council meetings

To dehver sustainable growth in shareholder
value balancing the needs of our customers
employees and commurihies inwhich we

work with our strategic objecrives and corporate
and soal responsibilities

The business has an extensive programme of market and client feedback, Including what we believe to
be cne of the largest consumer surveys ever undertaken withun the sector The business has dedicated
management teams focused on enhanang its portfoha of product and services, whilst continuously
morutoring perfarmance

Focus on new products and services will be the
primary driver in delivening our Profitable
Growth Strategy

Management focus upon omni channef distnbustion Group wide cost reduction programme
collaborative working with key hotellers and partners and targeted effort to expand products and services
aligned ro market demand

Grow market share n historc markets and further
penetration of digital and distribution channels

The Group'sIT straiegy prionities and delivery plans are being reviewed as part of the T Transformation
project being led by the Group Chief Technologr}/ Cfficer This review will ensure delivery of IT services and
technology will be fif to meet the needs of rapidly changing technologies whilst maintaining integnty
and performance of existing systems and operations which are key to the delivery of the Transformation

Toset the fone and drive for change as business
Eursues strategy of hugh rech hugh reuch

ransformation ulimately providing our
customers enhanced products service and
functionality Delivering the (T strategy will result
in a sirengthening of the Group s capabilties
whichis also focused on making internal
functions more efficient

Detalled policy and procedures spanning across key business funcnions Established business processes
with clearly défined transactional contrals and independent monitoring actwity

Enhanced confrol erwviconment minimising
operational loss or fraud

Ongong monitoring of pension scheme assets and habilities independent assessment and comrective
action faken by management

Early alert of pension liability ensures mely action
whilst promoting robust financial planning

Strategic repart —
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Transformation the first 365 days

Performance. Financial review

Financially stronger:

nositioned for
drofitable growth

Image removed

The achievements of the
past year have significantly
strengthened the financial
position of the Group

and positioned it for
profitable growth.

The past financial year has seen a significant improvement in the financial
health of Thomas Cook

In March 2013, we held a Capital Markets Day where we set out the
rnedium-term strategy for the Group for the three years ending

30 September 2015 and published detalled targets against which to
track our progress The status of our performance against those targets
15 summarised on page 20 Subsequently, in June, the Group concluded a
complex, inter-connected £1 6 billion recapitalisation exercise to reduce
debt, extend maturittes and strengthen the capital base

At the same time Group underlying EBIT has increased by £86 million to
£263 million, primarly through the first wave of our Cost Out and Profit
Improvement programme and the confinuing recovery of the UK business
In line with the Group's Profitable Growth strategy, new product lines have
been expanded, which has enabled revenue fo be maintained at above
£9 bithon duning a penod where capacity commitments have been better
ahgned fo customer demand




InMay 2013 the Group announced the disposal of its loss-making
North American business Although the disposal only generated

£3 4 million of cash proceeds this transaction significantly de risked
our business by exiting an extremely competitive market which had
cost over £40 mullion in cash terms duning FY12 After the year end, the
Group also announced the sale of its cutbound business in Egypt and
Lebanon, the Nellson specialist haliday business in the UK, a corporate
foreign exchange business and its interest in the Arrline Group, which
holds a stake in NATS, together generating further disposal proceeds
of over £60 million

Free cash flow has improved sigrificantly, to £53 million an
improvernent of £156 million over last year, due to better trading and
enhanced disaplines in the managerment of working capital

As a consequence of the progress over the past year, Group net debt
has been reduced from £788 million to £421 million Whlst further
deleveraging of the business will continue to be pursued, the
achievernents of the past year have significantly strengthened the
financial position of the Group and positioned it for profitable growth

Balance sheet recapitalisation

On 27 June 2013 the Group completed amajor £1 6 billion

recapitalisation of the business which included

» Rights Issue and Placement of 496 6 milllon Ordinary Shares raising
gross proceeds of £431 million,

> Issue of a new €525 million Eurobond with a coupon of 7 75% which
matures injune 2020 and

» A new £470 mithon four year banking facility maturing in May 2017
to replace prior facilities, together with an additional £191 million
facliry available from 2015 and a separate £30 milion bonding
faclty, which matures in May 2015

Total costs of £73 million were Incurred as part of the recapiralisation,
of which £19 million has been recognised as a reduction in net
proceeds from the equity 1ssue, £37 million has been capitahsed
against the carrying value of the new bond and bank facilities and
£18 million has been included in separately disclosed items within
operating profif

In addihen, the recapitalisation has resulted in a significantly improved

financial position of the Group by providing

> A strengthened capital base to deliver greater financal headroom
and flexibility,

> A stronger financial position fo enable the Group to negotiate
improved terms from ks suppliers credit insurers and other frading
counterparties, and

> The financial resources and flexibility to invest in its Profitable
Crowth strategy

Following the recapitalisation the Group s debt levels have been
reduced and the debt matunty profile has been lengthened to better
match the expected operational cash flow profile The mpact on
the Group's net debt and matunty profife s set out inthe Tieasury
Management section below
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Income staternent
Yearended Yearended

305Sept  30Sept Change Change
£m (unless otherwrse stated) 2013 2012 £m %
Revenue 9,315 9195 120 13
Grass profit 2,059 2026 3B 6
Underlying profit from operations (EBIT) 263 177 86 L84
EBIT separately disciosed items (250) (3u7) 97 280

EBIT

13 (70) 183 -

Other income/expenditure 1 2 () (500)
Net finarice charges (underlying) (146) (123 (23 (87n
Separately disclosed finance charges (26) {46) 0 422
Lossbefore tax (158) {337y w9 533
Tax ©9) (108) 55 529
Discontinued cperahgns - {149y 149 1000
Loss for the year (207) {(390) 3B3 649

Throughout the Finance Review the term underlying refers to trading results after adjusting
statutory results for separately disclosed irerns that are significant in understanding the engoing
results of the Group Separately disclosed [terms are detaled on pages 35 and 36 Withinthe Financial
Reviewresults are considered on anunderlying basts unless otherwise stated

Inimplementing Transformation, the Group has undertaken certain

activities that, combined wath the normal translation effect of foreign
exchange moverments, impact upon the comparabihity of underlying
performance for FY12 andFY13

Toassistinunderstanding the impact of these factors and therr
influence onyear on year progression of the Group s performance,

a “lke-for-lke” analysis has been presented in this report A summary
of the adjustments made to the reported results to arrive at a “iike-for-
like” comparison s set out below

Gross

Revenue  margin Overheads EBIT

fm % fm £m

FY12 reported (continuing) 2195 220 1849 77
India disposal’ (u3) ©3) (39 @in

UK disposals/closures? (13 ©n (10) 1
CE disposals? (30) [OR)] (15) (3]
lmpact of F¥12 prowision movermnents* - ©1) 16 (24)

Impact of currency movementss 235 1) 23 19

FY12 “like for-tike” 934y 213 1835 160

FY13 Reported 9315 221 1796 263

F¥13 “like for-like” growth (Em) (29) 1] 39 103

FY13 “like for hke” growth (%) 03)% 08% 2% 6L L%

1 Reflectsthe results of Thomas Cook India prior toits disposaln August 2012
2 Netimpact of the disposal/closure of indmidual businesses cormpnsing Explorers
Hotel FX Bureauxand FY12 store ¢losures
Netimpact of the disposal of Individual businesses comprising HCY Austral Lagoons
and Secrets
4 Netmpactof provisionrefeases in Nerthern Europe and Arlines Germany in FY12
where the undeslying lability for aircraft related and other costs no longer existed
5 Net mpact of movernent inexchange rates on the translation of the results of
non GBPentines

w
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Transformation the first 365 days

Performance Financial review continued

Revenue

Revenue for FY13 of £9 315 mullion represents an increase of

£120 million (1 3%) onthe comparable figure for FY12 Like-for like
revenue decreased by £29 million (0 3%) pnimarily as a result of
planned capacity managernent

Graph reraoved

Throughout FY13, the Group has pursued a strategy of closely
managing committed capacity to market requirements in order to
allow effectwve management of pricing and yield to achieve improved
and sustainable qualty of earnings In FY13 the Group reduced overall
committed capacity by approximately 5%

Surnmer season revenue was also impacted by social unrestin Egypt
which reduced revenue by appreximately £40 milion

Although year on-year volume driven revenue reduced by
£290 millron this was offser by the benefits on pricing and yield,
Increasing revenue by £261 million

Gross margin

Underlying gross margin of 22 1% represents a 0 1% increase on FY12
On alike-for-fike basss, FY13 gross margin of 22 1% represents a 0 8%
increase on FY12

Priong and yield benefits have been delivered through improved
capacity management as well as improved capability in dynamic
pricing across our businesses These benefits have offset the margin
impact of Surmer 13 weather in UK and Continental Europe being
unusually warm We eshmate that this impacted our gross margin by
approximately £20 million {0 2%)

Cost inflation of £196 million represents a net Increase across our
relevant cost of sales of approximately 2 7% The harmonisation of
hotel purchasing across the Group has significantly improved our
ability o optirnise purchasing negotiations and provide benefits to
our strategic hotelier partners through strengthened relationships
The benefit of this improved purchasing activity 1s not yet fully
reflected in our financial results

Operating expenses

In the year like for-lke operating expenses were reduced by

£39 mllion (2 1%) Thisreduction represents the net effect of the
mpact of the Group's Cost Out and Profit improvement inimiatives
with increases from cerfain volurme-related airline costs and strategic
operating expenditure investments as well as inflanonary and
performance related cost Increases

Graph removed

Craphremoved

The incremental benefits realised in FY13 from the Group’s Cost Qut
and Profit Improvement programme tofalfed £134 milion Of ths,
£57 mullion contnibuies to gross margin improvement with £77 mitlion
being reflected in operating cost reduchion (see below)

The Group s strategic operating cost investments were made to

support the Transformation and our Cost Out and Profitimprovement

inhiatives, Including

» Operating investrments to support Transformation (£17 million)
In order to facihtate the Group s structural Transformation it is
necessary to establish skill bases and infrastructure that faciitate
future organisational efficiency and cost reduchion thraugh our
Wave 2 inmatives This resuits in operating investment inthe areas
of e-commerce development and IT that will be offset by future
efficencees across the Group as relevant transformational activity
progresses These invesiments coverimprovements 1o our IT
infrastructure and functional development in areas such as our
reservation systemns and dynamic packaging capability

> Strategic marketing expenditure focused on web transition
{E4 millon) This represents cost required to support the Group's
development of its web supported orani-channel strategy As web
penetration develops this will facilitate a compensating reduction in
non web marketing




» Operahion of leased concept hotels (2 million) A key element of the
Croup s strategy for profitable growth is the further development
of our concept horel offering These exclusive hotels are operated
under a mix of franchise arrangements and lease arrangements
Approximately 75% of corcept hotels are expected to be franchised
with the balance leased

> Introduction of business activities optimising returns such as in-
house duty free warehouse in Sweden (£2 rrullion)

The Group hasintroduced strict assessment crteria toidentify
opportunities for integration of incrernental activines that add value
and meet our capital ailecation requirements

Underlying EBIT

In the full year FY13, the Group earned underlying EBIT of
£263 million up £86 million (48 6%) on FY12 EBIT of £177 million
On alike-for-ke basis Group EBIT mereased by £103 rullion (64 4%)

INFY13 the Group implemented a number of projects that will
support the delivery of our strategy for profitable growth Given the
nature of our business there is a lead-tme before the financial benefit
of these intiatives will be reflected in financial results As such the
like-for-ke FY 13 EBIT improvement of £103 million is driven primanly
by improved capacity management, generating gross margin
improvement and a net reduction in overheads

Graphremoved

A review of segmental perforrnance by business is set out on
pages 42 to bl
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Separately disclosed items

Separately disciosed itemns represent costs or profits that have

been recognised in the period which management believes are not
the result of normal operating ackivity and performance They are
therefore disclosed separately to give a more comparable view of the
year-on-year underiying trading performance

The tabte below summarises separately disclosed items within
these categorres
Cash' Non-cash FY13 vz
£m Em

£m £m
Restructunng costs (107 (200 (127 {55)
Refinarcing costs (18) - (18) (30}
Goodwitlimparment and asset valuation reviews. b1l (39 (18) (200)
Onerous contracts and legal disputes {16) {43) (59) (0
Amornhsation of business combinationintangibles - {14) () (28)
Provision for tax dispute resoluhon - {14y (14} (12
Pension/other - - - &)
Impacting EBIT (120) (130} (250) (347)
Finance-related charges - (26)  Q6) (e
Tonal (1200 (58) (276) (395

1 The cash column above representstterns that will impact cashan the current period
orn the future (FY12 £115 million)

Restructuring costs

Restructuring costs include £44 mdlion in relation 1o the UK,

£43 million inrelation to Group wide Transformation projects,

£13 milliorin respect of the France turnaround plan, £8 million in
respect of the Russia turnaround plan £8 million in respect of specific
Transformation activiies within Continental Europe £5 million in
respect of UK arcraft fleet reduchions and £3 million in respect of each
of Airines Germany and Head Office Of these costs, £E47 million are
directly attributable to the Cost Qut and Profit Improvement initiatives

Refinanang costs

Frnancial structuring costs from the June 2013 recapitalisation of
£18 million that cannot be attnbuted to specrfic debt or equty
elements have been charged to the profit and loss account
Refinancing costs that are specifically attributable to financing
elements have either been capitalised and will be amortised over the
penod of the funding (bank facility and bond 1ssuance) or netied off
against the share premiurm account {equity Issuance)

go!
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Transformation the first 365 days

Performance Financial review confinued

Goodwtll impairment and asset valuation reviews Net finance charges

The net charge of £18 milien includes a pre-disposal review of

goodwill nrespect of Thomas Cock Egypt and Lebanon (€18 million Netinterest and finance charges for FY13 {excluding separately
imparrment), the review of the vatue of the Group s non-current asset disclosed itemns of £26 mitlon) were £146 millon (2012 £123 million)
investrnent In NATS (£29 millon increase), a pre-disposal review of the  UP £23 mdlion mainy asa result of costs ansing from the sale and
goodwilt and other assefs of Neilson and ifs subsidharies (E13 million  leaseback of aircraft n 2072

impairment), a revaluation of specific Investments held by the UK FY13 - FY12
Net interest and finance costs £m £m
pension fund with a value guaranteed by the Group (mpairment of
£8 milhion) and other intangible asset imparrments (£8 million) Bank and bond inferest and related charges (83 (&1
Commiment fees (7} o
In the prior year goodwill In respect of the then West Europe segment  Leftersofcreditand bonding (1) a5
totalling £94 milion was impaired Also inthe prioryear an impaiment  Otherinterest costs ) Q)
of £96 rmullion was miade in respect of India prior toits disposal Duefo  Intesest and finance costs before aircraft financing (1200 (12}
imnproved business performance, no further goodwill Impairments Interest Income 6 7
have been made in the current year in respect of ongoing Netinterest and finance costs after aircraft financing M) (105)
business actmvity Arrcraft financing (25) (10)
Onerous contracts and legal disputes :Zi?::::s::in — (1:2 a 2(:;
In the year the Group has assessed its position in respect of cerfain L
onerous contracts and made appropnate adjustments fo assets on Following the financing activity undertaken in june 2013, 1115
the balance sheet and made provision for future losses under these antiopated that net interest before arcraft financing wilfremain
contracts These contracts induded certain UK service outsourcing broadly flat until repayment of the Group's 2015 Bonds
contracts (£10 mullion), hotel leases (£14 million), sports marketing
and related travel contracts (£9 million) and foreign exchange and In September 2013 two arcraft operating Jeases were extended
other commercial contracts (£26 million) such that under the IAS assessment criferia they are now adjudged
to be finance leases As such aircraft financing inferest 1s bkely fo be
Amortisation of business combination intangibles around 10% higher in FY14 than FY13 without any further changes to
The amortisation of business cornbination intangibles has reduced arcraft financing

as a result of impairments made i 2012 as well as the disposal of the

Group's North Armernican business Operahng lease charges

Prowision for tax dispute resolution Y3 FVI2
A provision of £14 million has been made following an adverse third-  Included withinnet operating expenses £ £m
party sales fax jJudgement in respect of the Tour Operator Margin Acraft operating lease charges 101 103
Scheme “TOMS” (under appeal) The Group will continue to monitor Retail operahing lease charges 59 67
the progress of the case but takes a prudent view of the outcome and  Hotel aperating lease charges 34 28
has no cash exposure Total 194 198
Finance related charges Retail operating lease charges have reduced by 12% primarily due

The Group has provisions for future liabilities ansing from separately o the reduchion in the UK retail footprint following the closure of
disclosed arcumstances primanly deferred acquisition consideration 185 stores
A notional interest charge of £9 million on the discounted value of

such provistions s recognised within separately disclosed finance

related charges Accelerated amortisation of £7 millon of capitahsed

financing fees from cancelled facilhes s also recognised InFY13

the Group has adopted industry practice of separately disclosing the

notional net Interest charge ansing from its pension scheme assets/

labilities (£9 rmillion) Prior year compararives are restated £ million

has also been charged in respect of IAS39 allocations of the ime value

of dervative products




Taxahon

The Group tax charge and fax paid for the year can be analysed
as follows

FY13 FY1?
Current fax £m fm
UK 5 )
Overseas 39 30
Total curvent tax 4 2%
Deferred tax 5 78
Totaltaxcharge 49 104
Cashtax 31 28

The overall tax charge in the year reduced from £104 million

to £49 mullion InFY12, due to s trading posifion the Group
derecognised significant deferred tax assets In FY13 the tax position
has become more normalised wikh profir and 1oss account fax charge
and cash tax being more closely aligned The Group continues to pay
corporation taxnits profitable markets inparticular in Northern
Europe and Germany, where the annual offset of profits aganst prior
losses is restricted

Earnings / Loss per share

Underlying bastc earnings per share for the year were 5 0 pence
(FY12 0 6 pence) The basic loss per share, after taking into account
separately disclosed items, was 16 7 pence (FY12 loss 67 2 pence)

Treasury management

The Group’s funding, iquidity and exposure to foreign currency,
Interest rates, commaodity prices and financial credit nsk are managed
by the centralised Treasury function and are conducted within a
framework of Board-approved policies and guidelines

The principal aim of freasury achivities is to reduce volahility by
hedging providing a degree of certainty to operating segments and
ensure a sufficient level of iquidity headroom at all hmes

The successful execution of policy will support a sustainable low risk
growth strategy, enable the Group to meet its financial commitments
as they fall due and will enhance the Group s credit rating over the
medium term
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Cash and hquidity

FY13 FY12 Change
Cash flow statement Em Em £m
EBITDA L25 316 109
Working capital 77 {14) N
Tax (31 (29) (2)
Pensiens andother (18) 22) 4
Operating cash flow 453 251 202
Exceptional ltems 1200 (10%) (15)
Capital expenditure (150)  {138) {12}
Nef inferest paid {130) (1) %)
Free cash flow 53 (103) 156
Dividends - {33} 33
Dispasals Gay 192 (228
New equity 431 - 431
Other (31) - (310
Net cashflow 419 56 363

Note FY12 EBITDA represents £333 mullron from continuing aperations offser by £17 mdlion from
discontinued operations (TCHA)

Free cash flow totalled £53 million animprovernent of £156 million,
compared to 2012, due to better trading and working capital
management which together improved by £200 milion The improved
operating cash flow has faciltated the delivery of our Transformation
programme by funding the costs of restructuring and increased
capital expenditure Cash interest costs are slightly higher than last
year due to the sale and leaseback of arcraft in FY12

Net cash flow was further improved through the equity 1ssue injJune
2013 as part of the recaprtalisation process which, together with cash
divested with our North American business, resulted in net cash flow
of £419 mullion, all of which has been apphied to debt reduchion

Cash Conversion

The Group uses a measure of cash conversion reflecting the
amount of cash flow retained by the business which can be used
for investment in capital expenditure, debt repayment or payment
of dividends

Em FY13 FY12
Free cash flow 53 (103}
Capital expenditure 150 138
FCF before Capex 203 35
Undertying EBITDA 45 316
Cash Corversion 48% 1%

Note FY12 EBITDA represents £333 million from confinuing aperations offset by £ 17 millon from
discontinued operations (TCNA)

Cash conversion has improved from 11% to 48% in the year
reflecting improved frading and significant improvements in working
capital management

Lets,
g0
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Transformation the first 365 days

Performance Financial review continued

Debt and financing

The Group sources debt and finance faciities from a combination of
the international capital markets and its relationship banking group
Duning the year, the Group completed a £1 6 billon recapitalisation as
summarnsed on page 33 which, fogether with operating cash flows
reduced net debt from £788 mitlion to £421 mullion

Graph removed

The composihon and maturity profile of the Group s net debt at
30 September 2013 1s summarised below

30September 30 September
20

£m 13 2012 Change Maturity
2015 Euro Bend (335) 39 (16) June 2015
2017 GBP Bond {300) (300) - June 2017
2020 Euro Bond (40} - ()] June 2020
Cammercial Paper (134) - (134)  Qct/Nov2013
Revalving Credit Facihty - {1u2) 142 nfa
Term Loan - (150) 150 n/a
Finance Leases (224) (233) 9 Various
Other external debt {122) (123) 1 Vanous
Arrangement fees 40 18 22 n/a
Total debt {1,515) (1268) (267

Cash and cash equivalenis 1,094 460 634

Net debr w2 (788) 367

The Group s £500 million Commurted Facility comprises a Revolwing Credit Facility of
£300 muthon which was undrawn at 30 September 2013 and a £200 milion bonding
and guarantee facility of which £175 million was drawn af 30 Sepsember 2013 This
Factlity matures partly in May 2015 (£3G milhon) and partly in May 2017 {(£47Q mullion)
The Group also has access to an Addinonal Faclity of £197 rillion which s available from
2075 ro parnally repay the 2015 Bonds £100 million of this facility matures in May 2016
with the remainder matunng i May 2017

Graph removed

The Group's credit rating was upgraded during the year as a result of
the recapitalisation

2013 2012
Corporate ratings Rating  Outlook Rating Outiook
Standard and Poor s B Stable B- Meganhve
Fitch! B Positve B~  Stable

1 Fitch rate the 2020 bond 1 notch hugher at B+

Asignificant proportion of the Group’s debt 1s held in Euro as a natural
hedge against its Euro denominated assefs and earnings

In addition to financing working capital and capital expenditure the
Group finances its fleet of 86 arcraft This 1s achieved through a

mix of secured debt financing finance leases and operating leases
Foltowing the recapitalisatton In June 2013, the Group completed a
sale and leaseback transaction for six arcraft and has a requirernent
to arrange financing for a further six aircraft due for delivery in 2015
and 2016

Cash management

Due to the seasonality of the Group's business cycle and cash flows, a
substantial amount of surplus cash accumulates dunng the summer
months Efficient use and tight control of cash throughout the Group
s faciiiated by the use of cash pooling arrangements and the net
surplus cash s invested by Treasury In hugh quality, short term iquid
instrurnents consistent with Board-approved policy, whichis designed
to mingate counterparty credit isk Yteld 1s maximised wathin the
constrants of the policy but returns in general remain low given the
low interest rate environment in the UK, the US and Europe

A 26-week roling cash forecasting process driven and embedded by
Treasury and supported by business segments, provides a high degree
of confidence in the Group's ability to manage cash effectively and
predict accurately the iquidity headroom requirernents duning the
seasonal low point

Asmall portion of the Group's cash 1s either trapped or restricted in
overseas |ursdictions Such cash does not form part of the iquidity
headroom calculation




Currency and commodity rnisk

The Group’s companies operate globally and expenence vanations
ninput costs anising from mavements in the exchanges rates and oil
prices The main currency exposures Include the Euro, relating fo hotel
sourang, and USD for arrcraft fuel costs

Treasury executes hedging transachons on behalf of all business
segments in ine with policies agreed with local management using
amux of forward contracts and ophions Hedgeng for both foreign
exchange and fuel 1s bullf up over a period of up to 18 months on a
season-by season basis so that the business has a substantial amount
of price certainty at the time of publishing holiday brochures

Interest rate risk

The majonty of the Group s Eurobonds are at fixed interest rates
Treasury continually menitors the sensitivity of the Group s interest
charge to movements 10 rates and periodically use interest rate
derivatives to a'ter the fixed — floating mix Shart term borrowings
under the bank faciihes are typically at floating rates and investment
of surplus cash also attracts a floanng rate retumn

Counterparty credit risk

The Group Is exposed to counterparty default when depositing
surplus cash and when undertaking hedging transactions The mark
to-market value of outstanding denvatives 1s measured frequently
and added to the principal amount of deposits to determine total
counterparty nsk Only counterparties with acceptable credit rafings
are recommended to and approved by the Board

Hedging of fuel and foreign exchange

The Group hedges its principal transactional market nisks —which
are exposure to fluctuation in the sterling / euro and sterling / US
doilar exchange rates and fuet price movernents The proportion of
forthcoming requirements hedged are as noted below

Winter Summer
2013114 2014
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Exchange rates
The average and year end exchange rates relevant to the Group were
Averagerate Year end rate
FY13 FY12 Y13 FY12
GBP/Euro 119 121 119 125
GBP/US dollar 156 158 162 162
GBP/SEK 1022 1068 1037 1056
Ordmnary shares in 1ssue
Million Number
Ordinary Sharesin issue at 1 Qctober 2012 8859
Ordinary Shares inissue at 30 Septernber 2013 U534
Weighted average number of shares inissue duning the period 11959

Euro 0% 5%
LS Dollar 92% 63%
let fuel 8%% 62%

Note As at 31 Ottober 2013

The increase in ordinary shares In issue arises from the exercrsing of
warrants {709 million) and as a result of the placement (87 6 million)
and nghts issue (409 0 million) in June 2013

Post balance sheet disposals

After the year end the Group announced the disposal of the
following businesses

» 1 Outbound tour operator businesses in Egypt and Lebanon
> 2 UK corporate foreign exchange business

> 3 Nellson Active Holidays

> 4 91 5% of its investment in NATS

The combined gross proceeds of these disposals will be approximately
£58 milkon The value expected to be realised in relation to each of the
above transactions has been reflected in the respective asset cariying
valuesin the Group accounts for the year ended 30 September 2013

In the year to 30 September 2013 the assets disposed of aslisted
above contnbuted £89 million to Group Revenue and £4 milllonto
underlying EBIT
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Transformation the first 365 days

Performance continued

Graphe HIgh tech, high touch

removed

DreamCapture:
Bridging retail with eTail

An example of the Group’s high tech, high fouch
strategy, which combines cutting-edge technology
with outstanding customer service fo build strong
connections with customers wherever, whenever
and however they choose to inferact,
“DreamCapture” focuses on connecting the retail
and online experience.

Image removed

Match your destination to your interest
www thomascook com




Image removed

This digital Innovation rephicates Thomascook com search facets for the retail environment,
{inking the customer experience across all channels — from in-store to online — and allowing
custorners to decide how and when they interact with us when booking their holiday

Our retail consultants will use this custormsed service to build a shortlist of personalised
hohday experiences that meet the specific needs of their customer The customer can then
access online giving them the choice of booking online, via the call centre or by going back
to the store, thus linking the customer experience across all channels —whether it be retail
oretait

Image removed
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Transformation the first 365 days

Performance. Operating review

Sources of growth in underlying EBIT

Inunderstanding the delivery of the Group’s
Transformation it 1s helpful to view the performance
of each business segment on a like-for-like basis

The adjustments to reported underlying results

to reflect year on year growth in hke-for-like EBIT, on a
segmental basis are summarised below

United Continental Northern  Airlines

£m Kingdom Europe  Fwope Germany Corporate  Group
FY12 reported 13 52 101 35 (2u) 177
Disposals/closures (19) )] - - - (12)
Provision movements - - ® 0% - (v
Foreign Exchange - 12 5 2 - 19
F¥12 ke for like 3 62 97 22 (2u) 160
FY13 Reported 66 78 109 48 (38 263
Like for Like EBIT Growth 63 16 12 26 (1) 103
Lke-for Uke EBIT Growth% 2100 258 124 1182 {583) 6u4
Across the Group in FY13 the drivers of EBIT
growth were

United Continental Northemn  Airlines
Em Kingdom Europe  Europe Germany Corporate  Group
FY12 hke-for-kike EBIT 3 62 97 22 (2u) 160
Volume (39 (1%) 7 8 (5 (58
Gross margin % 4b 14 25 38 - 122
Overheads 55 18 {5) (20) (%) 39
FY13EBIT 66 78 109 4B (38) 263

Cost out and profit improvement

The cost out and profit improverment programme
produced the Incremental gross margin and
operating expense benefits in each segment as
noted below, In the year to 30 September 2013

United Confinental Northem  Airlines
Em Kingdom Europe  Europe Germany Corporate  Group
Gross margin 37 3 2 12 - 57
Operating expenses L L - 1 3 17
Totai 106 10 2 13 3 134

United Kingdom and Ireland

Turnaround continues at pace
with underlying EBIT growth of
£64 million.

At a glance financial highlights

Like-for ke

£m FY13 Growth* Growth
Revenue 2917 (i3 (119}
Grossmargin (%) 259% 11% 12%
Operahng expenses (704) 65 55
EBIT 66 L] 63
EBIT margin % 22% 19% 21%
Pax booked (No) 6 2m {0 &m (100)%
Pax comritted capacity 33m 0 2)m {6 1%

* Excudesindia

Trading turnaround was focused on the iImprovement in the quality
of earnings through improved yield management, faclitated by a
reduchion In committed capadity, and a reduction in unprofitable
business in specialist markets

Operationally, focus was on the continued simplification of the
business with de-duplication of back office functions and a significant
reduction in the number and scale of management boards First steps
were faken in a rad:cal simplificahion of the UK corporate structure
which will allow further complexity to be removed from the business

From a custorner perspective this corporate simplification is
manifested through the launch of the Group's new brand wdentity on
1 October 2013 and a reductionin the number of UK brands from 27
to 10

On the high street the business continued the overhaul of ts retail
estate with the number of retall outlets being reduced by 195 from
1,069 to 874 The rofl-out of the Group's high tech concept stores
commenced with 5 openings, and this combined with the rolf out of
store rebranding will deliver a refreshed hugh street presence

Financially, the UK furnaround plan delivered year on year cost
savings of £64 millen and further savings of approximately

£42 million were achieved through Group-wide cost out and profit
Improvement tnifratives

Improved yield management combined with contribution from the
cost out and profit improvement Inifiatives realised a 1 1% increase in
gross margin percentage

These trading improvements significantly improving quality of
earnings offset the managed volume reduchion of non-profitable
business to deliver undertying EBIT of £66 million, which, in delivering
an EBIT margin of 2 2% represented a significant step towards
achievernent of the FY 15 targeted 5% EBIT margin




~
Thomas Cock cares

The UK business identified that there was a great need to help
reduce negative senhment across its UK brands in the area of
social media @ThomasCookCares was created to help do just
that, starting on 19 August, they have reduced negative sentiment
from 22% across the UK to 7%, and have also started pro-active
outreach This pro-active outreach s based on people Tweeting
things like I need a hollday”, and based on the team’s tools, they
candentify individuals’ age, gender, location, hkes and dislikes
through therr social profile Based on this informatton the team
can Tweet individuals a direct ink that would be specific to them,
for example if someone 15 18, perhaps a Club 18-30 holiday or if
they are 60+ and like big bands, a link to a cruise Previously this

level of detail for marketing has not been available
e & y,

~

7~
Lots of “friends” in Belgium

According to external research Thomas Cook’s brands dominate
the social media landscape in Belgum's travel industry with
Neckermann and Thomas Cook Belgiurn having nearly three
times as many Facebook “friends” than thew nearest competitor

Image removed
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Continental Europe

Underlying EBIT improved by
50% with underperforming
businesses stabilised.

At a glance financial hughlights

Like-for kke
fm FY13 Growth Growth
Revenue 4,195 10 (10)
Grass margin (%} 13 8% (0 3%) 00%
Operating expenses (503) 22 18
EBIT 78 26 16
EBITmargin % 1 8% 05% 04%
Pax booked (No) 72m {01)m (W%
Pax commutted capacity 25m {0t)m (138)%

The Continental Europe reporting segment combines the pravious
West and Central Evrope segments and France

Through more integrated management the Group will realise the
benefits of scale and the implementation of common processes and
procedures where approprrate, whilst matntaining local knowledge
and capability

Across Europe the Group took action to significantly reduce nsk and
improve quality of earmings through reduchon in committed capacity
These reductions of close to 30% inthe Winter season and 10% in
the summer (average 13 8%} allowed the businesses to significantly
improve its flexibility Through leveraging and strengthening hotelier
relafionships capacity was added dunng the seasons where dermand
was highest resulfing in the overall reduction in bookings being 12%
ahead of capacity management

Following a review of the French business at the start of the year 1t was
decided to retain the business and infegrate it within the Continental
Europe segment A detalled turnaround plan was developed and
implementation s proceeding well fowards achteving breakeven

by FY15

The stabilisation and integration of our Russia business continues to
make good progress Underlying EBIT growth of 23 2% represents

a significant Improvernent on the prior year, giving an EBIT margin

of 1 8% Inaddition to the currently dilutive impact of our French

and Russian businesses EBIT rargin was also influenced by pricing
pressure in sorne markets, which 1s being addressed through our hotel
product strategy

Controlled distnbution of product within Continental Europe 1s
significantly lower than in other segments This1s being addressed
through increasing focus on our mulh channel strategy, with the
development of iImproved web capability and markehng throughout
Continental Europe being a strategic focus area

Lot
go!

Strategic report  —wh

Directors report N2

Financial statements (N




L' L‘ Thornas Cook Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2013

Transformation the first 365 days

Performance Operating review continued

Northern Europe

The Northern European business
once again performed robustly in
the year to 30 September 2013

and achieved a record EBIT resulf.

At a glance financial performance

Like for like

£m FY13 Growth Growth
Reverue 1,239 66 13
Gross hargin {%) 274% GL% 1%
Operahing expenses (230) (1s) (5}
EBIT 109 @ 12
EBIT margin % 8 8% 03% 09%
Pax booked (No) 15m - (2 2)%
Pax committed capacity 1 4m - {11)%

Revenue growth of 1% on a hke-for-like basis and iImproved gross
margns resulted i undertying EBIT growth of 3 9% and hke for-lke
EBIT growth of 13 0% Gross marginimpraved by 11% on alike for
like basis

Reflecting market conditions Winter 12/13 capacity was reduced
by 4% with capacity for the full year reduced by 1% This capacity
reduction was offset by a combination of higher average sales prices
and sales mix Despite challenging summer 2013 frading conditions
due to the very good summer weather in the Nordics, gross margin
remained strong with growth driven by yield management, positive
currency effect, reduced agent sales and a successful launch of

two new own operated Sunpnime concept hotels These hotels
form part of the Group strategy to market more concept horels

and differennated products The increase in operating expenses is
pnmanly due to these new leased hotels and insourcing of fax free
goods logistics in the avline

The Northern European markef for tradiional package holidays
continues to be strang however, recognising developing market trends
and new opportunities in the dynamic packaging market the Group

15 investing to develop its flexible package capability and offering,
leveraging strength from the wider Group

In December 2012, Northern Europe launched the new branding
platform with the Sunny Heart as the urufying symbol for all brands
in the business segment This was a pilot launch for the wider Group,
leading to the Group wide launch on 1 October 2013

-
Travelguide

This year Thomas Cook Germany launched the award winning
personalised travel app “Travelguide” which, from December
2013, will have increased functionality, including the capability
for customers fo book excursions in deshination

Image removed

A
- ™

Successful launch of two new
Sunprime hotels

The Sunprime hotel concept s exclusively offered by Thomas
Cook and 1s especially created for adults holidaying without
childrenlooking for quality and comfort Insummer 2013, we
opened the refurbished and rebranded Sunprime Miramare
Beach Hotel in Rhodes and the Sunprime Waterfront Palma
Beach HotelinMajorca Both hotels have been very popular
with customers and have recerved high customer sahsfaction
scores During summer 2014, we will be launching a two further
Sunprime hotels in Turkey, both beachfront properties one
outside Alanya and the other in Marmarls

Image removed




Airlines Germany

Underlying EBIT growth of 37%
through managed growth and
yield management

At a glance financial performance

Like-for kke
£m FY13 Growth Growth
Revenue 1,312 1u7 116
Gross margin (%) 28 6% 11% 11%
Operating expenses (327) L) (20)
EBIT 48 13 26
EBIT margin% 37% 07% 18%
Pax booked (Mo} 69m 02m 23%
Paxcommitted capacity 75m - 0 3%

The Airines Germany business has performed strongly in the year fo
30 September 2013

Capacity was Increased inthe long haul business driven by the re
allocation of an asrcraft from within the Group, and with this capacity
increase higher yields (+41%) and a higher load factor (+09%p }

were achieved Due to reduced capacity in the whole short/medium
haul market, yields (+7%) and load factors (+1 1%) have improved
significantly, especially n the Winter season

These effects combined with the delivery of the Group-wide

prefir improvement programme, more than offset the increases

of the hedged Kerosene price In Euro, increased depreciation {as a
consequence of the Sale & Leaseback transaction in the prior year)
and the adverse effect of the Egypt crisis in summer allowing like-for-
like EBIT more than double from the prior period

- R
The Sunny Heart takes off

Starting from 1 October, alt arcraft across the Group are going to
be repainted with our new Sunny Heart logo

Image removed
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Development of Group functions
to drive the Transformation, also
impacted by non-recurring costs

At a glance financial highlights

fm FY13 Growth Growth %
Operating expenses 32 9 391%
Foreignexchange 6 5 500%
Total 38 14 58 3%

During the year Group wide functions necessary to dnve the
Group’s Transformanon and confinue its future profitable growth
were developed These functions include Finance, HR IT, Legal,
E-Commerce and Procurement In order to establish these Group
funchions in the time available there was ihally a high utiisation

of temporary and contract labour Through the course of the year
this resource has gradually been brought in house, reducing future
run rates Additonally due fo the relative performance of the Group
inthe financial year 2013 and the prior period, incentive based
remuneration increased year on-year

Prior to the Group's refinancing completed en 27 June 2013, the
Group operated with restricted facilities for the hedging of foreign
exchange exposures [n the year this resulted in foreign exchange
losses of £6 million being incurred (2012 £1 million)
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Transformation the first 365 days

Graphi
o |Personal

Inspiring our customers
wherever, whenever

In May 2013 we infroduced our
Destination Discovery online holiday
search platform, and with it we began
to offer expert advice fo inspire
customers with personalised holiday
recommendations using information
provided by the customer.

Working as an online travel agent, it can be used by customers at home
or by consultantsn store, fo help enhance customer service and add to
therr exishing knowledge and resources The technology provides users
with detalled country research, in-depth travel videos and photos, street
maps showing hotel locations and surrounding areas, and indicates Image removed
the best ime of year to visit countries The site provides data on more
than 2,500 destinations using matenal from 100 travel experts and
professional travel writers

Harnessing technology for exciting new applications hke Destination
Discovery helps our customers create their dream holiday wherever
and whenever
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Transformation the first 365 days

Performance Sustainability continued

-

Embedding b

. are raphi
sustainability across | S Dream and Plan Book
our customer journey
Our appro ach Before our custamers even leave for their ‘When it s ime fo book their halidays our cusfomers
desnnations theywant to have peace of mind that want fa choose the package that s nght for them Wecan
their holiday expenence will meet therr expectahgns make our customers aware at the time of booking about
and will be delivered by a tompany they trust That sustanable hohday expenentes and we promotelocal
s why we offer a diverse range of bespoke holiday cultures By adophing innovative approaches such as high
ophions fo cater for their needs we provide financial tech tightouch we are doing all we can to deliver this
protechon tobuild trust and provide confidence
allowing early booking with the assurance that Engaging our employees on sustainabiity is a crinical part
customer money will be safe and we focus on aof our work —people who are passionate about the work
implementing high standards of safety to ensure being done will encourage ancininate cost savings aswell
asecure journey as being the best advocates for the business Looking after
the health welfare andwell being of those employees
15 akey pnonty andwe have forums in all our markets to
maonitor and implement any necessary achons
Maintaining an effective- supply chain s also critical fo our
business success —our customers’ holiday expenences
are made by oursuppliers 50 we must work with therm
to develop and dellver the services and standards our
customers expect
What do we fOCUS on? = Financial protection » Engaging employees on sustainability
» Customer experience > High tech and innavation (including brochure
» Cusromer safety paperreduchion)
» Community Engagement » Sustanable supply chain
» High touch » Promofing local cultures
Key ﬁgures inthe UK, our Thomas Cook Childrens Chanity has Inihe UK we produced over 2 million fewer brochures
raised more than £E4 millionsince 2009 and this tosave 1101 tonnes of paper between 2011 and 2013
money 15 spent on "Making Dreams Come True As partof our ugh tech high touch approach we are
for sick and disadvantaged children by improving encouraging our Cusiomersio use ightech alternatives
education faciihes improving facilities that provide Mot only does this heln to enhance therr expenience
well being and health care and working withvanious withus 1If also.mproves the quality and amount of
charity partners to improve the lives of chitdren information available to them
Casestu dy Making dreams come true Communicahng sustainability

Fach Chrsimasinthe past sicyears Thomas Cook UK
has offered childrenn the commurkhes surrounding
their arport bases the chance toexpenence areal fight
—childrenwho dueto thew personal circumstances,
have nat been abie to experience a fight before Flights
operate froma vanety of airparts and the children are
takenupintothe awr where Father Chastmas joins them
to hand ouf presents Thomas Cook employees join
these flights as volunteers and help fo make Chnstmas
dreams come true for all evohed

“Teacher loe Mulhern saidh it was “one of the ighights
of his career” Belfast Telegraph

Itisimportant fo engage with our customers on key
sustainability 1ssues as early i the customer journey
process as possible At Thomas Cook Germany we have
been focusing on the use of rechnology to actueve this
A newly designed sustainatulity section was launched
across allwebsitesin 2013 and a sustainable fravel
guide app has been developed for custorners to find out
more about therr deshination as well ashow toimmerse
thernselves more in the locat culture whilst preserving
the ervsronments they enjoy The new blog area has also
beenwellused withinformation being included abour
sustainabhry projecis inthe places they intend rovisit




Graphic removed
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Depart

Arrive and Experience

~

Return Home
and Share

Ondeparture our custorners want an easy and stress
freejourney Through our focus on first class customer
service we are making sure that we deliver rhis
consisiently Bus thereis also alot we are dong bebind
the scenes to reduce our enwronmental impact and
improve efficiencies From reducing carbon emissions
across our fleef o minimising our operanonal waste
we are working to build a better business

Chmate change and greenhouse gas emissions
remain a global challenge for all and we recognise the
part our business plays in addressing this challenge
We also recognise the risk that our business faces
from environumenitat threats The majority of our
emissions come fram our atines and increasing fuel
effivency therefore continues ro be one of our key
prionties —we are proud to operate one of the most
efficcentairines In the world

As our customers armve at their holiday destmanens
weconhinue to embed sustainability thioughout
aur offer

Wae strive fo create thriving communities where

aur employees live and work as well aswhere our
custormers travel Ihsanintegral part of creating a
holidayexperience By supporting destinations we
are ensuring a high quality service and by invesning
Incornmunities we are helping to grow our business
and artract a talented workforce

Similarly child safety and protection s central fo our
bustness and Thomas Cook Groupis fully commutted
tothe UN Corwvention on the Rights of the Child

We believe it 15 our responsibility to promote and
safeguard children s welfare and our focusonthis
work and commitment to “The Code” {an industry
driverinternational code of conduct} has this

year led to us being norminated for a Responsible
Toursm award

We want all of our customers 10 enjoy therr trip and
expernence with Thornas Cook That 1s why we closely
monitor thew satisfaction through frequent custorner
feedbatksurveys

For us to continually develop our business and to
ensure we focus our efforts onthe issueswhich are
rostimperiant we place significant emphass on
wider stakeholder engagement and communication
We ensure regular interachon with our key
stakeholder audiences through various means
n¢luding face o face meetings communications
and questionnatres

In flight waste 1s also one of our main waste stregams
and our airlines have been leaders in tackling

this ssue despite the aperational and legislatve
challenges it brings Improving efficencies extends
towaste management and can bring a cost benefir
aswell as customer engagement

> Chmate change/GHG emissions
» Fuel eficiency

» Energy efficiency/secunty

» Wasre (including in fhght waste)
» Customer service

» Child protection

»Health and safety » Resource efficiency
> Quality assurance > Water managemenr
» Child pratechion » Engaging customers

» Local economic on sustamability

developmen? » Sustainable supply
> Promeoting local chain
cultures

» Custormer satisfaction
» In fight waste
» Stakeholder engagement

GHG Ermissions Data and 70:9g €02 per RPK and
045kg COx per £1 turnaver See page 47 for
greenhouse gas emissions data for penod 1 Gefaber
2012 to 30 September 2013

243 Travelfe awards 88% of these Gold
L0 Locat Labet events in over 20 destinahions
around the world

Feedback from our customers 94% of customersin
Northern Europe expressed overall sahisfaction with
theirholidays 83% of our custorners in Germany
would recommend Thomas Cook to a frend

Optimum Flight

Through a partnershep with Manchester arrpor: and
collaborative working between globalarr navigation
service providers Thomas Cook UK Airlines operated
atest flight programme o achueve the “Optimum
Flight” The aims of thrs were tonveshgate increased
efficiencies in all areas of flight operations using a
vanety of techniques and resulis were measured

to calculate reductions achieved Fuelefficiency
remains a key focus of all our airknes and we continue
to operate one of the most fuel efficient arrhnesin
the world

Local Labet excursions

In the summer of 2013 weintroduged "Local Label”
excursions to focus on the promohon of local
products and culture to cur customers while boosting
local economues and envirgnments The excursions
typically enable our customers to experience life and
the communities away from the beaches bars and
other features they normally see dunng their holiday
Examplesinclude the 100% Mayan excursion in
Mexico where customers get the chance to spend
nme wath areat Mayan community in avillage near
the SianXa an biosphere reserve The money raised
from these experiencesis baing used to help villagers
improve their culivation techriques

Inflight waste

Anew recycling inthative introduced thisyear ar
Osloarrport by Thormas Cook Airlines Scandinavia
has demonsirated the ability to engage customers
reduce environmental cost and raise funds for local
communities Severalyears ago the airline was the
firstto separate collechon of plashe bottles and
alurmimum cans from flights for recycling and now
these are being sold fo recycing centres Money
raised from this sthen distnbuted directiy to local
charily Save the Children Norway (Redd Bama)

More information regarding the Thormas Cook Group approach to sustanability can be

found i our sustainability report at www thomascookgroup com/sustainability
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Performance: Sustainability

Sustainability
is at our heart

We launched our Group viston for a sustainable futurein 2010 to “Ensure
the longewity of our business through sustanable Transformation and
profitable growth and to Integrate sustainability info everything that we
do and into every element of the customer journey ~ every product we
sell, every customer’s holiday expenence and every employeesrole”

Sustainability s fundamental to rhe success of ourbusiness Not only is it
at the heart of howwe behave, if 1s a prinaple thatis deeply embedded
at eachstage of our customers' expenence withus From planning thesr
holiday through to booking, amving horne and shanng therr experience
with friends sustainability plays a key role in how we operate ona

daily basis

Sustainability and business strategy

Our Transformanion 1s geared around sustainable value creabion For us

this means having the best people, best products and best processes

in place to create a thrving business Qur approach to sustainability s

intrinsically inked to this objective Forinstance

> By working with suppliers to build trust, we are strengthervng our
relationships and creating a more sustainable marketplace

> By increasing efficiencies and minimising wasteful practices we are
generating significant savings while safeguarding the environment

> By engaging and energising our employees through talent
development, we are bringing out the best in our people

> And by supporting global communities we are increasing our social
kcence to operate across the world

Our strategy for Profitable Growth, which was presented to investors and
other stakeholders in March of this year, has created the framework for
our future success Implernentancn of our strategy will continue to drive
significant change and improvernent across our Group as our people
work together ta champion our Transformation

Driving a sustainable Transformation

As well as driving our performance inthe areas isted above the
Transformation has helped us to iImprove our performance across a
number of key areasin 2013

The recrutment of high calibre talent info the orgarisahon at executive
and other levels of rmanagement has contributed significantly to the
raising of standards and disciphnes required to deliver our corporate
strategy This has been coupled with a significant cuttural shift in our
business We have implemented anew set of corporate Values in
2013, aswell as embedding a Code of Conduct by way of a thorough
fraining programrne

The new strategy has also helped us fo minimise many elements of risk
Theseinclude the potential impacts of instability, water and energy
shortages and potential human nights issues in destinations as well as
the financialimpacts of carbon legislation and consumer directives

Thomas Cook Group pic Annual Repart & Accounts 2073 Li?

ar Code of Conduct

Thelaunch of the new Thomas Cook Code of Conduct in 2013,

which covers anumber of key areas such as operating sustainably,
community engagement and child protection issues, has meant that over
90% of our employees across the Group have receved traiming on these
topics and plans are in place to ensure tﬁe remainder are trained in the
near term A constant fraining programme s in place to capture all new
staff and refresh existing staft, to keep their focus on the importance of

@ood behaviours in delivering a sustainable future for our business )

Dehvering our Group vision for a sustainable future

Wework hard to identfy the key areas of focus, which will contnibute

to thisvision, and have consulted a number of stakeholder groups to
review these areas We are also in constant contact with millions of our
custormers employees, suppliers and many other groups and continue
to use theirinput to ensure that we are focusing on the sustainability
topics that matter most to them

As part of our Transformation process, we reviewed all stages of the
custormer journey In 2013, and have mapped our sustainable Impacts
against these Qur approach, areas of focus, key figures and supporting
case studies are given on pages 48 and 49

Managing sustainable development

The Board s responsible for the long-term success and sustanability
of the Group, with the respensibility for overseeing the development
by management and approval of our sustainabiliry strategy being
delegated tothe Health Safety and Environmental Committee

Climate change performance

Global greenhouse gas emissions data Tonnes of
for period 1 October 2012 to 30 September 2013 €0z equivalent
Total emissions 4165701
Al fuet 4125328
Gas 6450
Diesel 2290
Petrol 611
Other fuels 153
Electnaty heat andsteam 30869
Methodology

We have reported on all the emission sources required under the

Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ Reports)

Regulations 2013 These sources fall within our consghidated financial

staternent We do not have responsibility for any emission sources that

are not nduded in our consolidated statement

» Excludes energy use in shared offices where rates are included in the
rent and data 1s therefore unavallable This datais not consideredto
be materal

» Excludes Thomas Cook Russia as data was unavailable This is not
considered to be matenal

We have used the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting
standard (rewised edition), data from EU Ermission Trading System and
emussion factors from the UK Government’s GHG Conversion Factors
Guidance 2010
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Transformation the first 365 days

Governance Board of Directors

The Board 1s charred by Non-Executive Charman, Frank Meysman

In addition to the Chairman, the Board currently includes two Executive
Directors and seven Non-Executive Directors Each of the committees
of the Board s chaired by a Non-Executive Director

Image removed

Image removed

Image removed

Image removed

12

Directors

1 Frank Meysman
Non-Execuhve Chairman 61

3 Michael Healy
Group Chief Financial Officer 53

Appointment July 2012

Appointment Qctober 2011

Committee memberships
Chairman of Nominations Committee

Skills & experience Frank Meysman was
appointed Chairman Designate of the Company
on 1 October 2011 and became Chairman on

1 December 2011 He enjoyed a successful
execufive career in dynamic globalbrand
companies iIncluding Procter & Gamble between
1977 and 1986, Douwe Egberts between

1986 and 1990 and the Sara Lee Corporation
between 1990 and 2003 where from 1597,

he was Executive Vice President and a member
of the Board of Directars Since leaving Sara
Lee, Frank has been a Non-Executive Director
including Chairman of a number of public and
private Infernational companies

Other appointments Charrman of Betafence
and]BC NV He s also an Independent
Representative Director of Picanol N V
Warehouses De Pauw (WDP) and Spadel S A

2 Harriet Green oee
Group Cheef Executive Officer 51

Appointment July 2012

Committee memberships Member of Health,
Safety & Ervironmental Committee and
Norminations Commiitee

Skills & experience Harriet Green jamned the
Company as Group Chief Executive Officer on

30 )uly 2012 Prior fothis, she was Chief Executive
Cfficer of leading high service technology
distributor Prernier Farnedl plc Harriet1sa

global executive with extensive, mulhi channel
business leadership expenence of the worldwide
technology and industmal markets She has driven
innovation and strategic transformation through
profitable global growth strategies and delivered
industry leading results Harrnet has a reat focus on
employee engagernent, having lived and worked
on four continents running businesses far Prermier
Farnell and volurme distributor Arrow Electrorucs
Inc Inrecognition of the ongoing Transformation
of Thornas Cook she was named “Leader of the
Year 20137 in the Nahonal Business Awards

Other appointments Non Executive Director
of BAE Systems plc and Emerson Electnic Co

She 15 also a member of the UK Prime Minister s
Business Advisory Group and a founder member
and trustee of the PeaceWorks Foundation

Skalls & experience Michael Healy jained the
Company on 14 May 2012 and became Group
Chief Financial Officer on 1 July 2012 Prior to
this he was Group Finance Director of Kwik-Fir
Group Michael has considerable nternational
experience across a broad range of industries
and was previously Chief Operating Officer

and Finance Director of the Hong Kong listed
First Pacific Company Limited and subsequently
Chief Financial Officer of ebookers pic

4 Dawn Alrey
Independent Non-Executive Director 53

Appomntment Apnl 2010

Commuttee memberships Member of Audit
Cornrmittee, Health Safety & Environmental
Cormmirtee, Nominations Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Skills & experience Dawn Areywas appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director

on 12 April 2010 She has over 28 years'
expenence in the medsa industry and has held
senior posihions at some of the UK's leading
media companies She (s currently Senior Vice
President of Yahoo! EMEA Unnl April 2013
she was President of CLT-UFA UK Telewision
Lsrruted within the RTL Group and prior fa this,
she was Charr and Chief Executve Officer of
Five TV, after joining the company from her
role as Managing Director, Global Content ar
ITV plc Berween 2004 and 2008, she was
alsa a Non-Executive Director of easylet plc

Other appointments Chair of the National
Youth Theatre

5 Emre Berkin
Independent Non-Executive Director 52

Appomtment November 2012

Committee memberships Member

of Health, Safety & Enviranmental
Committee Nommnations Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Skills & experience Ernre Berkin was appointed
asanIndependent Non Executve Director

on 1 Novernber 2012 He has considerable
expenence across the technological sector
andinternanonal markets and being based
inTurkey he hasvital knowledge of one of the
key destinations for millions of our customers




Between 1993 and 2006 he held a number
of senior positions at Microsaft, latterly as
Chatrman, Middle East & Africa and Vice
President, Europe Middle East & Afiica where
teled all aspects of Microsoft business n 79
countries Since 2006 he has acted asa Non
Executive Director to a number of comparies,
including Pegasus Airlines, Turkey's leading low
cosi carrier, and abroad range of technology
companies including Alcatel Lucent Teletas
Telekomunikasyon A S, which are both listed
on the Istanbul Stock Exchange

Other appaintments Nan Executwe Director
of Alcatel Lucent Teletas Telekormuntkasyon A S
and Pegasus Airfines

6 Roger Burnell
Senior Independent Director 63

Appointment March 2007

Commuttee memberships Chairrnan of
Rernuneration Comrmittee, Mernber of Audit
Committee, Health, Safety & Environmental
Commuttee and Nominations Committee

Skills & experience Roger Burne!lwas
appointed Senior Independent Director of the
Company on 4 August 2010, after joining the
Company as a Non-Executive Diwector in March
2007 He was also a Non Executive Director of
MyTravel Group ple from Apnl 2003 and prior
to this, he was Chief Operating Officer and a
Director of Thomsan Travel Graup plc

Other appointments Nen-Executive Director
and Chairman of the Risk Committee of
Coveniry Bulding Society

7 Peter Marks cBe
Non-Executive Director 64

& Warren Tucker
Independent Non-Executive Director 51

Appointment October 2013

Skills & expenence Warren Tucker was
appointed as an Independent Non Executive
Director on 3 October 2013 and will become
Chawrman of the Remuneration Commitiee
following the Company’s AGM in February 2014
Warren has significant expenience in international
business and strategsc transformations He was
from 2003 untlMay 2013 Chief Financial Officer
of Cobharn plc He s a chartered accountant and
has previgusly held senior finance positions at
British Arways plc and Cable & Wireless plc

Other appointments Non Executive Director
of Reckitt Benckiser Group plc

10 Martine Verluyten
independent Non-Executve Director 62

Appointment May 2011

Commuttee memberships Charmanof
Audit Committee Member of Nominations
Committee and Reruneration Committee

Skills & experience Martine Verluyten was
appoinfed as an Independent Non Executive
Director on 9 May 2011 She has significant
international financial and T expernse and

has held a number of senior finance positions
across the telecommunications, electronics
and materlals sectors Between 2006 and 201
she was Chief Financial Officer of Umicore a
Brussels-based matenals technology group and
from 2000t0 2006 she was Group Controller
andsubsequently Chief Financial Officer of the
mobile telephone operatar Mobistar

Appomtment October 2071

Commrttee memberships Chairman of
Health, Safety & Environmental Committee

Skills & experience Peter Marks was appointed
as a Non-Executive Director on 1 October 2013
He has over 45 years’ expenence in the retail
industry and has rmanaged abroad range of
businesses and functions He was Group Chief
Executive of The Co operative Group from
2007 untd May 2013 and prior to this he held

a number of senior positions including Chief
Executive United Co-operatives between
2002 and 2007 and Chief Executive, Yorkshire
Co operatives from 2000 to 2002

8 CarlSymon
Independent Non-Executive Director 67

Other appointments Non Executive Director
of 31 Group plc, Supervisory Board member and
¢hair of audit committee of STMicroelectronics
NV and independent Director of Group
Bruxelles Lambert She also chairs the audit
committee of the Flermish Regionin Belgium

Thomas Cook Group ple Annual Repart & Accounts 2013 51

Group General Counsel and
Group Company Secretary

11 Craig Stoehr
Group General Counsel 46

Appointment Apnl 2013

Skills & expenence Craig Stoehr joined the
Company in Apnl 2013 as Group General
Counsel Prior to joining the Company, Craig
served as General Counsel and a member of the
Execuive Management Committee of Eastgate
Capital Group, the private equity arm of The
National Commercial Bank of Saudi Arabia
Prior to joining Eastgate, Craig was a partner

at Larham & Watkins a top hier global law firm
Craig also has a sigruficant amount of business
experience, having served as chief executive of
severat small sports, media and entertainment
businesses m Europe and the United States

12 Derek Woodward
Group Company Secretary 55

Appointment Apnl 2008

Skitls & expenience Derek Woodward joined
the Company as Group Company Secrefary in
April 2008 Priorfo this, he spent six years as
Head of Secretariat at Centrica plc From 1998,
he was Company Secretary of Alled Zunch

plc, the UK listed holding company of the
Zunch Financial Services Group and between
1990 and 1968 he was Assistant Secretary

of BATIndustriesplc

Appointment October 2013

Skatls & experience Carl Symon was appointed
as anlndependent Non-Executive Director on

3 October 2013 and will be appointed Senior
Independent Director following the Company's
AGMin February 2014 He has extensive

global business operations and management
expenence having reiredin 2001 from IBM
after along career during which he held various
senior positians, both globallty and as Charman
and Chuef Executive Officer of 1IBM UK His other
farmer positions include Non Executive Director
of Rolls Royce Group ple, BT Group plc and
Rexam plc and Chairman of HMV Group ple

Other appointments Non Executive Director
of BAE Systems plc

Graph removed

Graph removed
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Transformation the first 365 days

Governance. Charrman’s letter

Breathing life info
good governance

Dear Shareholder

In my second year as Charrman, we have continued fo
. make solid progress as we strengthen our governance
As an ln’regral pa rt Of our arrangements In last year's report, we set out a

Transformaflon Harriet Green number of agreed actions following our 2012 Board

evaluation | am pleased to report significant progress
dan d her stre ngThe ne d against those commitments as outlined hereF;nd
Management feam have more fully disclosed on page 58 below
led a maj orimp rovement As an integral part of our Transformation, Harriet Green
N governance a nd culture and her strengthened management team have led
across the orga nisation a major improvement N governance and culture

across the organisation In particular, they have set
the “tone from the top” and, with the support of

the Board and the Audrt Committee, have taken
achions to strengthen nsk managernent and internal
confrol The Group’s new Values and Code of Conduct
have been thoroughly embedded throughout the

Image rermoved organisahion and it 1s particularly encouraging to
Chairman see clear evidence of a cultural shuft taking place
Frank Meysman The Board places great ermnphasis on this area and

receves regular reports as we monitor progress

As part of the improvements to our risk and audit
capabilities, the Board undertook an exercise

to deterrmine its nsk appetite in relation to both
transformational activiies and the business as

usual environment The Board's risk appetite,
together with the thorough top down and bottom
up fisk analyses reviewed by the Audit Committee,
has resulted in a Combined Assurance Plan that now
provides a co-ordinated approach to the Group’s nisk
management and audit activifies




Last year, | made a commitment fo further strengthen
our Board Attracting high calibre individuals with the
skills and experence we require of our Board members
was made possible by the significant progress made

in our Transformation by our executive management
team and, mare recently, by the development of a clear
strategy and the execution of our £1 6 billron capital
refinancing plan A key strength of our Board hesin

its diversity, across a range of measures, including
skills, experience gender and nationality and f am
pleased that our diversity has been further reinforced
by the appointrnents in the past year of Emre Berkin,
Carl Symon and Warren Tucker Carl will becorne the
Senior Independent Director and Warren will become
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
following the Company’'s AGM in February 2014,

when Roger Burnell will retire from the Board

We have a well-developed induction programme In
place to ensure that our new Directors develop an
understanding of our businesses In view of the fast
pace of the Transformation, we have also developed
an ongoing trarung programme for the Board with
regular presentations given by senior managers from
across the organisation This not only increases the
exposure of senior talent to the Board, but also gives
the Board presence across the Group
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Throughout the year, Roger Burnell and | engaged with
our major shareholders and governance bodies on a
number of occasions, mainly in respect of our executive
remunerahon palicy and performance metrics, as

we implement our “pay for performance” culture

and align remuneration with our Transformation
objectives and profitable growth strategy We are
grateful for the feedback given, which has been
supporfive and constructive, and we will continue to
engage on key 1ssues in the future Qur remuneration
policy and full details of performance metrics and
remuneration payments are fully disclosed in our
Remuneration Report, which is prepared for the first
time in accordance with the new regulations recently
introduced by the UK Government

We will continue to hive and breathe sound principles of
good governance in everything we do and build upon
the high standards that we have imptemented fo date

Frank Meysman
Chatrrman
27 Novermnber 2013

We will continue to live and
breathe sound principles of
good governance in everything
we do and build upon the high
standards that we have
implemented to date

Lels,

go!
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Transformation the first 365 days

Governance. Corporate governance report

Comphance with the UK Corporate Responsibilities of the Board

Governance Code
The Board s specifically responsible for

This report sets out how the Company applied the principles of the
UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Code™) and the extent towhich > guiding the Group s strategic aims, leading to its approval of the
the Company complied with the prowisions of the Code inthe year Group’s strategy and s budgetary and business plans

10 30 Septernper 2013 Throughout the year the Company fully

approval of significant investments and capital expenditure,
complied with the provisions of the Code, except for Provision B 3 3 in > 3pp g i 2 prta expencur

relation fo Executive Directors faking on more than one non-executive > approval of annual and half year results and intenm

directorship in a FTSE 100 company and, for part of the year, Provision management statements, accounting policies and, subject 10
D1 5, inrelation to Directors notice or contract periods being set at shareholder approval, the appointment and remuneranon of the
one year or less By the end of July 2013, the Company complied with external auditors

Provision 01 5 of the Code as the notice peniod for Harriet Green

had reduced to 12 manths {further reducing by one month for every > approval of the Group's dividend policy andthe payment of

iterim and the recommendation of final dwdends,

month served until our policy position of six months is achieved at the
end of January 2014) Explanations in respect of these fwa Provisions > changes to the Group's capital structure and the 1ssue of
are given 1n the relevant sections within the Remuneration Report any securies,

on page 82 » establishing and mantaining the Group's risk appefite system of

internal control governance and approval authorities,

The Group’s business model and strategy
> moniforing executive performance and succession planning, and

The Group's business madel and strategy are summarnsed on
pages 17 to 24 of this Report > reviewing standards of ethics and policy inrelation to health,

safety, environment, social and community responsibilities

The Board of Directors

The Board Is responsible for the long-term success of the CGroup and
must ensure that there 1s a framework of effective controls which
enables risk to be assessed and managed During the year there has
been a signficant focus by the Board and management inthe areas
of business and financial controls, along with risk identification and
management The Group CEQ CFO and strengthened managerment
tearmn have set the tone from the top and created a strong cutture of
governance controls and risk management across the Group A highly
experenced and dedicated team of nisk and audit professionals under
the leadership of Lee Bradley Director of Enterprise Risk and Audi,
has been recruited to drnive a significant improvernent agenda and

fo support management in thisimportant area More informationts
given below and in the Risk management section on pages 30 and 31

In September 2012 the Thomas Cook Leadership Counail (see page
26) led by the Group CEQ, redefined the Group’s Values Leadership Th e Thomas COOk Lea d erShl
Behaviours and Ways of Working ina majer iniative to build 2 more CO undi I, |ed by The G rou p C E ,

effective organisation This inthatve, together with the focus on

risk and controls and our frust commitments fo our people and our redEﬁ ned The G rou p,S Va Iues,
stakeholders were brought fogether under a new Code of Conduct, Le a d ers h | p B e h aviours an d
drafted by a tearn of employees at all levels drawn from each of our Wa e f WO r kl ng N a major

businesses across the Group Dunng the year, the Code of Conduct

was launched and embedded, with every employee across the Group ininanve to b u II a more

participahing in athorough training programme to ensure it guides

the way our people work as we create a more sustainable future eﬂ:ECTl ve Or ga n isaﬂ on.

The Board receives regular reports and monitors progress in this
important area

The Board's governance structure and the roles and actvihies of 1ts
Committees are described on pages 5610 65




Board activity during the year

At each Board meeting, the Group CEQ presents a comprehensive
update on the Transformation the strategy and business issues
across the Group and the Group CFO presents a detalled analysis
of the financial performance, both at Group and segment level
Senior executives below Board level attend relevant parts of

Board meetings in order to make presentations on their areas

of responsibility This gives the Board access fo a broader group

of executives and he!ps the Directors make assessments of the
Group's succession plans Inresponse fo the output fromthe

2012 Board evaluation the Board held some of its meetings in the
segment locations and conducted in depth reviews of operations
and strategy as well as gaining more presence and visibility
amongst management and staff Dunng the year the Board visited
the Northern Europe, Continental Europe and Airlines Germany

Segmenfs and has plans for the current year to visit the UK Business

Segment and one of the Group's primary destinations

Arts meetings dunng the year, the Board discharged its
responsibilities and in particular, it reviewed

-
Strategy
» the Group Transformaton
» the UK Business Transformation plan
» the development of sirategy leading
to the Profitable Growth Strategy

Shareholderrelations
> Investor feedback fallowing
the presentation of the
Profitable Growth Strategy
and the release of full and half

» Transformation progress
» the operational performance of
each of the Group s segments
Performance and strategy are
continually monitored and
reviewed by the Board and
perkadic updates are presented
by the segment Managing
Direciors and thew senior
management teams

that was presented fo the market cn year resulfs
13 March 2013
» the Group s brand strategy Financial
> the Group s Capital
Valuesand standards Refinancing Plan
» the development »the Greup sannual
of the Group s Cade budget
of Conductand
regular progress G
raphic removed
reports on the P Diversity and talent
training programme » talent management
to embedit across and development
the Group across the Group
Business performance Governance

»the Group s freasury policy
» the Group s tax policy
> Risk appetite
» the Group s pension and
nsurance arrangemenrs
» Board evaluation
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Board meetings and attendance

The Board and its Committees have regular scheduled meetings
throughout the year and supplementary meetmngs are held as and
when necessary The table below shows the number of scheduled
Board and Committee meetings attended by each Director out of the
number convened during the fime served by each Director on the
Board or relevant Cornmittee during the year

Peter Marks rissed one Board meeting and one Narninations
Committee meeting (both on the same date) Dawn Arrey missed
one Board meeting, one Remuneration Cormmittee meeting and
one Norninatiens Committee meeting (all on the same date)
These missed meetings were due to unavoidable business
cornrmitments and both Peter and Dawn gave input onthe agenda
iterns to the Chairman prior fo the meetings The Chairman and
each Non-Executive Director have provided assurance to the Board
that they remain fully committed to their respective roles and can
dedicate sufficent time to meet what 1s expected of them

As well as the scheduled meetings, the Directors attended additional
Board and Commuttee meetings (please see the notes below), mainly
in respect of the review and approval of the Profitable Growth Strategy
that was presented to the market on 13 March 2013, the Capital
Refinanaing Plan Jaunched on 16 May 2013 and the appointment

of Non Executive Directors Despite these meetings being held at
relatively short notice, attendance levels for each of the Directors

was hugh

Current Directors (in office as at 30 September 2013}

Health,

Safety &

Nominations Audlt Remunerahon Environmenatal

Name Board Commuitee {ommittee Commlittee Committee

Frank Meysman 8/8 Ll - ~ —

Harriet Green' 8/8 3/3 - - Ly

Michael Healy 8/8 - - - -

Oawn Aurey 7/8 3 LI 4/5 4ry

Emre Berkin 7T 3/3 - 3/3 2/2

Roger Burnell 8/8 ] LI 5/5 Ly

Peter Marks 7/8 3/ - - Ly

Martine Verluyten 8/8 LI LI 5/5 -
Notes

As wellas the meenngs detalled abave the following addihional meehngs were held

dunngthe year to discuss the issues highlighted on the previous page Board 8

Nominations Commirree 3 Audit Cormmittee 0 Remunerahon Committea 2

1 Harriet Green joined the Nominations Commuttee and Emre Berkinjoned the
Board and the Nominations Remuneration and Health Safety & Environmental
commuttees on 3 November 2012

Former Directors who served dunng the year

Health,

Safety &

Nominations Audit Remuneration Emdronmental

Name Board Committee C(ommittee Committee Committee

Richard Pennycook’ 1/1 1/1 - - -
Notes

1 Richard Pennycook was appointedon 1 April 2013 and resigned on 5 June 2013 to
focus on his executive career
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Transformation the first 365 days

Governance Corporate governance report continued

Graphremoved Image removed

Board composition

As at 27 Novemnber 2013, the Board comprised the Chairman, two
Executve Directors sixtndependent Nen Executive Directors and
one Non-Executive Director Biographical details of all Directors can
be found on pages S0and 51 and on the Company's corporare
website at www thomascookgroup com

The Charrman
Frank Meysman was the Chairman throughout the year

The roles of the Charman and Group CEO are separate and
distinct There 1s a Board-approved Division of Responsibilihes,
which clearly sets out In wnting their respective responsibilities
This document can be found on the Company’s corporate website
at www thomascookgroup com

The Senior Independent Director

Roger Burnell was the Senior Independent Directar throughout

the yearand as such, Is avallable to shareholders should they have
concerns that cannct be resolved through the normal channels
involving the Executive Directors or the Chairman Carl Symon, who
was appointed to the Board on 3 October 2013 will become the
Senior Independent Director following the AGMin February 2014,
when Roger Burnell will retire from the Board

Changes to the Board

The following indmduals were appointed to the Board as Independent
Non Executive Directors on the dates set alongside therr names

> Emre Berkin— 1 November 2012

> Cart Symon and Warren Tucker — 3 October 2013

Richard Pennycock was also appointed to the Board as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 Apnl 2013 but resigned
on 5 lune 2013 to focus on his executive career

The search selechon and appointment process for Non Executive
Directors 1s fully described in the section on the Nominations
Commuttee on pages 62 and 63

Board induction and training

Anmduction programme taitored ro meet the needs of ndividual
Directors s provided for each new Director Qverall the aimof

the induction programme 1s toinfroduce new Directars fo the
Group's business, its operanons and its governance arrangements
Such inductions typically include meetings with senior management
visits to the Cornpany’s business segments where they receive a
thorough briefing on the business and meet with the management
team, and the receipt of presentations on other key business areas
and relevant documentation Individual induction requiremnents are
monitored by the Chairman, with the support of the Group Company
Secretary, to ensure that new and recently appointed Directors gain
sufficent knowledge about the Group fo enable them to contribute
to the Board's deliberations as swiftly as possible Asanumber of
new Directors have joined the Board in the past two years there

has been a high tevel of Induction activty New Directors also goon

a destination visit during which time they meet with in destination
staff and are taken through every aspect of the custormner expenence
The induction content and process has evolved significantly as we
build on the experience of nducting each new Director We are now
using the benefit of that expenience for the benefit of our longer-
serving Directors by giving them the opportunity to accompany and
partictpate in any aspect that they feel would further enhance their
knowledge and understanding of the Group

The Board has a programme for holding some of its meetings at the
business segments, where, Inaddition to its normal business, the
Board will focus on the strategy and operanons of that segment and
meet with management and staff In October 2012, the Board held its
meeting at the main offices of the Northern Europe segment and iIn
March 2013, the Board held its meehing in Germany where it recewved
presentations on and met management and staff of the Croup's
Continental Europe and Airlines Germany businesses At other Board
meetings and, where appropriate, Committee meetings, the Directors
receive updates and presentations on developments and changes

The induction content and process
has evolved significantly as we build
on the experience of inducting each
new Director We are now using the
benefit of that experience for the
benefit of our longer-serving Directors,
by giving them the opportunity to
accompany and participate in any
aspect that they feel would further
enhance their knowledge and
understanding of the Group




"

to the business and to the legislative and regulatory environments

In addition to the in-depth presentations on the Company's

businesses the Board was also provided durning the year with

> a comprehensive update on our web-based distribution
transformation, and

> the developments fo the end to-end customer service
experence i our UK business

The provision of additional training presentations has been further
developed Inrespanse to the 2013 Board evaluation, an ongoing
training programme for the Board with regular presentations

given by senior managers from across the organisation has been
established for the balance of 2013 and throughout 2014 In additton
to the benefit of the franing given this programme also increases
the exposure of senior talent to the Board and gives the Board
presence across the Group

Director independence

Arts Septermber 2013 Board meeting, as part of its annual review

of corporate governance against the Code, the Beard considered

the independence of the Non-Executive Directors against the
critenia specified in the Code and determined that Dawn Airey

Ermre Berkin, Roger Burnell and Martine Verluyten were iIndependent
When approving their appointments the Board also deterrmined
that each of the Non-Executive Directors who joined the Board
during the year was independent

The Board recognises that Peter Marks, who held the position of
Group Chief Executive of The Co-operative Group (which s a partner
inthe Group’s UK retail joint venture) unhl us retirement in May 2013,
1s not independent

Directors’ conflicts of interest

From 1 October 2008 the Companies Act codified the Directors’ duty
to avoid a sifuahion in which they have, or can have an interest that
conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the interests of the Company

A Director will not be in breach of that duty if the relevant matter

has been authorised in accordance with the Articles of Association

by the other Directors

The Board has established a set of guiding principles on managing
conflicts and has agreed a process to identify and autharise conflicts
As part of that process, It has also agreed that the Nominations
Committee should review the authansed conflicts every six months
or more frequently If a new potential conflict anses for an existing
Director The Nominations Committee reviews the interests of
candidates prior fo making recommendations for the appointment
of new Directars The Norinations Cornmittee and Board applied the
above principles and process throughout the year to 30 September
2013 and confirm that these have operated effectively When the
Board authorised the conflict relahing to Peter Marks in relation fo

the Cornpany s UK retail joint venture with The Co-operative Group,

i did so on the condition that Peter would not receive Board papers in
respect of or be involved i, deasions about the Company s UK retall
Joint venture
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Re-appomntment of Directors

In accordance with the Code and the Company’s Artictes of
Association all Directors are subject to election by shareholders

At the AGM held in February 2013, all the Directors were submitted for
election/re-election and the Board has agreed that the Directors will
continue to be subject to annual election inthe future Non Executive
Directors are initrally appointed for a three-year term, subject to
annual election by shareholders and, subject to ngorous review by
the Nominations Committee and continued annual re-election

by shareholders can serve up to a maximum of three such terms

At the AGM to be held on 20 February 2014, Roger Burnell will not
stand for re-election and, accordingly, he will retire from the Board

at the conclusion of that meenng

Operahon of the Board

Throughout the year, a fully encrypted electronic portal system

was operated, which enabled Board and Committee papers to be
delivered securely to the Directors This enabled a faster and move
secure distribution of informahion, accessed using electronic tablets,
and reduced resource usage Directors were provided between
meetings with relevant information on matters affecting the business
Such updates were carried out by a vanety of methods including
conference calls amongst the full Board or between the Chairman
and/or the Group CEO and the Non Executive Directors, and by way
of the Group Company Secretary orculating papers and updates on
relevant issues electronically

The Group Company Secretary, who was appointed by the Board, 15
responsible for advising and supporting the Charman and the Board
on corporate governance matters as well as ensuring that there s
asmooth flow of infarmation to enable effective decision making

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Group
Company Secretary and the Group General Counsel and, through
them have access fo independent professional advice in respect

of therr duties, at the Company’s expense The Group Company
Secretary acts as secretary to the Board, the Finance & Administration
Committee, the Disclosure Committee, the Audit Committee,

the Norinations Committee and the Rermuneration Committee
The Deputy Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Health,
Safety & Environmental Commuittee

In accordance withits Articles the Company has granted a qualfying
third party ndemruty to the extent permitted by law to each Birector
and the Croup Company Secretary The Company also maintaing
Directors and Officers' hability insurance

The provision of additional fraining
presentations has been further
developed In response fo the 2013
Board evaluation, an ongoing training
programme for the Board with regular
presentations has been established

Lets,
qo!
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Governance Corporate governance report continued

(Our Board evaluation process

1 2 3

evaluation and develop a Chairman to discuss

.

4 5

The Chairman and the Group Directors complete their Areport of the findings from The report of the findings The action planis
Company Secretary discuss questionnaire and meet the questionnaires and the and the recommendations continually monitored by
and agree the scope of the individually with the one-fo-one discussionsis is discussed by the Board, the Charrman and Group

prepared by the Charrman and whichagreesanaction ptan Company Secrefary with

comprehensive questionnaire the Group Company Secretary forthe year ahead regular update reports
andincludes anumber to the Board
of recommendations for
discussion by the Board

Board evaluation

The Board recognises the benefit of a thorough Board and Committee
evaluation process leading 1o action to improve its effectiveness
future composition and focus

Athorough evaluation of the Board and its Committees was
conducted dunng the year This was facilitated by the Group Comparny
Secrefary, under the direction of the Charman The process involved
each of the Directors complehing a high level questionnaire, which
was structuredto provide an infroduction for 3 more in-depth and
comprehensive discussion between the Chairman and each of the
Boardmembers Such meetings allowed each Director to express
therr perspectives of the Board's effectiveness and performance, as
weil as to highlight areas in which they wished to see improvement
The output from the above was compiled by the Group Company
Secretary and the key thermes and issues, fogether with a range

of recommendations, were presented in the first Instance fo the
Charrman and then to the Board for consideration and debate

The evaluation covered a range of areas induding the breadth of
skills and expenence on the Board The output from the evaluation
reinforced the requirements previously specified In the candidate
profilen respect of the search for addihonal Board members
Inaddition, the outputs included the need to mantain an ongoing
comprehensive Board fraimning programme to keep pace with

the transformational activities a request for increased market
information and inteligence, the continued review and development

Cutputs from 2012 evaluation

A range of skills and expenence, Including
travel, international, technology and UK plc,

required of new Non-Executive Directors nthe past year

of strategy and increased opportunities to develop relationships
amangst Board members The Board has agreed an achion planin
respect of each of these cutputs and progress is being morutored by
the Charman, with the support of the Group Cormpany Secretary,
and reported regularly to the Board Progress will be disclosed inthe
2014 Governance Report

The Board agreed that real progress had been made in respect of
Board and Cornmittee effectiveness dunng a challenging year and
that all the achions anising from the 2012 Board evaluation had
been dealf with in full to a high standard, but welcomed the actions
from the 2013 evaluation in a move to higher standards The tables
below show the outputs agreed actions and achievernents agasnst
the 2012 and 2013 Board evaluations The Board has agreed that
the effectiveness evaluation will be externally facilitated in 2014

Separately, the Non-Executwe Directars, under the leadershup of
the Senior Independent Director and with input from the Executive
Directors, conducted an evaluation of the Chairman The outputs
from that evaluation were debated by the Board inthe absence

of the Charrnan and feedback was given to him by the Senior
Independent Director

The Company’s performance management systemn applies
to management at all levels across the Group The indivdual
performance of the Executive Directors is reviewed separately
by the Chairman and the Remunerahon Committee

Agreed actionin 2012 and deliveredin 2012/13

Included i the candidate profile for the search for additional Non Executive Directors Focus for
international search and selection firrm Three addimonal bugh-calibre Non-Executve Directors apponted

Board needs to have greater visibility
and connection with the businesses
to build a mutual understanding of roles

Board agreed a programme far holding some of its meetings at the business segments, where it will
focus on the strategy and operations of that segment and will meet with management and staff
Programme carmedout in 2012/13 and wdl continue throughous 2013/14

and challenges

Board nduchion programme ensures that new appointees visit each of the businesses shortly
afterjoimng Existing Dwrectors given the opporfunity fo undergo induchion with new Oirectors
Programme carriedout in 2012/13 and wiii conhinue throughout 2013/14

Need for improved financial information
to the Group and the Board

New Group CFO and strengthened Finance Team have significantly improved financial reporting
and forecasiingin 2012/13

Board needs to devote more hime to the
development of strategy and succession
and talent management

Time allocated for sirategy at each Board meeting The Group CEO has driven the people agenda
focusing onassessment development succession performance management engagement and
recognition for bugh performance New Chief People Officer aPpcnnred 0 2013 Succession and talent
managerment presented to the Board in 2013 Commitment

ully delivered in 2012/13

Board needs improved understanding of
nsk identification and management

Ahighly experienced new Director of Enterprise Risk and Audit was appointed on 29 October 2012 to
divve anincreased focus on sk and consrols across the Group and improved reporting to the Board

and the Audit Commuttee He reports directly to the Group CFO and through to the Audit Committee
Sigmificant Improvernent in nsk igentification and management delivered in 2012/13




Outputs from 2013 evaluation

Strengthen the Board with the appomtment
of additional Non-Executive Directors to meet
succession requirements
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Action agreedin 2013

Two Non Executive Directors apponted subsequent to the 2013 Board evaluation, one of whorm will be
a%pomred Chairman of the Remuneranion Committee and the other who will be a,:pamred as the Senior
Independens Director following the AGM in February 2014, when Roger Burnell will retire from the Board

Continued recrustment of hugh calibre
management and ongoing talent
management and development being
regularly reported to the Board

Ongoing programme in place with regular reporfing to the Board Serior management exposure to the
Board as descrbed on pages 5510 57

Requirement for an ongoing comprehensive
Board traming programme to keep pace
with the transformational activities

Ongeing programme developed and immediately implemented

Request for increased market information
andintelligence

Increased information fo be prowided over ime

Continuedreview and development of strategy

Built into the Board s future agenda

Opportunity to develop relationships
amongst Board members

Directars to group together for innal nduction and ongong rraxnnn%where possible Informal occasions
when the Board can be together without management present are being arranged

The Board and its pnmary committees

Board
Chairman, Group CEO, Graphic
Group CFO and 7 Non- remg\,;d

Executive Directors

The Board has a schedule of matters reserved for its approval and has a formal structure of
delegated authonty whereby specified aspects of managerment and control of the Group
have been delegated to the Group CEO, the Group CFO business segments and the Board s
Committees The Board has agreed the terms of reference for the Audit, Remuneration,
Naminations Risks and Disclosures, and Health Safety & Environmental Committees

and the Division of Responsibilities between the Chairman and the Group CEG

W

( 3
Nomnations Committee Remuneration Committee Health, Safety & Audit Committee
Charrman, Group CEO and 4 Independent Non Executive Environmental Committee 3 Independent Non Executive
4Independent Non Executive Directors Group CEO and 4Non Executive Directors
Drirectors Directors
[ Commuittee report J l Commuttee report J l Committee report J t Commttee report J
on page b2 on page 65 anpage b4 onpage 60

The schedule of matters reserved, the terms of reference of each
of the Board s Comrmittees and the Division of Responsibilities
berween the Charrman and the Group CEQ, are available onrequest
and on the Company's website af www thomascookgroup com
The powers of the Directors are set outin the Company's Articles of
LAssouatmn These are also available on the Company’s website

The papers in respect of the Audit Remuneration Nermuinations and
Health Safety & Environmental Committees are circulated to all the
Non-Executve Directors, regardless of Commuttee membership
Mayor decisions taken under the Group's Delegahon of Authonty
are feported to the next Board meeting

Group Executive Committee

Throughout the year, the Group CEQ regularly held meetings amongst
her Direct Reports to discuss a range of issues in relation to the strategic
and operational development and perfermance of the businesses

As disclosed inthe People sechion (on pages 25 to 28 above) external
recruitment and the development from within the orgarisation

of world-class talented leaders has been a priotity during the year
Bullding on the success in this area, the CEQ formed the Group
Executwe Commuttee on 1 Novernber 2013 The CEQ's Direct Reports
team and the Group Executive Committee that succeeded it comprise
the most senior business leaders and Group funchon heads and, like
the Thomas Cook Leadership Council, was both culturally and gender
diverse reflecting the wide range of diversity amongst employees
across the Group

Thomas Cook Leadership Council

The Group CEQ has also established the Thomas Cook Leadership
Coungll (“TCLC"), compnising the top 130 leaders across the Group
The TCLC meets four times a year to review performance and help
develop the Group's strategy

Let,
4o
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Governance Corporate governance report confinued

Audit Committee

The main focus of the Audit
Commuttee durning the year has
been to support and oversee the
significant iImprovement led by
executive management to the
Group’s risk management and
Internal control arrangements

Image removed

Chairman
Martine Verluyten®

Meetings
Four

Other members
Dawn Arey

Graphic

Roger Burnell removed

Directors biographies
onpage 50

Meetings also regularly attended by

The Chairman and the other Non-Executive
Directors, Harriet Green (Group CEQ), Michael Healy
(Group CFO), Craig Stoehr (Group General Counsel)
Lee Bradley (Director of Enterprise Risk and Audit),
Derek Woodward (Group Company Secretary),
Gavin Manson (Group Head of Financial Reporting)
and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {(“PwC™)

Composition of the Committee

During the year, Richard Pennycook was appointed
amember on 1 Aprl 2013 untilhis resignation
fromthe Boardon 5 June 2013

*Martine Veriuyten s considered by the Board to have recent
and relevant financial expenence asrequired by the Code

Role of the Committee

The Board has delegated to the Committee responsibility for
overseeing the financiat reporhng, internal nisk management and
control functions and for making recommendations to the Board
inrelation to the appontment of the Company’s internal and
external auditors

in accordance with ifs terms of reference, the Committes, which

reports its findings to the Board, 1s authonsed to

» monitor the Integnty of the annual and half-year results and interim
management statements including a review of the significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them

> review the Company's internal financial controls and infernal control
and risk management systems,

» monitor and review the effectveness of the Company's internal
audit function,

> establish and oversee the Company’s relationship with its external
auditors, including the monitoring of their ndependence, and

» monitor matters raised pursuant to the Company s “whistleblowing”
arrangernents

To enable 1t to carry out its duties and responsibilibes effectvely the
Commuttee relies on information and support from management
across the business The full terms of reference of the Committee are
avallable at www thomascookgroup com or frorm the Group Company
Secretary af the registered office

Principal activities during the year

The main focus of the Audit Committee during the year has been to
support and oversee the significant improvernent led by executive
management to the Group's sk management and nternal control
arrangements Inthatregard the Committee welcomed the
appointment of the Director of Enterprise Risk and Audit, who in
turn has recrurted a highly experienced and dedicated team of risk
and audit professionals to support management in this important
area The Finance Funchion has also been strengthened to iImprove
financia! control The significantly increased activity in respect of nsk
management controls and internal audit for both transformational
and business as usual activities has been summansed in
comprehensive reports that have been presented to and reviewed by
the Commmittee at each of its meetings dunng the year This activiry
together with reports from the external auditors has supported

the Audt Committee in providing its adwice tothe Board inrespect
of the effectiveness of internal control (see section headed “Risk
management and infernal control” on page 66 below) At the end of
two of its meetings dunng the year the Committee {(and also those
Non-Executive Directors who are not onthe Committee) met with
the Director of Enferprise Risk and Audit and the external auditors

in the absence of management
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(
Committee activihies

In addition to focus on risk management, controls and internal audit
described opposite, the Committee has discharged its responsibilities
during the year and has reviewed

s ™
Financial Govemance
> the full and half year » the prevenhon detection
results (ncluding and reporting of fraud

accounting ssues and and the Groups ant fraud

dgements) and the and ethics policies
Intenm management » proposals for engaging the
statements issued during external auditors to carry
the year Graphic out non audit related work
» information Insupport of removed {see below)
thestatements in relation » the Committee swork plan
togoing concern and for the yearahead and a
disclosure of Information rewiew of histonc activiry
tothe auditors against the Committees
> the annual work plan terms of refererce
for each of the nternal > the effectiveness of the

auditteamand the
external audiors

external auda process and

aproposalnrespect of the

re election of the external
auditors {see external

|

Withinits terms of reference, the Commuttee 1s authonsed to
monitor the infegrnty of the annual and half-year results and inferim
management statements, Including a review of the significant
financial reporting jJudgements contained in them At its meeting

in November 2013, the Committee reviewed a comprehensive
paper prepared by the Group Head of Financial Reporting, which set
out the Groups accounting policies and basis of preparation gave
consideration to a number of key disclosure considerations, including
going concern, separately disclosed items and hke for-like analysis
matters arising in the preparation of the Group accounts, and the
impact of new accounting developments The Audit Committee also
reviewed a paper prepared by the external auditors, which included
the significant reporting and accounhing matters Both papers were
reviewed and discussed by the Audit Committee The Committee
pays particular attention to matters that it considers to be important
by virtue of thewr impact on the Group results and remuneration

of senior management or the level of complexity, judgement

or eshimation in their application in preparatton of the Group s
Financial Staternents The significant issues considered by the

@ud it Committee were as follows

auditors secrion below) )

Significant issue considered by the Committee

Howthe ksue Adk dby the

Going Concern The appropriateness of
prepanng the Group financial staternents
for the half year and full year ona going
concern basis

The Committee considered papers
prepared by managementand taking
nto account the external auditors review
of these papers and their assumpnons
concluded thar management s
recommendation fo prepare accounis on
3 going concern bass was appropriate

The Group's recapitalisationand
treatment of costs The appropriate
accounting freatment of the costs
and fees of £73 millon inrelation fo
the completion of the Groups Capital
Refinancing Plan injune 2013

The Committee reviewed a paper prepared
by management on the proposed
accounting freatment of costs associated
withthe Group s recapiralisation Having
reviewed the paper the Committee was
comfortable with the trearment proposed
and subsequently adopted

Impamrment and deferred tax Inview
of the Group s losses in recent years

the Commiitee considered whether

there was a need tovmpair cerfain
assetvalues including goodwill and the
reasonableness of the Group $ recognifion
of defesred tax assets

The Commuttee considered a paper
presenfing management $ intended
approach and having taken input
fromzbe auditors agreed with
management s proposals

Separately disclosed items The

Group has an established policy of
separately disclosing items that are
either excephonal or detract from the
reader s understanding of the underlying
performance of the Group

The Committee consdered Management 5
presentation of separately disclosed items
and in particular iremns refanng to the
Croup s Transformation and certain nen
cashfinance allocations Having considered
the matter the Committee agreed fo adopt
management s propased presentation

Asrcraft lease accounting and
provisioning The Group holds a
number of its awcraft fleet on lease from
third parhes The designahon of aircaft
leases as operating leases or finance
leasesimpacts on several aspecis of
reportedresults

The Committee considered 4 paper
prepared by management dealing

with the impacts of lease accounting
and related aircraft maintenance
provisions and accepted managerment s
proposed freatment

Control environment during
Transformation The Groups
currently engaged in a fundamental
Transformahon encempassing most
aspects of its activiies

The Committee considered the broader
usks assocated with thus Transfarmation
as well as facusing on the operahon of the
Graupss control environment throughout
the Transformation pened The Committee
also consadered a repor: by management
on the operation of financial andnon
financal controls throughout the year

Disposal of Thomas Cook Morth
America Inthe year the Group disposed
of its businesses in North America

The Committee considered a proposal
by management to account for us North

Amernica businesses under IFRS5 asa
discentinued operation and agreed

with the proposed trearment J

External auditors

A policy s place which requives all matenal non audit work pioposed
to be carned out by the external auditors to be pre authorsed by
the Committee in order to ensure that the provision of non audit
services does not impair the external auditors independence or
objectivity The policy whichis appended as a schedule to the Audit
Commuttee's terms of reference s published on the Company's
website at www thomascookgroup com An analysis of the fees
earned by the Group s auditors for audit and non audit servicests
disclosed In Note 9 fo the financial statements PwC were appointed
as the sole auditors to the Group in 2008 and since that date have
complied with the partner rotation requirement set ouf in the Ethical
Standards for auditors, Paul Cragg, a Partner of PwC, was newly
appointed Senior Statutory Auditor following the re appointment of
PwC by shareholders ai the AGM held on 7 February 2013 PwC have

confirmed their ndependence as auditors of the Company in a letter

addressed tothe Directors

Arits meeting in November 2013 the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the external audit process This included reviewing
comnprehensive papers fram both management and the external

auditors, which set out the planning and execution of the conduct of
the audit The Audit Commuttee then hefd a meeting with the external
auditors in the absence of management to discuss further Upon the
recommendation of the Audit Commirtee, PwC will be proposed for
re-election by shareholders af the AGM to be held om 20 February
2014 inreaching its decision to propose PwC forre election, the Audit
Cornmittee took into account the effectiveness of the external audit
process, the length of tenure of PwC as auditors and the objectvity
andindependence of the external auditor

Let,
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Transformation the first 365 days

Governance Corporate governance report continued

Nominations Committee

The Board 1s strengthened
by the appointment of
three independent
Non-Executive Directors

Image removed

Chairman
Frank Meysman

Meetings
Four

Other members

Dawn Airey, Emre Berkin, Roger
Burnell, Harmet Green and Martine
Verluyten

Graphic
removed

Directors blographies
onpage 50

Meetings also regularly attended by

The other Non-Executive Directors Derek Woodward
(Group Company Secretary) and Craig Stoehr (Group
General Counsel)

Composition of the Committee

A majority of the members of the Cornmittee are
Independent Non Executive Directors Emire Berkin
and Harriet Green joined the Comrttee on

1 November 2012

Role of the Commuttee

The Board has delegated ta the Comrmuttee responsibility for
reviewing and propesing appointments to the Board and for
recommending any other changes to the composition of the Board
orits Committees The principal responsibility of the Committee s

to make recommendations to the Board on all new appointments to
the Board, as well as Board balance and composition The Committee
ensures that there is clanty in respect of the role descriphion and
capabilines required for such appointrents The Committee 1s also
responsible for reviewing, at least every s months, or mare frequently
ifrequired the Directors’ potential conflicts of interest and for making
recommendations to the Board in respect of authorising such matters
The full terms of reference of the Commuttee are avatlable at

www thomiascookgroup corn or from the Group Company Secretary
at the registered office

Principal activities during the year

At irs meetings duning the year, the Committee discharged its
responsibilifies as listed above and in particular

o~
Commuttee activities

r ™

Craphic
rernoved

Governance
» considered the re appointment of the Drectors before making a
recommendanon fo the Board regarding their re elechon at the 2013 AGM
» conducted a thorough process and made recommendations fo the Board to
appoint addimonal Nor Execuhve Directors in order ta strengthen the Board
»considered Directors potential conflicts of nteres (see page 57)

\— )




Board appointments policy

Appointments to the Board are made on ment against objective
cniteria and with due regard for the benefirs of diversity on the

Board This process isled by the Commuttee which, after evaluating
the balance of skills knowledge and expenence of each Director,
makes recommendations to the Board The Board appointments
policy reinforces the Board's prinaple that appointments are made
on merit in ine with its current and future requirements, and reflect
the UK listing and infernahional activity of the Group The policy
alsorecognises the benefits of dwersity inciuding gender diversity
Appontments dunng the course of the year have beenin line with
that policy and have reinforced the diverse composition of the Board
A table illustrating the diversity of the Board s shown on page 56
The Board endarses the aims of the Davies’ Report entitled “Women
on Boards™ A copy of the Group's Board appointrents policy can be
found on our website at www thomascookgroup com

Non-Executive appointments

One of the key areas of focus in the 2012 Board effectiveness review
(re-affirmed in the 2013 Board effectiveness review} was to evaluate
the breadth of skills and expenence on the Board The output from
that evaluation {see page 58) helped shape the candidate profile for
the search for addiional Non-Executve Directors Egon Zehnder*,
an internahional search and selection firm, was appointed to assist
the Charrman to idenhfy a range of surable candidates for review

by the Nominations Committee As a result of the ongoing process,
Emre Berkin was appointed to the Board on 1 November 2012,
Richard Pennycook was appointed on 1 Apnl 2013 (although he
subsequently resigned on 5 June 2013 to focus on his executive
career) and Carl Symon and Warren Tucker were appointed on

3 October 2013 The Charrman and the Committee will continue
ther work in the current year to continue to monitor and develop the
Board's succession plans The Commuttee will also support the Board
with a review of Committee memberships, once the newly appointed
Directors have completed ther induction programmes

*Egon Zehnder does not carry out any other work for the Group
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One of the key areas of focus In
the 2012 Board effectiveness
review (re-affirmed in the 2013
Board effectiveness review) was
to evaluate the breadth of skills
and experience on the Board.

The output from that evaluation
helped shape the candidate profile
for the search for additional
Non-Executive Directors.
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Governance Corporate governance report continued

Health, Safety & Environmental Committee

The Health, Safety &
Environmental Committee has
overseen a wide range of
improvements, Including the steps
taken to embed our Code of
Conduct across the Group

Image removed

Chairman
Peter Marks

Meetings
Four

Other members

Dawn Awrey, Emre Berkin, Roger
Burnell and Harniet Green

Graphic
remaved

Dnrectors blographies
onpage 50

Meetings also regularly attended by

The other Non-Executive Directors Lee Bradley
(Dwector of Enterprise Risk and Audit) Steve Solomon
{Director Group Aviation Safety, Compliance and
Security) Andy Cooper (Director of Government and
External Affairs) Derek Woodward (Group Company
Secretary), Craig Stoehr (Group General Counsel)

and Beth Horlock {Deputy Cornpany Secretary)

Compaosition of the Committee

Dawn Airey, Roger Burne!l and Harriet Green were
members of the Committee throughout the year
Peter Marks was Chairman of the Committee
throughout the year Emee Berkin was appointed
asa member of the Committee on 1 Aprl 2013

Role of the Committee

The Board has delegated to the Committee responsibility to review,
develop and oversee consistent policy standards and procedures

for managing health safety and environmental risks to the Group s
business 1115 also responsible for the review and oversight of
compliance with relevant legislation and regulation retating ro health,
safety and the enviranment across the Group

The full terms of reference of the Committee are available at
www thomascookgroup com or from the Group Company Secretary
at the registered office

Principal achivities duning the year

At its meetings dunng the year the Committee discharged its
responsibidities as listed abave and in parhicular reviewed, monitored
and agreed

f ™
Committee activities

s ™
External affairs Stakeholder relations
»the Group wide child protection policy and »the Groups
implementation plan Sustainabilty Reports
» progress incelatwe ta the Group s
programme of government affairs

Values and standards Eavironmental
»the roll out of the Graphic » transfersand
Group $ Code of remaved transport
Conduct » anumber of health

andsafety policies

including the Group s
environmental and
sustainabtlity policies

Health and safety
> the Group s health and safety and sustanability strategies
{also covering the Group shotel quality assurance programme}
induding performance against targess
» future health and safety performance targers
» the proposed outsourang of customer health and safety data capture,
risk assessment and data storage funchions
> pverseas excursion safety policy comphance
» ¢employee safety regulations
» the Group s airhne safety
» key health and safety rsks facing the Group and the mitigating achons raken
» reviewed transfers and transport
> the Group Aviahon drug and alcohol policy
» 3 Crisis managerment rest J
=

\x

The Group s Sustainability Report 1s available on

www thomascookgroup com/sustainability and contains the Group's
health & safety and environmental policies, an explanation of how
Thomas Cook manages sustainabiity and progress agarnst targets

Asummary of the approach and the Group s performance in relation to
sustainability s contained on pages 47 to 49




Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee
has aligned executive pay
arrangements with our
Transformation and profitable
growth straftegy

Craphic removed

Chairman
Roger Burnell

Meetings
Five

Other members
Cawn Airey, Emre Berkin and

Graphic
Martine Verluyten remaoved

Durectors biographies
on page 50

Meetings also regularly attended by

Frank Meysman {Chairrman), Harriet Green (Group
CEQ)* Pater Marks (Non Executive Director) Sandra
Carnpopiano (Chief People Officer), Judith Mackenzie
{Group Head of Performance and Reward), Derek
Woodward (Group Company Secretary) and Craig
Stoehr (Group General Counsel)

*Harnet Green does nof attend in respect of matters relating to
her remuneration

Composition of the Committee

All members of the Committee are Independent Non-
Executive Directors Emre Berkin was appoinfed as a
mermber of the Committee on 1 April 2013
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Principal activities durning the year

During the year, the Commuttee made significant progress
implementing best practice as 1t pursues its “Pay for Performance”
policy In this connection the Charman and the Chairman of

the Committee have conducted extensive consultations with

major sharehoiders and governance bodies A report detailing

the composition, responsibiliies and work carned out by the
Remunerahion Cormmittee duning the year including an explanation
of how it applies the Principles of the Code In respect of Executive
Directors’remuneration 1s included within the Remuneration Report
onpages 7010 87

Finance & Administration Committee

To facilitate swift and efficient operational management

decisions, the Board has established the Finance & Administration
Committee (comprising any two Directors, one of whom must

be an Executive Director) which has delegated authorty within
clearly identified parameters in relation to day-to-day financing and
administrative matters

Risks and Disclosures Committee

The Board has established a Risks and Disclosures Committee,

which s responsible for implementing and monitoring systems and
controls in respect of the management of inside information and the
disclosure of such iInformation to the market In accordance with the
Company's obligations under the UK Listing Authority’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules The Commuttee meets regularly durning rhe year
to consider the Group's activifies and nsks, having receved inputs from
the Risk Matters Group, agatnst its disclasure obligations and to review
allresults announcements following certfication from individual
execufives from across the businesses The Committee comprises

the Group CEQ who is the Chairman the Group CFO, the Director of
Enterprise Risk and Audit the Group General Counsel and the Group
Company Secretary Other attendees include sentor managers from
Group Finance and Investor Relations

Strategicreport —
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Governance Corporate governance report continued

Shareholder communicahion and engagement

The Board promotes open communication with shareholders

This 1s formahsed within the framework of an investor relations
prograrnme conducted by the Group CEQ, the Group CFO and the
Investor Relafions team The programme included the presentation
of preliminary and half-year results, which can be accessed on the
Thomas Cook Group website atwww thomascookgroup com along
with financial reports, infenm management statements other market
announcements and trading updates The management team
conducts regular meetings with instirutional investors and welcormes
the diatogue that this enables with shareholders

During the year in addition fo their regular ongoing programme of
Investor meetings, the Group CEQ and Group CFO had an extensive
series of meetings with shareholders following the presentation of the
Company s new strategy to the market on 13 March 2013 and with
existing and prospective investors in respect of the Company’s Capital
Refinancing Plan that was completed in June 2013 The Company
makes every effort to ascertain investor perceptions of the Company
and regular reports of investor and analyst feedback are provided
tothe Board Additionally the Board responds to ad-hoc requests
forinformation and all shareholders are entitled to attend the

Annual General Meeting In additior: toits AGM in February 2013, the
Company also held a general meefing 'n June 2013, to gan approval
for the share placing and rights 1ssue as part of its Capital Refinancing
Plan Shareholders are given the opportunity to lodge their votes

by way of proxy and/or to attend such meehngs in person where

they have the opportunity to ask questions of the Board including

the chairs of the Board Committees vote by way of a poll and meet
informally with the Directors to discuss any 1ssues they may wish
forase

During the year both the Chairman of the Board and the Charrman
of the Remuneration Committee met with a number of major
nshtutional shareholders to discuss governance 1ssues in general
and with those institutional Investors who had voted against the
Remuneration Report at the 2013 AGM, folisten to their reasons why
they had exercised their votein that way As a result of the feedback
recewed at thase meetings, the Remuneration Committee agreed to
change the approach to measuring achievernent against the share
price performance targets in respect of future awards under the
Performance Share Plan

This 15 explained in more derail inthe Remunerahon Report
onpages 70 to 87

The management team conducts
regular meetings with institutional

Frank Meysman and Roger Burnell the Senior independent Director
and Chairman of the Remunerahon Committee, had ongoing dialogue
with shareholders in respect of Executive remuneration matters
Between June and September 2013 they conducted awide scale
engagement with a large number of the Company’s major institutional
shareholders {representing over 50% of the Company s shares

In Issue} and governance bodies to hear their views on proposed
performance targets for both the 2012 and then forthcoming

2013 awards to the Exacutive Directors under the Performance

Share Plan and proposed amendments fo the Company’s executive
Rernuneration Policy, presented in ine with the new Directors
Remuneranion Regulations These meetings were both supportive

and constructive and the Board and the Remuneration Committee
were briefed on the feedback from the above discussions The views
expressed by shareholders were taken info account when finalising
executive remuneration arrangements The matters covered by the
consultation are reported in the Remuneration Report on pages 70
to87

in line with the authority given at its 2008 AGM, the Company uses
its website and email as the primary means of communicahon with
its shareholders This arrangement provides significant benefits for
shareholders and the Company in terms of imeliness of Information,
reduced environmental impact and cost Shareholders may still opt
toreceve ther cornmunications in a paper format The Company's
corporate website contains information for shareholders, including
share price information and news releases It can be found at

www thomascookgroup com

Risk management and internal control

During the year there has been significant progress made in the area
of risk management and internal control This has beenledwith a
distinct “tone fromthe fop by the Group CEQ and her strengthened
management team, with the support of the Board and the Audit
Committee, 1o drive astep change improvement in the overall
governance framework and culture throughout the orgarisation
Ahighly experienced and dedicated team of risk and audit
professionals under the leadership of Lee Bradley, who was appointed
as Dwector of Enterprise Risk and Audit in October 2012 has been
recrurted to drive a significant improvement agenda and to support
rmanagement in this mportant area Furthermaore, high calibre
professionals have also been recruited info the Group and Segment
Finance teams to improve cash management and forecasting and
financial controls

The Group's new aﬁpmach fonisk management and internal control s more
fully described n the Risk management section on pages 30 and 31

Investors and welcomes the dialogue

that this enables with shareholders.




The Board recognises ifs ulhmate accountability for maintaming an
effective system of internal control and nsk management that is
appropnate in relation to both the scope and the nature of the Group's
activities and complies with the Turnbull Committee Guidance on the
UK Corporate Governance Code (the “Turnbull Guidance™) and has
approved the frarnework and the standards implemented Duning the
year, the Board and the Audit Cornmittee have reviewed the reports
of the Director of Enterprise Risk and Audit, which included the results
from wholesale top down and bottom up nisk reviews involving
management across the Group The Board has also undertaken a
detailed exercise to consider ts nisk appetite These activines have
resulted in a Combined Assurance Plan, which will enable a risk based
approach to the ongoing infernal audit and assurance programme

Thus framework will be developed and standards improved as the
new approach to nisk management and internal controlis further
embedded across the Group

Such a systemis designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of

fallure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable,

but not absolute assurance against matenal misstaternent or loss
The Board has delegated responsibility for the implementation

of the Group risk management policy to the Risk Matters Group
(“RMG™), which s charred by the Directos of Enterprise Risk and Audit
and comprises senior executives from across the Group The Char
of the Audit Committee I1s invited to each of the RMG meetings and
attends regularly

Risk appetite

Duning the year, the Board undertook a detalled exercise to consider
its risk appehte in a number of key areas for the business The results
of this review indicafe the relative appetite of the Board across the risk
factors and behaviours

The Board 15 aligned on the relative nisks and has agreed the appetite
for nisk taking for Transformation inihanives and operational delivery
15 entrepreneurial, this position aligns with the strategic aims of

the Transformation programme and targets set for the business

The Board has a low tolerance for Health and Safety, Reputation and
Regulatory Complhiance risks In all other aspects the Board takes a
balanced view on nsk faking

It 1s the infent of the Board to use the results of this review to support
its ongaing decision making and risk mitigations The Board will review
annually or rare frequently as required in the light of the changes to
the economic environment, strategic progress and performance of
the business

This exercise 15 in addition to the evaluation of key nsks facing the
business, which 1s undertaken, formally, on an annual basis and
disclosed on pages 30 and 31 and the angoing mianagement and
rmonitoring of risks which 1s descnbed below
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Riskidentification and reporting

Under the sponsorship of the Group CEQ and her strengthened
management feam a robust risk framework has been established
though which nsk 1s identified and managed with vigour
Management across the Group have responsibility for identifying
and managing nisk Risk registers are continually updated through
an ongoing programme of risk workshops with operational and
financial management Risk s formally assessed as a standing
irem at all monthly Segment level board meehngs with key risks
being escalated and discussed by the RMG The chair of the Audit
Commuittee also has a standing invitation to attend the meetings
of the RMG The RMG reports to the Audit Commuttee and the Risks
and Disclosure Commuttee

The RMG reports and the risk register identify the principal risks fo

the business and assess the adequacy of controls and procedures in
place fo mitigate the likelihgod and the impact of these risks There are
alsoreporis to the RMG by speofic nisk owners on the effechiveness of
actions taken fo ritigate risks The regular risk reporting regime has
created an environment for the development and improvement of
rsk management procedures across the Group The Audit Committee
reviews the reports of the RMG and makes recommendations to
improve risk management and internal contro! This process of nisk
identification, measurement and reporting provides a comprehensive
ongaoing assessment of the significant risks facing the Group and the
mifigating actions taken in respect of those risks This process ensures
that the Group complies with relevant corporate governance best
practice In relation to nisk managernent, Including the guidance 1ssued
under the Turnbull Guidance The Group's internal audit function
reports directly to the Director of Enterprise Risk and Audit who,
together with the Group Finance function, makes recommendations
ta the Audit Commuttee inrelation to the maintenance of a sound
contfrol environment throughout the Group

Aschedule of the Group’s principal nisks and uncertainties and mihgating
achions being taken by management Is set cut on pages 30 and 31

During the year, the Board
undertook a detalled exercise
to consider Ifs risk appetite in
a number of key areas for the
business. The Board will use
the results to support its
ongoing decision making.

lets

go!
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Governance Corporate governance report continued

Code of Conduct

Durind the year, a new set of Values and a Code of Conduct was
drafted by ateam of senior managers and employees drawn from
each of our businesses across the Group To ensure thay this important
work 1s fully embedded over 90% of our employees across the Group
have received comprehensive face-to-face training in interactive
sessions led by ine managers with plans in place fo ensure the
remainder are trained in the near term All new employees also
undergo the training as part of their induction Parhicipanien in the
training 1s monitored by beth ine management and HR functions
across the Group Follow up interviews were also conducted amongst
sample groups of employees in each of the business segments

and retevant questions were included in the Group-wide employee
engagement survey and in performance reviews as a means of
confirming that employees have participated in the fraining session
and are aware of the Code and comnforfable wath its contents

Further training will be given in 2014 to ensure the Code remains

fully embedded across the organisation

Code of Conduct process

Drafted through engagement with stakeholders Group-wide

Thorough training programme for all emnployees

\ —/

p
Inclusion in Group-wide survey and performance reviews
to confirm awareness

\

s '
Ongoing monitoring
L_ —

Further training n 2014

Image removed

The Code of Conduct sets out how we expect our employees to
conduct themselves in their everyday working hife It covers areas
suchas behaviour towards our custfomers and our people health
and safety, reputation management, sustanable operatton, supplier
relationships, anti bribery, confiicts of interest, competition law,

nsk management and controls, fraud theft and false accounting

IT security share dealing and our prohibition of polittcal donations
The Code alsoincludes guidance to employees about therr
responsibility to report problems and issues that come to their
aftention and the alternative ways of raising such issues in escalating
order - ine management HR, the “ask-Harriet” ematl facility which
promaotes feedback from allemployees, and the Trustline —see below

The Code of Conduct was 1ssued to all employees in paper copy and
I1s 2lso available on the Group's Intranet and website Inaddition the
Group Company Secretary is avallable for advice on any matter which
may give rise to cause for concern

Whistleblowing

As mentioned above, the Code Indudes guidance t¢ employees
about their responsibility to report problerns and issues that come

to therr attention and also the alternative ways of raising such

1ssues This included a thorough re-launch of the independently run
whistleblowing helpline re-named the Trustline Details of the Trustline
are published in the Code of Conduct booklet and also on the Group's
intranet site Also included in the Code of Conduct were details of the
‘ask-Harnet” email facility which allows every employee across the
Group to raise ssues or make suggestions for improvernent directly
with the Group CEQ Significant issues brought to management’s
attentien through the Trustine or “ask Harriet” email facility are
reported to the Audit Committee

Review of system of internal control

During the year the Board, through the work of the Audit Cornmittee,
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system
of internal control There s an ongoing process for the identificabion
and evaluahon of risk management and internal control processes,
which has been in place, and significantly improved, throughout the
year and remains in place up fo the date of the financial statements
This includes the process by which management prepares
consolidated accounts The work conducted by management and
described on pages 30 and 31 15 complemented, supported and
chatlenged by the conirols assurance work carned outindependently
by the external auditors, PwC and the Group Internal Audit function
Regular reports on confrol 1ssues are presented to the Audit
Commuttee by the Director of Enterprise Risk and Audit The Board
inreviewing the effectveness of the system of inrernal control

can confirm that necessary actions have been or are being taken

to remedy any significant fallings or weaknesses identified from
thatreview The appointment of the Director of Enterprise Risk and
Audit was approved by the Audit Commuttee at the beginning of the
financial year in response to findings from the Audit Committee s
ONgong review

The approach to sk management and control that s bemg implemented
in the-current financial year is setoutn the Risk management section
on pages 30and 31




Going concern

After making appropriate enguiries and taking into account the
matters sef out In the Risk management section on pages 30 and

31 the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company
and the Group have adequate rescurces fo confinue In operational
existence for the foreseeable future For this reason they continue to
adopt the going concern basts In preparing the financial statements

Internal control and nsk management inrelation to the

financial reporting process

The Group has a thorough assurance process in place iInrespect of the

preparation verification and approval of pencdic financial reports

This process ncludes

> the involvernent of qualified professional employees with an
appropnate level of expenience (bothin Group Finance and
throughout the business),

» formal sign-offs from appropriate business segment managing
directors and finance directors

» comprehensive review and, where appropriate, challenge frorn key
internal Group functions,

» a transparent process to ensure full disclosure of Information to the
external auditors Engagement of a professional and expernienced
firm of external auditors,

> oversight by the Group's Audit Committee involving (@mongst
other duties)

- adetatled review of key financial reporting judgemnents which
have been discussed by management,
- review and, where approprate challenge on matters including
+ the consistency of and any changes to, significant accounting
policies and practices during the year,
+ significant adjustments resulting from an external audit
+ the going concern assumption, and
* the Company s staternent oninternal control systemns, prior to
endorsement by the Board

The above process and the review by the Audit Committee of a
comprehensive note that sets out the details of the preparation,
internal verification and approvat process for the Annual Report and
Accounts, provides comfort to the Board that the Annual Report

and Accounts, taken as a whole 1s far balanced and understandable
and provides the informaton necessary for shareholders to assess
the Company’s performance, business model and strategy

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilimes in respect
of the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration
Report and the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations Company law requires
the Directors to prepare financial staterments for each financial

year Under that law the Directors have prepared the Group and

the Company financial statements in accordance with Internatianal
Finanaal Reporting Standards (*IFRSs™) as adopted by the European
Union The financial statements are required by law to give a true and
fair view of the state of affarrs of the Company and the Group and of
the profit or loss of the Group for that period
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In preparnng those financial staternents, the Directors are required to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

» make Judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent, and

» state that the financial statements comply with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above
requirements in preparing the financial sratements The Directors
also confirm that they consider the annual report and accounts,
taken as a whole, 15 fair, balanced and understandable and provides
the infarmation necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s
performance business mode! and strategy

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounhing frecords
that show and explain the Company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any ime the finanoial position of the Cormpany
and the Group, and for ensuring that the financial staterents and

the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companses Act
2006 and asregards the Group finanaal statements Article 4of the
IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other imegularmes

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and infegrity of the
Company swebsite, and legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissermination of financial statements may differ
from tegislation in other junsdichions

Each of the Dhrectors who were in office at the date of this report

whose names and responsibilities are listed an pages 50 and 51,

confirm that to the best of their knowledge

> the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with iFRSs as adopted by the EU give atrue and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial posihion and profit of the Group,
and

» the Strategic and Directors’ Report contained on pages 2 to 89
includes a faw review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Group together with a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each of the Directors who held office at the date of approval of this
Drrectors’ Report confirms that so far as he/she is aware, there s

no relevant audit Information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware and that he/she has taken all steps that he/she ought to
have taken as a Director fo make him/her aware of any relevant audit
mformation and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of
that information

Share capital and related disclosures

Disclosures in relation to the share capital of the Company, including
the Company’s major shareholders are given in the “Other Disclosures”
sechion on pages 88to 89

Lets,

go!
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Governance: Report on Directors’ Remuneration
Annual Stafement by Chair of Remuneration Committee

Pay for
performance

The Committee considers it
essenttal fo ensure that our
execufive pay arrangements
are fully aligned with the
ambition and achievement
of our Transformation and
profitable growth strategy.

Picture removed

Chairman
Roger Burnell

Dear Shareholder,

lam delighted to present our report on Directors’ remuneration at
the end of a very successful year The Group's impraved financial
performance and rapid progress in respect of the Transformation
have exceeded our initial expectations Whilst these significant
achievements are fully explained on pages 2 to 45 of the Annual
Report, | would like to summanse the Group s achievements here
to give context to the decisions of the Committee dunng and in
respect of the year

The Committee believes that the performance of Harnet Green has
been excephional throughout the year Under her strang leadership
and vision we have effected a ngorous and rapid turnaround of the
business and moved at pace with our ambitious Transformation,
delivering more than expected, as demonstrated by our significantly
improved financal performance across arange of KPls We have also
developed communicated and started to implement our strategy

of sustainable profitable growth The performance of Michael

Healy s also regarded by the Commuttee as excephional with the
infroduction of a successful range of Infernal discplines and measures
to strengthen our balance sheet and the execution, inJune of this year,
of our £1 6 bilhon Capital Refinancing Plan

The outstanding performance of our Executive Directors across a
range of metnics, as disclosed on page 80 of the Annual Remuneration
Report should not diminish the strefching nature of the targets when
set by the Committee at the start of the year itis against this pleasing
backdrop, and in line with our pay for performance’ remuneration
philosophy, that the Cormmittee has taken its decisions in respect of
our Executive Directors’ remuneration arrangements

The Committee considers if essential 10 ensure that our executive pay
arrangements are fully aligned with the ambition and achievernent
of our Transformation and profitable growth strategy We alsoamto
operate a ‘hest-in class” approach to governance and shareholder
engagernent, so that our executives are remunerated 0 a manner
that reflects the views of our shareholders and best corporate
governance prachce




Algnment with our Transformation
and profitable growth strategy

The Committee ngarously follows its pay for performance philosophy
and durnng the year, developed senior executive pay arangements

to ensure they are both stretching and fully alignedwith our ambitious
Transformation and profitable growth strategy For the first time, all
senior executives now share in the same strategic targets and KPIs that
will focus Thomnas Cook on delivery and success Performance against
these fargets and KPis 1s monitored on a regular basts

Key changes inline with the above reward philosophy include

> new financial performance measures and targets for the
Performance Share Plan (PSP) and

> new financial and strateghic performance measures and targets
for the 2013/14 annual bonus plan

Our targets and KPIs for our Transformation
and profitable growth strategy
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The changes outhined impact upon all senvior executives with
responsibility for defivering our Transformation including
Executive Directors

Algning the long-term interests of
our senior execufives

The Commiftee considers it 1s important that Executive Directors
and other key senior executives should further demonstrate therr
alignment with the long-term interests of shareholders and, therefore,
the following changes have been made
» the mtroduction of a shareholding guideline policy of 1xsalary and
> increased annual borws deferral, with one third of the annuatbonus
deferred for two years and the unvested deferred shares subject
to clawback

How our remuneration is aligned with our Transformation
and profitable growth strategy

FY15 Target Annual bonus 13/14 Perfarmance share plan 2012 and 2013

New product revenue » £700m’ Reflected as a core measure -
Web penetration > 50% Reflected a5 a core measure -

Reflectedin Groug EBIT measure and
Cost out/profit improvement > E440m* Group CEC and CFC role-specific objectives Reflected inour Group EBIT core measure
Sales CAGR (3 year) >3 5% Role specific objectives where appropriate -

Reflected in Group EBIT measure and
Gross marginimprovement > 1 5% Group CEG and CFC role-speaific objectives Reflected in our Group EBIT core measure
UK underlying EBIT margin > 5% Role specific objectives where appropriate -
Cash conversion > 70%! Reflected as a core measure Reflected as a core measure for 2012 and 2013

1 Asdescnbed on page 20 Ihveeof the targets set out above have been significantlyincreased ince March 2013 when they were first set and communicated to the market (reflecting the pace and extent of progress

nrespect of the Tramnsformanon) These ncreased fargets are new

peoduct revenue - increased from £500mifhon ro £700 rthor: “cost oul/profit improvernent* —increased from £ 350 milion 1o £440 rmullion

and "cashconversion —increased from 60% to 70% The targers for the FY 13/14 annual bonus and the September 2013 PSP awards were set with reference 1o the new fargets

Refleching the views of our shareholders

In surnmer 2013, the Committee conducted a comprehensive
consultahion with our major shareholders representing greater than 50%
of our share capital, and also key governance bodies to discuss our overall
remuneration policy and the changes outined above

We are grateful for the level of engagement and the positwe supportive
and constructive feedback we receved on our proposals We used
these inputs o finalise our remuneration policy as we sirive to operate

a "best-in-class” approach to remuneration and corporate governance

Further detall, inciuding key changes that were made as result of this
consultation, s set out on pages 76 and 87

We remain committed to ongong engagement with our shareholders
and expect to consult with our mgjor shareholders inrelation to any
matters that we consider shareholders should have the opportunity
toexpress a pnor view on This indudes determuning the performance
measures for the next award under the Performance Share Plan
(currently expected to be made in January 2015) and the exerase of
flexibilty or significant discretion as provided for inour Policy Report

Remuneration outcomes for 2012/13

Asreferenced above, the annual bonus performance targets set at the
start of the year were stretching and fully reflected the challenging nature
of the task that then lay ahead We believe in pay for performance and
therefore due to the exceptional performance by our management
team 100% of the maximum annual bonus opportunity was paid to

Harriet Green and Michael Healy A full discussion of performance against
targetsis set aut on page 80

The 2010 PSP and Co-tnvestment Pian (COIP) awards lapsed as the
performance fargets were not met

Rernuneraton for 2013/14

Base salary annual bonus and PSP award deaisions for 2013/14 are set
outin the “Staternent of mplementation of remuneration Policy in the
following finanoal year” on pages 84 and 85

Those decisions also reflect the exceptional performance of both

Harriet Green and Michael Healy over the fast year, as evidenced by

the achievement of the first stages of our Transformation, and the
significant contribution that will be required from our Executive Directors
inthe future

New style report

Our Remuneration Report has been prepared in line with the new
regulations We are grateful to shareholders for their inputs to our Policy
Report during our summer 2013 consultation and look forward toyour
support at the 2014 AGMand throughout the year ahead

Roger Burnell
Charman of the Rernuneration Committee
27 Novernber 2013
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Governance’ Report on Directors’ Remuneration
Directors’ Remuneration Policy

It 15 intended that this Policy Report shall take binding effect from the date of its approval at the 2014 AGM

Information on how the Company intends to implement the policy for the current financial year s set out inthe
“Staternent of implernentation of rernuneration policy” section in the attached Annual Remuneration Report

Future policy tabie

Element Purpose and ink ta strategic objechives

Operahon

Basesala ry — Provides fixed remunerahon for the
role whichreflects the size and scope of
the Executive Director s responsibilities
— Attracts and retains the high calibre
talent necessary ro deliver the

—Satanes are paid monthly and are normally reviewed annually
—Consideration s typically given to arange of factorsincluding
»Size and scope of the Executive Director s responsibilities
- Performance and expenence
« Typicat pay levels for comparable roles in companies of a similar size and complexity in the relevant market

business strategy * Pay for ather employees in the Group
Retirement —To provide compentive post rehrement  —Payment may be made either into a pension scheme (e g a defined contnbution plan) ordelivered as a
benefits benefits or cash allowance equivalent cash allowance with Company cantributions set as a percentage of basic salary

— Attracts and retains the fugh calibre
talent necessary to deiiver the
business strategy

—Level of benefit1s dependent upon serionty

Benefits —Ensures the overall package
1scompetitive
—Aftracts and retains the high calibre
talent necessary to deliver the
business strategy

—Provision of a range of benefits by the Company Such benefits may include those currently provided ro Executive
Directors as disclosed on page 79 These are reviewed annually by the Committee to ensure that they provide a
competitive package and fachiiate the delivery of the business strategy

-The Company reserves the rght to deliver benefits to Executwe Directors depending on therr individual
circumstances which may include housing fravel education healthcare and other allowances

~Inthecase of non UK executives the Comrmittee may cansider addinonal allowances in ine with standard practice

Annual bonus  —Energisesand focuses management on
ngorous execution of Thornas Cook s
strategy on ar annual basis

—Rewards annual performance against
challenging annual targets and key
performance indicators which are
cntical to the realisation of our business
strategy

— Compulsory deferral inta the
Company s shares provides alink fothe
creation of long term sustainable value
and alse a refenhion element

~The clawback provision enables the
Cornpany fo mifigate risk

—Measures and targets are sef annually and pay out levels are determined by the Commuttee after the year end
based on performance aganst those targets

~The Comrmittes has full discretion to amend the bonus pay out (upwards or downwards) if imitsjudgement any
formulaic output does not produce a fair result for either the individual Executive Director or the Company taking
account of the overall business performance or situahon of the Company

~Executive Directars must defer one third of their annualbonus into Company shares which then vesr two years
affer the cash bonus payment date subject tocontinued employment and dawback provisions but ne addinonal
performance condifions Regarding the clawback pravisions unvested share awards lapse in certain scenanos
asdescribed on page 74

—Goad leaver ferms are descrbed in more detail on page 75

—Arthe Cornmittee s discretion Executive Directars may recerve the value of dividend equivalents dunng
the holding period on the vested shares

Long-fe m - Energises and focuses management on

share-based rngorous execution of Thomas Cook s
strategy over the longer ferm

—Rewards sustained performance
aganst chaflenging long term targets
and key performance indicatars which
are crincal 1o the realisanon of our
business strategy

—Long terrm perforrmance targets and
share based remuneranon support
the creation of lang term shareholder
value

incentive plan

~The current Performance Share Planwas appraved by shareholdersin 2007 and 1s governed by the rutes of the Plan
Asummiary of the key features is sef aut below

- Awards may be made in the form of canditional shares or ophons with veshing dependent upon the achievernent of
performance conditions sef by the Committee Vesting of awards will be subject toathree year performance penod

— The Committee has full discrehion to- amend the number of shares that vest (upwards or downwards) 1f nits
Judgement any formulaic output does nor produce a faw result for either the Indwidual Execuhive Director or the
Company taking account of the overall business performance or situahon of the Company

- The award will lapse if the parhicaipant leaves employment befare vesting unfess inspecific good leaver”
cwrcumstances Goad leaver terms are descnbed in more detad on page 75

—The Commuttee may N the event of avaniation of the Company s share capital adjust or amend the ferms of
the awards in accordance wath the rules of the Plan

—Ifthe Company pays any dividends in respect of record dates falling in the period from the award date te the
veshng date the Commitiee may consider that the Execurive should receive a payment following delivery
of the shares in satisfaction of their award thevalue of which s equivalent ro the cash value of the dradends
inrespect of any shares that vest

Charmanand —Torewardindiwduals for fulfiling the
relevant rofe
- Vi
gon Exegutl € —Attracts and retains individuaks with
Irector jees theskills expenence andknowledge fo
contribute toan effectve Board

—The Commuttee is responsible for determining the fees for the Charman of the Company The fees for the ather
Non Execuhive Directors are set by the Board
- Thefee structure may nclude
- Abasic fee
» Additional fees for chairmanship of Beard commuittees
« Additional fees for further respansibilines (for exammple Semor Independent Directorstup)
—Travel and hotel costs that are deerned o be an employment benefit by the relevant tax authonty may slso be paid

The Committee reserves the nght o make any remuneration or loss of office payments (including the sahstacrion of any outsranding awards of vanable remunerahon made to Executive Qurectors) where the
terrns of that payment were agreed (i} prior ta the appraval of this Policy under their onginal terms—far these purposes the rerms of ashare awardare agreed atthe time tss granted or (v) at a hme where
the indmdual was not a Director of the Company and in the apimon of the Comimittee the payment was not n considerahion for the indvidual becorming a Director of the Company
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Performance metrics

—Current salanes are disclosed on page 85
—in¢reases may be made to salary levels in cerfain circumstances as
required for example roreflect
«increase in scope of rale or responsibility
Performance nrele
+ An Executive Director being moved to market posoning over hime
~Crdinarily salaryincreases will not exceed the average increase
awarded to other employeesn the Croup

Perfarmance through our performance management processes is one of the key considerations in setting
and reviewing salary

—Cyrrent Company contnbution rates are disclosed on page 79

-Set at alevel which the Committee considers s appropriately
posiioned against comparable roles in companies of a similar size
and complexity in the relevant market

None

- Benefits may ndude those currently provided to Executive Directors
as disclosed on page 79 however the Committee reserves the night
to prowide such level of benefits as it considers appropnate to support
the ongoing strategy of the Company

None

For maximum performance
—150% of salary

- The Committee will have regard to vanous performance metncs (which will be deferminec by
the Commuttee} measured over the relevant financial year when determining bonuses
—Noless than 70% of the award 1s based on financial measures and up to 30% of the award may
be based on the achievement of role-specific objectives which may be financal or non financial
—Forachievementof a "threshold performance level (the mirimum level of performance that results
inany payment) no more than 20% of the maximum far each element of the banus pays out
-Forachieverment of a “mid” performance level no more than 60% of the maxmum far each
performance mefncinrelation fo the bonus pays out
—Forachievernent of a “maximum performance level 100% of the maximum pays cur

—Under the plan rules the aggregate value of all awards made within
any 12 month pericd must not exceed 200% of base salary (or
such other period as the Committee may deterrmine in excephional
arcumstances)

—The normal maximum face value of awards 5 150% of salary
However the Committee has a discretion to award up fo the plan rules
max when it believes the situationwarrants a higher level of award

—The performance measures for the Performance Share Planwill be a cornbinantion of financial measures
and share price based measures measured over atleast athree year performance penod Normally the
weighhngs wil! be as follows
« Atleast 50% willbe based on finanoial measures

At least 20% willbe based on share pnce based measures
* The remaining 20% may be based erther on financial or share price based measures

- The Committee will determine more specific performance measures for future awards as the Company
makes progress with s Transformation duning 2014 and will consult with major shareholders ahead of
the next award

- The performance measures may be adjusted following grant by the Committee to ensure a consistent
basis of calculation and to prowde a fair reflection of the Company s performance

~Forachievementofa threshald performance level (which s the minimum level of performanice that results
inanypart of an awardveshing) no more than 30% of each respective elerent of the award will vest

~Forachievementofa maximum™ performance level {(whichs the highest level of performance that resuits
inany additionalveshing) 100% of each respective elerment of the award will vest

—Normally there willbe straight fine vesting for any performance level between thresheld” and “maximum

—The Commuitee may subshitute vary or waive the performance targets if an event occurs whichcauses the
Cormmuttee to consider that the target 1s ne longer appropnate

—Set at alevel which the Committee (or the Board as appropriate)
considers
* Reflects the hme commutrnent and contnbution that is expected
fromthe Chairman and Non Executive Directors
Appropniately positioned against cornparable roles in companies
of a similar size and complexity in the relevant market

Nene
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Govermnance Report on Directors’ Remuneration |

Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued

Explanatory detail for future policy table

Changes made n the year

In hght of the new Thomas Cook strategy for profitable growth which
was announced in March 2013, the Company undertook areview

of the executive remuneration policy to ensure that it fits the future
needs of the business

The following changes were made

» The performance measures for the annual bonus plan and the
Performance Share Plan were reviewed and will be agreed each year
to ensure that they support the Thomas Cook strategy

» The level of annuat bonus deferral was increased to improve the
alignment of the Thomas Cook executive team with shareholders
over the longer term

» Forthe samereason ashareholding guidetine policy
was infroduced

As detaiied below shareholder views were sought on these changes

Explanation of chosen performance measures

and the target sething process

Performance measures have been selected toreflect the targets and
key performance indicators which are critical to the reatisation of our
business strategy

Chaltenging performance targets are set by the Committee each
year for the annual bonus and the PSP When setting these targets
the Cornmittee wll fake into account anumber of different reference
points ncluding the Company's business plan and consensus analyst
forecasts of the Company's performance Full vesting will only occur
for what the Commuttee considers to be stretching performance

Clawback
As highlighted in the policy table, a clawback arrangernent s in
place Under this arrangement, the unvested deferred annual bonus
shares may lapse i whole or in partif a clawback event occurs
whichincludes
» a matenal adverse misstaternent of the Company s
financial statements
> the parfictpant or therr team having engaged in gross misconduct
orin conduct which resulied in significant losses, as determined
by the Commirtee and/or
» the Company having suffered serious reputational darmage
as determined by the Commitiee, asa result of any aciion taken
by the particaipant or his team

In addition, under the PSP, the Commuittee has discretion to amend
the final vesting level should any formulaic output not reflect the
overall business performance Thisdiscretion allows the Committee
to decrease or increase the pay outin the range of 0% — 100% of the
number of shares awarded

Salary pension and benefits are not subject to clawback

Policy for the remunerahion of employees generally
Rermnuneration arrangements are determined throughout the Group
based on the same principle that reward should be achieved for
delivery of our business strategy and should be sufficient to attract
and retain high calibre talent without paytng more than 1s necessary

Thomas Cook has operations based in a number of different
countries and at different levels of senionty, and though based on the
overarching principle above reward policies vary depending upon
these factors

Senior executives with a signuficant ability to influence Company
results may parficipate in the annual bonus plan and the PSP

Approach to recrustment remuneration

When agreeing a remuneration package far the appointment of new

drectors, the Comrmittee will apply the following principles

» The package will be sufficient 1o affract and retain the high-calibre
talent necessary to develop and deliver the business strategy

> The Comrmttee will seek to ensure that no more s paid than
IS necessary

> In the next annual remuneration report the Committee will explain
to shareholders the rationale for the relevant arrangerments and If
and when the fransition to the policy described on pages 72 and 73
will occur

The foltowing elerments may be considered by the Committee
for inclusion in a recruitment package for an Executive Director, in
addifion to the policy elements set out in the table on pages 72
and 73

\
Element Approach 1
Aninmal long termincentive award may be made which may be |
higher than the maximum PSP opportunity asset out onpage 73
Tha Comirryttes wall ensure
—Theaward s inked to the achievement of appropriate and

thallenging performance targets
~The award will be forfeited if the performance and continued

ermployment condihions are not achieved

Initial long-term
ncentive award

titial annual bonus  Theiihal annual bonus opporfunity may be set higher than the
opportunity approved pohcy
The Commuttee will ensure the award sinked to the achievernent
of appropniate and challenging performance targers

Compensation for
forfeited awards

The terms of any compensation will be determined by taking
into account the terms of any forferted awards incdluding

- Performance achieved or likely to be achieved

—The propertion of performance/vesting period remamning
~The form and timing of the original award

Sign on awards Incertain imited crcumsiances for example inorder to

compensate for a loss at a previous employer other than for

forfeited awards the Committee may make a one off sign-on

award as part of the irhial package

The Comrrittee retains the discretion to defermine based on

the orcumstances af the hme whether thiswould be incashar |
shares whether or not performance condihions or an additional

holding penod would apply

Notice period Themtial notice period may be langer than the Cornpany s
sixmonth policy (up fo 2 maximum of 24 months) However
thiswill reduce by ane month for every month served until the

Company s policy pasition 1 reached

Relocationcosts  Where necessary the Comparny will pay appropriate relocation
costs inlinewath standard practice The Committee will seek

toensure that no more 1s paid than is necessary




An enhanced inihal notice peniod sign on awards orincreased iniha)
annual bonus of long-term incentive award opportunihies would only
be made avalable in exceptional arcumstances

Under the reporting regulations, Thormas Cook 1s required to set
out the maximum amount of variable pay which could be paidto a
new Director in respect of their recrufment In order fo provide the
Company with sufficient fleximlity in a recrutment scenano, the
Commuttee has set this figure as 500% of base salary This covers
the maxrmum annual bonus and the maximum face value of any
long-term incentive awards

Thus level of vanable pay would only be available in exceptional
arcumstances, and in order to achieve such a level of vanable pay
stretching fargets would need fo be mef, over both one year (for
the annual bonus) and at least three-year (for long-term incentive)
performance penods

For individuals becaming Executive Directors as a result of an internal
promotion from within Thomas Cook or as a result of an acquisition,
any awards under other arrangemenits which were made prior fo
Jjoining the Board may be allowed to continue under the onginal ferms,
or under a revised basis (such as a roll over into Thomas Cook sha res)
f the Commitiee determines approprate

Fee levels for a new Chairman ornew Non Executive Directors will be
deterrmined im accordance with the policy set out in the future polscy
table above

Service contracts and loss of office payments

Executive Directors

Execuhive Directors have Company service contracts For Harmet Green
and Michael Healy, the service confracts provide for a s month's
notice periad, from both the Company and the Executive Director

if the Company terminates the employrent of the Executive Director
withimmediate effect, a payment in iew of notice may be made
This may include base salary, pension and benefifs

Outstanding awards under the performance-linked elements of the

package will normally lapse if an executive leaves the Cormpany before

the payment or vesting date However, in “good leaver” scenarios

these may vest This mayinclude

» Ifthe parhicipant leaves during the annual bonus performance
year and before the payment date, a bonus payment in respect
of the year may be made, pro rated fo reflect the porfion
of the performance year elapsed andwith reference to
performance achieved

» Iithe participant leaves before the end of the holding penod,
any unvested deferred bonus shares may vest

> Qutstanding unvested awards under the PSP vest to the extent
detesmined by the Committee taking into account the period of
time the individual has held the award and performance achieved
agawnst any relevant performance targefs
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For reference “good leaver” scenanos incdude death disabliiry, wyury
il health redundancy, retirement the award holder’s employing
company or business being sold out of the Group or any other reason
that the Committee determines appropnate

Other than in the “good leaver” scenanos described no pay-outs will
be made under performance-inked elements

Any “good leaver” awards may vest of be paid out iImmediately upon
termnation or in line with the original vesting or payment dafe, af the
discrenion of the Commuttee

Awards granted under the PSP shall lapse at the ime of cessation of
employment unless the Committee has used ifs discretion fo deem
that an Individuahis a “good leaver”, when the Committee has the
discretion to determine when awards vest and, if relevant, when they
may be exercised Awards structured as options shall be exercisable
for a period of six months (or 12 months in the case of death)} from
vesting unless the Commuttee determines any ofher period should
apply Awards may also vest early f the participant is moved toa
country where therr capaaity to hold the award or deal in shares would
be restn¢ted or they would suffer a fax disadvantage inconnection
with the award

In the event of a takeover or winding-up of the Cornpany (ofher
than as part of an infernal reorganisation of the Thornas Cook
Group) PSP awards may also vest to the extent determined by

the Cormmuttee faking nto account the penod elapsed since grant
and the performance achieved aganst any relevant performance
targets The awards may afso be “rolled over” nto new shares ofan
acquinng company

Non-Executive Directars

Non Executive Directors, ncluding the Charman, are appointed
pursuant to a letter of appointment During the year the nofice period
for all Non-Executive Directors was reduced from six months to three
months for the Chairman, and from six months to one month for the
other Non-Executive Directors All Non-Executive Directors are subject
to annual re election by shareholders at the AGM The Non Executive
Directors’ letters of appontment continue untit the date stated in therr
appomntment letter, unless they are terminated for cause or onthe
nohice period stated, or if they are not re elected at the AGM

The Directors’ service contracts and letters of appontment are kept
for inspection by shareholders at the Company's registered office

Lets,
go.
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued

Outside appointments

The Company recognises the benefits to the indwidual, and to the
Group, of Executive Directors taking on external appointments as
Non-Executive Directors Subject fo the approval of the Committee an
Executive Director may accept such appointments at other companies
or other similar advisory or consultative roles The Committee has set
a it of one external appointment for each Executive Director to one
FTSE 100 or 250 company, or an international company of a similar
size, unless there 15 Justification for & further appointment The Board
wiil review the ime commitment of all outside appointments and
ensure that it 1s satisfied that this will not negatively impact upon

the executive’s time commitment to the performance of Thomas
Cook duties

The Committee may allow Executive Directors to retain any
fees payable

Statement of consideration of condihions elsewhere
in the Company

When setting the policy for Directors’ remuneration, the Committee
has regard to the pay and employment condifions elsewhere within
the Group Thisincludes consideration of
» Salary increases for the general employee populahion
> Overall spend on annual bonus
> Participahion levels in the annual bonus and any
long-term incentives
» Cormpany-wide benefit (ncluding pension) offerings
» Any other refevant factors as determined by the Committee

In order to take info account the views of the general employee
popuiation when farmulating Director pay policy, the Cornmittee
may review information provided by the HR function and feedback
frorm employee engagement surveys

We were pleased with the
level of engagement from
our shareholders, and the
positive, supportive and

constructive feedback we
received on our proposals

Statement of consideration of shareholder views

The Company 1s committed to on-going engagement and seeks major

shareholderviews in advance of proposing significant changes fo its

remuneration policies The following describes the 2013 consultation

asarecent example

> During the year, the Company consulted with its shareholders in
respect of remuneration

> Inresponse to the advisory shareholder vote on the Directors’
Remuneration Report at the 2013 AGM, both the Chairman of the
Board and the Chairman of the Rernuneration Committee met with '
major shareholders to discuss the 1ssues raised by them

> Inaddition, after the announcement of the Company s new strategy
in March 2013 the Chairman of the Board and the Remuneration
Committee chairman met with major shareholders representing
cumulatively over 50% of the Company's share captiahin june
andJuly 2013 to discuss the approach to performance conditions
for the Septernber 2012 and September 2013 PSP awards and
to present the Remuneration Poficy set out under the then draft
revised Directors’ Reruneration Repart Regulahons whichincluded
the increased annual bonus deferral and the intraduction of
shareholding requirements At these meetings, soundings were
taken in respect of Executive Director base pay rises

> Subsequent follow up consultation was carned out dunng
Septerber October and Novemnber

We were pleased with the tevel of engagement from our shareholders
andthe positive, supportive and constructive feedback we receved
onour proposals Views from all shareholder meetings were taken
into consideration when formulating executive remuneration policy
Anexample of how shareholders’ views were taken into account was
that the Committee decided to amend the share price measurement
basis to be in line with shareholder requirements, as described on
pages 81 and 87 '
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lllustrative performance scenanos

Graph removed Graphremoved

The above charts are based on the current package The charts show the level of remuneration that would be received by the Directors above
in accordance with the Directars rermuneration poticy in the first financial year it applies (1 e financial year 2013/2014) The charts show three
scenanos (a) base salary, benefits and pension (b) mid and (¢) maximum

In developing the scenanos, the following assumptions have beert made

-~

Base salary, benefits

Based an what an Executive Director would receve If performance was in tine with the following scenarnc

Only toral fixed pay s receved (e base salary benefits and pension This is calculated as follows

- Basesalary s the latest known salary

- Benefits measured at benefits in single figure table Further context for this figure 15 prowided on page 79
—Pension measured by applying cash in lieurate agamnst latest known salary

and pension
Base Benefits Pensicn Total fixed
Group CEQ £680000 £186 000 £204000 £1070000
Group CFO £500 000 £22 000 £125000 E647000
Based onwhat an Executive Director would receve if performance was in line with the Company s expectations whichwould result
in the fallowing scenaria
Mid —Annual bonus pays out at 60% of maxirnum for mid performance

—AfPSP award with a face value of 150% (in line with the “normaf” grant poltcy} pays out 30% of maximum, being threshold level
of vesting

LMaxamum

Based on what an Executive Director would recewve If performance was in hne with the following scenano
—Full pay-out of annual bonus 1e 150% of salary

— A PSP award with a face value of 200% (in ine with the *maxmum” possible award under the plan rutes) pays out at 100%
of maximum

v

Notes Asrequired by the regulations performance share plan awards {and amountsincluded wathen the bonuswhich have been deferred into shares) are ser out at face value
with noshare price growth assumptions

Lets,
40

Strategic report

N

Directars’ report

Financial statements (N



78 Thomas Cook Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2013

Transformation the first 365 days

Governance: Report on Directors’ Remuneration
Annual Remuneration Report

The Remuneration Committee presents its Annual Report on External advisors !

Directors remuneration which is set out below
Deloitte LLP were formally appointed as advisors by the Committee

follawing a competitive tender processin June 2012 They were

Consideration by the Directors of matters apponted specifically fo provide the Committee with objective and

relating to Directors’ remuneration independent advice on executive remuneration matters Delodte s

The followng Directors were members of the Remuneration amember of the Remuneration Consultants’ Group and, as such

Committee when matters relating to the Drrectors’ remuneration for volunfarity operates under the code of conduct in relation to executive

the year were considered rermunerafion consuling in the UK The Committee 15 satisfied that

> Roger Burnell (Chair) the advice they have receved from Deloitte dunng the year has been

> Dawn Arrey objective and independent Total fees paid to Delotte in relation to

> Martine Verluyten advice to the Committeg amounted to £65,559 (charged on a ime

> Ernre Berkin (rom 1 April 2013) plus expenses basis) Other practices of Deloitte, separate fromthe
execuhive remuneration practice, have provided consulting services in

The Committee nvites indviduaks o attend meetings, as it deems relation fo systems and organisational design projects and general tax

beneficial to assist i In reviewing matters for consideration Durngthe ~and corporate finance advice to the Company during the year

year these individuals included Frank Meysman (Chairman), Harmet h
Green (Group Chief Executive Officer), Peter Marks (Non-Executive During the year, Alithos provided assistance fo the Committee !
Director), Craig Stoehr (Group General Counsel), Sandra Campopiano regarding the calculation of fotal shareholder return forwhich the
(ChiefPeople Officer) Judith Mackenzie (Group Head of Performance 1012 fees were £9 000 (based on the number of awards for which
and Reward) and Derek Woodward (Group Company Secretary) calculations were performed and the reports produced) Althos was

Martine Verluyten is also Chairman of the Audit Committee and selected by the Company as a service provider, and the Committeets
as such ensures that there Is coordination in respect of risk and satisfied that the advice s Independent and objective Alithos provided
accounting 1ssues no other services to the Company

No Director or Senior Executive 1s present at meetings when their own
remuneration arrangements are discussed

Single figure of total remuneration
The following table sets out the single figure of total remuneration for Directars for the financial years ending 30 September 2012 and 2013

4 {a) (b) {© {d) () | Total(excludin Buy out "
Salary/fees Benefits Annualbonus PSP Pension | buy-out awards; awards® Total
£ 000 £'000 £000 E 000 £'000 £000 £'000 E 000
2012413 [2011/12 (2012493 2011712 [2012/13 2011412 |2012A43 2001/12 |2012/13 2011412 |2012/13 2011412 [2012/13 2011412 |2012/73 2011712
Executwve Directors
Harriet Graen! HBG 118 186 27| 17852 - - - 204 36} 2855 181 - 53467 2855 b
Michael Haaly? 48O 105 22 6 720 39 - - 120 26 1342 176 - -| 13u2 176
Non-Executive Directors
Frank Meysman 275 275 38 54 - - - - - - 313 329 - - 313 329
Dawn Airey 60 60 - - - - - - - - 60 60 - - 60 60
Emre Berkin 55 - - - - - - - - - 55 - - - 55 -
Roger Burnell 30 76 - - - - - - - - B0 76 - - 80 76
Peter Marks 70 b6 - - - - - - - - 70 66 - - 70 66
Martine Verluyten 80 73 - - - - - - — - 80 73 - - 80 73
Past-Non Executive Director
Richard Pennycook® [ n -1 - - — - - —l - -on —} - - 11 -
Total | 4,866 3,012/ |
Notes

Harnet Green was appointed Group CEQ on 30 July 2012

2 The bonus amount shown of £1 785 OO relates to a 14 month penod from 30 July 2012 o 30 September 2013 however as the performance conditions ended during the year
(2012/13) 1t1s necessary to show the bonus amount solely within that year

Michael Healy was appointed Group CFO on 1 july 2012

Ernre Berkin was appointed to the Board on 1 Novernber 2012

Richard Pennycook was appointed to the Board on 1 Apal 2013 and resigned an 5 June 2013

Asdisclosed in the 2011/12 Directors Remunerahion Report by resigring from her previaus positiontejain the Company Harrier Green forfeited deferred borus and long term
incentive awards granted by ber farmer emplayer To helpn securing her appaintment the Cempany agreed to provide a measure of compensation for these awards based

on anmdependent externalvaluanion of the projecied veshing level Asaresult she Company paid Harmet Green cash payments of £244 000 and £292 000 Apil and fuly
2013 respectively such dates beng the narmal vesting dates for the awards made by her former employer The value has been noted in the 2011/12 colurnn as the payment
was in respect of Harnef Green s appointment duning that year The Committea did not consider it appropriate to apply addmonal Thomas Cook perforrnance measures to these

payments as they are compensation for forferture of awards from a former employer and reflect only the projected vesting level of those awards already taking into account
perfarmance achieved compared fo the original targets set

[ LI -
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Additional disclosures

Further infermation in respect of the salary benefits, pension, annual bonus and PSP amounts incuded in the table above are given below

Salary

Base salaries for the Executive Directors were unchanged dunng the year

Benefits
The following tabie sets out the benefits received and the fax paid by the Company in respect of certain benefits

( Taxon \

grossed up
Income | Acc dati acc dation Tax on grossed

Name Carallowance | Privatemedical [  Lifeassurance protection costs cosls Travelcosts | uptravelcosts Total
Harnet Green £20000 £1693 £1405 £6 468 £60637 £54 619 £21 205 £19 440 £185 767
Michael Healy £20000 £1693 £796 - - - - — £22 489
\[rank Meysman - - - - £13,174 £12 211 £12379 - E37 794/

The benefits received by the Executive Directors include private medical benefits, Iife assurance/death-in-service benefit and car aflowance
Harnet Green additionally receives income protection and the provision of accommodahion in London and travel costs reimbursed by the
Company and the incormne tax assessed by HMRC as payable on the accommodation and travel expense elerents* Of the benefits disclosed for
Harret Green arca £82,000 relate to these accommodation and travel costs, which are considered necessary due tolate and early meetings
necessitated by the scale and pace of our ambihious Transformation The figure disclosed for Frank Meysman (s in respect of accommaodation

in Londen and travel costs reimbursed by the Company and the income tax assessed by HMRC as payable on the London accormmodation
element™ Frank Meysman's travel expenses between Belgium and the UK are not taxable, as he 1s domiciled in Belgium and is entitled to a
spectfic deduction under HMRC rules

* The income tax s not patd on any other elements of the benefits received by Harriet Green and Frank Meysman

Pensions

The Company contributes for each of the Executive Directors info erther a pension scheme or 35 a cash allowance an amount equivalent to 30%
and 25% of annual base salary or the Group CEQ and Group CFO respectively Currently both Harsiet Green and Michael Healy receive ther
pension contributions as cash allowances

Letls,
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Transformation the first 365 days

Governance Report on Directors’ Remuneration
Annual Remuneration Report continued

Annual bonus

For the year the maxmum annual bonus award opportunity was

» Group CEQ 225% of salary per annum (however the Committee agreed at the time of appointment of Harriet Green that the 2012/13
annual bonus maximum would be adjusted to reflect the 14 month peniod from date of appointment to the year end) The rationale for this
maximum bonus opportunity of 225% was, as stated in last year s report, to ncentivise significant stretch targets inked to the Transformation
plan The annual bonus opportunity for FY 2013/14 s aligned with policy at 150%

> Group CFO 150% of salary per annum

The table below sets out detalls of performance against the FY 2012/13 bonus targets

G D
Group CEO
Actual performance relative to targets set Resulfing level
Weight Below  Threshold Mid  Maximum Actual performance % of award
Measures (asa og) (20%of  (b0%af  (100%of agreneved "Eﬁ rzogf -7?19'21 " [ (% maximum
maxawarn MaAXMUM  MAXMUm Maxsmum opporturity)
opportunity) opportunity) opportunity}
Group free cash flow 15% £53 2m n/a' 100%
Group underlying EBIT? 10% £2630m 68 48% 100%
UK underlying EBIT* 10% £652m 413 39% 100%
Sawingsof £250mannouncedfothe
Financial Internal savings 16% market at the halfyear and £70mrealised n/a 100%
¢ FY13
£1 ébnrefinancing plan executed
Externalfunding 15% e n/a 100%
Management
Information Reparting 5% Significant improvements delivered n/a 100%
Targetswere set Performarce judged excephonal against
refaning fothe allmeasures Highlights nclude successful
developrment and afpﬁroval and positively recewved launch
Strategic launch of the new 15% of the new strategy for ﬁmﬁtab\e growth n/a 100%
andpeople |strategy andkeytalent and cnmical new leadership appointrments
engagement and made a?d significant improvemnentsin
internal and external comrmunication
It[)_ﬁ;ﬁ;aecsnce shanng and effective ways af working
k Totalresulting level of award as % of maximum opportunity 100% )
- ™
Group CFO
Actual performance relativeto targets set Resuifing level
Weight Below  Threshold Mid  Maxmum Actual performance % of award
Measures {asa%of (20% of (60%of  (100%of acl:)rflev ed improvement (% maximusn
max award) Mmaxmum  MAKMUm  Makimum on2011/12
opportunity)
appartunity) opporiunity} opportunity)
Group free cash flow 35% £53 2m n/al 100%
Financial
CGroup underlying EBIT? 35% £2630m 68 U8% 100%
Exceptional performance in leading
Targets were set the succeslsrrl}qu ac;gltr)a]\ geﬁnancnng
relahing to external Continuous improvement of
Stratesic funding development Group Finance pracesses
4 g I of the Group Finance 30% Savings of £250m announced fo the nia 100%
anapecple g oo o andrelevant market at the half yearand £70m
frategicfi ! realised F¥13
| :a:agesﬁlc nancie Supported the UK management fearn
n achuewngKrurnaround obyechivesand
delivery of UK underlying EBIT of £65 2m
\_ Total resulting level of award as % of maximum opportunity 100%
Notes

1 The percentage improvernent on 2011/12 for Group free cash flow s marked as n/a because last year s figure of £{103) million was negative which does not permit a

percentage COMParIson

2 Groupunderlying EBIT performance of £263 million far FY 13 resulted in 100% achievernent of the bonus stretch target Inaddition the Remunerahion Committee made an
adjustment tothe FY 13 actual performance and bonus targets toindude the results of the North American business for the penod pror to disposal n FY 13 Although this calculation
reduced actual performance andincreased the bonus farget as the Narth Amenican business made losses prior to disposal while ir was budgeted ro be profitable the resulf showed
that 100% of the stretch farget would shil have been achieved

3 2011/12 figures included India (divestedin 2G12)




The actual performance targets set at the beginning of the
performance period are not disclosed as they are considered to
rernain commercially sensitive at this time We will disclose these
rargefs at such poiny that the Committee considers they are no tonger
commercially sensitive

Annual bonus deferral

One quarter of the annual bonus was deferred into the Company s
shares, which will be released after one year This pehcy has been
amended for the current year and one third of the bonus declared
in respect of the 2013/14 year wil! be held in the form of shares,
which will vest after two years from the cash bonus dafe subject
to confinued employment and the clawback provisions described
on page 74 The deferred shares may be forfeited if the Executive
Director leaves before the date the deferred shares are released

Performance Share Plan (“PSP”) awards
There are no pay outs inrespect of the PSP as no awards made to the
Executive Directors have yet reached therr vesting dates

Thomas Coek Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2013 8 1

Scheme interests awarded during the financial year

The following table sets out details of awards of condtional shares
made during the year under the PSP Thomnas Cook consulted with
major sharehalders in respect of these awards — further detailis
provided on pages 66, 76 and 87

Reflecting the exceptional performance of both Executive Directors
over the last year, as evidenced by the achievemnent of the first stages
of our Transformation, the Cornmittee considered enhanced award
levels with face values of 200% and 187 5% of salary were appropriate
for Harnet Green and Michael Healy respectively The award levels,
and the challenging performance targets, reflect the significant
contnbution that wilt be required from our Execunve Directors over the
next three years

In addition the levels reflect that the Committee does not currently
envisage making any further awards under the PSP to Executive
Directors unnl early 2015 (1 ¢ iris not infended to make PSP awards
to Exc;cuﬂve Directors during the financial year ending 30 September
2014

Face value has been calculated by mulnplying the number of shares
awarded by a price of £1 475 which was the closing share price for the

trading day immediately prior to the award date
-~

Amount vestin,

unrvestng End of financial
Threshold Maximurm measures End of share price
Number of shares performance performance performance performance
Date of award awarded Face value (% of facevalug) | (% of face value) | period penod
Group CEO 30092013 922033 £1,360,000 30% 100% 30092016 Measurer:nenr
approachs

LQroup CFo 30092013 610169 £900000 30% 100% 30092016 described below

Awards to both Executive Directors will vest dependent upon the achievernent of three year performance measures as set out below

Share price (5% of the overall award)

Group

Group underying EBIT (30%of the overall award)

Cash conversion (25% of the averall award)

Performance Vesting (% of Performance Vesting {% of Performance Cash Vesting (% of
level Share pnce this portion ) level Egﬂ_erly ng this portion)) level conversion this portion )
Maximurmn £300 100% Maximum Seebelow 100% Maxirnum 90% 100%
Threshold £2 25 30% Threshold 30% Threshold 70% 30%

Share price performance 1smeasured as the
average share price performance over the fixed

of 30 trading days from the release of
the prefirminary FY16 results with the intenhion
of captunng the market s reaction to the
financial resulis

pera

exceptional irems

The performance measures above wese selected to reflect the

Group underlying EBIT performance in respect of
FY16, whichis the final year of the three year

performance period
Group underlying EBIT excludes

Cash conversion performance measured in

respectof FY 16 cash corwersion which 1sthe
finalyear of the three-year performnance penod
Cash conversion is defined as free cash flow
post excephional ttems, before caprtal
expenditure/EBITDA

The Committee considers the targets to be challenging and the

strategic and transformational objectives of the Group Along with
the 2013/14 annual bonus plan targets, these measures create full
alignment of our reward arrangements with our Transformation
targets and KPls, as demonstrated on page 20 Therationale for

the conhinued use of share price targets, albeit with an amended
measurement basis was agreed with major Shareholders, as set out

auditors maintain oversight of the performance measurement
process The Company's share price when Harriet Green joined on
30 )uly 2012 was 16 25 pence and by 30 September 2013 it was

153 4 pence The performance targets for the September 2013 PSP
award were made by reference to the new Increased financial targets
as described on pages 20 and 71

on pages 66, 76 and 87
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Transformation the first 365 days

Governance Report on Directors’ Remuneration

Annual Remuneration Report continued

The Committee also considers the Group underlying EBIT targets to
be stretchung however due to our ambitious plans for the business
Transformation we consider that these targets are commercially
sensitive af this point We commit to disclosing the target range

on aretrospective basis at the end of the performance period

We have discussed this approach with our major Shareholders,
who are supporiive

The Committee wilt have the discretion to amend the final pay-out
tevel if It does not consider that 1t reflects the underlying performance
of the Company As discussed on page 71, we would expect to consult
with our shareholders in the event of any significant adustment, in
parficular an upwards adjustrment

The Committee considers that it 1ssmportant that all senior executives
share in the same strategic targets and KPls that wilt focus Thomas
Cock on delivery and success The top 100 senior executives
participate in the Performance Share Plan and are therefore also
focused on delivery of share price, Group underdying EBIT and cash
conversion Yargets

Full details of the scheme interests held by Executive Directors
areset out on page 86

Payments within the reportng year o past
Directors, and loss of office payments

There were no payments to past Directors who were not in position
asa Director at the fime a relevant payment was accrued There were
also no loss of office payments made within the year

Current Executive Director service contracts

The dates of the service contracts for Harriet Green and Michael
Healyare 23 May 2012 and 8 May 2012 Harrlet Green’sinitial nofice
period was 24 months, reducing at the rate of one month for every
month served {from commencement of her service as CEO on 30 July
2012) until the Policy position of sixmonths isreached At the date of
approval of this report Harnet Green’s notice period Js nine months
and atthe ime of our AGM In February 2014 itwill be six months,
inhnewithour Policy The service contracts are available for inspection
at the Cormpary’s registered office

Non-Executive Directors
The Chairman s paid a single, consoiidated fee of £275,000

The Non-Executive Directors are paid a basic fee plus additional fees
for chairmanship of Board Commuttees

The annual rates of Non-Executive Director fees are shown in the
table below

Annual fees
Posihon E 000
Non Executeve Director 60
Additional fee for the Chairman of the Audit Committee 20
additional fee for the Chairman of the Rermuneranon Commites 10
Addihonal fee for the Chairman of the Health Safety
and Environmental Committee 10

Each of the Non Executive Directors has been appointed pursuant
to aletter of appointment which are avallable for nspection at the
Company's registered office The appointments under these letters
continue until the expiry dates set out below unless terminated for
cause or on the period of notice stated below

Dare of latest letter Notice
Director of appointmeni Expiry date perlod
Frank Meysman 27 March 2013 N/A 3menths
Dawn Airey 27 March 2013 11 April 2016 1 month
Ernre Berkin 27 March 2013 30 October 2015 1 month
Roger Burnell 27 March 2013 2074 AGM 1 manth
Peter Marks 27 March 2013 30 Septermber 2014 1 month
CarlSymon 30ctaber 2013 2 October 2016 1 month
Warren Tucker 3 Ocrober 2013 2 October 2016 1 manth
Martine Verluyten 27 March 2013 BMay 2014 1 month

Note The natice period for Non Executive Directors was reduced from s months to
one month {three months forthe Charman) during the year, to bring the natice periods
in line with best practice

External appointments

As set out Inthe Policy Report, the Company recognises the benefits of
Executive Directors taking on external appointments as Non-Executive
Directors, subject to the irmitations set out in the Policy Report and to
Commuittee approval

Harnet Green1sa non executive director of BAE Systerns plc and
Emerson Electric Co Both roles were held prior to her appointment
as Group CEO On her appointment, the Board agreed that she
should continue to serve on both boards, being satisfied that she will
devote sufficient ime and energy to the Company and that being a
non-executive directoris a mutual benefit to the executive and the
Company For the penod from 1 October 20712 unhil 30 September
2013, she receved fees of £84 000 and $115,875 08 respectvely
which she is allowed to retain

Performance graphs

Performance of market capitalisation since 31 July 2012

The graph set out below shows the increase in the Comparny s stock
market capitalisation, inthe penod 37 July 2012 to 30 Septernber
2013 (the pericd between the appointment of Harnet Green as CEQ
and the end of FY13)

Graph removed

Note Fee rates were reviewed duning the year and following a benchmarking exercise
were feftunchanged




Relative performance since 31 July 2012

The graph set out on the nght shows the Total Shareholder Return
{“TSR" descnbed in more detail further below) for Thomas Cook
Group plc shareholders from 31 july 2012 10 30 September 2013 (the
period between the appointment of Harret Green as CEQ and the end
of F¥13) based on a starting value of £100 invested compared to the
FTSE 250 Index and the FTSE All Share Travel & Leisure Index

Note This graph shows the value of Thomas Cook plc on 31 July 2012 compared with
the value of £100 irvested inthe FTSE 250 and FTSE All Share Travel & Leisure Index
The intermediate points are the values at the end of each month in the period

Statutory graph

Thomas Cook Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2013 83

Graphrermoved

The graph below shows the TSR for holders of Thomas Coak Group plc €310 Ordinary Shares (€0 01 Qrdwary Shares from 3 June 2013) for the
five year pertod since 30 September 2008, measured agamst the FTSE 250 Index and the FTSE All Share Travel & Leisure index These indices
were chosen as relevant comparators as the Company 1sa member of both Indices, with one reflecting a broad equity index and the other
being specific to the travel sector The calculation of TSR 15 1n accordance with the relevant remuneration regulations and is broadly the

change in market price together with reinvestment of dividend income This graph shows the value of £100 invested in Thomnas Cook Group
plc on 30 September 2008 compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE 250 Index and the FTSE All Share Travel & Leisure Index

The intermediate points are the values at the Company's financial year ends

Graph removed

Group CEQ FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY2010/11 FY 2011/12 FY2012/13
CEQ single figure Harnet Green' - - - £717000 £2855000
of remuneration Sam Weihagen? - - £153 000 £1171000 -

Manry Foritenla Novoa® £2996 000 £2 322000 £2175 000" - -
Annual bonus pay-out Harnet Green - - - Seenote 5 100%
{as % maximum Sam Weihagen - - 0% 23% -
apportunity)

Manny Fontenla Navoa 6% 80% 0% - -
PSP vesting Harniet Green - - - Seenote b Seenate b
{as % of maximum Sam Wethagen - - 0% 0% -
opporiunity)

Manny Fontenla Novoa 67 5% 0% 0% - -

The table above shows the prescribed remuneration data {as shown in the left-handside columnn} for the Director{s) undertaking the role of

Group Chief Executive Officer during each of the last five financial years
Notes
1 Harret Greenwas appointed Group CEQ on 30 July 2012

Sarm Weihagen was appointed Group CEQ on 3 August 2011 and remained in postuntil the appointment of Harnet Green

2
3 Manny Fontenla Novoa stepped down as CEQ on 2 August 2011
Yy

The single figure for FY 2010411 for Manny Fantenla Novoaincludes his termination payment whichwasa total of £1 166 639 (n respect of contzactual entitlements to base

salary pension allowance and benefits inlieu of notice)

Neannual bonus targets were setinrespect of the twa month penod between Harnes Green sappointment i by 2012 and the September 2012 yearend

5
& There was no PSP award vesting n FY 2011/12 and 2012/13 as none of Harnet Green s awards had yet reached the end of therr performance penods
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Annual Remunerafion Report continued

Percentage change In remunerahion
of Chief Executive Officer

The table below sets out the percentage change inthe remuneration
of the Group CEQ compared to that of UK-based employees,
{including retail and tour-operations but excluding any employees
whose pay s subject to long-term collective agreements} We have
selected this comparator group as the Group CEO 15 UK-based and
this provides a local market reference point, and Is a sizeable and

fair representation of gur employee base Lang-term collective
agreements have been excluded to ensure that pay movements
within the comparator group are subject to similar external pressures

as the Group CEQ
% change in remuneration from FY11/12 to FY12/13

% change in % changein % change in
base salary benafits annuai bonus
Group CEQ 0% Seenote3below  Seenore 5 below
UK based employees 0% Seenotetbelow  Seenote 6 below

Notes

1 The Group CEQ Harnet Green was appointed on30 july 2012 Her salary upon
appontment was £680 000 and rhis has not increased during FY11/12 or FY12/13
Harnet Green s salary on appointment was sef ata lower level than her predecessars
Sam Wethagen and Manny Fontenla Novoa Their respective salary rates are
shown below

the Group annual bonus plan were not met and therefore annual bonus payments
were only made in irited excephonal, Qrcumstances in respect of the personal
targets element of the plan For FY 2012/13 the Group financial targets have been
exceeded and 100% of the maxmum oppertunity in respect of this element will
pay out for all parhaipants Group financial targets account for 70% of the maximum
apportunity The rematning 30% 15 in respect of personat targets and performance
against these for the employee population will be determined in early December
2013 in hine with the usual performance management cycle

Relative importance of spend on pay

The chart below displays the relative expenditure of the Company
onvarious matters as required (in the case of Group employees’ pay
and shareholder distributions) by the relevant remuneration regulations

Graphremoved

Salary rate perannum(£)
Harnet Green (from 30 July 2012) 680000
Sam Weihagen (3 August 2011 to 30 uly 2012) 750000
Manny Fontenla Novoa (fo 2 August 2011) 850000

2 UK based employees have had their base salary frozen since 2010 due to business
challenges and uncertannies similar ro the majonty of Thomas Cook employees
acrossall segments Any exceprional or one off changes to salaries due for example
1o promohions or role changes within the year have been excluded

3 The Company has provided the same types and fevels of benefits ta Harnet Green
since her appointment Grven the fact that Harnet Green was only CEG for two
months of the prior financial year it 1s difficult to prowide a direct compansen
Hawever ta provide some companson Harriet Greens annualised benefits for FY
11/12 were £156 000 {based on £27 C00 benefits recaved inrelation to a 63 day
period from 30 July 2012) and benefits for the year being reported on (as shownin
the single figure tatle on page 78) were £186 000 A full breakdawn of the benefits
for the current year 1s provided on page 79 Harriet Green s predecessor as CEQ
SamWeshagen recewved £93 0001n benefits in the prior vear as disclosed inlast
year s report

4 The maln taxable benefits provided to UK based employeesare povate medical
insurance and car allowance dependent upon senionty There has beennochange
in the level of benefits prowided

5 Harriet Green's banus payment of £1 785,000 shown inthesingle figure
remuneration table on page 78 relates to a 14 month period as CEQ (from 30 July
2012 to 30 September 2013) and reflects a penod of excephional performance
Harnet Green did not receive a benus payment inrespect of the pnor financial
year (having joined the Company as CEQ just rwo months prior ta the year end)
Therefore adirect comparison agawnst the pror yearis not possible Harnet Green s
predecessor as CEO Sam Weihagen was in place for approxmately 10 months of
the prior financial year and as disclosed inlast year s Remunerahion Report receved
abonus paymeni of £300 000 for that 10 month penod Sam Weihagen s bonus
figure cannot be compared directly to Harnet Green s igure in a manner which
perrmits companson as Sam Weihagen was an Intenm CEQ and therefore bis
package was framed on an ennrely different basis to Harnet Greens Asdisclesed
in last year s Remuneranion Report "the bonus arrangerment in respect of Sam
Welhagen reflected the special arcumstances and uncertain fenure of bis
appointment a5 GroupCEQ  As also previcusly disclosed Sam Weihagen was
awarded 2 3% of hus maxmum bonus apportunity for the prior year Harrel Green
has been awarded 100% of her bonus opportunity for the year being reported on
reflecting exceptional performance duning that period

& Inorder to provide the most direct companson possible the Commuttee considers
a focus on all employees participating in the Group annual bonus scheme 1s
appropniate as the perfarmance fargets have a “Group focus similar 1o the
performance rargers in place for Harnet Green Its difficult to provide a mearingful
percentage change figure from FY 11/12 roF 12/13 as the performance of the
Company has transformed over this persod For FY 11/12 the financial targets for

Group underlying EBIT 1s shown above as this is a key performance
indecator for the Company Overall Director pay has also beenincluded
to give an indication of ifs context compared to overall employee pay
The figures shown i the table are extracted from the Group's financial
statements The amounts for Group employees’ payand Directors
pay both include employer social secunty payments

N

Statement of implementation of remuneration
policy in the following financial year

The Cornmittee considers that the Company's performance has been
excepticnal since the appeintment of Harniet Green and Michael
Healy last year, as evidenced by the excellent delivery of the first
stages of our Transformation {measured by a range of metrics) and
the Company's Caprtal Refinancing Plan The following section of the
report sets out the executive remuneration decisions made to support
Thomas Cook's delivery of the next stage of our Transformation

2013/14 base salaries

When reviewing Executive Director salaries in fine with our policy
stated on page 72 the Commuttee considers a range of factors
including the size and scope of the executive s responsiblihes
performance and expenience, and pay for other employees in

the Cornpany The Committee also takes a holistic view of total
remuneration including the level of vanable pay which will vest
dependent upon achievernent of demanding performance targets
aswe deliver our Transformation

The Committee 15 particularly mindful of the Company's current
crcumstances, and the broader employee context within the
organisation, with sorme parts of the Group subject to recent pay
freezes and redundancy programmes The Committee also noted
the range of views expressed by Shareholders in our meetings
this summer




The Committee believes that the strong leadership, wision and
exceptional achievements delivered by Harnet Green jushfy a salary
increase however, both the Committee and Harriet Green were
rmindful of the wider pay context, and share the view that it would
be inappropriate to award a salary increase at this time to the Group
CEQ for 2013/ 14 (the salary rate therefore remains £680000p a)
Instead, the Committee decrded that the best way to recognise the
CEOQ's significant performance and achievernents throughout the
last year and her continued and significant role in the future in the
execution of our strategy was to grant an award under the 2013 PSP
at the maximum level of 200% of salary in September, as detaited
onpage 81 rather than by way of a small percentage increase in
base pay

The Committee also recognises the exceptional performance
delivered by Michael Healy throughout the past year Inview of his
performance, his continued and significant role inthe future and In his
case, internal relativities with other sertor executives the Commitiee
considered It appropnate to increase his base salary by 4 2% (from
£480,00010 £500,000, with effect from 1 October 2013} and make a
2013 PSP award of 187 5% of salary (based on the pre-increase salary
of £480,000) as detalled on page 81

2013/14 annual bonus measures and weightings
As detalled on page 80 the maximum annual bonus oppertunity for
both Executive Directors for 2013/14 will be 150% of salary

In ine with our Policy at least 70% of the annual bonus wiil be inked
to the achievement of financial measures and 30% will be inked to
role-specific strategic objectives For 2013/14 the measures will be
as follows

Weighting
(% overall
Measures opportunity)  Harriet Green  MichaelHealy
Core Group underlying EBIT 25% v v
measures  Group cash conversion 25% v v
Webtargets 10% v v
New product revenue 10% v v
Role specific Group "cost out” 10% v v
strategic  cooup “gross margin® 10% v v
objecrives
Organisatton and people 10% v v

The performance measures above were selected to reflect the
strategic and transformational objectives of the Group Along with
the 2012 and 2013 Performance Share Plan targets, these measures
create full algnment of our reward with our Transformation targets
and KPls, as demonstrated on page 20

The Commuttee considers that the targets are commercially sensitive,
sothese have not been disclosed We will disclose these targets

at such pont that the Commuttee considers they are no longer
commercially sensitive

The Commuttee considers It ss important that all senior executives
share in the same strategic targets and KPis that will focus Thomas
Cook on delivery and success The annual bonus plan described
above (with 70% focus on “core measures™ which are consistent for
all parhcipants and 30% on “role-specific” strategic objectves) 1sin
place for the Executive Directors and other senior executives with
responsibility for delivering our Transformation
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Performance Share Plan

The Commuttee granted awards under the PSP fo Harnet Green and
Michael Healy on 30 September 2013 As these awards were made in
the 2012/13 financial year, these are described in detail on page 81

The Committee will consider the next grant under the PSP for
Executive Directors during the course of this year Thisaward s
likely to made inJanuary 2015 (1 e 1t 1s not intended to make PSP
awards to Execunive Directors dunng the finanoial year ending
30 September 2014)

Directors’ share and share plan interests

The following tables show the interests of the Directors nthe shares
of the Company as follows
» shares held beneficially
> shares held as part of the deferred bonus arrangerments and
» share plan interests (under the Performance Share Plan) held
by the Executive Directors

Shareholding guidelnes

Executive Directors are required to hold the Company sshares tothe
value of 100% of base salary, under the Thornas Cook shareholding
guidelines operating policy

Executive Directors are allowed a bulld-up penod which ends after
sufficient awards under the PSP have vested to provide shares to the
value of 100% of base salary (after fax has been paid on the shares)
Unhil the shareholding guideline 1s met after-tax proceeds of vested

PSP shares cannot be sold At the year-end Harret Greenhad met the
shareholding guidelines in advance of the end of the build-up penod,
having acquired a total of 700 000 shares with avalue (based an a three-
month average share price of £1 36) of 140% of her salary Michael Healy
continues to make progress towards the one himes salary holding

Total beneficial holdings of the Directors
The beneficial interests of Directors in the shares of the Company
are isted below

No sharesas at

Beneficialholdings 30 September 2013
Current Directors

Harriet Green 700000
MichaelHealy 24001
Frank Meysman 420000
Dawn Airey 42000
Emnre Berkin -
Roger Burnell 271169
Peter Marks 145051
Martine Verluyten 140000
Past Non Executive Director

Richard Pennycook -
Notes

1 The shares shownn the beneficial holdings table above were acquired by the
Direcrors using thewr own funds and not through any share incentive scherme (or
simvlar) with the exception of Michaei Healy s shareholding above which includes

5 753 shares held within the Deferred Bonus Plan (detailad below) Harnet Green
purchased 700 000 shares during the year whach compnised 500 000 shares
purchased on 28 Novernber 2012 and 200 000 shares purchased on 20 June 2013
All share interesrs shown above were unchanged as at 26 Novemnber 2013

Warren Tucker and Carl Symon were appainted as Non Executive Drectors of

the Comnpany on 3 October 2013 They had no beneficial holdings in the Company s
shares as at 26 November 2013
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Governance Report on Directors’ Remuneration
Annual Remuneration Report continued

Deferred Annual Bonus shares

The table below sets out the shares hetd as part of the Deferred Annual Bonus arrangements, as at 30 September 2013
Shareprice andate of purchase

Date of purchase Number of shares acquired (pence}
Michael Healy 20/06/2013 5753 i251
Total 5,753

Further details of the annual bonus deferral process are described on page 81 No further performance condthions apply The bonus payment
date was March 2013 but the relevant shares were not purchased until the Company ceased to be in a prohibited period (at the conclusion of the
Company’s Placng and Rights Issue in june 2013) Subjectto the conditions descnbed on page 81 fwith dawback described on page 74), the

shares will be released in March 2014

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

The table below sets out the Directors’ PSP interests, as at 30 September 2013

Shareprice on
Numberof date of award

Earliest

Scheme Dateofaward sharesawarded® (pence)  vestingdate Performance measures
HarnietGreen PSP 28/09/2012 7195316 175 28/09/2015 Subject to share price and financial performancermeasures further detaill available in the
2011/32 Drectars Remuneration Report andinnotes 1 and 2 below
PSP 30/09/2013 922033 153 4 30/09/2016 Subject toshare price and financial performance measures asset out on page B1
Total 8,117,349
Michael Healy PSP 12/06/2012 576780 165 12/06/2015 Subject toshare price further derailavalablein the 2011/12 Dvectors Remunerahon
Report andin note 1 below
pop 287091012 1307120 175 1B/09/2015 Subject toshare price and fmancial performance measuies fuither detal avatlatlenshe !
2011712 Directors Remuneration Report andinnotes 1 and 2 below
PSP 30/09/2013 6510169 1534 30/09/2076 Sublect teshare price and financial performance measures asset out on page 81
Total 3,494,069

Nates

1 The Company undertook a Rights Issue as part of its Capital Refinanang in June 2013 Thisimpacted upon the Company § outstanding share awards made before this date

inline with usual market practice the number of shares in the awards have been adjusted to ensure that participants were no better or worse off a5 a result of the Rights lssue

For reference the unadjusted numbers of shares as provided inlasi year s report were as follows Harriet Green's September 2012 PSP award was 6 237 488 shares and Michael

Healy s June and September 2012 PSP awards were 500 000 and 2 000 000 shares respectively (The share price on date of grant in the rable abgve 1$ shown onthe same

basis aslast year sreport +e onanunadjusted basis ) Inaddihon the Commuttee also considered that it was necessary toadjust the share price targets set in relation to the

June 2012 and September 2012 PSP awards to ensure that the targets remain equally as challenging as when they were originally set The adjustments used were calculated

using the standard farmula faking into account the rerms of the Rights Issue The adjustments were applied to ail outstanding awards held by employees The principles of the

adjustments were discussed with our major shareholders whowere supporive
2 TheSeptember 2012 PSP awards made to Executive Directors were disclosed in the 2041/12 Directors Remuneration Report The share price targets were set at the hme

the award was made and also disclosed in the report However rhe Committee considered that the financial performance condinens attached o the award needed to

berelevant 1o the task ahead inthuding creaiing value for shareholders and delivening fhe Transformanon although ai the tme of making the award1he strategy had

not yet beendeveloped Accordingly it was determined and agreed with major sharehalders that the financial targets would be set after the announcement of the new

strategy |n consultation with major shareholders as discussed on pages 66 and 76 the finanaial performance measures and targets were set as describedin the table below

The weightings of the performance conditions described in the table belaw for Michael Healy describe the overall 2012 award (t e June 2012 and September 2012)

Share price
(45% of the overall award)

Group underlying EBIT
(30% of the overall award)

Cash conversion
(25% of the overall award)

Performance Applies io 45% of Apphes to 20% of Performance  Group Vestin Performance Cash Vestin
level Michael Healy'saward Harriet Greenss level underlying (% of this level conversion (% of this
and 25% of Harnet  awasd only EBIT portion} portian}
Greensaward
Share price  Veshin Shareprice  Veshiry
(asadpusred (% ofthis (asadjusted (% of this
forthe partion)  forthe portion)
Rights Issue) Rights Issue)
Maxmum 8669 100% 12136p  100% Maximum  Seebelow  100% Maximum  65% 100%
Threshold  2601p 30% L8 55p 0% Threshold 30% Threshold  55% 30%

Share price performance 1s measured as the hthest 60 day
average share price achieved in the final year of the

Group undertying EBIT performance in
respect of FY15, which is the final year of the

Cash conversion performance measused in
respect of FY15 cash conversion whichis

performance period three year performance penod the final year of the three year
As described on pages 81 and 87 this approach hasbeen Group underlying EBIT excludes performance peried
amended for the 2013 PSP awards excephonal items Cash conversion is defined as free cash flow

post exceptional items before capital
expenditure/ERITDA




Af the time the performance targets were set, the Committee
considered that these were challenging The Company’s share price
whenHarnet Green joned on 30 july 2072 was 16 25 perice and in
September 2012 when these share price targets were being set it
remained around the same level Therefore even the threshold farget
represented a significant increase Maximumn achievernent of the cash
conversion target would exceed our then publicly stated FY15 target of
60% (subsequently increased to 70% reflecting the pace and extent
of progress in respect of the Transformanon — see pages 20 and 71)

The Cornrmitiee also considers the Group underlying EBIT targets to
be stretching however due to our ambitious plans for the business
Transformation we consider that these targets are cormmercially
sensifive af this point We commit fa disclosing the target range

on aretrospective basis at the end of the performance penod

We have discussed this approach with our major Sharehoiders

who are supportive

The Committee has reviewed where the Company s performance to
date s fracking in relation to the targets and 15 satisfied that overall
the plan continues fo provide sufficient levels of incenfivisation

to participants

The scheme interests shown in the tables above (the Deferred Annuat
Bonus shares and the PSP) were unchanged as at 26 Novemnber 2013

Statement of Shareholder voting

The table betow sets out the results of the vete on the Remuneration
Report atthe 2013 AGM

Votesfor
Number ki
307213 459 703

Votes against
Number %

129858 306 297

Votescast Vates withheld

L37111665 26050 879

Both the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the

Rermuneration Committee contacted key Shareholders o understand

and address concerns Specific issues raised by investors included

> The approach to share price measurement for the 2012 PSP targets
was based on the highest 60-day average share price achieved
in the final year of the perforrmance period Some Sharsholders
considered that this is retesting

» A number of Shareholders were not supportive of absolute share
price targets in general for performance share plans

Actions taken in response fo these concerns were

> As described on page 66 of the Corporate Governance Report
Frank Meysman and Roger Burnell met with a number of major
Shareholders who had voted against the Remuneration Report
last year, to listento therr reasons why they exerased therr votes
inthis way

» As described on page 76, the Chairman of the Board and
the Charman of the Remuneration Committee met with key
Shareholders representing over 50% of our share capital in June
and July 2013 to consult in respect of the remunerahion palicy and
the performance measures in respect of the PSP, amongst other
matters (described in more detall on page 76)

> Inthese meetings, the rationale for the conhinued use of absclute
share price targets was explained fo Shareholders Thisis on the
basis that we expect the upward frajectory of our share prce
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recovery to continue for some time This makes measuring
percentage growth relative to other companiesless challenging than
the absclute pence”largeis In addition, the continued susgension
of Thomas Cook's dividend means that Total Shareholder Return
(whichis share price plus dividends) 15 a less relevant measure than
share price On this basis, major Shareholders were supportve of
our continged use of an absolute (rather than relative) share price
measure for our September 2013 awards The Commitiee agreed 1o
reconsider the appropriateness of relative Total Shareholder Retum
as a perfarmance measure for the next awards under the PSP which
are nof currently envisaged to be granted until earfy 2015

Arevised approach fo share price measurerment was taken for

the Septernber 2013 PSP awards Asdescribed on page 81, this

will measure the average share pnce performance over the fixed
period of 30 trading days from the release of the preliminary FY16
results with the infention of capturing the market s reachion to

our results anncuncernent Shareholders were consulted onthe
revised approach They were appreciative that the Commitiee had
addressed their concerns on1his matter and were supportive of the
revised approach

v

Auditable sections of the Annual Report

on Remuneration

The auditable sections of the Annual Remuneration Report are shown
on page 78 (Single figure of total remunerahon section, onwards) 1o
page 82 (up to and Including the sechion on Non-Executive Directors)

and on page 85 (Total beneficial holdings section cnwards) to page
87 {up to and including the Performance Share Plan sechon)

Thus Annual Remuneration Report has been approved by the Board of

Directors and signed on :r? behalf bé
Roger Burnell WA’\ Q/(/\
Chaswrmnan Remuneration Committae

27 Novernber 2013
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Governance; Other disclosures

Share capital
The Company has the followtng three classes of shares in issue

Number of shares inissue at
Name 30 September 2013
Ordinary Shares of €0 01 each 1453403 227
Deferred Shares of €0 09 each 934981938
Deferred Shares of £1 each 50000

The Ordinary Shares cairy the night to the profirs of the Company
avallabte for distribution and to the return of capital on awinding up of
the Company The Ordinary Shares carry the right to attend and speak at
general meehngs of the Company, each share holds the right to one vote
The Ordinary Shares are adrmitted to trading on the Official List of the
London Stock Exchange Both classes of Deferred Shares carry nonght to
the profits of the Company On awinding up, the holders of the sterling-
denorminated Deferred Shares would be entitled to receive an amount
equal to the caprtal paid up on each sterling denominated Deferred
Share and the holders of the euro denominated Deferred Shares would
be entied to receive an amount equal to the capital paid upon each
euro-denominated Deferred Share only after the holders of the Ordinary
Shares and sterling denominated Deferred Shares have received n
aggregate the amounts paidup thereon The holders of both classes

of Deferred Shares are not entitled to receve notice, attend, speak or
vote {whether on a show of hands or on a poll} at general meetings of
the Company

As part of the £200 million bank faclity announced on 25 November
2011, the Company 1ssued Warrants to certain of its lenders giving
hofders the nght, ar any ime until 22 May 2015, to subscribe forup toan
aggregate of 42,914 639 Ordinary Shares (representing approximately
4% of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of ssue) at a
subscription price per share of 19 875 pence

0On 10 May 2012, the Companyssued Warrants as part of the bank
facility amendment announced on 5 May 2012 to certain of its lenders,
gving holders the right, at any time unhil 22 May 2015, fo subscrbe
forupto an aggregate of 43,749,517 Ordinary Shares, representing
approximately 5 0% of the issued share capital of the Company at

the date of 1ssue, (subsequentlyincreased by 4,440 376 Ordinary
Shares toreflect the Company’s Rights [ssue and Placng in June 2013)
at a subscriphon price per share of €010 (subsequently adusted to
€00857282 toreflect the Company s Rights Issue and Placing in June
2013) Inaddinon, the Warrants ssued as part of the bank faclity
annourked in November 2011 were re-priced to the same exercise
price Asat 26 Novemnber 2013 17 Warrantholders had exerased therr
Subscription Rights inrespect of 81 974,478 Warrants (exerased into
Ordinary Shares on a one for-one basis)

Articles of Association

The Company s Articles of Assoaation {the "Articles™) may only be
amended by a specal resolution at a general meeting of Shareholders
The Artidles are avallable on the Company’s website at

www thomascookgroup com

Authority to purchase shares

The Company currently does not have authority to purchase its
own shares

Share transfer restrictions

The Artides are designed to ensure that the number of the Company's
shares held by norn EEA nationals does not reach a fevel which could
Jeopardise the Company's entitlemnent to continue to hold or enjoy the

benefit of any authanty permission licence or privilege which it orany

of itssubsidianes, holds or enjoys andwhich enables an ar service to be
operated (gach an “Operating Right”) In particular, EC Counail Regulation
1008/2008 on the licensing of air camers requires that an air carner rmust
be majory-owned and effectively controlled by EEA nationals

The Articles allow the Directors, from time fo ime, Yo set a
“Permitted Maximum™ an the number of the Company's shares
which may be owned by non-EEA nationals at such level as they
believe 1510 comphance with the Operating Rights, provided that the
Perrnitted Maximurm shall not be less than 40% of the total number
of ssued shares

The Company maintains a separate register (the “Separate Register™) of
shares in which non-EEA nationals, whether individuals, bodies corporate
or other entities have an interest {such shares are referred to as “Relevant
Shares” inthe Articles) Aninterest in this context s widely defined (see
below) The Directors may require relevant members or other persons
to provide themwith informahion to enable them to determine whether
shares are, or are fo be treated as Relevant Shares if such information
1snot provided, then the Drectors will be able, at their discretion, to
deterrmine that shares to which ther enquiries relate be treated as
Relevant Shares Registered shareholders will also be obliged to nonfy the
Company if they are aware either (a) that any share they hold ought to
be treated as a Relevant Share for this purpose or (h) that any share they
hold which s treated as a Relevant Share should no longer be sotreated
Inthis case, the Diyectors shall request such information and evidence as
they require to satisfy themselves that the share should not be treated
as a Relevant Share and, on recespt of such evidence shall remove
particulars of the share from the Separate Register If the Directors
determine that such action s necessary to protect any Operating Right
due to the fact that an Infervening Act (@n ‘Intervening Act” being the
refusal withhalding, suspension or revocation of any Operaning Right or
the imposition of matenally Inhibming conditions of lmitations on any
Operating Right in either case, by any state or regulatory authorty) has
taken place orisconternplated threatened orintended, or the aggregate
number of Relevant Shares 1s such that an Intervering Act may occur
or the ownership or control of the Company (s such that an Intervering
Act mayoccur the Directors may, smong other fhings
> identify those shares that give nise to the need to take action and treat
such shares as affected shares (“Affected Shares”) (see below) or
> seta Permitted Maximum on the number of Relevant Shares that may
subsist at any time (which may not, save in the arcumstances referred
tobelow, be lower than 40% of the total number of issued shares})
and treat any Relevant Shares in excess of this Permutted Maximum
as Affected Shares (see below) The Directors may serve a notice (an
“Affected Share Nohce™) inrespect of any Affected Share AnAffected
Share Notice can, If it sospecifies have the effect of depsiving the
registered holder of the nght to attand, vote and speak at general
meetings which they would otherwise have had as aconsequence
of holdng suchshares Such an Affected Share Notice can, ifit so
spectfies, also require the recipient fo dispose of the Affected Shares
(sothaf the Relevant Shares will then cease to be Affected Shares)
within 21 days or suchlonger period as the Directors may determine
The Directors are also given the power to sell such Affected Shares
themnselves where there 1s non-comphance with an Affected Share
Notice at the best price reasonably obtainable at the relevant time on
behalf of the shareholder

Indeading which shares are to be dealt with as Affected Shares the
Directers, in their sole opinion, will determine which Relevant Shares may
gve nse to the fact of nsk of an Intervening Act occurnng and, subject
toany such determination will have regard to the chronological order
inwhich particulars of Relevant Shares have been, or are to be, entered




i the Separate Register unless to do sowould inthe scle opinion of the

Directors, be Inequitable If there s a change in any applicable law or the

Company or any subsidiary receives any direction notice or sequirernent

frorn any state or regulatory authonty which, neither case necessitates

such action foovercome prevent or avoid an Intervening Act, then the

Drectors may either

> Jower the Perrnitted Maxirnurn to the ririmurm extent that they
consider necessary to overcome prevent or avoid an Intervening Act,
or

» resolve that any Relevant Shares shallbe treated as Affected Shares
The nghts of the Directors referred to above apply untl such tirme as
the Directors resclve that grounds for the making of a deternination
have ceased to exist, whereupon the Directors must withdraw such
determination The Permitted Maximurn s sef at 40% This Permitted
Maximum may be vaned by the Directars If the Directors resolve
tovary the Permirted Masaimum to dealwith shares as Affected
Shares or relax the ownership imitations, they shall publishin at
least one nationa! newspaper in the UK (and in any other couniry n
which the shares are isted) notice of the determination and of any
Permitted Maximurm

The Directors shall publish, from rme to time

> inforration as to the number of shares particulars of which have been
entered on the Separate Register, and

> any Permirted Maximum that has been specified

As at 25 Novernber 2013 340,658,793 Ordinary Shares (23 4Li%) were
held onthe Separate Regjster

The Directors may not register any person as a holder of shares unless
such person has furrished to the Directors a declarahon togetherwath
such evidence as the Directors may require stating (a) the name and
nationality of any personwha has aninterest inany such share and Ifthe
Direciors require, the nature and extent of suchinterest or (b} such other
information &s the Directors may from ime to time determine

The Directors may decline fo register any persen as a Shareholder
satisfactory evidence of information s not forthcorming Existing hiolders
of shares will be recorded on the Special Register undess and until

they have certified tothe satisfaction of the Company that they are
EEA nationals

A person shallbe deemed to have aninterest inrelation to Thomas Cook

Group plc sharesif

> such person has an inferest that would {subject as provided below)
be taken into accouni or which theywould be taken as having, In
deferrmiming for the purpeses of Part 22 of the Companies Act 2006
whether aperson has a notifiable interest or

> they have any such interest as sreferred to in Part 22 of the Companies
Act 7006 but shallnot be deermed to have an interest in any sharasin
which their spouse or any infant child or stepchdd (or, In Scotland, pupil
or rmunor) of thewrs s interested by wirtue of that relahonship or which
they hold as a bare or custodian trustee under the laws of England, or
as a smple trustee under the laws of Scotiand and interest shallbe
construedaccordingly

Provisions of change of control

The Company has a facilifies agreement {the "Agreerent”) in place
which consists of £300 million revolving credit facility and £200 milhon
bilateral bonding and guarantee facilities and a euro-equivalent of
£191 millon additional facility The Agreernent provides that, onany
change of conteol of the Company, the Lenders under the Agreement
are obkgated to negohate (fora penod not exceeding 30 days unless
extended by agreernent for a further penod not exceeding 30 days)
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terms for continuing the faciliies but where agreement onnew

terms cannot be reached any such Lender is entitled to (1) receve a
repayment of amounts owing to such Lender; and/or (i) cancelall afits
commitrments under the Agreement

The Company s subsidiary Thomas Cook Finance ple, has outstanding
€525 rmillion 7 75% guaranteed notes due 2020 On the occurrence of
certain change of controf events ralating 1o the Cornpany, each holder
has the option to require Thomas Cook Finance ple (the ssuer of these
bonds) fo repurchase afl or any parr of the holders notes ar a purchase
price in cash equal to 161% of the pnncipal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest

The Cornpany also has outstanding €400 million 6 75% guaranteed
notes due 2015 and £300 millien 7 75% guaranteed notes due 2017
{together, the “Notes”) Upon the occurrence of certain change of control
events relating to the Company (and then only if certain rating condihions
inrespect of the relevant Notes are met), each holder has the ophonto
require the Company to redeem or (at the option of the Company) to
purchase the Notes of such helder at par value plus acerued interest

Poltical donations

The Company did not make any polincal donations dunng the finanaiat
year (2012 ni)

Major shareholdings

As at 26 November 2013, the Company had beennotified in accordance
withrule 5 of the Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules of the UK
bshing Authority of the following major shareholdingsn the Grdinary
Share capital of the Company

Number of
sheres heid

Numberof Percentageof

Percentage of
sharesheld issuedcapital

Issued capital

asal {%)as at asat (%) asal
Mame 26/172013 26/11/2013 26/12/2012 26/12/2012
Invesco Ltd 156,195,950 1074 149209379 1675
BlackRock Inc 72,899,276 502 L2946 657 482
Marathon Asset
Management LLP 69,384,130 4 77T 59283472 6 &5
Kames Capiral 58,370,332 402 - -

independent auditors

PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP have expressed ther wiingness to be
re-appointed as auditors of the Corpany Upon the recommendation
of the Audit Committee, iesolutions tore-appoint them as the
Company s audifors and to authonse the Directors fo determine their
remunerancn witl be proposed to the 2014 Annual General Meeting

The Strategic Report and Directors' Report compnsing pages 8 to 89 have
been approved and are signed by order of the Board by

Derek Woodward
Group Company Secretary
27 Novernber 2013

Registered office

3rd floor South Building
200 Aldersgate

London

ECTA4HD

Registered number
6091951
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Independent auditors’ report to the members

of Thomas Cook Group plc

Report on the financial statements

Qur opinion

In our opsnion

» The financial statements, defined below give a true and fair view
of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company s affars as
at 30 September 2013 and of the Group’stoss and of the Group's
and Parent Company's cash flows for the year then ended

> The Group financiai statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

> The Parent Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and as apphed in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, and

> The financial stafements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Comparues Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

This eptnion 1s to be read in the context of what we say below

What we have audited

The Group financial statements and Parent Company financial

statements (the ‘financial staternents™}, which are prepared by

Thomas Cook Group plc, comprise

» the Group and Parent Company balance sheets as at
30 September 2013,

» the Group Income statement and statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended,

> the Group and Parent Comparty statements of changes in equity
and cash flow statements for the year then ended, and

» the notes to the financial statements, which include a surmary of
significant accounhng policies and other explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in therr
preparation comprises applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Unien and, as regards the Parent Company, as applied
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Certain disclosures required by the financial reporting framework
have been presented elsewhere In the Annual Report and Accounts,
{the “Annual Report™), rather than in the notes to the financial
statements These are cross-referenced from the financial
statements and are identified as audited

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards

on Auditing {UK and Ireland) (ISAs (UK & Ireland)) An audit

involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the financial staternents sufficient to give reasonable assurance

that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

» whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's
and Parent Company's circumstances and have been consistently
apphed and adequately disctosed,

> the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the Directors, and

» the overall presentation of the financial statements

In addition, we read all the financial and non financial information
in the Annual Report to identify matenal inconsistencies with the
audited financial statements and to identify any information that is
apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by us :n the course of performing the
audrt If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements
ornconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Overview of our audit approach

Materiality

We set cerfain threshalds for matenality These helped us to
defermine the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures
and ro evaluate the effect of misstatements both Indwidually and
onthe financial statements as a whole

Based on our professional jJudgement, we determined matenality for
the Group finanaal staternents as a whole to be £15m In arnving

at this judgement we have had regard to underlying profit from
operations because, In our view this is the metnc against which the
performance of the Group 1s most commonly measured

We agreed with the Audir Committee that we would report to them
misstatements identified during our audit above £1m as well as
misstatemnents below that amount that, in our view warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons

Overview of the scope of our audit

The Group 1s currently organised into four geographic operating
disions UK, Continental Europe, Northem Europe and Airhines
Germany The Croup financial statements are a consolidation of
97 reporting unifs comprising the Group’s operating businesses
within these divisions and centralised functions

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit, we
deterrined the type of work that needed to be performed at the
reperting units by us as the Group engagement team or component
audrtors within PwC UK and from other PwC network firms operaning
under our instruction Where the work was performed by component
auditors, we determined the leve! of Involvement we needed to have
in the audit work at those reporting units to be able to conclude
whether sufficient appropnate audit evidence had been obtained as
a basis for our opinion on the Group financial statements as a whole

The reporting units vary significantly in size and we identified 21
reporting unifs that, in our view, required an audit of their complete
financial information, due to therr size or risk charactenstis, providing
85% coverage of the Group s underlying profit frorm operations

Speaific audit procedures on certain balances and transactions were
performed at a further two reparting units, comprising the Group’s
internal IT development company (because of material internally
generated infangible assets) and Russian operations {because of its size)

Areas of particular audit focus

In preparing the financial statements, the directors made a number

of subjective judgements, for example In respect of significant
accounhing estimates that invoived making assumptions and
considenng future events that are inherently uncertan We primarily
focused our work in these areas by assessing the directors’ Judgements
against avallable evidence, forming our own judgernents and
evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements

In our audrt, we fested and examined information, using sampling
and other auditing techmiques to the extent we considered
necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions
We obtained audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of
controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both

We considered the following areas to be those that required
particular focus in the current year This s not a complete iist

of all nsks and parhicular areas of focus identified by our audit

We discussed these areas of focus with the Audit Committee
Theirreport on those matters that they considered 1o be significant
1ssues In relation to the financial statements 1s set out on page 61




Carrying value of goodwill and deferred tax assets

The Group holds significant goodwill and deferred tax assets on the
balance sheet and significant goodwill impairments were recarded
durning the prior year

We focused on this area as it involves complex and subjective
Judgements by the Directors about the future results of
the business

How the scope of our audit addressed this area of focus

In evaluating whether any impairment was necessary to the
remamning carrying value of goodwill our audit work involved
obtaining evidence regarding 1ts recoverable amount and how 1t
compared to the amount at which goodwill 1s currently recorded

We evaluated the Directors goodwill impairment calculations
(including the value In yse computations and discount rate)
and tested both the methodology and the assumptions apphed
including a critical review of the historical accuracy of forecasts
and budgets We apphed sensitivity analysis fo the calculations
to assess the iImpact of variations in the key assumptons, which
included the forecast underlying profir before tax

We considered the Directors assessment of the recoverability
of deferred tax assets by evaluating the likelihood of achieving
expected taxable profits against which such assets are to be utiised

Risk of management override of internal controls
ISAs (UK & Ireland) require that we consider this

How the scope of our audit addressed this area of focus

We assessed the overall control environment of the Group including
the arrangements for staff to “whistle-blow™ inappropriate actions
and interviewed sentor management and the Group's internal

audst function

We exarmined the significant accounting estimates and judgements
relevant to the financial statements for evidence of bias by the Directors
that may represent a nsk of matenal misstaternent due to fraud

This included testing manual journal entries and evaluating
significant accounting eshmates (for example goodwill value
In use computations) for evidence of biased judgements

Risk of fraud in revenue recognition

ISAs (UK & Ireland) presume there 1s a risk of fraud in revenue
recognifion Because of this we focused on the hming of revenue
recognifion, given the level of deferred revenue at certain imes
of the year, and its presentation in the iIncome statement

How the scope of our audit addressed this area of focus

We evaluated the relevant IT systerns and tested the internal
contrals over the completeness accuracy and timing of revenue
recognised in the financial statements

We tested journal entries posted to revenue accounts to identify any
unusual orirregular tems We also tested the reconaliahons between
the revenue systems used by the Group and its financial ledgers

We tested the deferral of revenue where cash was received in
advance of travel services being provided

We assessed whether the Group's revenue recognition policies
complied with the IFRSs as adopted by the EU and tesred that

in accordance with those policies revenue was recognised based
on the date of customer departure We also tested whether the
Group appropriately recorded revenue based on whether it acted
as agent or principal
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Going concern
This was considered to be an area of audit focus due to the seasonal
nature of the Group s cash flow

How the scope of our audit addressed this area of focus

We evaluated whether the Group’s forecast of funding
requirements had faken appropriate account of the seasonal cash
flows inherent in the Group's business

We evaluated the key jJudgements within the Group's forecast
mcluding transformation activities and ‘cost out’ iInmatives

We considered the adequacy of the Group s revised financing
structure including forecast compliance with financial covenants,
and assessed the sensitvity of the Directors’ calculations to changes
in key inputs, in particular forecast underlying profit before tax

Our conclusion on going concern Is below

Atrcraft leases and maintenance provisions

Material assets and provisions for leased arrcraft and therr related
marntenance are hetd on the balance sheet This was an area of
focus based on the size of these balances, which have increased
following recent sale and leaseback fransactions

How the scope of our audit addressed this area of focus

We reviewed the appropriateness of the maintenance provision
calculations performed by management, including the assessment
of new obligahions and key assumptions such as the quantum and
nming of maintenance expenditure

We reviewed aircraft lease contracts to ensure that they have been
appropriately accounted for as operating or finance teases

Risks associated with the Group's transformation programme
The Group's transformation programme has given rise to significant
changes to the Group's control environment and a number of
accounting estimates involving subjective judgements, including
store closure and redundancy provisions and asset disposals

How the scope of our audit addressed this area of focus

We increased our testing of balances materially impacted by the
transformation programme, evaluating management s judgements
used in estimafing the related prowisions

We have performed additional testing where key processes and
controls have been affected by transformahion activities during
the year

Going concern

Under the Listing Rules we are requ:red to review the Directors
staternent, set out on page 69, in relation to going concern
We have nothing to report having performed our review

As noted in the directors’ staternent, the Directors have concluded that
It 15 appropriate to prepare the Group's and Parent Company s financial
staternents using the going concern basis of accounhing The going
concern basis presunnes that the Group and Parent Company have
adequate resources to rematn in operation, and that the Directors
intend them to do so, for at least one year from the date the financial
staternents were signed As part of our audit we have concluded that
the Directors’ use of the gotng concern basis is appropriate

However because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, these staternents are Not a guarantee as ro the Group's
and the Parent Company’s ability to confinue as a going concern

Lt
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Independent auditors’ report to the members

of Thomas Cook Group plc continued

Opinions on matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

> the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared 1s consistent with the financial staternents,

» the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act
2006, and

» the informattan givenin the Corporate Governance Statement
set aut on pages 50 to 69 inthe Annual Report with respect to
internal control and nisk management systems and about share
capital structures 1s consistent with the financial statements

Other matters on which we are required to report

by exception

Adegquacy of accounting records and information and

explanations recewved

Under the Comparies Act 2006 we are required to report to youf,

IN OUr OPIrIGN

» we have not received all the informahion and explanations we
require for our audit, or

> adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

» the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Directors Remuneration Report to be audited are not In
agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no excephons to report ansing from this responsibility

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report if in our
opinion, certain disciosures of directors’ remuneration specified
by law have not been made and under the Listing Rules we are
required to review certain elements of the report to sharehalders
by the Board on directors remuneration We have no excephions
to report ansing from these responsibilities

Corparate Governance Statement

Under the Compames Act 2006, we are required to report to you
if, 1n our opinion a corporate governance statement has not been
prepared by the Parent Company We have no exceptions to report
arising from this responsibilty

Under the Lishing Rules we are required to review the part of the
Corporate Governance Staternent relating ro the Company's
compliance with nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
(‘the Code ) We have nothing 1o report having performed our review

On page 69 of the Annual Report as required by the Code Provision
C 1 1, the Directors state that they consider the Annual Report
taken as a whole to be far balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for members to assess the
Group'’s performance business model and strategy On page 61
as required by C3 8 of the Code, the Audit Commuttee has sei out
the sigrificant issues that it considered in relation to the financial
staternents and how they were addressed Under ISAs (UK &
Ireland) we are required to report 1o you If, In our opinion
» the staternent given by the Directors 1s materially inconsistent
with our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of
performing our audit, or
» the sechion of the Annual Report describing the work of the
Audit Commuttee does not appropnately address matters
communicated by us to the Audif Committee

We have no exceptions to report arrsing from this responsibility

Other mformation in the Annual Report

Under I1SAs (UK & Ireiand) we are required to report fo you if

in our opinion, iInformation in the Annual Report 1s

> materially nconsistent with the information in the auchted
financial statements or

> apparently matenally incorrect based on or matenally
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group and Parenf
Company acquired in the course of performing our audit or

> Is otherwise misleading

We have no exceptions o report arlsing from this responsibiliry

Responsibilities for the financial statements
and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responstbilities Staternent
sef out on page 69 the Directors are responsible for the
preparahon of the Group and Parent Company financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and falr view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the Group and
Parent Company financial statementsin accordance with applicable
law and ISAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Audiing Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opimons has been prepared for and only
for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose
We donot In gving these opinions, accept or assume responsiblity
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 15
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent inwriting

2

L emma e

Paul Cragg (Senlor Statutory Auditor) .
for and on beha!f of PrncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London
27 Novernber 2013




Group income statement
For the year ended 30 September 2013

Year ended 30 September 2013
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Restared Year ended 30 September 2012

Separately

Sepataiety

disclosed disclosed
Underlying tems Underlying ems
resutts (note 7} Total resulrs {note 7) Total
notes Em £m £m Em £m im
Continuing cperations
Revenue 3 93145 - 93145 9,1950 — 91950
Cost of providing fourism services 4 (7,2557) (385) (7,2942) (7.1692) 56 (7,1636)
Gross profit 2,058 8 (385) 22,0203 20258 56 20314
Personnel expenses 5 (1,035 7) (402) (1,0759) (1,0676) (395 (11071)
Depreciation and amortisation 13/14 {161 7) (100) (71 7) {(1556) (123) (1679
Net aperating expenses 6 {5983) (1224) (7207) (6256) (1014) (7270)
(Loss)/profit on disposal of assets - {80) (8 0) - 191 191
Impairment of goodwill and amortisation
of business combinahion intangibles 13 - (310) (310) — (2186) (2186)
Profit/{loss) from operations 3 263 1 (2501) 130 1770 (347 1) {170 1)
Share of results of associares and joint venture 15 07 - 07 21 - 21
Loss on disposal of associates and joint venture 7 - (0 &) (O &) ~- (09) {09
Net invesfment income 15 04 - 04 04 — 04
Finance income 3 64 412 47 6 67 414 48 1
Finance costs 8 (152 4) (670} (2194) (1299) (865) {(2164)
Profit/(loss) before tax 9 118 2 (2763) {(1581) 563 (3931)  (3368)
Tax 10 (49 5) (104 1)
Loss for the year from
continuing operations (207 6) {440 9)
Discontinued operations
Profit/(loss) for the year from
disconhinued operations 28 03 (149 2)
Loss for the year (207 3) (590 1)
Attributable to
Owners of the parent {199 0) (585 7)
Non-controlling interests (8 3) {t4)
(207 3) (590 1)
Basic and diluted loss per share (pence) 12
Conhnuing operations (16 7) (50 1)
Discontinued operations — (17 1)
Total {16 7) (67 2)

Lef,
Go!
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Group statement of other comprehensive income

For the year ended 30 September 2013

Year ended Year ended
30September 30 Septernber

2013 2012

notes £m Em
Loss for the year (2073) (59071)
Other comprehensive income and expense
ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuanial loss on defined benefit pension schemes 35 (77 2) {357}
Tax on actuanal losses 26 {0 2) 123
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Foreign exchange translation losses 30 (19 6) (307}
Fair value gains and losses
Losses deferred for the year 30 (13 8) (319)
Tax on losses deferred for the year 26 19 77
Losses/(galns) transferred to the income statement 30 B6 {48 1)
Tax on losses/{gans) fransferred to the income statement 26 (10) 121
Total comprehensive expense for the year (308 6) (7047
Attriburable to
Equity holders of the parent (300 3) (700 5)
Non-controlling Interests (83) {42)

Total comprehensive expense for the year (3086) (7047)




Group cash flow statement

For the year ended 30 September 2013
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Year ended Year ended
30September 30 September
2013 2012
nates £m £m
Continuing operations
Loss before tax {(1581) (3368)
Adjustments for
Net finance costs 1718 1683
Net mvestment incame and share of results of associates and |V {(11) (2 5)
Loss on disposal of associates and joint venture 04 09
Depreciation amortisation and impairment 224 6 4085
Loss/{profit} on disposal of assets 80 {151)
Share-based payments 75 19
write up of Investments (29 0) -
InCrease in provisions 37 232
Income recewved from ather non-current investments o4 ou
Additional pension contributions (26 0) (22 6)
Interest received 67 58
Decrease/(increase) in working capital
Inventories (14) 67
Recewvables 1118 383
Payables 829 {86 2)
Cash generated from operations 402 2 1868
Income taxes paid (310) (28 3)
Net cash used in discontinued operating activities 28 {30 1) (66)
Net cash from operating activihes 3511 1519
Dwidends received from associates 25 -
Praceeds on disposal of JV 03 -
Proceeds on disposal of subsidianes (net of cash disposed) 16 (378) 1227
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 40 340
Purchase of subsidianies {net of cash acquired) 16 (2 4) 324
Purchase of tangible assets {102 8) (96 9)
Purchase of mntangible assets {47 5) RS
Proceeds from other investments 19 19
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (181 8) 527
Interest paid (1375) (1165)
Dmvdends paid - (327)
Diidends paid to non contralling interests - (06)
Draw down of borrowings 1,369 5 8662
Repayment of borrowings {1,0836) (9305)
Payment of facility set-up fees (379 (29 3)
Proceeds on sale and finance leaseback - 1894
Shares purchased by Employee Benefit Trust (16 1) -
Net proceeds on the issue of ordinary shares 29 4135 Q8
Repayment of finance lease obligations (323) (23 5)
Net cash from/(used in) financing achvities 4756 (737)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 6349 1309
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4535 7
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 20 {191)
Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at end of year 1,090 4 4535
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Group balance sheet

At 30 September 2013
30 September 30 September
2013 2012
notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 13  3,1545 3,158 ¢
Property plant and equipment
—arrcraft and aircraft spares 14 6029 599 6
- other 14 198 0 2412
Investments in associates and joint venture 15 144 42
QOther investments 15 12 114
Deferred tax assets 26 168 0 2047
Tax assets - 56
Trade and other recevables 18 1427 146 8
Derwvative financial instruments 23 01 02
4,281 8 4,382 6
Current assets
Inventones 17 28 2 305
Tax assets 55 501
Trade and other recevables 18 785 4 9441
Dervative financial instruments 23 250 392
Cash and cash equivalents 19 1,0888 4603
1,9329 1,524 2
Assets held for sale 28 701 —
Total assets 6,284 8 5,906 8
Current liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations 35 (13) (6 8)
Trade and other payables 20 (1,9952) (2,0085)
Borrowings 21 (176 5) {37 8)
Obligations under finance leases 22 u27) (32 6)
Tax habilities (u10) {90 4)
Revenue receved in advance (1,1202) (1.0941)
Short-term provisions 27 (2u68) (201 5)
Dervative financral instruments 23 (639) (68 4)
(3,687 6) (3.5401)
Liabilihes related to assets held for sale 28 (170) —
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30September 30 Septernber
2013 2032
nates £m £m
Non-current habilihies
Retiremnent benefit obligations 35 (403 1) (3240)
Trade and other payabies 20 (96 9) {95 4)
Long-term borrowings 21 (1,113 8) (977 6)
Obligations under finance leases 22 {(1818) (2006)
Non current tax hahtlities {8 2) (10)
Revenue received in advance - (25)
Deferred tax liabilihes 26 {52 8} (89 7)
Long-term provisions 27 (1722) (2143)
Dervative financial nstruments 23 {3 3) (37)
{2,0321) (19088)
Totalliabilities {5,736 7) (54489)
Net assets 548 1 4579
Equity
Called-up share capital 29 68 4 600
Share premiumn account L343 202
Merger reserve 1,546 5 1,546 5
Hedging and translaticn reserves 30 2018 2257
Capstal redernplion reserve 85 85
Retained earmings defiait (1,7207) (14500}
Investment in own shares (29 5) {13 4)
Equity atinbutable to owners of the parent 5093 506 5
Non-controlling interests 388 514
Total equity 548 1 4579

The financial statements on pages 93 to 147 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 November 2013

Signad on behalf of the Board

Michael Healy
Group Chief Financiai Officer

e
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Group statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 30 September 2013

Artnbutable
Share capital Translation toequity Non
& share Other &hedging  Accumutated holders of controliing
prermium resenees reserve losses the parent wnterests Total
£m £m tm £m £m £m £m
Opening balance at 1 October 2011 884 16130 3169 (8714) 11469 363 11832
Loss for the year - — — (5859) {(5859) (42) {5901)
Other comprehensive expense
Faoreign exchange translation tosses - - (30 7) - (30 7) - (30 7)
IActuariallosses on defined benefit pension schemes
net of tax) - - — (23 4) (23 4) - (23 1)
Farr value gains and losses
Loss deferred for the year (net of tax) - - (24 2) - (242) - (24 2)
Gains transferred to the income statement (net of tax) — - {36 3) - {36 3) - (36 3)
Total comprehensive expense for the year — - {912) (6093) (7005) (42) (7047
Equity credit in respect of share based payrmenits - - - 20 20 - 20
Purchase of own shares - 01) — - (01N — 0D
Issue of shares 08 - - - 08 — 08
Release of merger reserve - (71 3) - 713 — — —
Derecognition of put options to non-controlling
interests - - — 188 188 - 188
Acqusiion of Co ap — - - {(614) {61 4) 367 (2u7)
Disposal of HCV - - — - - (29 (29
Disposal of Thomas Cock India — - - - - (11.4) (11 4)
Exchange difference on non controlling interests - - - - — (2 5) (2 5)
Dividends - — - - - {0 6} {06)
At 30 September 2012 892 15416 2257 (1,4500) 406 5 514 4579
Loss for the year - - - (1990) (1990) (83) (207 3)
Other comprehensive expense
Foreign exchange transtation losses - - (19 6) - (19 6) - {19 6)
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes
net of tax) - - - (77 4) (77 4) - a7 4)
Fair value gans and losses
Loss deferred for the year (net of tax} - - (119) - (119) - (119)
Gains transferred to the income statement {net of tax) - - 76 - 76 - 76
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - (239) (2764) (3003) {83) (3086)
Equity credht in respect of share-based payments - - - 79 79 - 79
Issue of shares — exercise of warrants L6 - - - L6 - 46
Jssue of shares —nghts issue 4310 - - - 4310 - 4310
Issue of shares — nghis 1ssue transaction costs (22 1) - - - (22 1) - (22 1)
Investment in Employee Benefit Trust - (16 1) - - (16 1) — (16 1)
Acquisition of Russia shares - - - (22) {(22) (4 3) {6 5)
At 30 September 2013 5027 15255 2018 (1,7207) 5093 388 5481

Other reserves consist of the merger reserve the capital redemption reserve and own shares held The capital redernption reserve was
created as a consequence of the share buy back programme during the year ended 30 September 2009

The merger reserve arose on the reverse acquisiion of Thomas Cook Group plc and MyTravel Group plc by Thomas Cook AG In the case
of Thomas Cook Group plc, the merger reserve represents the difference between the existing share capital and share premium of
Thomas Cook AG and the share capital of Thomas Cook Group plc 1ssued in exchange, and in the case of MyTravel Group plc, the merger
reserve represents the difference between the fair value and the nominal value of the share capitalissued by Thomas Cook Group plc

Detalls of changes in hedging and translahion reserves are set out In note 30
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

Thomas Cook Group plc 1s a imited hability company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006
and listed on the London Stock Exchange The address of the registered office 1s 3rd Floor, South Bullding, 200 Aldersgate London
EC1A 4HD The principal actvities of the Group are discussed in the Directors Report —Business Review on pages 17 to 19

These consolidated financial statements were approved for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 27 November 2013

2 Accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and IFRIC interpretations and with those parts of the Companies
Act 2006 applicable to groups reporting under IFRS The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with FRS adepted
for use in the European Union and therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost convention except for revaluation
of certain financial instruments, iInvestment property, share based payments and defined benefit pension obligations

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial information presented in this document are set out below
These policies have been applied consistently to the periods presented unless otherwise stated

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial nfarmation presented in this document are ser out below
These policies have been applied consistently to the periods presented unless otherwise stated

Comparative amounts have been restated to include North America within discontinued operations In additron, following changes
in management responsibilities the former West Europe and Central Europe segrments have been combined into one segment,
Continental Europe The comparative segmental information for the year ended 30 September 2012 has been restated

The Group’s poficy on separately disclosed srems has been expanded to include the interest income and charges arising on the Group’s
defined benefit pension schemes as well as the interest charges ansing on the unwind of discount on exceptional provisions and
deferred consideration

Basis of preparation

Adoption of new or amended standards and interpretations in the current year

In the current year, the following new or amended standards have been adopted Their adoption has not had a significant impact on the
amounts reported or the disclosure and presentation in these financial stafernents, but may impact the accounting or the disclosure and
presentation for the future fransactions and arrangements

IAS 1 Amendment “Presentation of Items of Cther Comprehensive Income” 1s effective for annual reporting pericds commencing
on or after 1{uly 2012 The amendment requires disclosure of items that may be reclassified o profit or loss and
iterms that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Strategic report =
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Notes to the financial staterments continued

2 Accounting policies continued

New or amended standards and Interpretations inissue but not yet effechive and not EU endorsed

The following new standards amendments to standards and interpretations that are expected to impact the Group, which have not
been applied in these financial staterments, with the exception of [AS 19 R Employee Benefits’ (EU endorsed) were in 1ssue, but are not
yet effective

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments™ 1s effective for annual reporhing perods commencing on or after 1 lanuary 2015
The standard will eventually replace |AS 39 but currently only details the requirements for recognition and
measurermnent of financial assets
IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements’ 1s effectve for annual reporting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 :
This standard buitds on existing principles by idenhifying the concept of control as the determining factorin
whether an entity shouid be included within consolidated financial statements

IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements” s effechive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 This standard prowides
for a more realistic reflection of joint arrangernents by focusing on the rights and obligahions of the arrangement,
rather than rts legal form

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of iInterests in other entities” 1s effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 :
This standard includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of Interests in other entihes including joint
afrangements associates, special purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles

IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement’ is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 This standard
apphes fo [FRSs that require or permit fair value measurements or disclosures and provides a single IFRS
framewaork for measuring fair value and requires disclosures about fair value measurement

IAS 27 (revised) “Separate financial statements” 15 effective for annuat periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 This standard
includes the provisions on separate financial statements that are left after the control provisions of (AS 27 have
been included in the new IFRS 10

IAS 28 (revised) “Investments in associates and joint ventures” 1s effective for annual periods beginning an or after 1 January 2013
This standard includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well as associates, to be equity accounted following
the issue of IFRS 11

IFRS 7 (amendment}  “Financial nstruments disciosures” 1s effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, and
amends the disclosures required where certain items have been offset

IAS 32 “Offsetting financial assets and liabilities™ is effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2014,
and provides clanfication on the application of offsetting rules

The Group conhinues fo assess the Impact of adopting the above new or amended standards and interpretations in future accounting
periods

IAS 19 (rewised 2011) "Employee benefits” s effectve for annual periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2013 The mast sigruficant
change that willimpact the Group 15 that both the expected returns on pension plan assets (currently based on
expected returns) and the finance charge (currently based on the unwinding of the discount rate on scheme
liabilities) will be replaced with a single net interest expense or income, calculated by applying the discount rate
used in determining the present value of scheme labilifies to the net defined benefit asset or hability

Had the Standard been applied inthe current financial year, the Group s profit before tax would have been reduced by approximately !
£5m

Basis of consolidation

The Group's financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings The results of subsidiaries acquired
or disposed of, are consolidated for the periods from or to, the date on which control passed Subsidianes are erstihes controlled by the
Company Contral 1s achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policres of an investee entity so as
to obtain benefits from ifs actvities

Acguistions are accounted for under the purchase method Where a fransachion (s a business combination amongst entities under
common contral, the requirements of IFRS 3(R) are applied The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisition
of subsidianes by the Group The cost of an acquisition 1s measured at fair value of the assets given equity instruments issued,
contingent consideration arrangements entered to, and lrabilmes incurred or assumed at the date of exchange Directly attributable
fransaction costs are expensed as Incurred |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilines and confingent habilities assumed in a business
combination are measured inthally at their farr values at the acquisition date When the ownership of an acquired company 1s less than
100%, the non-controlling interest 1s measured as the proportion of the recogmised net assets atinbutable to the non-controlling interest
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group s share of idenhfiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwl

Where audited financial accounts are not coterminous with those of the Group the financial information is denved from the last audted
accounts available and unaudited management accounts for the period up to the Company's balance sheet date
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2 Accounting policies continued
All intra-group transactions balances income and expenses are eliminated on consalidation

Interpretation guidance included within SIC Interpretation 12 “Consalidation — special purpose entities™, indicates that certain special
purpose entifies (SPEs), which are involved i aircraft leasing arrangements with the Group should be interpreted as being controlled
by the Group and therefore subject to consolidation even though the Group has no direct or indirect equity interest in those enfities
As a consequence the Group has consolidated three (2012 three) SPEs that own four (2012 four) arcraft operated by the Group on
operating leases Inaddition during 2009 the operations of the German airfline were placed in a holding company in which the Group
owns a 50 0023% direct interest All nsks and rewards continue fo be held by the Group and 1n accordance with accounting standards,
the entity has been treated as being 100% controlled and fully consolidated by the Group

Associates and joint ventures
Entimes other than subsidianes, over which the Group exerts significant influence, but not control or joint control, are associates
Entities which the Group jointly controls with one or more other party under a contractual arrangement are joint ventures

The Group s share of the results of associates and joint ventures 1s included in the Group income statement using the equity accounting
method Investments in associates and joint ventures are included in the Group balance sheet at cost, as adjusted for post acquisifion
changes in the Group's share of the net assets of the entiry and (ncluding any goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated
impairment loss When the Group's shares of losses in an associate or joint venture equals or exceeds Its interest in the associate or joint
venfure including any other unsecured recewvables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group s interest In the associates Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provided
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred

Intangible assets — goodwill

Goodwill ansing on an acquisihon represents any excess of the fair value of the constderahon given over the fair value of the idennfiable
assets and habiihes acquired Goodwillis recognised as an asset, and s reviewed forimparrment at least annually Any impairment 1s
recognised immediately In the Group’s Income staterment and 15 not subsequently reversed For the purposes of assessing impairment
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating urits) The allocation of
goodwill 1s made to those cash-generating umits that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose
The Group allocates goodwill to each segment in which it operates

On disposal of a subsidiary joint venture or associate, the aftnibutable amount of goodwill 15 iIncluded in the determination of the profit or
loss on disposal

Intangible assets - other

Intangible assets other than goodwill, are carnied on the Group's balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation tntangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are not amorhsed For all other intangible assets, amortisation s charged on a straight-line basis over the asset s
usefullife, as follows

Brands 10 years to ndefinite hfe
Customer relationships 1to 15 years
Computer software 3t0 10 years

Other acquired intangible assets are assessed separately and useful lives established according to the particular circumstances

Indefirite-lved intangible assets principally comprise those trademarks for which there 1s no foreseeable imit to the period cver which
they are expected to generate net cash inflows These are considered to have an indefinite ife, given the strength and durability of our
brands and the level of marketing support The nature of the industry we operate 1n 15 such that brand ebsolescence s not common,

If appropriately supported by advertising and marketing spend

Intangible assets with indefinite useful Ives are tested for impairment at least annually at the CGU level by comparing their carrying
amount to their recoverable amount Alf other infangible assets are assessed at each reporting date for indications of impairment 1f such
indications exist, the recoverable amount 1s eshmated and compared to the carrying amount If the recoverabte amount s less than the
carrying amount, the carrying amount 1s reduced to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss I1s recogmsed immediately in the
income statement
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Transformation the first 365 days

Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment is stated af cost net of straight-line deprecration and any provision for impairment Where costs are
incurred as part of the start up or commissioning of an item of praperty, plant or equipment, and that iterm 1s available for use but
incapable of operating in the manner intended by management without such a start-up or commissiening periad, then such costs are
included within the cost of the tem Costs that are not directly attnbutable to brnging an asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management are charged to the income statement as incurred

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment other than freehold land upon which no depreciahion 1s provided, 1s calculated on
a straight-bne bases and aims fo write down their cost to therr estimated residual value over therr expected useful ives as follows

Freehold buldings 4010 50 years

Leasehold properties Shorter of remaining lease period and 40 years
Arrcraft 18 years (or remaining lease period if shorter)
Aircraft spares 5 to 15 years (or remaining lease penod if shorter)
Other fixed assefs 31015 years

Estimated residual values and usefu! lives are reviewed annually

Investment property compnises land and bulldings which are held for long term rental yields and capital growth It 1s carried at fair value
with changes In fair value recognised in the income statement nvestment property 1s valued annually by external qualified professional
valuers in the countries concerned In the event of a matenial change in market condifions between the valuation date and balance sheet
date, an internal valuation 1s performed and adjustments made ta reflect any matenal changes in fair value

Non-current assets held for sale

The Group classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use To be classified as held for sale the assets must be avallable forimmediate sale in their present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and custornary for the sale of such assets and their sale must be highly probable Sale s
considered to be highly probable when management 1s committed to a plan to sell the assets and an active programme to locate a buyer
and complete the plan has been ininated at a price that Is reasanable in relation to their current fair value, and there 1s an expectation that
the sale will be completed within one year from the date of classification

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are carned on the Group's balance sheet at the lower of their carrying amount and farr value
less costs to sell

Arrcraft overhaul and maintenance costs

The cost of major overhauls of owned and finance leased engines, auxiliary power uruts and airframes is capitalised and then amortised
over between two and ten years until the next scheduled major overhaul except where the maintenance of engines and auxiliary power
units 15 carried out under fixed rale contracts, in which case the cost 1s spread over the period of the contract Provision is made for the
future costs of major overhauls of operating leased engines, auxiliary power units and airframes by making appropriate charges to the
Income staterment, calculated by reference to hours flown and/or the exprred lease penod, as a consequence of obligations placed upon
the Group under the terms of certain operating leases

Inventories
Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost represents purchase price Net realisabte value represents the
esfimated selling price less all costs to be incurred In marketing selling and distnbution

Revenue recognition and associated costs

Revenue represents the aggregate amount of gross revenue recevable from inclusive fours, travel agency commissions receivable and
other services supplied to customers in the ardinary course of business Revenue and direct expenses relating fo inclusive tours arranged
by the Group’s leisure travel providers, including travel agency commission insurance and other incentives, are taken to the income
statenent on holiday departure Revenue relating to travel agency commission on third party leisure travel products is also recognised on
holiday departure The costs attnbutable to producing brochures are expensed when the brochures are available to be sent to customers
or retal outlets Other revenue and associated expenses are taken to the Income statement as earned of incurred Revenue and expenses
exclude ntra-group fransactions
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2 Accounting policies confinued

Income statement presentation and separately disclosed items

Profit or loss from operations includes the results from operating activities of the Group, before its share of the results of asscciates and
joint ventures

The Group separately discloses in the Income statement exceptional items, impairment of goodwill and amortisation of business
combination intangibles and IAS 39 fatr value re-measurement

Excephonaliterns namely items that are matenal either because of therr size or their nature, and which are non-recurning, are presented
within thew relevant income sfatement category, but highlighted through separate disclosure The separare reporting of exceptional rems
helps provide a full understanding of the Group's underlying performance

Items which are included within the exceptional category include

» profits/{losses) on disposal of assets or businesses and costs of acquisitions,

> costs of integration of significant acquisttions and other major restructuning programmes,

> significant goodwill or other asset impairments

> matenal write-down of assefs/reassessment of accruals reflecting a more cautious evaluation in light of current frading and econormic
conditions (excluding errors of prior year wems),

> other individually matenal items that are unusual because of their size, nature or incidence

Matenal business combinahon intangible assets were acquired as a result of the merger between Thamas Cook AG and MyTravel Group
plc and other business combinations made in subsequent years The amortisahon of these intangible assers 1s significant and the Group s
management consider that it should be disclosed separately to enable a full understanding of the Group's results

IAS 39 fair value re-measurement includes movements in forward points related to foreign exchange forward contracts and hme value
of options in cash flow hedging relahionships Both items are subject to market fluctuations and unwind when the options or forward
contracts mature and therefore are not considered to be part of the Group's underlying performance

Interest Income and charges ansing on the Group’s defined benefit pension schemnes and interest charges ansing on the unwind of
discount on exceptional provisions and deferred consideration are not considered to be part of the Group’s underlying performance
The Group's management consider that these itermns should be disclosed separately to enable a full understanding of the Group's results

Finance income and costs
Finance income compnises interest income on funds invested expected return on pension plan assets and changes i the farr value of held
for trading interest-related dervatives, and fair value adjustments to hedged items in a designated farr value hedge

Finance costs compnse interest costs on borrowings and finance leases, unwind of the discount on provisions, interest cost on pension
plan habilities, changes in the fair value of hekd for trading inferest-related denvatives, mavemnent in forward points on cutstanding foreign
exchange forward confracts in cash flow hedging relationships and changes in fair value of derivatives designated in a fair value hedge
relationship

The movernent in forward points on outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts in cash flow hedging relanonships is sncluded
as a separately disclosed item In the income statement under the description “IAS 39 fair value re-measurement”

The changes in fair value on derivatives designated in a fair value hedge relationship and the fair value adjustment on hedged ttems
in a fair value hedge relationship are separately disclosed in Note 8 under the description “IAS 39 fair value re measurement”

Tax
Tax represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax Tax 1s recognised in the income statement unless it relates to an ifem
recognised directly in equity, m which case the associated tax is recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity respechively

Tax currently payable 1s provided on taxable profits based on the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date Provision s made for deferred tax so as to recognise all temporary differences which have onginated but
not reversed at the balance sheet date that result in an obhigation fo pay maore fax, or anght to pay less tax, i the future, except as set
out below This is calculated on a non-discounted basis by reference to the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the relevant
junisdictions and for the pertods in which the temporary differences are expected to reverse The deferred tax s not accounted for if

it anses from the inmal recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction orher than a business combination that at the nme of the
transaction does not affect either accounting or taxable profit or loss Deferred tax assets are assessed at each balance sheet date and
are only recogrised fo the extent that their recovery agatnst future taxable profits 1s probable Deferred tax habilities are recognised for
the temporary differences of overseas subsidiaries joint ventures and associates unfess the Group 1s able to control the himing of the
distribution of those earnings and it 1s prabable that they will not be distributed in the fareseeable future
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Transformation the first 365 days

Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued
Pensions

Pension costs charged against profits in respect of the Group’s defined contribution schemes represent the amount of the confributions
payable to the schemes in respect of the accounting penod

The Group also operates a number of defined benefit schemes The pension lizbilihes recognised on the balance sheet in respect of these
schemes represent the difference between the present value of the Group’s obligations under the schemes {calculated using the
projected unit credit method) and the fair value of those schemes’ assets Actuarial gams or losses are recognised in the period in which
thay arse within the statement of comprehensive income and expense The current senvice cost, representing benefits accruing overthe
year 1sincluded in the income statement as a personnet expense The unwinding of the discount rate on the scheme liabilities and the
expected return on scheme assets are presented as finance costs and finance income respectively Past service costs are recognised
immediately In the income statement in personnel expenses

Foreign currency

Average exchange rates are used to translate the results of all subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures that have a functional currency
other than Sterling The balance sheets of such enfities are translated at peniod end exchange rates The resutting exchange differences
are recorded through a separafe component of equity

Transactions In currencies other than the funchonal currency of an entity are translated at the exchange rate af the date of the fransaction

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabifities held at the period end are translated at perod end exchange rates The resulting exchange
gain or loss 1s recorded in the income statement

When a foreign entity s parhally disposed of or sold exchange differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in the income
staternent as part of the garn or loss on sale

Leases
Leases under which substanhally all of the risk and rewards of ownership are transferred to the Group are finance leases Ali other leases
are operahng leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised af the lower of the fair value of the asset and the present value of the minmmurm lease
payments within property, plant and equipment on the balance sheet and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or their expected
useful lives The interest element of finance lease payments represents a constant proportion of the caprital balance outstanding and s
charged to the income statement over the penicd of the lease

Operating lease renfals are charged to the iIncome statement on a sfraight-line basis over the lease term

Income ansing from operating leases where the Group acts as lessor 1s recognised on a straight line basss over the lease term and included
In operating Income due to Its operating nature

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses dervative financial Instruments to hedge its exposure o interest rate foreign exchange and fuel price risks arising from
operational financing and investment activiies In accordance with its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or 1ssue derivative financial
instruments for frading purposes However, dervahves that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instrurnents

Derivative financial Instruments are inihally recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently
re-measured af fair value The method of recognising the resutting gain or loss depends on whether the denvative 1s designated as a
hedging insirurnent and if so the nature of the item being hedged

The gain or loss on ye measurement to fair value, on derivatives not designated as a hedging instrument is recognised immediately in the
income statement

Dervatives are presented on the Balance Sheet on a gross basis A denvative with a positive fair value 1s recognized as a financial asset
whereas a denvative with a negative farr value 1s recognised as a financial lability A derivative 1s presented as a non current asset or a non
current hability if the remaining maturity of the instrurnent s more than 12 months and if 1s not expected to be realised or setftled within
12 months The classification of denvatives between current and long term assets and abilities 1s presented in Note 23

Hedge Accounting

The gain of loss on re measurement o fair value on derwative financial instrurnents that are designated and effective as cash flow hedges
of future ¢ash flows 1s recognised directty in other comprehensive income and the iIneffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the
Income staternent withen net operating expenses Forward points on foreign exchange forward contracts and time value of opttons are not
designated as part of the hedging relationship and therefore, are recorded in the iIncome statement within finance costs and costs of
providing tourism respectively
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2 Accounting policies continued
For cash flow hedges, changes in farr value deferred through the hedge reserve are recognised in the income statement in the same
peried, or periods in which the hedged highly probable forecast transachons are recognised in the Income staterment

For fair value hedges changes in the farr value of denvative financial instrurnents that are designated as fair value hedges are recognised
Inthe Income statement as part of finance Income or cost line where they offset the changes in fair value on the hedged item Where the
hedged itemn designated in a farr value hedge relahonship is a financial liability held at amortised cost, the change in fair value in respect to
the hedged nsk 1s recorded as an I1AS 39 fair value adjustment within finance income or cost

Cash flow hedge accounting s discantinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting At that point in fime, any cumulative gains or losses on the hedging instrurment recognised in other comprehensive
income are refained until the ferecast fransaction occurs If a hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to oceur, the net cumulative gain
or loss recognised in other comprehensive income 15 transferred to the income statement for the penod

Far value hedge accounting is discenfinued when the hedging instrurnent expires oris sold terminated or exercised or no lenger qualifies
for hedge accounting At that paint in time the changes in farr value on the hedging instrument will continue to be recognised immediately
info the Income statement, while the hedged itern will no longer be adjusted for farr value changes

Note 23 includes further information on the financial instruments designated as hedging instrurnents

Non-denivative financial instruments

Financal assets and habilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party fo the contractual provisions of the instrument Financial
assets are derecogrised when the Group transfers the financial asset or when the contractual rights expire Financial liabilities are
derecognised when the obligation 1s discharged cancelled or expires The measurement of particular financial assets and liabilities is set
out betow

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recewvables are recognised at thewr fair value and subsequently recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest
method as reduced by allowances for estimated rrecoverable amounts An allowance for irrecoverable amounts Is established when
there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the oniginal terms of the recevables
The amount of allowance 1s the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of eshmated future cash flows

Available-for-sale financial assets

Avallable-for-sale financial assets are recognised and subsequently recorded at their farr value Gains or losses (except for impairment
losses and foreign exchange gains and losses) are recognised directly In equity until the financial asset 1s derecognised A this point, the
cumulafive gain or loss previously recognised in equity 1s recognised in the income statement Any impairment losses, foreign exchange
gans or losses or dividends receivable are recognised In the income statement

Held for trading investments

Short term investments and derivatives that are not designated in a hedge relationship such as natural hedges of a balance sheet
exposures, are classified as held for frading and are recognised and subsequently recorded af their fair value Gains or losses are
recognised in the Income statement

Other non-current asset iInvestments

The fair value of Investments in equity nstruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market are measured using
an appropnate valuahion technique Where a fair value cannot be reliably measured the investment is measured at cost Loans and
recevables are initially recogmised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cests and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method Any impairment losses are recognised in the iIncome statement

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are ininially recogrised at therr fair value and subsequently recorded ar amortised cost using the effactive
Interest method

Borrowings
Interest bearing borrowings are inihally recognised at therr fair value net of any directly attributable transachion costs They are
subsequently recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Borrowings that are designated as hedged items in a farr value hedge refahionship are adjusted for changes in their fair value in respect
of the hedged sk The adjustment will be amortised to the income staternent af the ime when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted
for changes in its fatr value attributable to the hedged nisk

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event if it 1s prabable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued
Prowisions are recognised at the Directors best estmate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date
Where the effect of the ime value of rmoney 1s matenal, the prowision is discounted to its present value

Termmnation benefits

Terminatron benefits are payable when employment 1s terminated by the Group before the normal retirernent date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits The Group recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed fo either terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal, or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy

Share-based payments

The Group Issues equity-seftled share options to certain employees as part of their total remuneration The farir values of the share options
are calculated at the date of grant using an appropriate option pricing model These farr values are charged to the income stafement on

a straight-hne basts over the expected vesting period of the options with a corresponding increase in equity

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group 15 freated as
acapital contribunion The farr value of employee services received measured by reference to the grant date farr value, is recognised over
the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a correspanding credit to equity

Insurance contracts and reinsurance contracts

Premiums written relate fo business incepted dunng the year, together with any differences between the booked premiums for prior years
and those previously accrued, less cancellations Premiums are recognised as revenue (earned prermiurns) proportionally over the period
of coverage Premiums are shown after the deduction of commussion and prermium taxes where relevant

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the Income statement as incurred based on the estimated liability for compensation
owed to policyholders or third parties damaged by policyholders The Group does not discount its habilisies for unpaid claims Liabilities for
unpaid claims are eshmated using the input of assessments for ndividual cases reported to the Group and statistical analysis for the claims
incurred but not reported

Contracts entered info by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group 1s compensated for losses on one or more contracts 1ssued by
the Group and that meet the classification requirements for insurance contracts, are classtfied as reinsurance contracts held The benefits
to which the Group I1s entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as receivables from remnsurers The Group assesses its
reinsurance assets for impairment on an annual basis

Recewables and payables are recognised when due These include amounts due to and from insurance policyholders

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounning policies, described above, management has made the following jJudgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recogrused in the financial statements for revenue expenses, assets and liabilities and
accompanying disclosures Actual results may differ frorm estimates

a) Judgements

Residual values of tangible fixed assets
Judgerments have been made In respect of the residual values and useful economic lives of arcraft included n property, plant and
equipment (see note 14) Those judgements determine the amount of depreciation charged in the Income statement

Recoverable amounts of goodwill and intangible assets with an Indefinite life

Judgerments have been made in respect of the amounts of future operating cash flows to be generated by certain of the Group’s
businesses in order to assess whether there has been any impairment of the amounts included in the balance sheet for goodwill ar
infangible assets with an indefinite life in relation to those businesses

Special purpose entities

The nature of the relationship with certain speaial purpose entities involved in leasing arcraft to the Group shows that they should be
interpreted as controlled by the Group and therefore consolidated, even though the Group has no direct or indirect equity interest in
those entities

b) Estimates

Key sources of estimation uncerfainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date that have

a significant nisk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year are
discussed below
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2 Accounting policies continued

Impairment of goodwili and intangible assets with an indefinite life

Determining whether goodwill or intangible assets with anindefinite ife are impaied requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated The value inuse calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit at a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value

Recoverable amounts of deposits and prepayments
Esnmates have been made In respect of the volumes of future trading with hoteliers and the credit-worthiness of thase hoteliers in order
to assess the recoverable amounts of deposits and prepayments made to those hoteliers

Aircraft maintenance provisions
Provisions for the cost of maintaining leased aircraft and spares are based on forecast arcraft utiisation, estimates of future maintenance
costs and planned rollover and renewal of the alrcraft fleet

Tax

The Group operates in many tax regimes and the tax implications of its operations are complex It can take several years for tax labiliftes
to be agreed with the relevant authonties Tax assets and hiabilities represent management’s estimates of tax that will be payable or
recoverable in the future and may be dependent on estimates of future profitability

In addition, estimates have been made n respect of the probable future utiisation of tax losses and deferred tax assets have been
recognised as aresult The recoverability of these assets 1s dependent on the agreement of the losses with the relevant aurhorities and
the eskmates of future profitability

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settied fransactions with employees by reference ro the fair value of the equity instruments

at the date at which they are granted Estimating fai value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most
appropriate valuation mode!, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant This estimate also requires determmation

of the most appropniate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dvidend yield and
making assumphions about themn The assumptions and models used for estmating farr value for share based payment transactions are
disclosed in note 34

Retirement benefits

The consoldated financial statements include costs in relation fo, and provision for retirement benefit obligations The costs and the
present value of any related pension assets and liabilities depend on such factors as Iife expectancy of the members, the salary
progression of current employees, the returns that plan assets generate and the discount rate used to calculate the present value of the
habilthies The Group uses previous expenence and imparhial actuanal advice to select the values of crifical eshmates The estimates, and
the effect of vaniances in key eshmates, are disclosed in note 35

3 Segmental information

For management purposes, the Group 15 organised into four geographic based operating dwisions UK, Continental Europe, Northern
Europe and Arrlines Germany These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its prmary segment informahon Certain residuat
businesses and corporate functions are not allocated to these divisions and are shown separately as Corporate

On 1 May 2013 the Group finalised the sale of its businesses in North America and consequently the results of the North Amernca
segment are reported as discantinued aperations Inaddition, following changes in management structure the Belgian French and
the Netherlands businesses have been fransferred to from the former West segment to the Ceniral Europe segment which has been
renamed Confinental Europe The prior year segmental analysis has beenrestated to reflect the current segmental reporting of
confinuing operations These reportable segments are consistent with how information is presented to the Group Chief Executive
(chief operating decision maker) for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance

The primary business of all of these operahing divisions 1s the provision of leisure travel services and, accordingly no separate secondary
segmental information s provided
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Notes fo the financial statements continued

3 Segmental informahon continued

Segmental information for these achivities 1s presented below

Continental

Northern

Airtines

Year ended 30 September 2013 UK Europe Europe Germany  Corparate Tatal
£m £m £m £m £Em £m
Continuing operations
Revenue
Segment sales 29774 41950 1,2393 11,3119 - 97236
Inter segment sales (46 6) (28 7) (69) (3269) - (U9 1)
Total revenue 29308 41663 11,2324 985 0 - 93145
Revenue by product
Tour operations 8,0398
Awrhnes 1,683 8
Other 7516
Infer segment sales (1,160 7)
Totalrevenue 9,314 5
Result
Underlying profit/{loss) from operations 663 775 1095 48 2 (38 4) 2631
Excephonal operating items (126 3) (28 7) 08 (65) (84) (2191)
tmparment of goodwill and amortisation of business
combination iIntangibles {27 2) 37 (01) — - (310)
Segment result {87 2) 451 1102 au7 (96 8) 130
Share of results of associates and joinf venture o7
Loss on disposal of joint venture {0 4)
Net investrment Income 04
Finance income L7 6
Finance costs (219 4)
Loss before tax (158 1)
Tax (49 5)
Loss for the year from continuing operations (207 6)
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations (note 28) 03
Totalloss for the year (207 3)
Other information
Capital additions 525 226 173 66 5 184 1773
Depreciation 40 3 82 190 724 07 140 6
Amortisation of intangible assets 115 140 13 03 49 311
Amortisation of business combination intangibles 100 37 01 - - 13 8
Impairment of goodwill 17 2 - - - - 172
Impairment of other intangible assets - 66 - - - 66
impairment of property plant and equipment 14 4 - - - - 144
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3 Segmental information confinued

Continental Northern Arrlines
UK Europe Europe Germany Corporate Total
£m £ £m £m £m £m
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 28420 36096 16870 11392 84138 17,6916
Inter-segment eliminations (11,594 7)
6,096 9
Investments in associates and joint ventures 14 i
Tax and deferred tax assets 1735
Total assets 6,284 8
Liabihhes
Segment habilities (2,7307) (2,2076) (9866) (693 4) (8,7392)(15,3575)
Inter-segment eliminations 11,237 6
{4,119 9)
Tax and deferred tax habilities (102 0)
Borrowings and obligations under finance leases {1,514 B)
Total habilities (5,736 7)

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevalling market prices Segment assets consist primarily of goodwill, other intangible assets
property plant and equipment trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents

Segment liabilities comprise trade and other payables revenue received in advance and provistons
Capital additions compnse additions to other intangible assets {note 13} and property, plant and equipment {note 14}

The entity 1s domuciled In the UK Revenue from external customers in the UK was £2 879 0m (2012 £2,955 4m) which 1s derived from
the UK’ segmental revenue shown above but excluding external revenue in Indra, Egypt, Ireland and Spain-domiciled companies, which
would otherwise be included in the UK segment Revenue from external custormers in Germany was £3,395 2m (2012 £2 884 7m)

The total non current assets other than financial instruments and deferred tax (there are no employment benefits assets or nights ansing
under insurance contracts), located in the UK was £2 073 9m (2012 £2 066 3m)
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3 Segmental nformation continued

Conhnental Northern Arines

Year ended 30 September 2012 {restated) UK Europe Eurape Germany Corporate Total

fm £m fm fm tm £m
Continuing operations
Revenue
Segment sales 31525 40847 11736 11646 - 95754
Inter-segment sales {43 1) (30 8) (65) (3000) - (380 u)
Total revenue 3,109 4 4,053 9 11671 864 6 — 9,1950
Revenue by product
Tour operations 79247
Airtines 1.6507
Other 7892
Inter-segment sales (1169 6)
Total revenue 29,1950
Result
Underlying profit/(loss) from operahions 127 521 1009 357 (24 4) 1770
Exceptional operafing items (86 8) {(107) 27) 41 (324) {(1285)
Impairment of goodwill and amortisation of business
combination intangibles (108 3) (97 1) {13 2) - - (218 6)
Segment result (182 4) (55 7) 850 398 (568) (1701)
Share of results of associates and joint venture 21
Loss on disposal of associates (0 9)
Net investment income 04
Finance income 481
Finance costs (216 4)
Loss before tax (336 8)
Tax (104 1)
Loss for the year from continuing operations {440 9)
Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations (note 28} (149 2)
Total loss for the year (560 1)
Other information
Capital additions 613 183 173 2393 64 3426
Depreciation Lo g 60 156 616 07 124 8
Amortisation of intangible assets 232 142 15 03 39 431
Amortisation of business cormbination Intangibles 123 27 132 - - 282
Imparrment of goodwill 96 0 94 4 - - - 190 4

impairment of other Intangible assets - 162 - - 51 213
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Continental Northern Arines
UK Europe Eurape Germany Corporate Total
Balance sheet £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Segment assefs 2,996 2 33,4678 1,9139 10445 67564 16,1788
Inter-segment eliminahons (10,546 6)
56322
Investments in associates and joint ventures 142
Tax and deferred tax assets 260 4
Total assets 5906 8
Liabilites
Segment llabilifies (2,7033) (22471) {986 L) (5886) (7.6959) (14,2213)
Inter-segment eliminations 10,2021
(4,019 2)
Tax and deferred tax habilihes (181 1)
Borrowings and obligahons under finance leases {1248 6)
Total liabilities (5,448 9)
4 Cost of providing tournism services
Restated
2013 2012
fm fm
Tour accommaodation 2,895 9 2,8695
Transportation costs 1,390 5 1,385 9
Commissions and sales incentives 400 8 3876
Airceaft fuel 902 8 8490
Aircraft passenger taxes 4593 4463
Other arrline related costs 916 2 9556
Othes cost of sales 290 2 2753
72557 71692
5 Personnel expenses
Restated
2013 2012
£m £m
Wages and salaries 8990 9307
Social secunity costs 1205 1344
Share based payments — equity settled (see note 34) 79 20
Defined benefit pension costs {see note 35} 118 85
Defined contribution pension costs (see note 35) 367 315
11,0759 1,107
The average number of employees of the Group during the year was
2013 Resgig
Number Number
UK 12,941 18,066
Continental Europe 7,253 8,187
Northern Europe 3,090 2,583
Airlines Germany 2,917 2,759
Corporate 247 255
26,448 32,250

Disclesures of Directors’ remuneration share options long-term incentive schemes, pension contributions and pension entitlerments
required by the Companes Act 2006 and those specified for audit by the Financial Services Authority are on pages 78 to 82 and 85to 87
within the Remuneration report and form part of these audited financal statemenits

Disclosures in respect of remuneration of key management personnel are included in note 36
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6 Net operating expenses

Restated

013 2012

£m £m

Advertising expenses 148 0 1737
Rents and expenses for bullding maintenance 1341 1542
Information technology and telecommunrcation costs 1381 1208
Travel expenses and ancillary personnel expenses 822 914
Legal and consultancy fees 106 3 764
Impairment of current and non-current assets excluding goodwill 639 439
Insurance 108 129
Traning expenses 94 1y
Other faxes 15 38
Other operating expenses 264 385

7207 7270

7 Separately disclosed items

Restated

2013 2012
£m £m

Affecting profit from operations

Reorganisation and restructunng cosfs {127 3) (55 4)
Costs associated with refinancing (7 7) (30 1)
Impairment of goodwilf and asset valuation reviews (182) (2057)
Onerous contracts and legal disputes (58 5) (9 9)
Amortisatton of business combination infangibles (13 8) (28 2)
Prowvision for tax dispute resolution (14 2) (22
Other {(iIncluding time value of options} 0 4) (5 6)

(2501)  {(3471)

Affecting Income from associates and JV

Loss on disposal of associates {0 L) ©9)
{0 4) {09)
Affecting net finance costs
Write off of unamortised bank facility set-up and related costs (6 8) {231)
Interest cost on pension plan liabilities (50 2) {54 6)
Other separately disclosed finance charges (2 4) {09)
Unwind of discount on provisions and other non current habiites 92) {9 8)
IAS 39 fair value measurement — forward points on foreign exchange cash flow hedging contracts 16 19
Expected return on pension plan assets 12 414
(258)  (u51)
Total separately disclosed items (276 3) (393 1)

Restructuning costs include £44m inrelation to the UK turnareund plan, £29mn refation to transformation and restructunng in
Continental Europe and £43m in relanion to Group wide transformahion projects Costs assaciated with refinancing represent those costs
that could not be attributed to specific debt or equity elements of the May 2013 refinancing and have therefore not been capitabised or
netted against share premium Of these costs £47m are directly attributable to ‘cost outr and profit mprovement’ inibatives

Impairment of goodwll and asset valuation reviews principally relate to the UK segment The Egyphian and Lebanese businesses have
been written down to their recoverable amount and classified as held far sale A review of the carrying value in the Group's Investment in
the UK National A Traffic Services (NATS) resulted in a write up to the disposal value giving rise to a ganof £29m A pre-disposal review
of Neilson and its subsidianies resulted in an impairment of £13m A revaluation of specific investments held by the UK pension fund, with
avalue guaranteed by the Group, resulted in an impairment of £8m
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In the year the Group assessed its posthion In respect of certain onerous contracts and made adjustments to assets on the batance sheet
and made provision for future losses under these contracts These contracts included certain UK service outsourcing contracts (£10my),
hotel leases {£14m), sports rmarketing and related fravel contracts (E9m) and foreign exchange and other commercial contracts (£26m)

Provision for tax dispute resolution relates to a £14m provision in respect of an adverse third party sales tax judgement relating to the
TOMS The case is under appeal however the Group has taken a prudent view of the outcome and has no cash exposure

The Group has recognised a number of separately disclosed items affecting financing income and cost Duning the year the Group has
adopted industry practice of separately disclosing financing charges and income relating to defined benefit pension schemes Following
the successful refinancing in May 2013 the unamorhsed facility fees relating to the previous facility were written off This resulted

in a charge of £6 8m The unwind of discount on previsions, relating primarily to deferred acquisition consideration have also been

separatety disclosed

8 Finance income and costs

Restated

2013 2012
£m £m

Underlying finance income
Income from loans included In financial assets 04 04
Other inferest and similar income 60 63
64 67

Underlytng finance costs

Bank and bond interest

(90 1) (851)

Fee amortisation

(65) 79

Letters of credr

(16 0) (15 3)

Other interest payable

(14 4) (120)

(1270)  {(1203)

Underlying aircraft related finance costs

Interest payable (7 1) {42)
Finance costs inrespect of finance leases {18 3) {5 4)
(25 4) (9 6)

Net underlying interest

(146 0)  (1232)

Separately disclosed finance income

Interest Incorne on pension plan assets 412 414
412 414

Separately disclosed finance costs

Write off of unamortised bank facility set-up and related costs (6 8) (231)

Interest cost on pension plan liabilifies {(note 35) {(502) (54 &)

Discounting of provistons and other non current labiliies {92) (9 8)

Other excephional finance charges (2 u4) (09

(68 6) (88 1)

1AS 39 fair value re-measurement

Forward points on foreign exchange cash flow hedging contracts

16 19

Total net interest

(1718) {1683)

The fair value adjustment on hedged irems designated in a fair value hedge s £51k (2012 nil)
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9 Loss before tax
Loss before tax for the year has been arrived at after charging/{crediting)

Restated
2013 2012
£m £m
Separately disclosed tems affecting profit from operations (see note 7) 2501 3471
Including
—Imparrment of goodwtl 172 190 4
— Impairment of other non current intangible assets 74 226
— Amorhisation of business cormbinahon intangibles 147 282
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
—owned assets 923 98 5
— held under finance [eases 49 2 263
Amortisation of intangible assets 327 L3 1
Cost of Inventories recognised as expense 433 402
Loss on disposal of associates and joint venture 04 0%
Operating lease rentals payable
— hire of aircraft and aircraft spares 1013 1031
—ather 1151 1159
Net foreign exchange gains (121 (199)
Personnel expenses {note 5) 1,0759 1,1071
Auditors remuneration 66 58
A more detalled analysis of auditors’ remuneration on a worldwide basis 1s provided below
2013 2012
£m £m
Audit of the Company’s annual accounts 05 04
Audit of subsidiaries 24 23
Total audit fees 29 27
Audrt related assurance services 03 03
Other assurance services 10 11
Total assurance services 13 14
Tax compliance services 01 01
Services relating to taxation 01 01
Other non-audit services not covered above 23 18
Total other non-audit services 23 18
Total non-audit services 37 33
Total fees 66 60

The prior year numbers have not been restated to exclude discontinued operations in the detailed auditors remuneration analysis above

In addition to the above, £72k {2012 £69k) has beenincurred in respect of the audits of the Group pension schermnes

Fees paid fo the Company’s auditors and their associates for services other than the statutory audit of the Company are not disclosed
in subsidianies’ accounts since the consolidated accounts of the subsidiaries parent, Thomas Cook Croup plc, are required to disclose
non-audit fees on a consolidated basis

A descnphion of the work of the Audit Committee 1s sef out in the Corporate Governance repaort on pages 6010 61 and includes an
explanation of how auditor objectimity and independence is safeguarded when non audit services are prowided by the auditors
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10 Tax
Restated
2013 202
Em £m
Analysis of tax charge
Current tax
UK corporation tax charge for the year - -
adjustments in respect of prior periods 45 (38)
45 (38)
Overseas corporation tax charge for the year 418 328
adjustments in respect of prior periods (25) 1N
393 297
Total current tax 438 259
Deferred tax
tax charge for the year {(105) 522
adjustments In respect of prior periods 162 260
Total deferred tax 57 782
Total tax charge 495 1041

The tax on the Group's loss before rax differs from the theoretical amount that would anse using the weighted average tax rate applicable
to profits of the Company as follows

Restated

2013 202

fm £m

Tax reconciliation

Loss before tax {158 1) (3368)
Expected tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate of 23 5% (2012 25 0%) (372) (842)
Income not hable for tax (141) (17 2)

Expenses not deductible for fax purposes 148 103

Imparrment for which no tax reliefis due 65 48 2

Losses and other hming differences for which tax relief 1s not available 1325 768
Utihisation of tax losses not previously recogrsed {107) (61}
Recognition of losses nof previously recognised {75 1) (125)

Derecognition of deferred tax previousiy recognised 90 671
Difference in rates of tax suffered on overseas earnings {(25) (61)

Impact of changes In tax rates 73 87

Other 08 -

income tax charge In respett of pnor penods 182 191

Tax charge 495 1041

in addihion to the amount charged to the income statement deferred tax relating to actuanial losses on pension schemes and the fair
value of dervative financiat instruments of £0 7m has been credited directly to equity (2012 credit of £32 1m) UK corporation tax s
calculated at 23 5% (2012 25 0%) of the eshrnated assessable loss for the year Taxation for other junisdichions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the respechive junisdictions

Surplus losses not recogmised in deferred tax of £1 940 5m (2012 £1,933 9m) are avalable predominantly in the UK, France and
Germany for offset agamnst future profits

Strategic report  —
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11 Dividends
No divdends were declared dunng the year ended 30 September 2013 (2012 nil}

12 Earnings per share
The calculahions for earnings per share, based on the werghted average number of shares are shown in the table below The weighted
average number of shares shown excludes 7 Sm shares held by the employee share ownership trusts (2012 3 7m)

Basic and diluted loss per share 10{1; 2051;
Continuing operations {1993) (4365)
Discontinued operahions 03 (149 2)
Net loss attributable to owners of the parent {1990) (5857)
millions mullions

Weighted average number of shares for basic and diluted loss per share 1,195 9 8719
pence pence
Basic and diluted loss per share from continuing operations (167) (50 1)
Basic and diluted loss per share from disconfinued operatons - (17 1)
Total basic and diluted loss per share (167) (67 2)
Underlying basic and diluted earnings per share mf‘r: 20£1nz]
Underlying net profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the parent* 598 55
millions milions

Weighted average number of shares for basic earnings per share 1,195 9 8719
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares —share options** 217 —
Weighted average number of shares for diluted earnings per share 1,217 6 8719
pence pence

Underlying basic earnings per share 50 06
Underlying dituted earnings per share 49 06

* Undertang net profit atmbutable to owners of the parent 1s derved from the conninuing pre excephonal profit before tax for the year ended 30 September 2013 0f £118 2m
(2012 £56 3m) and deducting a notional tax charge of £66 7m (2012 £55 2m)

** Awards of shares under the Thomas Cook Performance Share Flan Buy As You Earn Scheme Restacted Share Plan and Co Invesiment Plan will be sahsfied by shares held in
trust and therefore are potenhally ditutive The remainder of the share schemes wili be sanisfied by the purchase of existing shares in the market and will therefore not resultin any
ditution of earnings per share
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2013 2012
£m £m
Coodwill 2,6909 26602
Business combination intangible assets 3259 3692
Other 1377 1295
35,1545 31589
Goodwill
Cost £m
At 1 October 2011 33890
Additions 830
Reassessment of goodwill 77
Disposals (142 6)
Exchange differences {818)
At 30 September 2012 53,2553
Disposals {2670Q)
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale (note 28) {16 2)
Exchange differences 632
At 30 September 2013 30353
Accumulated impairment losses
At 1 October 2011 HOT &4
Impairment charge for the year 2996
Disposals {995)
Exchange differences (124)
At 30 Septernber 2012 5951
Impairment charge for the year 172
Disposals (267 0)
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale {(note 28) {162)
Exchange differences 153
At 30 September 2013 a4 4
Carrying amount
At 30 September 2013 2,6909
Al 30 September 2012 2,6602
The carrying value of goodwillis analysed by business segment as follows
2013 2012
Em £m
UK 1,755 8 1,746 0
Continental Europe 168 8 1624
Northern Europe 745 3 7318
Arines Germany 210 200
2,6909 26602

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group fests the carrying value of goodwill for impairment annually and whenever events or

circurmnstances change
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13 Intangible assets continued

Imparment testing 1s performed by comparnng the carrying value of each cash-generating unit (CGU) to the recoverable amount,
determined on the basis of the CGU's value inuse The value In use 1s based on the net present value of future cash flow projections
discounted at pre-taxrates appropriate for each CGU The Group s CGUs are determined by geographical market and consist of UK,
Continental Europe, Northern Europe and Airlines Germany See note 3 for defails of changes to the Group s CGUs dunng the year

The future cash flow projections used to determine the value in use are based on the most recent annual budgets and three year plans
for each of the CGU's The key assumptions used to determine the business budget and three year plans relate to capacity and the
pricing of accommodation and fuel inputs Capacrty 1s based on management's view of market demand and the constraints o managing
capacity such as arcraft lease comrmitments The accommeodation pricing 1s primarily driven by the underlying bed rate and the foreign
exchange hedges in place The former s based on the businesses’ ongoing dialogue with bed suppliers and local cost inflation The fuel
pricing assumption 1s primarily driven by the fuel hedges in place and the forward fuel curve at the time that the budget s set The key
assumptions used to determine the Independent business’ budget and three-year plans relate to passenger volumes and commussion
rates and are based on the individua! businesses view of the market condihons

Cash flow forecasts for years beyond the three-year plan are extrapolated at an estimated average long-term nominal growth rate

The other key assumptions used in the value in use calculations are as follows
» a pre-fax discount rate of between 13 3% — 14 1% reflecting the specific risks of each CGU
> a long-term nomnal terminal growth rate of 2% for all CGUs

The decision to sell the businesses in Egypt and Lebanon led to the reassessment of the carrying value of goodwallin the current year and,
asaresult the goodwill relating to these businesses was impaired The cost and accumulated impairment of the Egyptian and Lebanese
businesses has been classified as held for sale as at 30 September 2013

In 2012 atotal of £299 6mwas impaired which consisted of impairments in North America (£109 2m) the former West Europe CGU
which is now included within the Continental Europe segment (£94 4m) and India {(£96 Om) which was sold in 2012 and was included
in the UK segrment

The value In use calculations performed as at 30 Seprernber 201 3 indicate that the UK CGU s no longer sensitive to reasanably possible
changes in the key assumphions

Sensitvity analysis for the remaining segments has not been disclosed as management believe that any reasonable change in
assumptions would not cause the carrying value of the CGUs to exceed their recoverable amount
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Business combinahion intangibles

Brands and
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customer Order Computer
relahonships backlog seftware Other Total
£m £m Em £m £m

Cost
At 1 October 2011 5255 415 156 33 5859
Additions 271 15 - - 286
Disposals (26 ) - - {29) (28 9)
Exchange differences {4 0) (0 1) 01 {0 u) (4 4)
At 30 September 2012 5226 429 157 ~ 5812
Disposals (45 2) - - - (45 2)
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale {note 28) (18) - - - (18)
Exchange differences 53 07 - - 60
At 30 September 2013 480 9 43 6 157 - 540 2
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 October 2011 1353 415 156 02 1926
Charge for the year 273 12 - - 285
Imparment 06 ~ - - 06
Disposals CE)] - - 02 (1on
Exchange differences 04 01 01 - 04
At 30 September 2012 1537 426 157 -~ 2120
Charge for the year 144 03 - - 147
Imparrment 08 - - - 08
Disposals (12 3) — - - (12 3)
Transfer to non current assets held for sale (note 28) (18) - - - (1 8)
Exchange differences 02 07 - - 09
At 30 September 2013 1550 43 6 157 - 2143
Carrying amount
At 30 September 2013 3259 — - - 3259
At 30 Septernber 2012 3689 03 — — 369 2

The inihial valuahion of business combination infangibles 1s based on applicable projected future cash flows discounted af an appropriate
discount rate Custorner relationships are being amortised over periods of 1 to 15 years and computer software over a penod of 310 10
years Order backlog has been amortised over the period from acquisition to departure

Indefinite-ved intangible assets pnnaipally comprise those trademarks for which there 15 no foreseeable imitto the penod over which
they are expected to generate nef cash inflows These are considered to have an indefinite life, given the strength and durability of our
brands and the level of marketing support The nature of the industry we operate in 1s such that brand obsolescence 1s not common if
appropnately supported by advertising and marketing spend The Group annually tests the carrying value of indefinite-lived intangibles
for impairment on a value i use basis consistent with that disclosed for goodwill earlier in this note
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13 Intangible assets continued
The carrying value of brands with an indefinite life 1s analysed by business segment as follows

2013 2012

£m fra
UK 706 706
Continental Europe 48 3 479
Northern Europe 1372 1347
North America - 239

2561 2771

Other intangible assets
Computer sofrware

and conNCessions Other
Intemally
Purchased generated Purchased Tetal
£m im £m £m

Cost
Ar 1 October 2011 2851 2063 214 5128
Additions 63 349 02 414
Reclassification (16 0) 171 - 11
Disposals (115 4) (24 4) {07 (140 5)
Exchange differences {19 8) (6 2) {04 (26 4)
At 30 September 2012 1402 2277 205 3884
Addmans 49 481 - 530
Disposals {29 4) {269 0N (56 4)
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale (note 28) [(ID)] - (0 1) {0 5)
Exchange differences 60 45 - 105
At 30 September 2013 1213 253 4 203 3950
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 October 2011 2130 1165 82 3377
Charge for the year 116 260 80 456
Imparrment losses 149 77 - 226
Reclassification (2 8) 28 - -
Disposals (113 8) {12 7} (07} (127 2)
Exchange differences {16 8) (30) - {198)
At 30 September 2012 106 1 1373 155 2589
Charge for the year 61 264 02 327
impairment losses 53 13 - 66
Disposals (27 8) (205) (01} {48 4)
Transfer to non current assets held for sale (note 28} (02) - - (02)
Exchange differences 48 29 - 77
At 30 September 2013 94 3 147 4 156 2573
Carrying amount
At 30 September 2013 270 106 0 L 137 7
At 30 September 2012 341 904 50 1295

Concessions include the value of licences granted to the Group, as well as copynghts and trademarks and similar items. Licences are
amortised over the period of the licence, up to a maximum of ten years
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Qrher property plant and equipment

Arcrafs and invesiment Freenold land Shor Orher Orner
arrcraft spares property and buldings jeaseholds fixed assets Total
£m £m Em [ Em £m
Cost
At 1 October 2011 1,772 2 180 1771 1954 2325 6050
Additions 2769 - 35 87 164 286
Acquisitions - - 11 73 23 107
Reclassification - - - - 1 {11
Disposals (823 1) (16 &) (23 5) (29 6) (34 1) (87 2)
Exchange differences (117 9) (14) (13 4) (6 2) (142) (33 8)
At 30 September 2012 11078 — 144 8 1756 2018 5222
Addinons 954 — 18 62 209 289
Disposals (22 2) - (0 9) (38 8) {(320) (71 7)
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale {note 28} - - — (0 5) (11 1) (116)
Exchange differences 459 - 70 27 176 273
At 30 September 2013 1,226 9 -~ 1527 145 2 197 2 495 1
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 Qctober 2011 1,133 6 - 556 1285 1406 3247
Charge for the year 949 - 46 110 158 314
Provision for impairment - - - - 06 06
Disposals (631 3) - 89) (23 0) (250) (56 9)
Exchange differences (89 Q) - (50) (4 4) (o 4) (18 8)
At 30 Septerber 2012 508 2 — L6 3 1121 1226 2810
Charge for the year 1087 — 70 100 158 328
Provision forimpairment {note 7) - - - 01 143 T4 4
Disposals (18 3) - N {20 3) (25 6) (46 6)
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale (note 28) - - - 02 (35) (37)
Exchange differences 254 - 26 18 148 192
At 30 September 2013 624 0 - 552 1035 138 4 297 1
Carrying amount
At 30 September 2013 6029 - 97 5 417 58 8§ 1980
Af 30 September 2012 599 6 — 985 635 792 24t 2

Freehold land with a cost of £25 1m (2012 £24 3m) has not been depreciated

The net book value of arcraft and arrcraft spares ncludes £284 4m {2012 £311 3m) inrespect of assets hetd under finance leases

The net book vaiue of other property plant and equipment includes £11 5m (2012 £10 9m}in respect of assets held under

finance leases

Capital commitments

203 2012
£m £m
Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for in the accounts 57.2 81

In addition, the Group s contractually comrmitted to the acquisition of six new Arbus A321 aircraft which have a list price of $96m each,

befare escalations and discounts
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15 Non-current asset investments

Other Investmenis

Avatlable for

Associztes and sale financial Equity Loans & Totral ather
joant venture assers investments recevables Investments
£m Em Em £m fm
Cost
At 1 Ocrober 2012 370 83 - 102 185
Disposals (0 6) (5 3) — - (53)
Group’s share of associates” and joint venture’s profit for the year 07 - - - -
Interest received - — - (28) (2 8)
Addimonal loan investrnent 01 - - 02 02
Write up of investment — - 290 - 290
Transfer to non current assets held for sale {(note 28) - - {29 Q) (7 6) (36 6)
Exchange differences 11 02 - - 02
At 30 September 2013 3s83 32 - - 352
Amounts written off or provided
At 1 October 2012 228 71 - - 71
Disposals - 53 - - (53)
Exchange differences 11 02 - - 02
At 30 September 2013 239 20 - — 20
Carrying amount
At 30 September 2013 14 4 12 - - 12
At 30 September 2012 142 12 - 102 114
Associates

lnvestments in assocates at 30 September 2013 included a 0% interest 1n Activos Turisticos S A, an incoming agency and hotel
company based in Palma de Mallorca, Spain and a 25% interest In Hotelera Adeje S L, a hotel company based in Santa Cruz Tenerfe

During the year the Group recerved a dividend payment of £2 5m which had been recognised inthe prior year

Joint venture
During the year the group disposed of its share in Thomas Cook Personat Finance Limited for net proceeds of £0 3m

Summarised financial information in respect of the associates and joint venture is as follows

2013 2013 2012 2012
Jolnt venture Associates Joint venture Asscaates

£m £m Em fm

Total assets - 1019 570 97 2
Total habilihies - 27 (79 6) (41 0)
Net assets/{habilities) - 592 (22 6) 562
Group’s share of net assets/(liabilities) - 177 {113) 164
Revenue 30 516 g2 512
Profit for the year 02 18 04 39
Toup’s share of associates and jont venture’s profit for the year 01 06 02 19

The financial statements of the associated undertakings are made up at different imes to that of the Group For the purposes of applying
the equity method of accounting the most recent financiat statements of these undertakings and the management accounts are used fo
draw up the financial position and performance of each associate
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15 Non-current asset investments continued

Other investments

Dunng the year ended 30 September 2013, the Group recognised income from avallable-for-sale financial assets of £0 4m
(2012 £0 4m) There 1s no active market for the available-for sale financial assets, consequently they are recorded at cost

Dunng the year the Group disposed of its remaining 24 9% nterest in Aldtana, a specialist hotel operator for nil gain or loss 1
Equity investrments and loans and receivables are in respect of the Group’s investment, as a member of The Airhine Group, in the UK 5
Nationat Arr Traffic Services (NATS) The investment comprises ordinary shares and refated loan notes accruing interest at 8% in the &
Arrline Group g
U
Dunng the year the Group wrote up the carrying value of its iInvestment to fair value less costs to sell and classified the investment as held ‘g
for sale On 19 Novernber 2013 the Group announced it had agreed to sell 91 5% of its shareholding and loan note interests for a cash wn
consideration of £38m
16 Acquisitions and disposals
Alist of the principal Investments in subsidtanes including the name country of incorporation, description and proportion of ownership
interest, 1s given in note 19 to the Company s separate financial staterents All of the subsidiary undertakings have been consolidated
in the Group accounts
Acquisitions made in previous periods
Hotels4U com
During the year a final deferred consideration of £5 5m was patd to the former owners of Hotels4l! com
ITC Travel Investments SL
A cash payment of £3 1m ($5 Om) was received during the year in respect of partial settlement of deferred consideration 2
Disposal of businesses 'é
Thomas Cook Canada Inc and Thomas Cook USA Holdings Inc o
On 1 May 2013 the Group sold Thomas Cook Canada Inc and Thomas Cook USA Holdings Inc to Red Label Vacations In¢ for a cash 2
consideration of 5 3m Canadian dollars At the balance sheet date, 3 3m Canadian dollars (£2 2m) had been received from the purchaser o1
£38m cash was included within the net assets disposed with the business g
The results of these businesses have been included as discontinued operations Further details can be found in note 28 ‘Discontinued
operations and assefs classified as held for sale’
Financial information related to the disposal is set cut below
£m
Consideration received, net of costs 34
Less carrying amount of net assets disposed of (41 3)
Less share of franslation reserve 399
Gain ondisposal 20
Disposal of Russtan subsidiaries
During the year the Group disposed of a number of small, non-core subsidiaries in Russia The ret cash disposed with these businesses 5
was £2 9m n
c
Thomas Cook Persenal Finance Ltd g
In March 2013 Thomas Cook Personal Finance Limited, a joint venture arrangement with Barclays Bank was wound up The net cash 2
preceeds received for the Group's 50% share were £0 3m The Group recorded a loss of £0 4m =
3
Disposal of businesses in previous periods §
During the year the Group receved a deferred cash consideration payment of £E0 9m in relation to the sale of Oasis Company SAE, £

a business disposed of in the prior year

17 Inventones
2013 2032

£fm £m

Goods held for resale 51 72
Arrline spares and other operating inventones 231 233
282 305

[ ety
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18 Trade and other receivables

2013 2012
£m £m
Non-current assets
Trade recevables 04 01
Other receivables 236 355
Deposifs and prepayments 1149 106 6
Loans 25 29
Securities 13 17
1427 146 8
Current assets
Trade recewables 2705 3173
Other receivables 425 621
Deposits and prepayments L43 7 4349
Loans 39 26
Securiies 04 04
Amounts owed by associates and participations 21 75
Other taxes 223 593
785 4 9L 1

The average credif period faken on invoicing of leisure travel services s 12 days (2012 15 days} No interest s charged on the recewvables
The credit risk In respect of direct receivables from customers is irmited as payment s required in full before the services are provided

In the case of travel services sold by thurd-party agents the credit risk depends on the credtworthiness of those third parties but this risk
5 also hmited because of the relatively short period of credit

Deposits and prepayments include amaunts paid in advance to suppliers of hotel and other services in order to guarantee the provision
of those supplies The Group s current policy 1s that depesits and prepayments will normally be made for penods of up fo two years in
advance There s a credit nisk in respect of the continued operation of those suppliers dunng those periods Deposits and prepayments
also include £31 6m (2012 £20 8m) of deposits on arcraft lease arrangements which are pnmanly attributable to the UK airline

Securities iInclude money market securities amounting fo £1 3m (2012 £1 7m) purchased as collateral against iabilities ansing from
part-time refirement contracts at Thomas Cook AG, which are classified as avarlable-for sale financial assets

The amounts presented in the batance sheet are net of allowances for doubfful recevables An allowance for impatrment 1s made where
there I1s an identified loss event which, based on previous expenence, 15 evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows

Allowances for doubtful debts in respect of trade receivable balances are managed in the business units where the debts arise and
are based on local management experience Factors that are considered include the age of the debt, previous expenence with the
counterparty and local trading condiions Trade recervables anse frorn individual customers as well as businesses in the rrave! sector
The Directors do not consider there fo be significant concentration of credit nsk relating to trade and other recevables

Movement in allowances for doubtful recevables

2013 2012

£m £m
At beginning of year 563 614
Additional provisions 78 %3
Exchange differences 16 (39
Acquisitions - 79
Disposals (09) -
Transfer to non-current assets held- for-sale o7 -
Receivables written off (16 1) 83
Unused amounts released (36) (101)
At the end of year 4t o 563

At the year end, trade and other receivables of £109 9m (2012 £96 9m) were past due but not impaired
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18 Trade and other receivables continued
The analysis of the age of these financial assets (s set out below

Ageing analysis of overdue trade and other receivables
2013 2012

£m £fm
Less than one month overdue 566 457
Between one and three months overdue 297 222
Between three and twelve months overdue 128 168
More than fwelve months overdue 108 122
1099 96 9
Trade and other recevables are not subject to restrichons on hitie and no collateratis held as secunity
The Directors consider that the carrnying amounts of irade and other recevables approximate to therr fair values
19 Cash and cash equivalents
2013 2012
Em £m
Cash at bank and in hand 4108 LuT7 3
Term deposits 6780 130

1,088 8 460 3

Cash and cash equivatents fargely comprise bank balances denorninated in Sterfing Euro and other currencres for the purpose of settling
current habilines as well as balances ansing from agency collection on behalf of the Group’s travel agencies

Included within the above balance are the following amounts considered o be restncted

» £52 7m (2012 £80 5m) held within escrow accounts in UK Switzerland and the Czech Republic In respect of local regulatory
requirements,

> £14 4m (2012 £15 7m) of cash held by White Horse Insurance lreland Limited the Group's captive insurance company, and

> £8 2m (2012 £7 8m) of cash held in countries where exchange control restrichions are i force (Tunisia, Cyprus and Morocco),
net of cash avallable to repay local debt in those countries

The Directors consider that the carfying amounts of these assets approximate to therr fair value

20 Trade and other payables

2013 2012
£m £m
Current liabilities
Trade payables 1,2967  1.2211
Amounts owed to associates and parficipations 26 32
Social securty and other taxes 676 765
Accruals and deferred income 5145 5379
Other payables 1138 169 8

1,9952 20085

Non-current habilities

Accruals and deferred income 40 55
Other payables 929 299
969 G5 4

The average credit peniod taken for trade purchases 1s 66 days (2012 63 days)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate to ther fair value
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21 Borrowings

2013 2012
£m Emn
Short-term borrowings
Unsecured bank loans and other borrowings 1340 06
Unsecured bank overdrafts 32 68
137 2 74
Current portion of long-term borrowings 393 304
1765 378
Long-term borrowings
Bank loans and bonds
—repayable within one year 393 304
—repayable between one and five years 689 8 977 1
—repayable after five years 424 0 05
1,1531 10080
Less amount due for settlement within one year shown under current habilitres (393) (304
Amount due for settlement after one year 1,113 8 9776
Borrowings by class
013 2012
Curren?  Non-current Curent  Non-current
£m £m £m £m
Group committed credit facility (including transaction costs) -  (186) — 2806
Aircraft-related bank loans (including fransacton ¢osts) 386 645 298 703
Bank and other borrowings 1379 151 80 151
tssued bonds (including transaction costs) - 1,0528 - 6116
1765 1,113 8 378 977 6

On 27 June 2013 the Group completed a £1 6bn recapitalisation of the business which included

» a 2 for 5 nights issue of 409,029,271 new ordinary shares at 76 pence per new ordinary share and a plaaing of 87,591,241 shares at
137 pence per share, raising gross proceeds of £431m

» 1ssue of a new €525m Eurobond with a coupon of 7 75% which matures m June 2020

> a new £470m four year banking facility maturning in May 2017 to replace prior facilifies, together with an addihional £191m facility
available frorm 2015 and a separate £30m bonding faciiry which matures in May 2015

The Directors consider that the fair value of the Group’s borrowings with a carrying value of £1 290 3mis £1,349 9m (2012 carrying
value £1,015 4m fairvalue £739 4m) The farr values quoted were determined on the basis of the interest rates for the corresponding
terms to matunty or repayment as at the year end The fair value of the issued bonds has been denved using the quoted market price as
at 30 September 2013 For items maturing in less than one year, the Directors consider that the fair value 1s equal to the carrying amount

Durning the year £6 5m (2012 £7 9m) of capitalised transachion costs relafing to banking faciities have been recognised within finance
costsin the Income statement In addifion, following the agreement of the new financing package £6 8m {2012 £22 3m) of capitalised
fees associated with the old debt facility have been written off and included within Separately disclosed items — finance costs'

Borrowing facilities

As at 30 September 2013, the Group had undrawn committed debt facilifies of £290 4m (2012 £793 3m) and undrawn committed
debt facilittes plus cash available to repay revolving credit facility of £1,207m (2012 £980 8m) Whilst these faciliies have certain
financial covenants they are not expected to prevent full utihsation of the faciities if required The Group has complied with ifs covenanis
throughout the year

Covenant measures

The covenant measures are tested on a quarterly roling 12 month basis and consist of a leverage covenant and a fixed charge covenant
The leverage covenant 15 a measure of pre-exceptional earmings before inferest, tax depreciation, amortisation and alrcraft operating
lease rentals compared to net debt The fixed charge covenant 15 a measure of pre excephonal earrings before interest, tax, depreciation,
amortisation and operahing lease charges compared to netinferest and aircraft operating lease rental plus retail renfal charges The
leverage and fixed charge covenant hurdles vary depending on the period that they relate to and range between 1 S4xto 4 51x and
162x10 2 45x respectively
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Minmum lease payments

Present value of
rmerumwm lease payments

2013 2012 2013 2012
Em fm £m Em

Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 587 L8 8 L27 326
Between one and five years 1652 1706 1261 1295
After five years 667 848 557 711
290 6 304 2 2245 2332
Less future finance charges (661) (710) - -
Present value of lease obligations 2245 2332 2245 2332

Less amount due for seftlement within 12 months (shown under current liabilities)

(u27)  (326)

Amount due for setflement after 12 months 1818 2006
The currency analysis of amounts payable under finance leases s

2013 2002

£m £m

Euro 147 141

US dollar 2098 2191

224 5 2332

Finance leases principally relate to arcraft and arrcraft spares

No arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments

The Drectors consider that the fair value of the Group's finance lease obligations with a carrying value of £224 5m was £239 2m at
30 Septermber 2013 (2012 carrying value £233 2m fair vatue £254 1) The fair values quoted were determined on the basis of the
interest rates for the corresponding terms to repayment as at the year end The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured

by the lessors’ nights over the leased assets
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23 Financial instruments

Carrying values of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying values of the Group's finangial assets and hiabilities as at 30 September 2013 and 30 Septernber 2012 are as set out below

Derivative

instruments Financlal
in designated Taifities at
Held hedging toans & Avallable- amortised
For trading 1 hip receivabl for sale cost
At 30 September 2013 Em £m £m £m £m
Non current asset iInvestments - - - 12 -
Trade and other recevables - - 404 2 13 -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,088 8 - -
Trade and other payables - - - - (19223)
Borrowings - - - - §1,290.3)
Obligations under finance leases - - - - (224 5)
Provisions arising from contractual obligations - - - - (394 8)
Denvatlve financial instruments {2 1) {397) - - -
(2 4) (397} 1,4930 25 (3,8319)
Dervative
INSHunENts Finarlal
n designated habilities at
Held hedging Loans & Avallable amorhsed
for trading 1 by bl far sale cost
At 30 September 2012 £m £m £m £m £m
Nen-current assef investments — - 102 12 -
Trade and other recevables - - 471 2 17 —
Cash and cash equivalents - - 4603 - -
Trade and other payables — - - - (1,913 2)
Borrowings — - - - (1,015 4)
Obligations under finance leases — - - - (233 2)
Prowisions ansing from contractual obligations - - — - (371 3)
Denvative finanoial instruments 34 {36 1) - - -
3y (36 1) 9u1 7 29  (35331)
Derwvative financial Instruments
The fair values of denvative financial instruments as at 30 September 20173 were
Interest Cumency Fuel
rate swaps contracts contracts Tatal
im £m £m £m
At 1 October 2011 (30) 395 (4 3) 322
Movement in farr value duning the year {06) {(743) 100 {649)
At 1 October 2012 (3 6) (34 8) 57 (327}
Movement in farr value dunng the year (1 4) (30) (50) (9 4)
At 30 September 2013 (50 (37 8) 07 (42 1)
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23 Financial instruments continued

2013 22
£m fm
Non-current assets 01 02
Current assets 250 392
Current habilities (639) (684)
Non-current habilities (3 3) {(37)
w21) (G270
Fair value hierarchy
The fair value of the Group’s financialinstruments are disclosed in hierarchy levels depending on the valuation method apphed
The different methods are defined as follows
Level 1 valued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments
Level 2 valued using techmiques based on information that can be obtained from observable market data
Level 3 valued using techniques incorporating Information other than observable market data as at least one input to the valuation
cannot be based on observable market data
The farr value of the Group’s financial assefs and liabilihies at 30 Septernber 2013 are set out below
Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
£m Em Em fm
Financial assets
Currency contracts - 152 - 152
Fuel contracts - 98 - 98
Secuntes 13 — - 13
Financial liabilities
Currency contracts - {53 0) - (53 0)
Fuel contracts - 91) - 91
Interest rate swaps - (5 0) - {50)
At 30 September 2013 13 (uz 1) - (40 8)
The fair value of the Group’s financial assets and habilimes at 30 Septernber 2012 are set out below
levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m im Em
Financial assets
Currency contracts - 259 - 259
Fuel contracts - 134 - 13 4
Securities 17 - - 17
Financeal habikties
Currency contracts - (60 7) - (607)
Fuel contracts - 7N - (77
Interest rate swaps - (3 6} - {36)
At 30 September 2012 V7 {327) — {31 0)

The Group uses dervative financial instruments to hedge significant future transactions and cash flows denominated in foreign currencies
The Group enters into foreign currency forward contracts, swaps and options In the management of its exchange rate exposures The fair
value of currency contracts designated in a cash flow hedge as at 30 September 2013 was aliability of £33 1m (2012 £38 2m hiability)
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23 Financial instruments continued

Currency hedges are entered into up fo a maximum of 18 months in advance of the forecasted requirement As at 30 September 2013,
the Group had in place currency hedging denvative financial instruments with a maximum matunty of October 2014 All foreign exchange
hedges are designated as cash flow hedges

The Group also uses derivative finanoial instrurnents to mitigate the risk of adverse changes in the price of fuel The Group enters into fixed
price contracts (swaps) and net purchased opiions in the management of s fuel price exposures All fuethedges are designated ascash
flow hedges

Fuel price hedges are entered into up to a maximum of 18 months i advance of forecasted consumption of fuel As at 30 Septermber
2013, the Group had in place fuel price hedging denvative financia! instruments wirh a maximum maturity of December 2014

In addition, the Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its interest rate exposures The Group enters into Interest rate
swaps to hedge aganst interest rate movements In connection with the financing of aircraft and other assets The Group also enters into
Cross currency (nterest rate swaps to hedge the interest rate and the currency exposure on foreign currency external borrowings The fair
value of iInterest rate swaps and cross currency contracts in a designated cash flow hedge relationship at 30 September was a lability of
£25m (2012 £3 6m hability)

During the year the Group entered into inferest rate swaps with a notional value of €300rm on the €525m loan notes disclosed in Note 21
These Interest rate swaps have been designated as hedging instruments in a farr value hedge relationship and therr fair value 1s £2 5m
(2012 nil)

As at 30 Septernber 2013, the maximum maturity of Interest rate derivatives was June 2020

The fair values of the Group's derivative financial instruments have been calculated using underlying market prices available on
30 September 2013

During the year, a loss of £8 6m (2012 £48 4m gain) was transferred from the hedging reserve fo the income staterment following
recognition of the hedged fransactions The amount included in each hine stem i the income statement 1s shown below In addition,
a gan of £1 6m was recognised in the income staternent in respect of the forward points on foreign exchange cash flow hedging
contracts (2012 £1 9m gan) and a loss of E4 Om In respect of the movement in the time value of options in cash flow hedging
relanonships (2012 £9 1mgan)

2013 2012
£m £m
Cost of providing tounsm services
—release from hedge reserve (8 6) 48 4
—time value on options (4 0) 91
Finance income/ (costs)
—release from hedge reserve - 01
— farward points on foreign exchange cash flow hedging contracts 16 19
—fairvalue movements on denvatives in designated fair value hedge (G 4) -

The farr value adjustment on hedged items designated n a fair value hedge s £51k (2012 nil)

During the year a loss of £1 6m (2012 £4 7m loss) was taken directly to the incorme staternent in respect of held for trading derivatives
that are used to hedge Group balance sheet exposure This has been recorded within net foreign exchange gain for the yearof £12 1m
{2012 £19 9m gain) which s included within cost of providing tourism services

The closing hedging reserve excluding the impacrt of tax was aloss of £31 5m (2012 £26 3mloss) The pertods in which the cash flows
are expected to occur and when they are expected to impact the income statement are a loss of £29 9rm (2012 £25 3m loss) within one
year and a loss of £1 6m (2012 £1 Om gain) between one and five years

24 Financial sk
The Group 15 subject 1o risks related to changes m interest rates exchange rates fuel prices counterparty credit and liguidity within the
framework of its business operations

Interest rate risk
The Group s subject 1o nisks ansing frorm interest rate movements in connechion with the 1ssue of Eurobonds, bank debt aircraft financing
and cash investments Interest rate swaps are used fo manage these nisks and are designated as both cash flow and fair value hedges

Forergn exchange rate risk

The Group has achivities in a large number of countries and 1s therefare subject to the nisk of foretgn exchange rate fluctuations These risks
anse in connection with the procurement of senaces in destinations outside the source market For example, US Doltar exposure anses on
the procurement of fuel and operating supplies for aircraft, as well as investments in arrcraft
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24 Financial nsk continued

The Group requires segments ta identfy and appropriately hedge atl exposures in ine with approved treasury policies designed to reflect
the commercia! nsk of each underlying business Each segmental hedging policy covers the hedge build up permitted instruments in use
and further risk miigation The maximum hedge tenor1s 18 months and each segment shoutd achieve at least an 80% hedge ratio prior
to the start of the season

The Group uses currency forwards currency swaps and currency ophions o manage currency risks and these are usually designated as
cash flow hedges

Fuel price risk
Exposure to fuel price sk anses due to flying costs incurred by the Group’s arrcraft

The Group requires segments todenhify and appropriately hedge all exposures in line with approved treasury policies designed to reflect
the commeraal nisk of each underlying business Each segmental hedging policy covers the hedge build up, permitted instruments and
further nsk mitigahon The maximum hedge tenor 15 18 months and each segment should achieve at least an 80% hedge ratto prior to the
start of the season

The Group uses commodity denvative contracts, including fixed price contracts (swaps) and net purchased options to manage fuel price
nisk and these are usually designated as cash flow hedges

The market nsks that the Group is subject to have been identified as interest rate risk, exchange rate sk and fuel price nsk The impact
of reasonably possible changes in these nisk variables on the Group, based on the perod end holdings of financial instfruments have
been calculated and are set out in the tables below In each case it has been assumed that all other variables remain constant As at
30 September 2013, the sensimwity of these nsks to the defined scenario changes are set out below

Interest rate risk

2013 2012
Impact Impact
on profit Impact on profit Impact
before tax on equity before tax anequity
£m £fm £m £m
1% (2012 1%)increase ininterest rates 44 — 12 -
025% (2012 © 25%) decrease in interest rates (11) - (03) -
Foreign exchange rate risk
2013 2012
Impact tropact
on profit Impact on profit Impact
before fax on equity before tax on equity
£m £m Em £m
5% (2012 5%) strengthening of Euro (57 0) 110 (12 4) 190
5% (2012 5%) weakening of Euro L4y 8 (24) 107 (15 5)
5% (2012 5%) strengthening of US Dollar {60) 651 {18 1) 569
5% (2012 5%) weakening of US Dollar 28 (525) 163 {52 5)
Fuel price risk
2013 2012
Impact Impact
on profit Impact on profit Impact
before tax on equity before tax on equity
£m £m fm £m
10% (2012 10%) increase in fuel price 04 425 01 324
10% (2012 10%) decrease in fuel price (W9) (382) (38 (270)

Given recent histoncal movemnents in fuel prices management believes a 10% shift s a reasonable possibility
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24 Financial nsk continued

Liquudity risk

The liquidity position of the Group ts significantfy influenced by the booking and payment pattern of customers As aresult hquidity 1 at

Its lowesf in the winter months and af its highest in the summer months The Group manages the seasonal nature of ifts iguidity by making
use of its banking facility, the terms of which, iIncluding the covenant measures are detalled in the borrowings note (refer to note 21)

The Group also uses hquidity swaps to manage short term currency positions These iquedity swaps are presented as hetd-for-frading
financial instruments

The undrawn committed debt facifity plus cash available to repay revolving credit facility ranged between £217 8mand £1 233 8m
duning the current financial year (2012 £156m-£981m)

Surplus short-term liquidity 1s invested in accordance with approved freasury policies

Financial habiliies are analysed below based on the time between the year end and their contractual maturity The amounts shown are
estimates of the undiscounted future cash flows and wall differ frorm both carrying value and fair value

Amount due
In less than between between inmore than
3months 3 and 12months 1and 5 years 5 years Total
At 30 September 2013 £m £m Em £ £m
Trade and other payables 1,752 9 73.3 92 4 37 1,9223
Borrowings 146 9 316 824 9 644 4 1,647 8
Obhgatons under finance leases 132 455 1652 667 29046
Dervative financial nstruments
- payable 1,0837 1,233 7 1386 - 2,456 0
—recevable {1,0791) (1,193 0) (132 0) - {2,404 1)
Provisions arsing from contractual obligations 510 1810 1237 392 3949
1,968 6 3721 1,212 8 754 O 4,307 5
Amount due
nless than between between inmore than
3months  3and 12 months 1and 5 years S years Total
At 30 September 2012 Em £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables 1,6570 147 6 1116 30 19132
Borrowings 114 270 1,180 3 07 1,219 4
Qbligations under finance leases 124 364 1706 848 3042
Denvative financial instruments
— payable 22643 1.007 0 101 - 32814
~ recewable (2,2u6 3) {980 6) {9 4) - (32363)
Provisions arising from contractual obligations 317 127 8 1839 297 3731
1,730 5 3592 1647 1 118 2 38550

For all gross seftled denvative financial instruments, such as foreign currency forward contracts and swaps, the pay and receive leg has
been disclosed in the table above For net seftled dernivative financial instruments such as fuel swaps and options the fair value as at the
year end of those Instruments in a hability position has been disclosed in the table above Trade and other payables include non financial
liabilities of £170 1m (2012 £190 7m) which have not been analysed above

Counterparty credit nisk

The Group I1s expased ta credit nsk in relation to deposits, utstanding dervatives and frade and other recewvables The maximum exposure
in respect of each of these stems at the balance sheet date s their carrying value The Group assesses its counterparty exposure in relation
to the Investment of surplus cash, fuel contracts, forergn exchange and inferest rate hedging contracts and undrawn credit facilities The
Group pnmarily uses published credit ratings fo assess counterparty strength ard therefore to define the credit imit for each counterparty
in accordance with approved treasury policies

The Group's approach to credit nsk In respect of trade and other recevables 1s explained in note 18
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25 Insurance
Management of insurance nsk
Incidental to its main business the Group, through its subsidiary White Horse Insurance Ireland Limited, ssues contracts that transfer

significant insurance risk and that are classified as insurance contracts As a general guideline, the Group defines as significant insurance

nsk the possibility of having to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder
Business written includes standard commercial risks for the Group and travel insurance for both Group and non Group customers

The principal nature of travel insurarice nsks 1s one of short term Jow value and high volume Underwniting performance 1s monstored
on an ongoing basis and pricing reviewed annually for each indmdual contract Exposure 1s capped by specific brmifs within the insuran

ce

policy and by using reinsurance confracts far any claims in excess of these retention imits Commercial policies with the Group are subject

to policy excesses and single event and aggregate hmits
Insurance risk 1s spread across several European countries where the Group operates induding the UK, Ireland and Continental Europe

When estimating the cost of claims outstanding at the year end the principal assumption underlying the estimates I1s the Croup s past
development pattern This includes assumptions In respect of historic claims costs, average claims handhing expenses and market
developments The Group also uses an independent actuary to review s liabiliftes to ensure that the carrying values are adequate
Any changes to these variables are not expected to have a matenal effect on the Group financial statements

The Group operates a reinsurance policy approved by the White Horse Insurance Ireland Ltd Board of Directors which ensures that
reinsurers have a financial stability rating of B+ (A M Best) or above The Group has assessed these credit ratings as being sahisfactory
in diminishung the Group s exposure to the credit nsk of itsinsurance recewables

Income and expenses arising directly from msurance contracts

2013 2012
£m £m
Revenue
Net earned premium Income 63 100
Deposit interest - 01
63 101
Expenses
Clarms incurred 59 77
Qther operating expenses 11 09
70 86
Assets and liabilities arising directly from insurance contracts
2013 2012
£m £m
Assets
Recewables ansing out of direct insurance operations 15 22
Prepayments 01 01
16 23
Liabilihes
Deferred income ansing from unearned premiums 13 25
Claims accruals 78 80
Insurance prermium tax payable 12 15
Other credifors 01 02
Accruals and deferred income 13 16
117 138
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25 Insurance continued
Reconcihiation of movement in insurance liabilihes

Deferred

ncorme ATing

from
ungarned Qams
premiums acenals
fm Em
At 1 October 2012 25 80
Net earned premium income {63) -
Premiums wirtten 51 -
Claims incurred - 59
Claims paid - 61
At 30 September 2013 13 78

26 Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax habilities and assets recogrised by the Group and movements thereon dunng the current and

priof reporiing year

Awreraft Rehrement Fair value Other
finance benefir offinancial ternporacy
leases obhigatons Instruments differences Tax losses Total
£Em £m £m £m £m £m
At 30 September 2011 (72) 381 (57) (47 2) 182 4 1604
{Charge)/credd to mcome {47 3) (52 {7 5) 283 {46 2) (779)
Credit to equity - 123 198 - - 321
Reclassifications - 27 (42) 16 01N -
Acquisitions - - - (26) - (2 6)
Disposals - - — 59 - 59
Exchange differences - 08 {03) 12 {4 6) (29
At 30 September 2012 (54 5) L8 7 21 (12 8) 1315 1150
{Charge)/credit o income 05 (5 4) (5 8) {218) 268 {(57)
Credit to equity - 02} 09 - - Q7
Reclassifications 87) {02) L2 47 - -
Disposals - - - 63 - 63
Transferred to assets held for sale - - - {(02) - 02
Other - 01 — (09) 03 07)
Exchange differences (0 8) 06 (09) (15) 24 02)
At 30 September 2013 (63 5) 43 4 05 (26 2) 1610 1152
Certain deferred tax assets and llabilities have been offset The following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporfing purposes
2013 012
£m £m
Deferred tax Labilities (52 8) (89 7)
Deferred tax assets 1680 2047
1152 1150

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused taxlosses of £2 624 6m (2012 £2,460 2m) avallable for offset against future profits
Deferred tax assets have only been recognised where there 15 sufficient probability that there will be future taxable profits against which
the assets may be recovered No deferred tax asset has been recogrised in respect of tax losses of £1,940 5m (20712 £1 933 9m) due

to the unpredictabihity of future profit streams

Other temporary differences on which deferred tax has been provided primarily relate to the difference i book to tax value on
qualifying tax assets provisions for which tax relief was not onginally availlable, and fair value accounting on properties acquired as part

of the merger
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In addition the Group had unused other temporary differences in respect of which no deferred tax asset has been recognised amounting

to £385 3m (2012 £253 5m), also due to the unpredictability of future profit streams

Deferred tax labilines were offset against the corresponding deferred tax assets where both itemns fell within the responsibility of the same

tax authonty

The deferred tax assets and liabilities at the year end, without taking into consideration the offsetting balances within the same

junsdichon are £252 Tmand £136 9 respechively

Finance Act 2012 reduced the main rate of UK corporation tax from 24% to 23% with effect from 1 Aprit 2013, resulting m a UK

current tax rate of 23 5% applicable to the year ended 30 September 2013 Finance Act 2013 was substantively enacted on 2 July 2013
and included further UK rate reductions, with the main rate of UK corporation tax to reduce to 21% from 1 Apnil 2014 and 20% from

1 Apnl 2015 The effect of this change on deferred tax balances is included in these financial staterments and has resulted in a decrease

in deferred tax assets of £14 1m

27 Provisions

Awcraft
maintenance Other
provislons provisions Taral
£m £m £m

At 1 October 2012

247 4 168 & 4158

Additional prowisions in the year

662 1343 2005

Unused amounts released in the year {6 1) {340} {40 L)
Unwinding of discount - 26 26
Utilisation of provisions (536) (11i15) {1651)
Exchange differences 21 35 56
At 30 September 2013 2557 163 3 4190

Included in current liabiities

1254 121 4 246 8

Included in non-current labilines

1303 419 1722

At 30 September 2013

2557 1633 4190

Included in current hiabilities

810 1205 2015

Included in non-current habilities

166 4 479 2143

At 30 September 2012

2474 1684 4158

The aircraft maintenance provisions retate to maintenance on leased aircraft and spares used by the Group's arrlines in respect of leases
which include contractual return condiions This expenditure anses at different times over the life of the aircraft with major overhauls

typically occurnng between two and ten years (see accounting policies for more detads)

Other provisions

Reorganlsanon

and Deferred and

Off market  Insurance and restructunng contingent
leases Itigahion plans consideration Other Total
fm Em £m £m fm fm
At 1 October 2012 337 358 358 262 369 168 4
Additional provisions 03 382 571 11 376 1343
Unused amounts refeased - 1) (59 (1u6) (9 4) (340)
Unwinding of discount 22 - - 04 - 26
Unihsation of provisions (73) {300) {44 5) (8 0) 212 (1
Exchange differences 15 04 08 - 08 35
At 30 September 2013 299 403 43 3 51 L4447 163 3

Off market leases relate to leases acquired through the HilHoteks International Limited acquisition and The Co operative Group and
Midlands Co-operative, and MyTravel Group plc mesgers, which have commitments in excess of the market rate at the time of the
fransaction Insurance and lifiganion represents costs related to legal disputes, customer compensation claims and estimated costs arising
through insurance contracts i the Group's subsidiary, White Horse Insurance Irefand Limited Reorganisation and restructuning plans
predominantly represent committed restructuring costs in the UK and Continental segments Deferred and contingent consideration

represents future purchase options on Think W3 Limited acquisitions
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27 Provisions continued

‘Other’ represents habilitres where there 1s uncertainty of the fiming or amount of the future expenditure required in settlernent and
micludes such items as onerous contracts, dilapidations and emissions trading habilities This grouping contains no single category larger

than £15m

Provisions included in non current habilities are principally in respect of off market lease contracts and are expected to be utilised over
the term of the contracts which extend up to 10 years from the balance sheet date and deferred and contingent consideration ansing

on acquistions

28 Discontinued operations and assets classified as held for sale
Following the sale on 1 May 2013 of the business previously disclosed within the North America segment the results of these businesses

have been included as discontinued eperations

Consolidated Income Statement- discontinued operations

Year ended 30 September Year ended 30 Septernber
2013 2012
Separatety Separately
Undertying disciosed Underhang disdosed
resulfs items Total results iterns Total
£m £m £m £m im £m
Revenue 1748 - 174 8 296 2 - 2962
Cost of providing tourism services {142 8) - (1428) (2523) —  (2523)
Gross profit 320 - 320 439 - 439
Personnel expenses (220) -  (220) (41 0) (31) ()
Depreciahon and amortisation (25) - {25) {40} - Lo
Net operating expenses (95) - (95) (198) (145) (343)
Profit/(loss) on disposal of assets - 29 29 — (12) (12)
Impairment of goodwill and amortisation of business - 09) 09 - (1095) (1095)
combination intangibles
{Loss)/profit from operations (20) 20 - (209) (1283) (1492}
Finance income 04 - 04 05 - 05
Finance costs 01 01 -~ (P3)] 0y 0?2
(Loss)/profit before tax (17) 21 04 (206) (1279) (1485)
Tax 01) o7
Profit/{loss) for the year 03 (149 2)
Cash flows- disconhinued operations
2013 2012
£m tm
Net cash used in operating activities (301) (66)
Net cash (used in}/from investing activies (15) 64
Net cash used in financing activities (01) (07)
Assefts classified as held-for-sale
2013 052
£m 1333
Assetls
intangible assets 03 -
Property, plant and equipment 79 -
Naon-current asset investments 366 -
Inventories L4 -
Tax assefs 02 -
Trade and other receivables 160 _
Cash and cash equivatents 47 _

701
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28 Discontinued operations and assets classified as held for sale continued

2013 2012
£m im

Liabilities
Trade and other payables 170 -
170 -

In the current year the assets and liabilities of the Egyphian and Lebanese businesses Nellson Active Holidays and Thomas Cook CFX Lid, all
of which were reported within the UK segment, have been classified as held for sale in addition the Group has included its investment in
UK National Air Traffic Services which has been written up by £29m to the expected disposal value The Group expects te complete the
sale of these businesses within the next 12 months

29 Called-up share capital
Aflorred called up and fully pard  Allotted called up and panly paid

Deferred shares
Ordinary shares  Crdinary shares Deferred shares Deferred shares of £1 each
Ocdinary shares of Qrdinary shares of Deferred sharesof  of €0 10each  of €001 each  of €009 each of £1 each 25p pad

€0 10each €001 each €009 each £rm £m £m 25p paid £m
At 71 QOctober 2012 885 900,334 - - 600 ~ —~ 50,000 -
Exercise of warrants 49,081 604 21,800,777 - 40 02 - - -
Capital reorganisahion {934,981 938) 934 981,938 934,981 938 (6L0) 64 576 - —
Private placement - 87,591,241 - - 07 - - -
Rights 1ssue - 409,029 271 — - 35 - - -
At 30 September 2013 ~ 1,453,403,227 934,981,938 - 108 576 50,000 -

As part of the £200m bank facility announced on 25 November 2011 the Company 1ssued Warrants fo certain of its lenders giving
holders the right at any time unhl 22 May 2015, to subscribe for up to an aggregate of approximately 42,914,640 ordinary shares at

a subscription price per share of 19 875 pence On 10 May 2012 the Company issued Warrants as part of the bank facility amendment
announced on 5 May 2012 to certain of its fenders gving holders the right, at any hme until 22 May 2015, to subscnbe forup to an
aggregate of 43 749,516 {(subsequently increased by 4 440,376 ardinary shares to reflect the Company s Rights Issue In june 2013)
ordinary shares at a subscriphion price per share of €0 10 per share (subsequently adjusted to €0 0857282 to reftect the Company's
Rights Issue inJune 2013) !n addition, the Warrants 1ssued as part of the bank facility announced in December 2011 were re-priced fo
the same exercise price As at 27 Novernber 2013, 17 Warrant holders had exercised their Subscription Rights in respect of 81 974,478
Warrants (exerctsed into ordinary shares on a one far-one basis)

Contingent rights to the allotment of shares

As at 30 September 2013, aptions to subscribe for ordinary shares were outstanding with respect to the Thomas Cook Group plc 2007
Performance Share Plan the Thomas Cook Group plc 2008 Co Investment Plan, the Thomas Cook Restricted Share Plan and the Thomas
Cook Group plc 2008 Save As You Earn Scheme For further details refer to note 34 Onexercise the awards of shares under the plan will
be satisfied by either purchases in the market of existing shares or, subject te Inshfutional guidelines, 1ssuing new shares

Own shares held in trust

Shares of the Company are held under frust by EES Trustees International Limited in respect of the Thomas Cook Group plc 2007
Performance Share Plan, the Thomas Cook Group plc 2008 Co-Investment Plan and the Thomas Cook Restnicted Share Plan and are held
by Equiniti Share Plan Trustees Limited in connection with the Thomas Cook Group plc Buy As You Earn Scheme In accordance with IFRS,
these are treated as Treasury Shares and are included in “other reserves” in the balance sheet

The number of shares held at 30 September 2013 by EES Trustees Internafional Limited and Equiniti Share Plan Trustees Limited was
17,245 7217 (2012 3,551,668) and 438,615 (2012 432 653) respectively The cumulative cost of acgquisition of these shares was
£295m (2012 £13 tm) and the market value at 30 Septernber 2013 was £27 1m {2012 £1 5m) Shares held by the trust have been
excluded from the weighted average number of shares used in the calculafion of earmings per share
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29 Called-up share capital continued

Issue of company shares

In order to enable the Company to carry out an issue of ordinary shares without being tn breach of its Warrant Instrument requirements,
the Company undertook a Capital Reorgamisation on 3 une 2013 Under the Capital Reorganisation, each existing ordinary share of €0 10
nominal value was subdivided into one Grdinary Share of €0 01 nominal value and one Deferred Share of €0 09 nominal value

During the year the Company raised gross proceeds of approximately £43 1 million by way of a Placing and a Rights Issue Under the
placing 87 591 241 €0 01 Ordinary Shares were ssued on 3 June 2013 immediately followang the capifal reorganisation outlined above
409 029,271 €0 01 Ordinary Shares were issued through the Rights Issue on 20 June 201 3 on the basis of two new shares for every five
€001 ordinary shares held by shareholders on 3 June 2013 immediately following the Placing

Capital management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakehotders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of captal

The Group continues fo make strengthening its balance sheet a priority and has been taking further steps to achieve this in the current
year, through the 1ssue of equity capital in its June 2013 Placement and Rights Issue and the announcement of its new Profitable Growth
Strategy on 13 March 20113, in addition to the sale of non-core assets and suspension of dividends

The caprtal structure of the Group consists of debt cash and cash equivalents (as shown in rote 31) and equity attrbutable to equity
holders of the parens (as shown in the Group balance sheet} At the balance sheet date the Group had total capital of £930 7m
(2012 £1,1948m)

30 Hedging and translation reserves

Hedging Translation
resefve reserve Total
£m £m £m
At 1 October 2011 389 2780 3169
Foreign exchange translation losses - Go7) (30 7)
Far value losses deferred for the year {(319) - {(319)
Farr value gans fransferred to the Income statement (48 1) - (L8 &)
Tax on fair value gamns and losses and transfers 198 - 198
At 30 September 2012 (216) 247 3 2257
Foreign exchange translation iosses - {19 &) (19 6)
Fair value losses deferred for the year (13 8) - (13 8)
Fair value losses transferred to the income statement 86 - 86
Tax on farr value gains and losses and transfers 09 - 09

At 30 September 2013 (25 9) 2277 2018
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31 Net debt
At Other At
1 October Transfer to held non cash Exchange 30 September
012 Cash flow for sale changes movements 2013
£m £m £m fm £m £m
Liguidity
Cash and cash equivalents 4603 6309 (47) - 23 1,0888
Cash dassified as held-for-sale - - 47 - — 47
4603 6309 - — 23 1,0935
Current debt
Bank overdrafts {6 8) 39 - - (03) (32)
Short-term borrowings {06) (1329 - - 05 (1340)
Current portion of long-terrn borrowings (30 4) 247 - (G21) (15) {39 3)
Obligations under finance leases (32 6) 97 — (19 2) (0 6) (L2 7)
(70 4) (94 6) - {513) 29 €2192)
Non-current debt
Long term borrowings (9776) (139 8) - 159 (123) (1,113 8)
Obligations under finance leases (200 6) 226 - (37) 1) (1818)
(11782) (117 2) - 122 {(124) (1,295 6)
Total debt (1.2486)  (2118) - (39 1) (153) (1,514 8)
Net debt (788 3) L1917 — {39 1) {(130) (h213)
32 Operating lease arrangements
The Group as lessee
At the balance sheet date the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases, which fall due as follows
Property Arrcraftand Property Arrcraft and
and other  aircraft spares Total and other awcraft spares Total
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
£m £m Em £m £ £Em
Within one year 60 2 643 1245 993 850 1843
Later than one and less than five years 141 2 2411 3823 2362 1788 4150
After five years 1756 Lirs 6529 1602 145 8 3060
3770 7827 11597 Le957 409 6 905 3

Operating lease payments principally relate to rentals payable for the Group's retail shep and hotel properties and for arcraft and spares

used by the Group s airlines

Shop leases are typically negotiated for an average term of five years

Leases for new aircraft are typically negotiated for an average term of 12 years, leases for second hand aircraft and extensions are typically

much shorter
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32 Operating lease arrangements continued

The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date the Group had contracted with tenants for future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows

Property Aircraft Total Propetty Arrcraft Total

2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012

Em £m £m £m im Em

Within one year 17 52 69 17 Ly 64
Later than one and less than five years 46 - 46 42 - 42
After five years 03 - 03 12 - 12
66 52 118 71 47 118

Rental income earned durnng the year was 20 S0 70 28 63 91

Certain of the Group's retall and other properties and aircraft, that are not being used in the Group's bustnesses, are sub-let on the best
terms available in the market for varying periods with an average future commutted period of 2 8 years for property (2012 2 9 years) and
& months for arcraft (2012 6 months)

At 30 September 2013 no aircraft held under operating leases (2012 nil) were sub let by the Group
33 Contingent hiabilities

2013 2012
£m £m
Contingent habilities 1005 1260

Contingent habilities pnmarily comprise guarantees letters of credit and other contingent habilihies including conhingent liabilities related
tostructured aircraft leases all of which anise in the ordinary course of business The amounts disclosed above represent the Croup's
contractual exposure

The Group complies with all the standards relevant to consumer protection and formal requirements inrespect of package tour contracts
and has all the necessary licences for the various sales markets The customers' right to reimbursement of the return travel costs and
amounis paid in case of Insolvency or bankrupfcy on the part of the tour operator or travel agency Is guaranteed In all Thomas Cook sales
markets in [ine with local legislation and within the vanous guarantee systems applied In the United Kingdom, there 1s a fund mechanism
whereby travel companies are required to collect and remit a small charge for each protected customer upon booking Customer rights
in relation to Thomas Cook Group in Germany, Belgium and Austria are guaranteed via an insolvency insurance system, in freland,
Scandinavia and France via guarantees provided by banks and insurance companies, and in the Netherlands via a guaranteed fund

34 Share-based payments
The Company operates five equity-settled share-based payment schemes, as outlined below The total charge recognised during the year
in respect of equity-settled share based payment transactions was £7 9m {2012 £2 Om charge)

The Thomas Cook Group plc 2007 Performance Share Plan (PSP) and the HM Revenue & Customs Approved Company Share
Option Sub-Plan (CSOSP)

Executive Directors and senior execuhives of the Company and its subsidiaries are granted options to acquire, or contingent share awards
of, the ordinary shares of the Company The awards will vest if performance targets including adjusted earnings per share (EPS), total
shareholder return (TSR) and the Company s share price are met during the 3 years following the date of grant Subject to vesting
conditions, the ophions are exercisable up to 10 years after the date of grant

The Thomas Cook Group plc 2008 Co-Investment Plan (COIP)

Executive Directors and senior execufives may be required to purchase the Company s shares using a proportion of their net bonus
(Lodged Shares) For each Lodged Share purchased participants may receive up to 3 5 Matching Shares if performance targets for
EPS, return on invested capital (ROIC), TSR and the Company's share price are met during the 3 years following the date of grant
Subject to vesting conditions, the options or contingent share awards are exercisable up to 10 years after the date of grant
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34 Share-based payments confinued
The Thomas Cook Group pic 2008 Save As You Earn Scheme (SAYE)
Eligible employees across the Group were offered options to purchase shares in the Campany by entering into a three or four year savings

contract The option exercise price was set ata 10% (2010 grant) or 20% (2008 grant) discount to the market price at the offer date
Options are exercisable during the six months after the end of the savings contract

The Thomas Cook Group plc 2008 HM Revenue & Customs Approved Buy As You Earn Scheme (BAYE)
Eligible UK tax-paying employees are offered the opportunity to purchase shares in the Company by deduchion from their monthly gross
pay For every ter shares an employee buys in this way the Company will purchase one matching share on therr behalf

The Thomas Cook Group plc Restricted Share Plan (RSP)

Senior executves of the Company and its subsidianies are granted opfions to acquire, or contingent share awards of, the ordinary shares
ofthe Company Executive Directors are excluded from receiving awards under the RSP The Company will determine at the date of award
whether the award will be subject to a performance target and the date of veshing Subject to any vesting candimoens, the options or
contingent share awards are exercisable up to ten years after the date of grant

The moverments in options and awards during the year and prior year were

213

PSP coiP SAYE CS05P RSP
Qutstanding at beginning of year 26,561,228 535344824 2,278,404 212,968 159,538
Granted 10,791,150 - - - 895,809
Exercised (164,107) - (u3,441) - (39,201)
Lapsed - - {115,405) - -
Cancelled - (1,955,356) (L497,447) - -
Forfeited (8,164,900) (1,233,669) (57,864) (136,908) (246,969)
Rights issue adjustment 2,875,791 331,033 260,268 11,680 271,948
Outstanding at end of year 31,899,162 2 486,832 1,824,515 87,740 1,041,125
Exercisable at end of year 100,682 - 1,799,299 - 82,805
Exercise price (E) nil ml  157-215 197 nil
Average remaining contractual life (years) 87 77 03 73 g5

The wetghted average share price at the date of exercise for the options exercised duning the year ended 30 September 2013 was £1 45

2012

PSP o SAYE 505P RSP
Quistanding at beginning of year 17480878 5991751 5,608,535 774,594 513 304
Granted 18,157 456 2,332514 - - -
Exercsed -~ - — - (326 443)
Cancelled - (553,763) (3,206,060) - -
Forfeted (9,077,106) (2,425,678) (124071} (561.626) (27.323)
Outstanding at end of year 26,561,228 5344824 2278404 212,968 159,538
Exercisable at end of year 174,233 - — - 159,538
Exercise price (£) nl il 181-188 197 nil
Average remaining contractual iife {years) g2 87 13 83 85

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for the options exercised during the year ended 30 Sepfember 2012 was £0 17
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34 Share-based payments continued

The fair value of options and awards subject to adjusted EPS and ROIC performance targets was determined by the use of Black-Scholes
models and the farr value of ophions subject to TSR perfarmance targets was determined by the use of Monte Carto simulations

For options and awards granted dunng the year the key inputs fo the models were

2013

PSP corP RSP

Weighted average share price at measurement date E107 - £1.47
Weighted average exercise price nil - nil
Expected volatiity 50% - 50%
Weighted average optton life {years) 3 - 3
Weighted average nsk-free rate 09% ~ 07%
Expected dvidend yield nil - nil
Weighted average far value at date of grant £0 45 - £0 66
2012

PSP cop RSP

Weighted average share price at measurement date £017 f017 -
Weighted average exercise price nil ni! -
Expected volatility 50% 50% -
Weighted average option life {years) 3 3 -
Weighted average nisk-free rate 03% 0 4% -
Expected dvidend yield 0% 0% -
Weyghted average fair value at date of grant £005 £004 -

Expected volahlity has been based on the historic volatility of the Company’s shares and the shares of other companies in the same or
related sectors

35 Retwrement benefit schemes

Pension schemes for the employees of the Thomas Cook Group consist of defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans, with
the defined benefit pfans being both funded and unfunded The cbligations ansing from defined contribution plans are satisfied by
confribution payments to both private and state-run insurance providers

Unfunded defined benefit pension obligations

unfunded defined benefit pension obligations primarnly relate to the Group's employees in the German businesses of Thomas Cook AG
and the Condor Group Provisions are established on the basis of commitments made to those employees for old age and transitional
pensions based on the legal, tax and economic arcumstances of the Individual countries and on the period of employrment and level

of remuneration of the respective employees

Provisions for pensions and similar obhgations fotaling £251 9m (2012 £212 9m) were attributable to the pension commitments of the
Candor Group (Condor Flugdienst GrbH, Condor Berfin GmbH and CF GmbH) For employees who joined a Condor Group company prior
to 1995 the total pension commitrment of the pensians authonty of the German federal government and regional states was adjusted
and maintained in the form of a company pension scheme The flight crews were additionally enhitled to a transitional prowision for the
penod between the termination of therr in-flight employment and the time they became eligible for a state-run or company pension

In both cases, the benefit commitment depended on the final salaries of the employees concerned prior to the termination of their
in-flight employment (final salary plan) Employees who joined a Condor Group company from 1995 onwards parhicipate in a company
pension scheme under which the pension entitiements are based on the average salaries of those employees (average safary plan)

The Condor Group also has retirement obligations ansing from individual commitments and transitional provisions In accordance with

145 19 all these commutments are classified as unfunded defined benefit abligations and classified as such inthese financal statements
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35 Retirement benefit schemes continued
The Condor Group defined benefit plans have been closed to new entrants (with the exception of pilots} since 2004

There are addiional unfunded defined benefit oblrgations comprising indvidual commitments to executive staff at Thomas Cook Group
and obligations inrespect of past service for employees in the Northern Europe and West Europe segments

The unfunded pension schemes are accounted for as part of liabilities for retirement benefit obligations in the balance sheet
The following weighted average actuarial assumptions were rmade for the purpose of determining the unfunded defined benefit
obligations

2013 2

%

Discount rate for scheme liabilibes 375% 414%
Expected rate of salary increases 262% _ 258%
Future pension Increases 1 42% 151%

The mortality tables 2005 G drawn up by Prof Dr Klaus Heubeck were used as the basis for the mortality assumptions used in arriving at
the present value of the pension obligations at 30 Septernber 2013 These assume a life expectancy for members currently aged 65 of
19 years for men and 23 years for wornen

Amounts recogrused in the income statement In respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows

2013 2012

£m £m
Current senace cost 106 85
Past service cost 12 -
Gain on settlements (2 3) (2 0)
Curtallment gain (10) (0 3)
Interest cost on scherne habilities 114 109
Totalincluded in the income statement 199 171

Service costs gains on settlement and curtailment gains have been included in personnel expenses In the income statement and the
unwinding of the discount rate of the expected retirement benefit obhigations has been included in finance costs Actuanal gans and
losses have been reported in the statement of comprehensive iIncome

Changes in the present value of unfunded pension obligations were as follows

2013 2012
£ £m
At beginning of year 2335 2278
Current senvice cost 106 85
Past service cost 12 -
Interest cost 114 109
Benehts paid (6 8) (61)
Settlernents (49) (72)
Cuntallments (10) (03)
Actuanal losses 197 371
Exchange difference 121 (17 2)
At end of year 2958 2535
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35 Retirement benefit schemes continued

Funded defined benefit pension obligations

The pension enfitlernents of employees of Thomas Cook UK and employees in Norway and the Netherlands are prowided through funded
defined benefit schemes where pension confributions are paid over o the schemes and the assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of frustees Pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of qualified
actuanes in each country The fair value of the pension assets in each scheme at the year end 1s compared with the present value of

the retirernent benefit obligations and the net difference reparted as a pension asset or reirement benefit abligation as appropriate
Pension assets are only recognised to the extent that they will result in reimbursements being made or future payments being reduced

Funded defined benefit pension obligations have been determined on the basis of assumphons relevant to each country The werghted
averages of these were

2013 2012

%
Discount rate for schemne liabilities 441%  L32%
Inflation rare 314%  266%
Expected return on scheme assets 503% 549%
Expected rate of salary increases 002% 018%
Future pension Increases 025% 042%

The Thomas Cook UK Pension Plan accounts for approximately 2% (2012 86%) of the total funded defined benefit obligations The
mortality assumptions used in armving af the present value of those obligations at 30 September 201 3 are based on the PMAS2/PFA92
tables with rmedwm cohort improvernents and a mummum futuce longevity iImprovement per year of 1% adjusted for recent mortality
experience The mortality assumptions adopted for the plan abilities indrcate a further life expectancy for members currently aged 65
of 23 2 years for men and 25 2 years for wormen

On 31 March 2011, the UK defined benefit schemes closed to all active members who were given the option of joining Thomas Cook s
defined contribution scheme The closure of the schemes resufted In a cessation of future pension benefit accrual and a consequent
curtallment gain of £25 8m, which was recognised in the incorne statement for the year ended 30 September 2011

Amounts recogrised in the Income statement n respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows

2013 2012
£m £m
Current service cost 33 23
Expected return on scheme assets (41 2) (414)
Interest cost on schermne habilines 388 437
Total loss Included in the income statement 09 Lo

Service costs and curtallment gains bave been induded in personnel expenses in the income statement and the unwinding of the discount
rate of the expected refirement benefit obligations has been included in finance costs The expected return on scheme assets has been
included in finance Income

The actual seturn onscheme assetswas £76 3m (2012 £63 9m)

Actuanal gains and losses have been reported in the statement of comprehensive iIncome




35 Retirement benefit schemes continued

Changes in the present value of funded defined benefit obligations were as follows
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20£‘I§ 20£'| 2
At beginming of year 888 2 8465
Current service cost 33 23
Interest cost 388 437
Benefits paid {235) (198)
Disposal of businesses - (2
Expenses paid 27) (2 4)
Contrbutions paid by plan parhicipants 03 02
Actuanial losses 925 211
Exchange difference 13 (22}
At end of year 998 2 8882
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows
2013 2012
Em im
At beginning of year 8109 7433
Expected return on scheme assefs 412 414
Contributions from the sponsoring companies 280 287
Contributions paid by plan participants 03 02
Actuanial gains 350 225
Benefits paid (235) (198)
Disposal of businesses — {11}
Expenses paid 27) (2 1)
Exchange difference 04 (19
At end of year 889 6 8109

Foliowing the 2008 actuanal valuahon of the Thomas Cook UK pension plan a 6 year Recovery Plan was agreed with the pension trustees
1o fund the actuanal deficit In line with that agreement, Thomas Cook UK committed to make additional quarterly payments totalling
£105 6m through to June 2014 Dunng the year ended 30 September 2013 Thomas Cook UK paid four instalments totalling £26m n line

with the recovery plan
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Transformation the first 365 days

Notes to the financial statements continued

35 Retirement benefit schemes continued
The fair value of scheme assets at the balance sheet date 15 analysed as follows

3013 2012
Long termrate Long termrate
of retum 2013 of refumn 2mz2
% £m % Em
Equities 7 0% 293 4 6 6% 3193
Property 5 4% 809 49% 810
Fixed interest gilts 3 9% 278 3 31% 2251
Hedge funds 7 0% 190 9 6 6% 1439
Other 6 8% 46 1 5 6% 416
At end of year 889 6 8109

The scheme assets do not include any of the Group s own financial Instruments nor any property occupied by, or other assets used by,
the Group

The expected rates of return on scheme assets have been calculated as the weighted average rate of return on each asset class The return
on each assef class 1s taken as the market rate of return

The amount included in the balance sheet anising from the Group's obligations in respect of its defined benefit pension schemes 1s
as follows

2013 2012
£m Em
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations 998 2 8882
Fair value of scheme assets (8896) (8109
Deficit on funded retirement benefit obligations 108 6 773
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligations 2958 2535
Scheme deficits recognised in the balance sheet L04 4 3308
This amount 1s presented as follows
Cursrent hiabilities 13 68
Non current liabilities L4031 3240
404 4 3308

The cumulative net actuanal losses recognised In the statement of comprehensive income af 30 Septernber 2013 were £435 8m
(2012 £358 6m)

The history of the experience gains and losses of the schemes is as follows

w013 012 2011 2010 2009

fm Em Em Em £m
Present value of defined benefit obligatians 1,294 0 11417 10743 11179 993 (0
Fair value of scheme assats (889 6) (3109) {743 3) {703 &) {6219)
Scheme deficits 404 4 3308 3310 4145 3711
Experience adjustments on scheme habilities {(31) 191 (9 4) (10 1) (77)
Experience adjustments on scheme assets (34 9) 222 (24 1) 276 {(137)

Defined contnibution schemes

There are a number of defined contribution schemes in the Group, the principal scheme being the Thomas Cook UK DC Pension Schemne,
which 1s open to all UK employees The total charge for the year i respect of this and other defined contribution schemes, including
liabilities in respect of Insured benefits relanng to workers” compensation arrangements amounted to £36 7m (2012 £29 4m)

The assets of these schemnes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees
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36 Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are
not disclosed in this note Transactions between the Group and its associates and joint venture undertakings are disclosed below
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries and associates are disclosed in the Cornpany's separate financial statements

Trading transactions
During the year, Group companies entered info the following transactions with related parties who are not members of the Group

Associates jont venfure
and parhcipations*

2013 2012

£m fm

Sale of goods and services 133 421
Purchases of goods and services (115) (229
Otherincome 22 16
Interest recevable 02 03
Amounts owed by related parties** 48 232
Provisions against amounts owed 2n {(39)
Amounts owed to related parties (2 6) 32

* Parficipaticns are equity investments where the Group has a significant equity participation but which are not considered to be associates or joint ventures

** Amounts cwed by related parties n 2012 included £11 8m which was reported as part of the investrmentin Thomas Cook Personal Finance During the year the group
disposed of its investment in Thornas Cook Personal Finance

All transactions are considered to have been made at market prices Outstanding amounts will normally be settled by cash payment

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group, 1s set out below In aggregate for each of the
categones specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures Further informahion about the remuneration of indwvidual Directars 1s provided
inthe audited part of the Remuneration report on pages 78 to 82 and 85 to 87

2013 2012
£m Em

Short term employee benefits 53 33
Share hased payments 01 —
54 33

The short-term employee benefits figure Includes employer social security payments which are excluded from the Directors’
Remuneration Report

37 Subsequent events
Subsequent to the balance sheet date and the approval of this financial information a number of events occurred that require disclosure

Disposal of Egypt and Lebanon

On 7 October 2013 the Group announced it had sold 100% of Thomas Cook Egypt and Thomas Cook Lebanon to Yusuf Bin Ahmed Kanoo
(Holdings) Co WLL of Bahrain for a cash consideration of £6 5m At the balance sheet date the assets and labilihies have been classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS

Disposal of UK Corporate Foreign Exchange
On 18 Novemnber 2013 the Group announced it had sotd s UK Fareign Exchange business Thomas Cook CFX Ltd to Moneycorp for
a cash consideration of £4 5m

Disposal of interest in the Airline Group (NATS)
On 19 November 2013 the Group announced it had agreed tosell 91 5% of its shareholding and loan note interests in The Arrline Group
Limited The cash consideration 1s £38m

Disposal of Nerlson Active Holdays Ltd
On 25 November 2013 the Group announced it had agreed to sell Neilson Active Holidays Ltd for a consideration of £9 15m
The transactions are expected to complete in December
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Transformation the first 365 days

Company balance sheet

At 30 September 2013
30 5eptember 30 Sepiember
2013 2012
notes £m £m

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 32 16
Investments in subsidianes 2,167 4 20547
Trade and other receivables 8 627 9 5619

2,798 5 26182

o

~-J

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 8 10521 1,0609

Cash and cash equivalents 9 L6 3 261
1,098 4 10870

Total assets 3,896 9 3,7052

Current habilities

Trade and other payables 10 (173 3) (408 1)

Short term provisions 12 (07) {(20)

(1740)  (4101)

Non-current habilities

Borrowings 13 {(6290) (6115)
Totatliabilihes (8030) (10216)
Net assets 3,093 9 2,6836
Equity

Called-up share capstal 14 68 4 600
Share premium account L343 292
Merger reserve 1,429 0 14290
Hedging and translation reserves 7690 6497
Capital redemption reserve 85 85
Retained earnings surplus 4142 5206
Investrnent In own shares (29 5) (13 4)
Total equity 3,0939 26836

The financial statements on pages 148 fo 157 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 November 2013
Signed on behalf of the Board

Michael Healy
Group Chief Financial Gfficer

Notes 1 ta 19 form part of these financial statements




Company cash flow statement

For the year ended 30 September 2013
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Year ended Year ended
30September 30 September
2013 2012

£m £m

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before fax

(112 1) (87 2)

Adjustments for

Interest received (05) (22}
Interest paid 49 4 615

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 03 02

Loss on disposal of assets - 06

Share based payments 22 -

{Decrease)/Increase In provisions (13) 20

(Increase)/decrease in receivables (55 8) 804

(Decrease)/increase in payables (226 0) 650

Net cash used in operating achvihies

(3438) 1203

Investing activities

Addition of fixed assets (1 6) -
Net cash from investing achvities {16) -
Financing achivihies

Inflow from borrowngs 176 -
Interest paid {49 4) (615}
Dwvidends paid - (327)
Share 1ssue 84 -
Net share premium on 1ssue of shares 405 1 -
Investment in own shares {16 1) -
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 3656 (94 2)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 202 261
Cash and cash equivalents at beginming of year 261 -
Effect of fareign exchange rate changes - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 463 261
Liquid assets - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 46 3 261
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Transformation the first 365 days

Company statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 30 September 2013

Share Share Merger rederﬁ;?:z;: Translahion Retained Own
capital prermium reserve reserve reserve famings shares Total
Em £m fm fm fm £m £tm £m
At 1 October 2011 592 292 15880 85 8887 Li6 8 (133) 30071
Loss for the year - - - - - (872) - {87 2)
Other comprehensive expense — - - —- (2390} - - {239Q)
Total comprehensive expense for the year - — - - (235900 (872 - (3262)
Equity detut in respect of share-based payments - - - — - 20 - 20
Issue of equity shares net of expenses 08 - - - - - - 08
Release of merger reserve - - {1590) - — 159 0 - -
Purchase of own shares - - - - - - {01) (0 1)
At 30 September 2012 600 292 14290 85 649 7 5206 (134) 26836
Loss for the year — - — — - (1121) - (1121)
Other comprehensive expense — — - - 1193 - - 1193
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - - 1193 (1121) - 72
Equity credit In respect of share-based payments - — - - - 57 - 57
Issue of shares-exercise of warrants 84 - - - - — - 84
Share Premium - 4051 - - - - - 4051
Purchase of own shares - - - - - - (161) (161)
At 30 September 2013 684 4343 1,4290 85 7690 4142 (295) 3,0939

The statement of changes in equity and Company cash flow staternent for the year ended 30 Septernber 2012 have been re presented to in¢lude dvidends receved and Group
relief not at the standard rate of UK tax withun the loss for the year This has na effect upon opening or closing retained earrings for the year

The merger reserve arose on the 1ssue of shares of the Company in connection with the acquisimon of the entire share capital of
Thomas Cook AG and MyTravel Group plc on 19 June 2007 and represents the difference between the nominal value and the fair value
of the shares acguired Following the impairment of fhe Cornpany’s investrment in subsidianes in the pnor year, the Company has in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006, relieved part of the impairment loss through a fransfer from the merger reserve to retained
earmings of £159 Om

The share premium arase in connechion with the 1ssue of ordinary shares of the Company following the exercise of MyTravel executive
share aptions

At 30 September 2013 the Company had distributable reserves of £414 2m (2012 £520 6m)

Details of the own shares held are set out in note 29 to the Group financial statements
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Accounting policies
The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Company financial statements are the same as those set outin note 2 to the
Group financial statements with the addition of the following

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are stated af cost less prowision for impairment

These policies have been applied consistently to the penods presented

The functional currency of the Company is Euro, however the Directors have decided to adopt Sterling as the presentational currency to
bein line with the consolidated accounts

2 Loss for the year
As permitted by sechion 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected not to present its own Income statement for the
year The loss after tax of the Company amounted to £112 1m (2012 £87 2m loss after tax)

The auditors’ remuneration for audit services to the Company was £0 5m (2012 £0 4my)

3 Personnel expenses

2013 2012

£m £m

Wages and salaries 227 211
Social secunty costs 23 13
Share based payments 22 -
272 224

2013 2012

Number Number

Average number of employees of the Company during the year 110 109

Employees are based in the United Kingdom and Germany

Disclosures of indwidual Directors’ remuneration, share options, long-term incentive schemes, pension contributiens and pension
entitlements required by the Companies Act 2006 and specified for audit by the Financial Services Authority are on pages 78 t0 82 and
85 to 87 within the Remuneration report and form part of these audited accounts

The employees of the Company are members of the Group pension schemes as detailed in note 35 of the Group financial statemenits

4 Tax

At the balance sheer date the Company had unused tax losses of £139 0m {2012 £37 5m) and other deductible short term temporary
differences of £4 2m (2012 £9 Om) avaitable for offset aganst future profits No deferred fax asset has been recogrised in respect of
unused tax losses and other deductible short term timing differences

5 Dividends

The details of the Comnpany s dwidend are disclosed in note 11 to the Group financial statements

Let,
go:!

Strategicreport =2

Directors report NJ

Financial staternents (A




1 5 2 Thomas Cook Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2013

Transformation the first 365 days

Notes to the Company financial statements continued

6 Property, plant and equipment

Other fixed assets £rn
Cost
At 1 October 2011 30
Disposals {06)
Exchange differences {02)
At 30 September 2012 22
Additions 16
Exchange differences 03
At 30 September 2013 i1
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 Qctober 2011 G4
Charge for the year 02
At 30 Septernber 2012 06
Charge for the year 03
At 30 September 2013 09
Carrying amount at 30 September 2013 32
Carrying amount at 30 Septernber 2012 16
7 Investment in subsidiaries
Em
Cost and net book value
At 1 October 2011 2,61938
Adjustment in respect of share-based payments 18
Imparment (367 0)
Exchange difference (1999)
At 30 September 2012 20547
Adjustment in respect of share based paymants 57
Additons 60
Exchange difference 1010
At 30 September 2013 2,167 4
Alist of the Company's principal subsidiary undertakings 1s shown 1n nofe 19 to the financal statements
The additions in the current year relate to the investment in Thomas Cook Finance plc (£6 Om) Adjustment in respect of share based
payment charge related to subsidiaries' employees was £5 7m (2012 £1 8m)
During the year the Company did not recognise any impairment loss in relation to its investments in substdianes (2012 £367 0m)
8 Trade and other recevables
2013 12
£m £m
Current
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 995 2 1,013 2
Other recevables 07 38
Deposits and prepayments 562 439
1,052 t 1,060 9
Non-current
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 6251 5589
Deposits and prepayments 28 30
627 9 5619

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand The average interest on overdue amounts owed by subsidiary

undertakings 1s 0 4% (2012 0 49%) The Directors consider the fair value to be equal to the book value




9 Cash and cash equivalents
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2013 M2
fm Em
Cash at bank and in hand L6 3 261
h6 3 261
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of balances which are considered to be restricted £46 2m {2012 £26 1m)1s held within escrow
accounts in Denmark and Norway in respect of local regulatory requirements The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of these
assets approximate therr far value
10 Trade and other payables
2013 2012
Em £m
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 1213 3689
Social secunty and other taxes 29 17
Other payables 211 197
Accruals 280 178

1733 4081

The average interest on overdue amounts owed to subsidiary undertakingsis 1 1% (2012 0 7%)
Amounts owing to subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand The Directors consider the fair value to be equal to the book value

11 Financial instruments

The Company s financial instruments comprise mvestment 1n subsidiary undertakings, amounts due to/from subsidiary undertakings
cash and cash equivalents, and other payables and receivables The Company s approach to the management of financtal nisks 1s
discussed on pages 30 and 31 The Company believes the value of its financial assefs to be fully recoverable

The carrying value of the Company s financial instruments 1s exposed fo movements in foreign currency exchange rates (pnmarily Sterling)
The Company estimates that a 5% strengthening in Sterling would increase loss before tax by £20 2m (2012 increase loss before tax by
£26 6m), while a 5% weakening in Sterling would decrease loss before tax by £20 2m (2012 decrease loss before tax by £26 6m)

The carrying value of the Company s financial nstruments 1s exposed to movernents ininterest rates The Company eshmates that a
0 5% increase In Interest rates would increase loss before tax by £1 1m (2012 0 5% increase in interest rates Increase loss before fax
by £0 1m), while a O 5% decrease in interest rates would decrease loss before taxby £1 1m (2012 0 5% decrease in interest rates
decrease loss before tax by £0 1m)

Carrying value of financial assets and labilities
The carrying values of the Group's financial assets and habihties as at 30 September 2013 and 30 September 2012 are set out below

Total other Financial
Total other financal Loans & Availabte for Tiabillties at
financial assets Uabilities receivables sale  amoriised cost Total
At 30 September 2013 £m Em Em £m Em £m
Non-current asset (nvestments 2,167 4 — - - - 2,167 4
Trade and other recevables 1,6800 - - - - 16800
Cash and cash equivalents 46 3 - - - - 463
Trade and other payables - {373 3) - - - (1733
Barrowings - - - - (6290) (6290)
Provisions ansing from contractual cbligations - 07) - - - o7
38937 (1740) - - (6290) 3,0907
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Transformation the first 365 days

Notes to the Company financal statements continued

11 Financial instruments continued

Total other Financial
Total other finanaial Loans & habilities at
At 30 Sepfernber 2012 finangial assie-rtrs| habm;l: rec&vabéer: Avallable for sga: amortised cgrs; Tui'::
Non current assef investments 20547 - -~ — - 20547
Trade and other recewables 16228 - - - - 16228
Cash and cash equivalents 261 - - - - 261
Trade and other payables ~ (408 1) - - - (L08 1)
Borrowings - - - - (6115) (6115)
Provisions ansing from contractual obhgations - (20) - — - (20)
37036 Wwomn — - {6115} 26820

Financiai habilines are analysed below based on the time between the year end and their contractual maturity The amounts shown are
estimates of the undiscounted future cash flows and will differ from both carrying value and fair value Any cash flows based on a floating

rate are calculated using Interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset

Amount due
Inless than Between3and Between1and
I months 12 months Syears
At 30 September 2013 Em £m £m £m
Trade and other payables (225) (1279 - {150 4)
Borrowings — {459) (7351) (781 0)
Pravisions ansing from contractual obligations - {07) - (07)
(225) {(1745) (7351) (932 1)
Amount due
Inlessthan  between3and  hetween1and
2 man Syear al
At 30 September 2012 3m°ng'-: 1 Eﬁ e TDE'm'
Trade and other payables (15 4) (368 3) - (383 7)
Borrowings - (La gy  (7629) (8077
Provisions arising from contfractual obligations - (13 {07) {2 0)
(15 4) (L4 L) {7636) (1193 4)
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12 Provisions

2013 2012

£m £m
At 1 October (20) -
Additional provisionin the year (07) 20}
Release of provision 20 -
At 30 Septemnber (07) (2 Q)

Prowsions relate o provisions for severance costs

13 Borrowings

Borrowings comprise a €400m bond issued with an annual coupan of 6 75% maturing in June 2015 and a £300m bond with an annual
coupon of 7 75% maturing in june 2017

14 Called-up share capital

The detalls of the Company's share capital are the same as those of the Group, and are disclosed in note 29 to the Group financial
statements in this report

Details of share options granted by the Company are set out in note 34 to the Croup financial statements

15 Operating lease arrangements
At the halance sheet date, the Company had outstanding commitments for future rmimimum lease payments related to property,
under non-cancellable operahing leases which fall due as foliows

2013 2012

£m £m

Withuin one year 03 Qs
Larer than one year and less than five years 12 24
After five years 15 07
30 37

16 Contingent liabilities

At 30 September 2013 the Company had contingent kabilities in respect of counter-guarantees for bank funding, lefters of credir and
guaranfees of amounts owed by subsidianes amounting to £854 1m (2012 £707 5m) This predominately relates to a guarantee on the
drawndown porfion of the Group banking faciny (detaled in note 20 fo the Group financial staternents)

Also included are guarantees related to arcraft finance lease commitments, eshmated based on the current book value of the finance
lease labilities of £209 7m (2012 £249 9m)

The Company complies with ali the standards relevant to consumner protecion and formal requirements in respect of package tour
contracts and has all the necessary hcences Inthe UK the customer’s right to reimbursement of the return travel costs and amounts paid
in case of Insolvency or bankruptcy on the part of the tour operator or travel agency s guaranteed in line with legislation in the UK via a
fund mechanism whereby travel companies are required to collect and remit a small charge for each protected customer upon booking

ety
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Transformation the first 365 days

Notes to the Company financial statements continued

17 Related party transactions

Subsidiaries

The Company fransacts and has outstanding balances with its subsicharies The Company enters into loans with its subsidianes, at both
fixed and floating rates of interest, on a commercial basis Hence, the Company incurs inferest expense and earns iferest Income on
these loans The Company also recerved dwvidend income from its subsidianes during the year

2013 2012
£m £m
Transachions with subsidiaries
Interest recevable 05 22
Interest payable (14) {40)
Management fees and other expenses 15 8 127
Dwidend income recewved 412 2928
Year-end balances ansing on transachions with subsidiaties
Loansreceivable 8699 8353
Interest receivable 04 06
Otherrecevables 1249 1773
Loans payable {716) (3225)
Other payables {502) {46 b)

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company, 15 set out in note 36 of the Group
financial statements

18 Share-based payments

The employees of the Company, including the Directors collechvely participate 1n all of the Group s equity-settled share based payment
schemes The detalls relating to these schemes in respect of the Company are rdentical to those disclosed in note 34 to the Group financial
staternents and have therefore not been re presented here

The share based payment charge of £2 2m (2012 nil) 1s stated net of amounts recharged to subsidiary undertakings




19 Principal subsidianes
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Country of Proporhon Praportion
ncarporation held by held by
andoperation  Nature of the business Company (%) Group (%)
Direct subsidharnes
Thornas Cook Investments (2} Limited England  Holding Company 100 100
Thomas Cook AG Germany  Holding Company 100 100
Thomas Cook Finance plc England  Financing Company 100 100
Indirect subsidiaries
UK
Thomas Cook Airlines Limited England  Airline 100
Thomas Cook Retail Limited England  Travel Agent 100
Thomas Cook Scheduled Tour Operations Limnited England  Tour Operator 100
Thomas Cook Tour Operations Limited England  Tour Operator 100
Thomas Cook UK Limited England  Tour Operator 100
TCCT Retail Limited England  Tour Operator 100
Nellson Active Holidays Limited™ England  Tour Operator 100
Continental Europe
Bucher Reisen GmbH Cermany  Tour Operator 100
TC Tounistik GrbH Germany  Tour Operator 500023
Thornas Cook Arrlines Belgium NV Belgium  Aurline 100
Thomas Cook Belgiurm NV Belgium  Tour Operator 100
Thomas Cook SAS France Tour Operator and Travel Agent 100
Thomas Cook Austria AG Austria Tour Operator 100
Neckermann Polska Biuro Podrozy spz o o Poland Tour Operator 100
Northern Europe
Thomas Cook Arrlines Scandinavia A/$ Denmark  Arrline 100
Thornas Cook Northern Europe AB Sweden  Infermediate Holding Company 100
North America
Thomas Cock Canada Inc ** Canada Tour Operator 100
Awrlines Germany
Condor Berin GmbH*** Germany  Airline 500023
Condor Flugdienst GmbH*** Germany  Airline 500023
Corporate
Thomas Cook Group Treasury Limited England  Financing Company 100

The Company has taken advantage of the exernption under Section 410 of the Companies Act 2006 by providing infermation only in
relation to subsidiary undertakings whose results or financial pasition, in the opinion of the Direciors pnincipally affected the financal
staternents A full list of subsidianes will be sent to Companies House with the next annual return

* As explained in note 37 to the Group accounts on 25 November 2013 the Group annaunced it had agreed ta sell Neilson Active Holidays Limitedt (15 results for the year end
30 Septernber 2013 have been included within the Group Income Statement and tis assets and labihities have been classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5

** As explained in nate 16 to the Group accounts on 1 May 2013 the Group sold Thomas Caok Canada Inc In accordance with IFRS the results of the North America business

have been included as discontinued aperatons

*** All nsks and rewards continue to be held by the Group and in accordance with accounhing standards the entity has been treated as being 100% controlled and fully

consoldated by the Group
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Shareholder information

Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’)

The AGM will be held at 1% Floor North Bullding 200 Aidersgate,
St Pauls, London EC1A 4HD on Thursday 20 February 2014 at

10 30am The last date for AGM proxy votes to be receved by the
Registrar 1s Tuesday 18 February 2014

All shareholders can submit their proxy vote for the AGM
efectronically at www sharevate co uk Toregister their vote,
shareholders will need the numbers detailed on their form of proxy

Alternatively, shareholders who have already registered with
Shareview can submit their proxy vote by logging on to

www shareview co uk and clicking on the link to vote underneath
their Thomas Cock Group plc holding

Share register and shareholder enquiries
The Company’s share regster is mamntained by Equiniti Queries
relating to Thomas Cook Group plc shares should be addressed to

The Registrar

Equiniti

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex BN99 6DA

Tel 08713842154+

(International telephone number «44 (0)121 4150182)

* Calls to this number cost 8p per minute plus network extras Lines are open 8 30am
to 5 30pm {London ime) Monday te Fnday {excluding UK public holidays)
Shareholders should quote the Company reference number 3174
and therr shareholder reference number (which can be found on
their share certificates), when contacting the Registrar

Shareview

To be able to access information about their shares and ather
investments online shareholders can register with Shareview
{www shareview co Uk) Registration is free shareholders will
need their shareholder reference number which i1s shown on their
form of proxy and share cerhificate By regstening for this service
sharehalders will

» help reduce paper print and postage costs,

» help the environment

» be able to subrmit their quenes by email and

» be able fo manage their shareholding easily and securely online

Once registered whenever shareholder documents are available,
shareholders will be sent a link to the approprate website, where
the documents wili be available to view or download Recewing

documents online does not affect shareholders’ nghts in any way

Website

The Company's corporate website www thomascookgroup com,

provides information including

» news updates press refeases and regulatory announcements,

> investor Infermation, including the Annual Report, financal
results, financial calendar and share price snformation,

> details of shareholder meetings and poll results

» biographies of the Board of Directors

> the Company s Arficles of Association, the terms of reference for
the Committees of the Board and the Board Appointments Policy
and

> sustainability reporting

Multiple accounts on the share register

If a shareholder receives two or more sets of the documents
concerning the AGM this means that there s more than one
account in their name on the sharehoider register, perhaps
because either the name or the address appears on each account
in a shghtly different way For secunty reasons, Equinity will not
amalgamate the accounts without the shareholder’s written
consent Therefore, if a shareholder would like their multiple
accounts to be combined, they should write o Equiniti at the
address above detaiing the different shareholder reference
numbers and request that they be combined tnto one account

Electronic communications

At the AGM on 10 April 2008, the Company passed a resolution

allowing the Company’s corporate website to be used as

the primary means of communication with its shareholders

A consultation card was sent to shareholders enabling them

to choose either to

» recelve nofification oy email when shareholder documentation
I1s available on the website, or

» continue fo receive shareholder documentation in hard copy

Shareholders who did not respond were deemed, in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006 to have agreed to receive
shareholder documentation via the Company s corporate website
These arrangements for electronic shareholder communications
provide shareholders with the opportunity ta access information
in a timely manner and help the Company to reduce both its costs
and its environmental impact




Dividends

Information on recent dividend payments is detailed below
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final dwvidendfor the  intenm drndend for 1he Fmal dmdend for the  Intenm dmidend for the

financial year ended finanaial year ended finanaal year ended financral year ended

Name 30 September 2009 30 September 2010 30 September 2010 30 Septernber 2011
Amount per share 700p 375 7 00p 375p
Record date 19 March 10 Septemnber 18 March 9 September
2010 2010 2011 2011

Payment date 8 April 8 October 7 Aprit 7 October
2010 2010 2011 2011

No further dividends have been paid or declared since the intenm dividend for the financial year ended 30 September 2011, paid on

7 Octeber 2011

Thomas Cook AG/MyTravel Group plc merger
Thomas Cook Group plc was formed in June 2007 upon the merger
of Thomas Cook AG and MyTravel Group plc

MyTravel Group plc shareholders received one Thomas Cook
Group plc ordinary share for every one MyTravel Group plc share
previgusly held MyTravel Group plc share certificates are no longer
valid and can be destroyed Replacement Thomas Cook Group plc
share cerfificates were senf fo sharehelders whoheld sharesin
certificated form on or around 19 June 2007 If you have any
queries relating to this, please contact the Registrar

Warning fo shareholders about share fraud
Fraudsters use persuasive and high pressure tactics to lure investors
nto scams

They may offer to sell shares that turn out to be worthless or
non existent or to buy shares at aninflated price in return for
an upfront payment

While high profits are promised, if you buy or sell shares in this way
you will probably lose your money

5,000 people contact the Financial Conduct Authonty about share
fraud each year with vichmslosing an average of £20,000

How to avoid share fraud

Ifyou are offered unsolicited investment advice discounted

shares, a premium price for shares you own, or free company

or research reporis, you should take these steps before handing

over any money
Keep in mind that firms authonsed by the FCA are unlikely to
contact you out of the blue with an offer to buy or sell shares

2 Donotgetinto a conversation, note the name of the person
and firm contachng you and then end the call

3 Check the Financial Services Register from www fca org uk
to see If the person and firm contacting you 1s authorised
by the FCA

4 Beware of fraudsters cfaiming to be from an authorised firm,
copying its website or giving you false contact defails

5 Usethe firm’s contact details histed on the Register if you want
fo call it back

6 Callthe FCAon 0800 111 6768 if the firm does not have
contact details on the Register or you are told they are out
of date

7 Searchthe list of unauthorised fms to avoid at
www fca org uk/scams

8 Consider that if you buy or sell shares from an unauthorised
firm you wilt not have access to the Financial Ombudsman
Service or Financial Services Compensation Scheme

9 Think about gething iIndependent financial and profess:onal
advice before you hand over any money

10 Remember If it sounds too good to be true, it probably is!

Report a scam

If you are approached about a share scam you should tell the FCA
using the share fraud reporhing form at www fca gov uk/scarms,
where you can find out about the latest investment scams You can
also call the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 6768 I§you have
already paid money to share fraudsters you should contact Action
Fraudon 0300 123 2040

Lets,
g0
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Transformation the first 365 days

Shareholder information continued

ShareGifr

Shareholders with a small number of shares, the vatue of which
make it uneconomical to sell may wish to consider donating them
to the chanty ShareCGift (Registered Charity Number 1052686),
which specialises in using such holdings for chanitable benefit

Find out more about ShareGift at www sharegift org or by
telephoring +44 (0)}20 79303737

Shareview dealing

A telephone and internet dealing service has been arranged
through the Registrar to provide a simple way of buying and

selling Thomas Cook Group plc shares for existing and prospective
UK-based shareholders For relephone dealing call 08456 037 037
(international telephone number «44 (Q)121 415 7560)
between 8 00am and 4 30prm (London time), Monday to Fnday
(excluding UK pubhic holidays), or visit the website

www shareview co uk/dealing Shareholders will need the
shareholder reference number shown on their share certificate(s}

Analysis of shareholders as at

Shareholder contacts

Shareholder Helphne 0871 384 27154

{International telephone number «44 (0121 4150182)
Website www thormascookgroup com

Registrar's website www shareview co uk

*Calls to this number cost 8p per minute plus network extras Lines are open B 30am to
5 30pm (London ime) Monday to Friday (excluding UK public holidays)

Financial calendar

Date Event

11 February 2014 Q1 2014 Intenm Management Statement
20 February 2014 Annual General Meeting

15 May 2014 Intertm results for &6 months ended
31 March 2014
31 July 2014 Q3 2014 Interim Management Statement

30 September 2013

Nurnber of
Distribution of shares by the type of shareholder holdings Number of shares
Nominees and institutional investars 1,434 1 433,441 170
Indwviduals 15,630 19,962 Q57
Total 17,064 1453 403,227

Nurnber of
Size of shareholding holdings Numbser of shares
1-100 G282 300159
101-500 3307 782,050
501-1,000 1,055 791,626
1,001-10,000 2,426 8825861
10 001-100 0Q0 619 18,257 807
100 001-500,000 162 39.110,074
500,001-1 000,000 52 35,300 709
1 000,001 and above 161 1,350,034,941
Total 17,064 1453 403,227
Registered office

3¢d Floor South Building, 200 Aldersgate London EC1A 4HD
Registered Nurmmber 6091951
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www.thomascookgroup.com

The Thomas Cook Group website provides news

and details of the Group’s activities, plus links to our
custormer sites and up-to-date information, including

> corporate news

> presentations

> share price data

> histonc Annual & Sustainability Reports

> half-year results and infeim management staternents
> news alerts

Thisreport s printed on Hello Far Mast produced
atamillcernfied to the ISO14001 and EMAS
environmentat management standards
Manufactured using responsible sources and 1
FSCcernfied

Thisreport is fully recyclable and biodegradable
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